
A1 – See Appendix A of Application 



RFA Section A – Business Information of Applicant 
A2 - Provide a brief summary (no longer than five double-spaced pages) of the applicant’s 
qualifications, experience and industry knowledge relevant to the development and operation of a 
dispensary facility.  

Background: 
In 2012, original business planning efforts started under the operating name of “Delta 9 THC Labs” with 
the goal of becoming a Producer of Medical Marijuana in the State of Connecticut.  As such, early efforts 
were aligned with the goal of becoming a cultivation operation.  As time went on, the competitive 
landscape shifted as well-established companies from other states began reaching into Connecticut and 
developing plans for expansion.  Given the cultivation experience and deep financial resources of 
established medical marijuana companies from other states, the company felt the most prudent course of 
action would be to make a strategy shift discontinuing pursuit of a Producer License. This was 
exacerbated by the fact that the State will only award three cultivation licenses and had high financial 
thresholds for cultivator eligibility, which was insurmountable for any smaller in-state entrepreneurial 
efforts (Exhibit 1).   

By mid-2013, we had already made many industry contacts, invested considerable time and resources
getting trained, attending conferences, and networking. Still wanting to be involved in some way 
providing this invaluable medicine to patients, we began exploring the opportunity to open a Medical 
Marijuana Dispensary.  The Dispensary side of the business has less interest from out of state entities 
particularly because of the requirement to have a Licensed CT Pharmacists on staff.  As such, a renaming 
effort was underway to find a business name complimentary to dispensary activities and Nutmeg State 
Health and Wellness Center, Inc. was born.

The company is a minority run business with three of its four Board members being women and the CEO 
is a woman and majority shareholder. While Connecticut has stated it is not taking an opinion on giving
preference to minority/woman run companies like other states, we nevertheless feel that it is an important 
distinction.

Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. (abbreviated as NSHWC throughout this application)
takes pride in providing excellent care to its patients as well as furthering scientific understanding of the 
use of medical marijuana and sharing this information with the public. Nutmeg State Health and Wellness 
Center, Inc. has thoughtfully comprised a diversely experienced and dynamic Board of Directors and 
Management Team focused on not only treating the patient’s symptoms, but leading the way for 
personalized medicine approaches in medical marijuana through its innovative research plan, while 
always maintaining patient data privacy at the forefront.

Attorney Karen Dietz, JD, MBA, Member to the Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 
Corporate Secretary, and majority shareholder, will be responsible for strategic oversight, corporate 
governance, legal compliance, contract negotiations, and providing legal advice to NSHWC, and 
overseeing the office of the President. Attorney Dietz has obtained certifications in Dispensary 
Management (January 2013), Cannabis Business Management (January 2013), Master Grower (January 
2013), and Budtending (January 2013). Attorney Dietz is currently the in-house corporate attorney for the 
Multiple Myeloma Research Foundation ("MMRF") located in Norwalk, CT, which focuses on 
collaborative clinical trials with academic medical centers and pharma; creating, analyzing, and sharing 
de-identified patient data with researchers worldwide, and creating an online patient 
community.  Attorney Dietz is experienced in HIPAA/HITECH compliance (Exhibit 2), facilitating 
clinical trials, and healthcare business operations. 



Mr. James Dietz, MS, President, Treasurer, and minority shareholder, will be responsible for facility 
security, data security, oversight of the Marketing and Public Relations Department, oversight of the 
Finance Department, oversight of the Lead Pharmacist, and managing vendor relationships. Mr. Dietz has 
obtained certifications in Dispensary Management (January 2013), Cannabis Business Management 
(January 2013), Hydroponics (March 2013 – Exhibit 3), Basic In-Door Horticulture (November 2013), 
Advanced In-Door Horticulture (November 2013), Master Grower (January 2013), and Budtending 
(January 2013). Mr. Dietz is currently an Information Technology consultant with Aetna, Inc. within the 
Pharmacy Domain in Hartford, CT, and is experienced with data security of patient health information 
and healthcare business operations.  Past experience also includes work in the Pharmaceutical space and 
other leading insurance providers throughout Connecticut. 
 
 
Ms. Sandra Wear, RN, Chair of the Board of Directors, will provide guidance to management on 
patient relations, patient education, research study operations guidance as well as guidance on overall 
NSHWC operations. Ms. Wear's input will contribute to publications in medical journals from NSHWC 
as well as patient informational materials. Ms. Wear has executive level pharmaceutical company 
experience and clinical trials operations experience. Ms. Wear is also business savvy as current CEO and 
Founder of an investment advisory company.  
 
 
Dr. Robert J. Frumento, PhD, Member to the Board of Directors, will provide scientific guidance on 
research studies sponsored by NSHWC, including clinical trial methods and design. NSHWC has already 
planned a comprehensive patient reported outcomes study, which will begin immediately upon NSHWC 
opening. Dr. Frumento will also be able to provide NSHWC pharmacists with deeper scientific 
understanding of medical marijuana, if requested. Dr. Frumento's input will contribute to publications in 
medical journals from NSHWC as well as patient informational materials. 
 
 
Ms. Jennifer Kokalari, MHS, PA-C, Member to the Board of Directors, will provide guidance to the 
pharmacists regarding physician orders, patient disease information, and other medical questions. Ms. 
Kokalari's input will contribute to publications in medical journals from NSHWC as well as patient 
informational materials. Ms. Kokalari is currently a Physician's Assistant in the Cardiology Department at 
a leading University in New Haven, CT. 
 
 
  



Mr. Kenneth Kandrysawtz, Facility Manager / Pharmacist, will be responsible for Dispensary 
Facility Management, overseeing the inventory of medical marijuana, dispensing medical marijuana to 
patients, quality control, patient relations, an overseeing other Pharmacists and reception positions. Mr. 
Kandrysawtz has expertise in opening, running, and managing a pharmacy. 
 
I graduated UConn in 1976 after spending my senior year as an intern at Hartford Hospital. I received my 
CT pharmacy license in 1976 and began working as a Staff Pharmacist for a pharmacy owner who had 
three separate locations that I rotated around to. A Staff Pharmacist is responsible for supervising the 
pharmacy technician, inventory control, properly dispensing prescriptions to customers, and providing 
confidential consultation to patients. This experience lead me to want to open my own pharmacy. 
Unfortunately, I opened in 1983 and had to close in 1984. The pharmacy and my marriage dissolved at 
the same time.   
 
I then took a Staff Pharmacist position at Burnside Drug (Arthur’s Drug) where I worked from 1985 to 
1998 when a new opportunity arose. I took a position with NeighborCare, which is a network of many 
Long-Term Care providers. I received the prescription orders, filled them, and shipped the prescriptions 
out via special courier to the right longer-term care facility for the patients to have their prescriptions. In 
2006, NeighborCare was acquired by OmniCare, and I decided to move on to the next opportunity. I took 
a position at Shop rite Pharmacy in Bristol, CT. 
 
After 33 years in pharmacy, I was presented with a unique opportunity to build a luxury home in the 
mountains of Montana. I took seized this opportunity and when I returned to Connecticut, I decided to 
take a short break from pharmacy and do a few more projects as a subcontractor for Dave’s Tile & Stone. 
 
With Medical Marijuana now being legalized, an interesting, new field is evolving in the pharmacy world 
and I am excited to have an opportunity to be a part of this emerging industry as the Facility Manager for 
Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. 
 

  



Mr. Daniel Vaughan, RPh, Pharmacist, will be responsible for dispensing medical marijuana to 
patients, quality control, patient relations, community outreach through giving presentations about the 
benefits of medical marijuana and how to seek help for abuse. Mr. Vaughan has previous experience 
designing, opening, and overseeing other pharmacies.  Mr. Vaughan has a thorough understanding of the 
science of medical marijuana and other herbal supplements and even received training in the Amazon 
Rainforest. Mr. Vaughan, as the face of NSHWC, has experience in patient consultation and is very 
compassionate and understanding of patients with debilitating medical conditions, such as those who will 
qualify for obtaining prescriptions for medical marijuana. 
 
Graduated UConn School of Pharmacy in 1987 in 4.5 years, a semester early. I immediately began work 
alongside my Dad, and after being licensed in March (after early Dec. grad), I took over Vaughan's 
Pharmacy Inc. as the President of the newly formed corporation. My father completely stepped down and 
I began to rebuild this business.  
 
The first year, I completely computerized the paper filing system. Shortly after that, I was approached by 
the main local physician, Dr. Brenes, offering us business space in his new office building, which I 
accepted. This is one of two times I moved the entirety of my pharmacy operation to a different location, 
designing the floor plan, blue print, marketing plan and approach, arranging everything necessary, all of 
the things that you are currently looking to go into a dispensary.  
 
A few years later, a better opportunity arose at a free-standing building next store to the medical building 
I was in at the time.  Again, I met with contractors leading them through the construction of my 
personally designed pharmacy plans (detailed blueprints and interior and exterior sketches). The entire 
building was renovated adding security and modernization, with a focus on privacy, including a 
pharmacist care counseling booth. 
 
From 1991 to 1995, I was a Certified Diabetic Educator CDE and helped manage and train local diabetic 
patients on treatment options and healthy living. During this time, I also volunteered with several 
Connecticut Pharmacist Association groups, including the Pharmacist Concerned for Pharmacists 
committee becoming the co-chairperson. Shortly thereafter I was nominated to the Executive Committee 
of the CPA and held that position till 1997. I was very involved in outreach programs to help impaired 
pharmacists and worked with the CPA to bring smoking cessation counseling to Connecticut Pharmacists. 
 
My biggest interest in pharmaceutical medicine has always been in the area of natural medicine and 
throughout the 1990s, I grew my pharmacy by expanding into specialty areas. New product lines were 
brought in, including a full line of nutritional and herbal products.  The product lines I offered at my 
pharmacy were high quality and only available to health professionals. I educated myself in every area of 
natural medicines from homeopathy to herbals with my main focus on plants. I truly believed that nature 
offered such a wonderful way to heal the body through plants. I attended many seminars by renowned 
naturopaths, including a trip to the Amazon Rainforest for specialized training. The course, "Pharmacy 
from the Rainforest," included presentation from world renowned experts, concluding with a shaman 
preparing for a jungle ayahuasca ceremony (photos included at the end). This was the beginning of my 
preparation to open a future medical marijuana dispensary. Some plants have too many biologically active 
ingredients working in harmony to replicate in the lab, such as cannabis, which has over 80 unique 
biological components not found in other plants. 
 
In 1998, I sold my pharmacy to Rite Aid. 
 
My passion of natural homeopathic remedies continues. “The long-term benefit of homeopathy to the 
patient is that it not only alleviates the presenting symptoms but it re-establishes internal order at the 



deepest levels and thereby provides a lasting cure” (quote by George Vithoulkas, Director, Athenian 
School of Homeopathic Medicine).  
 
I look forward to having the opportunity to share my passion of natural homeopathic remedies to benefit 
qualified patients in the State of Connecticut as a Pharmacist at Nutmeg State Health and Wellness 
Center, Inc. Further, with the research plan designed by Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc., I 
hope to gain further insights that will lead to a more personalized medicine approach providing the most 
effective strain of medical marijuana to patients based on the type and stage of their disease in order to 
provide the best treatment result to patients. Finally, I look to focus on education for patients, caregivers 
and physicians on the benefits of medical marijuana as well as educating the general public in an effort to 
reduce the stigma of medical marijuana use. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Daniel Vaughan, RPh. 
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A3 - Provide a financial statement setting forth the elements and details of all business 
transactions connected with your application. 
 

Financial Plan 

Revenue Forecast 

 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 

Total Revenue $820,400 $1,835,200 $3,295,600 

Total Direct Cost $410,200 $917,600 $1,647,800 

Gross Margin $410,200 $917,600 $1,647,800 

Gross Margin % 50% 50% 50% 

About the Revenue Forecast 

The location is at the junction of Route 44 and Route 8, which provides convenient 
accessibility for patients in  Litchfield County. The traffic pattern at this location has 
18,000 cars per day. The location is also 10 miles from the outer edge of Hartford 
County and therefore an assumption is made that 10% of patients from Hartford 
County will be registered with NSHWC for filling their prescriptions. 

Once the dispensary is open, it is projected that more patients will register with the 
state to obtain prescriptions. Growth is calculated at 5% for each month . 

Max. ounces purchased per month per patient by CT law is 2.5oz.  This Plan uses a 
conservative estimate of 1.5 oz per patient. 

Average selling price is an estimated based on industry averages from other US States 
that have medical marijuana programs. Actual prices will be determined once 
cultivators publish their prices. 

Price includes discounts through NSHWC compassionate care program for low income 
patients. 

Sales Tax rate is 6.35% 
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Personnel Plan 

Personnel Table 

 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 

Pharmacist 1 $47,337 $59,800 $62,192 

Pharmacist 2 $47,337 $59,800 $62,192 

Receptionist $10,350 $13,800 $14,352 

Bookkeeper $12,078 $16,100 $16,744 

James Dietz $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 

Karen Dietz $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 

Total $317,102 $349,500 $355,480 

 

About the Personnel Plan 

The Personnel Plan detail is described in another section  
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Budget Table 

 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 

Operating Expenses    

Salary $317,102 $349,500 $355,480 

Employee Related Expenses $63,424 $69,900 $71,095 

Marketing & Promotion $1,100 $1,650 $2,150 

Mortgage $15,192 $15,192 $15,192 

Utilities $7,600 $7,900 $8,150 

Office Supplies $17,000 $14,516 $16,378 

Insurance $24,413 $45,877 $82,389 

Merchant Service Fees $27,008 $60,405 $108,480 

Sec Sys, CCTV, Intrusion & 
Software $8,780 $10,536 $10,536 

Contribution $0 $27,430 $91,825 

Total Operating Expenses $481,619 $602,906 $761,675 

Major Purchases    

Land $113,000 $0 $0 

Building $187,000 $0 $0 

Survey $3,750 $0 $0 

Building Improvements $75,000 $0 $0 

Security Glass $55,900 $0 $0 

Safe $5,000 $0 $0 

Security Access Control $27,500 $0 $0 

Security Closed Circuit System $13,270 $0 $0 

Security Intrusion System $6,900 $0 $0 

Backup Generator $10,000 $0 $0 

Display Cases / TV $2,800 $0 $0 

Entrance Gate $7,220 $0 $0 

Total Major Purchases $507,340 $0 $0 

Loans and Investments 

 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 
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Mortgage  
Loan at 6% interest for 180 mos. $150,000 $0 $0 

James Dietz 
Financing at 6% interest $125,000 $0 $0 

Nexum Group 
Loan at 8.25% interest for 60 mos. $300,000 $0 $0 

James Dietz 
Financing at 6% interest $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 

Karen Dietz 
Financing at 6% interest $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 

Total Amount Received $775,000 $200,000 $200,000 

Sources of Funds 

The $150,000 mortgage represents one half of the purchase price for the Land and 
Building being held by the sellers. 

James Dietz will invest $125,000 toward the Land and Building. 

A $300,000 loan from The Nexum Group will be used for working capital, capital 
equipment, and the building and building improvements. 

James and Karen Dietz will draw a salary from the Corporation and re-invest the funds 
into the Corporation until that time the Corporation’s cash flow is stable. 



Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. 

Page 11 of 33 
 

Profit and Loss Statement 
 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 

Revenue $820,400 $1,835,200 $3,295,600 

Direct Cost $410,200 $917,600 $1,647,800 

Gross Margin $410,200 $917,600 $1,647,800 

Gross Margin % 50% 50% 50% 

Operating Expenses   

Salary $317,102 $349,500 $355,480 

Employee Related Expenses $63,424 $69,900 $71,095 

Marketing & Promotion $1,100 $1,650 $2,150 

Mortgage $15,192 $15,192 $15,192 

Utilities $7,600 $7,900 $8,150 

Office Supplies $17,000 $14,516 $16,378 

Insurance $24,413 $45,877 $82,389 

Merchant Service Fees $27,008 $60,405 $108,480 

Sec Sys, CCTV, Intrusion & 
Software $8,780 $10,536 $10,536 

Contribution $0 $27,430 $91,825 

Total Operating Expenses $481,619 $602,906 $761,675 

Operating Income ($71,419) $314,694 $886,125 

Interest Incurred $40,978 $46,278 $38,193 

Depreciation and Amortization $19,034 $21,527 $21,527 

Income Taxes $0 $104,928 $351,222 

Total Expenses $951,831 $1,693,239 $2,820,417 

Net Profit ($131,431) $141,961 $475,183 

Net Profit / Sales (16%) 8% 14% 
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Balance Sheet 

As of Period's End FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 

Cash $60,101 $84,550 $421,150 

Accounts Receivable $0 $0 $0 

Inventory $76,400 $137,200 $137,400 

Total Current Assets $136,501 $221,750 $558,550 

Long-Term Assets $507,340 $507,340 $507,340 

Accumulated Depreciation ($19,034) ($40,561) ($62,088) 

Total Long-Term Assets $488,306 $466,779 $445,252 

Total Assets $624,807 $688,529 $1,003,802 

Accounts Payable $43,245 $76,248 $82,665 

Sales Taxes Payable $0 $0 $0 

Short-Term Debt $0 $0 $0 

Total Current Liabilities $43,245 $76,248 $82,665 

Long-Term Debt $712,993 $601,751 $435,424 

Total Liabilities $756,238 $677,999 $518,089 

Paid-In Capital $0 $0 $0 

Retained Earnings $0 ($131,431) $10,530 

Earnings ($131,431) $141,961 $475,183 

Total Owner's Equity ($131,431) $10,530 $485,713 

Total Liabilities & Equity $624,807 $688,529 $1,003,802 
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Cash Flow Statement 

 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 

Operations   

Net Profit ($131,431) $141,961 $475,183 

Depreciation and Amortization $19,034 $21,527 $21,527 

Change in Accounts Receivable $0 $0 $0 

Change in Inventory ($76,400) ($60,800) ($200) 

Change in Accounts Payable $43,245 $33,003 $6,417 

Change in Sales Taxes Payable $0 $0 $0 

Net Cash Flow from Operations ($145,552) $135,691 $502,927 

Investing & Financing   

Assets Purchased or Sold ($507,340) $0 $0 

Investments Received $0 $0 $0 

Change in Short-Term Debt $0 $0 $0 

Change in Long-Term Debt $712,993 ($111,242) ($166,327) 

Net Cash Flow from Investing & 
Financing $205,653 ($111,242) ($166,327) 

Cash at Beginning of Period $0 $60,101 $84,550 

Net Change in Cash $60,101 $24,449 $336,600 

Cash at End of Period $60,101 $84,550 $421,150 

 

This Plan is developed on the assumption that the facility can be renovated with the 
appropriate security systems and that the marijuana can be grown within three month 
from the completion of the award process. 
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B. LOCATION AND SITE PLAN  
  
Please provide the following information:  
  
1. The location of the proposed dispensary facility;  
100 New Hartford Road, Winsted, CT 06098.  
 
2. Documents sufficient to establish that the applicant is authorized to conduct  business in 
Connecticut and that state and local building, fire and zoning requirements and local ordinances 
are met for the proposed location of the dispensary facility;  

 For the property in question, all building, fire, and zoning requirements including local 
ordinances will be satisfied before opening for business.  The open issue of approval by Planning 
and Zoning will be heard on NOV 25th 2013 at 7:00PM EST.  Building and Fire Code ordinances 
will be met upon completion of renovations to the property by Borghesi Building and 
Engineering Co., Inc. prior to operation.  

 See Exhibit #04 for interior design and Exhibit #05 for exterior design. 
 
 
3. If the property is not owned by the applicant, provide a written statement from the property 
owner and landlord certifying that they have consented to the applicant operating a dispensary 
facility on the premises;  
 
NSHWC has signed a conditional real estate purchase contract (Exhibit 06) for 100 New Hartford Road, 
Winsted, CT 06098. There are two conditions that must be met for the transaction to be executed; the first 
condition is that our application to Winsted Planning and Zoning be approved to use the property in 
question as a Medical Marijuana Dispensary.  This application is currently awaiting a hearing scheduled 
for NOV 25th 2013, 7PM EST.  The second condition is the State of Connecticut granting Nutmeg State 
Health and Wellness Center, Inc. a Dispensary License. Only if both of these conditions are met will the 
real estate purchase contract will be executed. Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. will be the 
owner of the property/building and therefore have no restrictions from an ownership perspective for use 
of the property as a Medical Marijuana Dispensary. 
  
 
4. Any text and graphic materials that will be shown on the exterior of the proposed dispensary 
facility;  
For the purposes of discretion and to comply with the regulations with respect to signage, NSHWC will 
have the following signs on the exterior of the building (wherever possible, all signs will also include 
Braille on the actual sign in compliance with ADA standards); 

 “Company Name” Signage:  Plain Text only “Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center”, no 
graphics, and no backlighting approximately 48” long and 12” high to be located above the main 
entrance vestibule.   

 “Hours of Operation” Signage: Located to the right side of the entrance vestibule, this sign will 
be 14”x10”, constructed of aluminum, listing the hours of operation as listed in the application 
section appendix A.  This sign will be similar to the following: 
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 “Security Notice” Signage: Constructed of reflective “diamond grade” aluminum, located to the 
left side of the entrance vestibule, and no less than one sign on each of the other sides of the 
building and at the main entrance to the facility.  This sign will be approximately 18”x24” and 
include text and graphics as depicted below: 
 

  
  

 “Employee Entrance” Signage (rear of building): Engineer grade reflective aluminum, located on 
the door at the rear of the building that serves as the entrance to the “Break Room”.  This sign 
text will read “No admittance: Authorized Personnel Only” and will look as below: 
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 “Firearms/Weapons Policy” Signage: To be located by the main entrance vestibule.  Constructed 
of reflective “diamond grade” aluminum 18”x24” and include text and graphics as depicted 
below: 
 

 
 

 “Metal Detector” signage: To be located by the main entrance vestibule.  Constructed of 
reflective “diamond grade” aluminum 18”x24” and include text and graphics as depicted below: 
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 “Emergency Exit” signage:  To be located on the exterior of any/all doors designated as 

Emergency exit.  Constructed of reflective “diamond grade” aluminum 18”x24” and include text 
and graphics as depicted below: 
 

 
 

 
5. Photographs of the surrounding neighborhood and businesses sufficient to evaluate the proposed 
dispensary facility’s compatibility with commercial or residential structures already constructed, or 
under construction, within the immediate neighborhood;  
 
See attached photos, Exhibit #07 
 
 
6. A site plan drawn to scale of the proposed dispensary facility showing streets, property lines, 
buildings, parking areas, and outdoor areas, if applicable, that are within the same block as the 
dispensary facility;  
 
See Site Plan, in binder, (due to size, hard copy only) 
  
 
7. A map that identifies all places used primarily for religious worship, public or private school, 
convent, charitable institution, whether supported by private or public funds, hospital or veterans’ 
home or any camp or military establishment that are within 1000 feet of the proposed dispensary 
facility location; and  
 
See 1000ft Survey in binder, (due to size, hard copy only) 
  
8. A blueprint, or floor plan drawn to scale, of the proposed dispensary facility, which shall, at a 
minimum, show and identify the following:  
  

a. The location and square footage of the area which will constitute the dispensary 
department from which marijuana and marijuana products will be sold;  
  
b. The square footage of the overall dispensary facility;  
  
c. The square footage and location of areas used as storerooms or stockrooms within the 
dispensary department;  
  
d. The size of the counter that will be used for selling marijuana and marijuana products 
within the dispensary department;  
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e. The location of the dispensary facility sink and refrigerator, if any;  
  
f. The location of all approved safes and approved vaults that will be used to store 
marijuana and marijuana products;  
  
g. The location of the toilet facilities;  
  
h. The location of a break room and location of personal belonging lockers;  
  
i. The location and size of patient counseling areas, if any;  
  
j. The locations where any other products or services, in addition to marijuana and 
marijuana products, will be offered, if any; and  
  
k. The location of all areas that may contain marijuana and marijuana products showing 
the location of walls, partitions, counters and all areas of ingress and egress.  
 
 
See Blueprint, Exhibit #04 
 
 

C1. A detailed description of all products intended to be offered by the dispensary facility during 
the first year of operation;  
 
Products that will be offered by the Dispensary facility during the first year of operation will include 
Medical Marijuana (flowers), Infused Products such as edibles, Concentrates, tinctures, and various oils.  
These products will exclusively originate with the Producers. 

 
C2. A detailed description of all services to be offered by the dispensary facility during the first 
year of operation;  
  
We will offer ancillary services through the establishment of relationships with local vendors such as 
massage therapists, chiropractors, counseling, yoga, and other complimentary offering areas for referrals.  
We will also offer some in house educational type events for patients, care providers, and doctors. 
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C3. A detailed description of the process that a dispensary facility will take to ensure that access to 
the dispensary facility premises will be limited only to employees, qualifying patients and primary 
caregivers;  

 
 See Security Plan, Exhibit #09.   

 
 Building Location – While the building is located on a main road, Route 44 (at the 

junction with Route 8), providing easy travel access for patients, the building itself is 
somewhat discretely secluded from other properties with unique topography. There is 
only one driveway to the stand-alone building which is set back from the road by a 
ravine/wetlands, which also goes partially along the left side of the building.  Behind the 
building is a large retaining wall and to the right of the driveway is wooded (See Pictures; 
Exhibit). 

 
 Front Gate – Patient/caregivers must be pre-registered and have an appointment by 

logging onto website or by phone with NSHWC before arriving, including providing the 
make, model, and license plate of their vehicle. There will be an electronic front gate 
partially up the driveway, which will be remain closed except when opened with security 
card or by the receptionist from within the building. Only patients or caregivers that are 
registered with NSHWC will be granted access to the NSHWC dispensary. 
Patients/caregivers will need to roll down the window of their car and push a button to 
speak to the receptionist. There will be cameras at the gate (see Security Plan, Exhibit 9) 
so the receptionist can visually identify the patient/caregiver, as their car would have 
been already registered with NSHWC. Once the receptionist verifies the authenticity of 
the patient/caregiver, the gate will be opened electronically by the receptionist.  

 
 Outer Building Glass - All outer building glass will be rated bulletproof. The 

Dispensary area of the facility does not contain any windows with the exception of the 
drive-through window.  If the drive-through option is not acceptable for any reason to the 
State of Connecticut this window would be removed/sealed as part of the renovations 
(Details in Security Plan, Exhibit 09). 
 

 There will be 3 outer doors to the building. All will be well lit, with motion detection and 
cameras recording access 24x7. 

 
o Emergency Exit in the back of the patient reception area, will have an alarm that 

will trigger response by police and fire. This door will only be used for 
emergencies and this door will be locked from outside access at all times. 
 

o Back Entrance for employees and deliveries only. Employees will have card 
access, which will be programmed to only allow employees access during their 
individually scheduled worked hours, so that employees cannot enter the building 
after hours. This back door will lead to the employee lounge. Employees will not 
be able to move past the employee lounge without going through another key 
card access security door, which will enter into the display/dispensary area. 
 

o Front Entrance is a double door with a vestibule between the doors. During 
business hours, the first door will be unlocked, but have a metal detector that 
patients/caregivers will need to go through to get to the vestibule. Once in the 
vestibule (mantrap), the first door must completely close before the receptionist 
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would press a button (upon positive identification) to electronically open the 
second door, which leads to the patient reception/waiting area.  

 
 Entrance to Dispensary / Display Area  

o From Reception Area - Secure door with card access from reception area to 
display area. Patients and Caregivers will need to be escorted by a NSHWC 
pharmacist to enter the display area. Only employees will have card access, 
which will be programmed to only allow employees access during their 
individually scheduled worked hours, so that employees cannot enter the building 
after hours.  
 

o From Employee Lounge - Employees will not be able to move past the employee 
lounge without going through card access security door, which will enter into the 
display area. 

 
 Entrance to Prescription Room - Secure door to safe/vault room where marijuana will 

be stored. Only NSHWC pharmacists, CEO, and President will have a key card that grant 
access to the Prescription Room where the safe is held. The pharmacist key card will only 
work during individual scheduled work hours. A camera will be pointed at the door to the 
Inventory Room to record access. 
 

 Marijuana Safe - The safe will have a biometric identification scanner, which will be set 
to only work for the CEO, President, and pharmacists.  In accordance with NSHWC 
Policy, the Prescription Room cannot be entered when patients/caregivers are in the 
display area. If Patients/Caregivers are in the NSHWC dispensary when the safe needs to 
be accessed, patients and caregivers must be located in the reception area. 

 
 Deliveries of Medical Marijuana – Deliveries will only be allowed during hours the 

dispensary is not open to patients and caregivers. Deliveries will be made through the 
back entrance and brought into the Prescription Filling Area. The President and the Lead 
Pharmacist will need to be present for deliveries and both will be accountable to ensuring 
the inventory is logged and stored correctly.  Monthly inventory audits jointly by the 
CEO and President will occur.  

 
  
  



Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. 

Page 21 of 33 
 

C4. A detailed description of the features, if any, that will provide accessibility to qualifying 
patients and primary caregivers beyond what is required by the Americans with Disabilities Act;  

  
 NSHWC staff in will be trained in People First Language (program created by the Texas 

Council for Developmental Disabilities) and disability etiquette. 
 

 NSHWC staff will be trained to be familiar with reasonable accommodations and how to 
offer them (accessible documents, etc). 
 

 If permitted by the State of Connecticut, NSHWC will have a secure and convenient 
drive up window (similar to a bank or other pharmacies, such as CVS) so that patients do 
not have to get out of their car, which can especially difficult for patients with physical 
challenges, during inclement weather, or for patient caregivers whom may not require a 
full consultation with the Pharmacist.  This service would only be offered for refills, first 
time prescription filling must meet with the Pharmacist for a consultation. 
 

 NSHWC staff will offer to read materials aloud and offer visual descriptions of amenities 
on request for people with visual disabilities. 
 

 NSHWC will provide alternate formats (Braille, Large Print, high contrast) for 
documents; also make the forms available online in multiple accessible file formats. 
 

 NSHWC, in advertising, marketing and outreach media, will include positive portrayals 
of people with disabilities. 
 

 Braille signs will be in appropriate places throughout the NSHWC dispensary. 
 

 Liquid sanitation will be available at counters throughout the NSHWC dispensary. 
 

 Comfortable seating will be available for patients, caregivers, and staff. 
 

 Audio Description and Captioning will be provided on any video presentations. 
 

 Additional accessible parking spaces than required by law. 
 

 NSHWC visitor documents will be available in alternate formats (Large Print, high 
contrast, Braille, electronic format). 
 

 Motion sensor lighting will be in restrooms and other spaces that are not continually 
occupied. 
 

 On all documents, including having patient information booklets, information and 
instructions will be provided in an easy to read standard font written in a plain English 
format.  
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C5. A detailed description of any air treatment or other system that will be installed and used to 
reduce off-site odors;  
 
The NSHWC facility will employ an air treatment system to reduce/eliminate off-site odors.  Through the 
use of a fan assisted roof exhaust vent, air will be treated with carbon filtration and ozone 
supplementation before exiting the facility.  Carbon filters will be replaced at minimum monthly or early 
if any noticeable smell is observed outside the facility. 

  
 

C6. A detailed description of the process by which marijuana and marijuana products will be 
delivered to a dispensary facility from the producer, including the protocols that will be used to 
avoid any diversion, theft or loss of marijuana;  

  
Deliveries of Medical Marijuana  

 Deliveries will only be allowed during hours the dispensary is not open to patients and caregivers.  
 

 Deliveries will be made through the back Employee Only entrance and brought into the 
Prescription Filling Area for placement into the Dispensary Safe.  

 
 The President and the Lead Pharmacist will need to be present for deliveries and both will be 

accountable to ensuring the inventory is logged and stored correctly.   
 

 Monthly inventory audits jointly by the CEO and President will occur.  
 

 

C7. A detailed description of the training and continuing education opportunities that will be 
provided to dispensary facility employees; and  

 Mr. Dietz, President has obtained certifications in Cannabis Business Management, Hydroponics, 
Master Grower, and Budtender. Mr. Dietz has also a member of the National Cannabis Industry 
Association since March 2013. 
  

 Ms. Dietz, CEO, has obtained certifications in Dispensary Management (January 2013), Cannabis 
Business Management (January 2013), Master Grower (January 2013), and Budtending (January 
2013). 
 

 Directors, Officers and Employees will be encouraged to attend classes, seminars, and 
conventions including but not limited to, those sponsored by the Cannabis Career Institute (CCI) 
and Oaksterdam University. All registration fees and travel expenses will be paid for by NSHWC. 
 

 NSHWC has developed an internal training program of the following modules: 
 

o Employee Policies 
 Employee Handbook (See Employee Handbook attached, Exhibit #09) 
 Employee Safety 
 Business Conduct and Integrity 

 
o Regulatory Compliance / Patient Information 

 Patient Privacy and Data Security Policy (See Policies, Exhibit #10) 
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 HIPAA Privacy Compliance 
 Data protection and Information Security 
 Inappropriate Disclosure of Protected Health Information 
 Privacy Breach Reporting 

 
o Patient Relations 

 Managing the Stress of Giving Care 
 Care Management 
 Compassionate Care for Caregivers 
 Healthy Lifestyle Coaching – Dealing with Relapse 
 Healthy Lifestyle Coaching – Stress and Stress Reduction 
 Patient Empathy 
 Dietician Referral Training 
 Collaboration with Case Management 

 
 

C8. A detailed description of any processes or controls that will be implemented to prevent the 
diversion, theft or loss of marijuana.  
 

 Building Location – While the building is located on a main road, Route 44 (at the 
junction with Route 8), providing easy travel for patients, the building itself is somewhat 
secluded from other properties. There is only one driveway to the building which is set 
back from the road by a ravine, which is also goes partially along the left side of the 
building.  Behind the building is a large rock wall and to the right of the driveway is 
wooded.  
 

 Front Gate – Patient/caregivers must be pre-registered and have an appointment by 
logging onto website or phone with NSHWC before arriving, including providing the 
make and model of their car. There will be a front gate partially up the driveway, which 
will be closed. Only patients or caregivers that are registered with NSHWC will be 
granted access to the NSHWC dispensary. Patients/caregivers will need to roll down the 
window of their car and push a button to speak to the receptionist. There will be cameras 
at the gate so the receptionist can visually identify the patient/caregiver, as their car 
would have been already registered with NSHWC. Once the receptionist verifies the 
authenticity of the patient/caregiver, the gate will be opened electronically by the 
receptionist.  
 

 Outer Building Glass - All outer building glass will be bulletproof, which specifically 
means…  
 

 There will be 3 outer doors to the building. All will have cameras recording access. 
o Emergency Exit in the back of the patient reception area, will have an alarm that 

will trigger response by police and fire. This door will only be used for 
emergencies and no one will have access to enter through this door. 

 
o Back Entrance for employees and deliveries only, which will have key card 

access, which will be programmed to only allow employees access during their 
individually scheduled worked hours, so that employees cannot enter the building 
after hours. This back door will lead to the employee lounge. Employees will not 
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be able to move past the employee lounge without going through another key 
card access security door, which will enter into the display area. 
 

o Front Entrance is a double door with a vestibule between the doors. During 
business hours, the first door will be unlocked, but have a metal detector that 
patients/caregivers will need to go through to get to the vestibule. Once in the 
vestibule, the first door must completely close before the receptionist would press 
a button to electronically open the second door, which leads to the patient 
reception area.  

 Entrance to Display Area  
o From Reception Area - Secure door with key card access from reception area to 

display area. Patients and Caregivers will need to be escorted by a NSHWC 
pharmacist to enter the display area. Only employees will have key card access, 
which will be programmed to only allow employees access during their 
individually scheduled worked hours, so that employees cannot enter the building 
after hours.  
 

o From Employee Lounge - Employees will not be able to move past the employee 
lounge without going through another key card access security door, which will 
enter into the display area. 
 

 Entrance to Prescription Room - Secure door to safe/vault room where marijuana will 
be stored. Only NSHWC pharmacists, CEO, and President will have a key card that grant 
access to the Prescription Room where the safe is held. The pharmacist key card will only 
work during individual scheduled work hours. A camera will be pointed at the door to the 
Inventory Room to record access. 
 

 Marijuana Safe - The safe will have a biometric identification scanner, which will be set 
to only work for the CEO, President, and pharmacists.  In accordance with NSHWC 
Policy, the Prescription Room cannot be entered when patients/caregivers are in the 
display area. If Patients/Caregivers are in the NSHWC dispensary when the safe needs to 
be accessed, patients and caregivers must be located in the reception area. 
 

 Deliveries of Medical Marijuana – Deliveries will only be allowed during hours the 
dispensary is not open to patients and caregivers. Deliveries will be made through the 
back entrance and brought into the Prescription Filling Area. The President and the Lead 
Pharmacist will need to be present for deliveries and both will be accountable to ensuring 
the inventory is logged and stored correctly.  Monthly inventory audits jointly by the 
CEO and President will occur.  
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D. PROPOSED MARKETING PLAN  
  

1. Provide a copy of the applicant’s proposed marketing plan and include any web templates and 
educational materials such as brochures, posters, or promotional items.  

 See power point presentation, Exhibit #11 
 See patient information booklet, Exhibit #12 

 
PR (Public Relations): 

 
Community outreach 

o Host/schedule informational sessions on the medicinal/healthcare of medicinal 
marijuana onsite at dispensary 

 Free informational sessions coordinated offsite at local hospitals & 
clinics associated with cancer treatment  

o Publish and distribute fact-based literature on the proper administration of 
medical marijuana and the benefits 

Business News 
o Issue regular updates on organizational developments, community outreach 

events, and industry related news via corporate website and local media  
Digital: 

 Corporate website 
o Launch a customer facing resource that outlines all services, expertise, and 

business information associated with the dispensary. 
o  SEO/SEM program 

 Optimize corporate website to rank for search engine results associated 
with licensed dispensaries within Litchfield, CT. 

 Develop/launch a pay per click advertising campaign inclusive of all 
major search engines to drive awareness of the dispensary online. 

o BLOG: journal of misc, but relevant topics related to medical marijuana 
o E-newsletter 

 Free e-Newsletter addressing contemporary topics related to medicinal 
marijuana and treatment 

o Live Chat resource for prospects/customers to engage dispensary personnel on 
any variety of topics (services, policies, hours of operation, etc.) 

Collateral: 

 Printed literature 
o Brochure that outlines business services, hours of operation, FAQs, etc… 

 Also available in PDF for website 

Advertising: 

 PPC digital advertising across all major search engines 
 Printed ad placements within local/regional newspapers 
 Co-op advertising with local hospitals and clinics associated with cancer treatment 
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SALES 

Business Development 

 Develop a collaborative training/education program with local hospitals & clinics 
treating cancer 

 Identify “partner” facilities interested in promoting the dispensary’s expertise and 
services (e.g. business cards, brochures, info sessions, etc.) 

Training/consultation: 

 Comprehensive inside sales/customer service training for all customer facing 
employees (counter, phone, field).  

o Ensure all employees are knowledgeable regarding the law and dispensary 
policies associated with a customer’s purchase 

Dispensary Hours: 

 Maintain store hours that are convenient to customers 

 

 
 

E. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE  
  
Please provide the following information or copies of the following documents:  
  
1. Documents such as the articles of incorporation, articles of association, charter,  
by-laws, partnership agreement, agreements between any two or more members  
of the applicant that relate in any manner to the assets, property or profit of the  
applicant or any other comparable documents that set forth the legal structure of  
the applicant or relate to the organization, management or control of the applicant;  Code of 
Ethics; first report, sales and use tax id, FEIN. 
 

 See Articles of Incorporation, Exhibit #13 
 See Bylaws, Exhibit #1 
 See Code of Ethics, Exhibit #14  
 See Certificate of Legal Existence, Exhibit #15 
 See Connecticut Sales and Use Tax Certificate, Exhibit #16 
 See First Report, Exhibit #17 
 Sales and Use Tax Confirmation ID #13W990840019 
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2. A current organizational chart that includes position descriptions and the names  
and resumes of persons holding each position to the extent such positions have  
been filled. To the extent such information is not revealed by their resume,  
include additional pages with each resume setting out the employee’s particular  
skills, education, experience or significant accomplishments that are relevant to  
owning or operating a dispensary facility;  
  

 See Organizational Chart 
 See Resumes 
 Response to Section A-2: 

 
Kenneth Kandrysawtz 

 I graduated UConn in 1976 after spending my senior year as an intern at Hartford Hospital. I 
received my CT pharmacy license in 1976 and began working as a Staff Pharmacist for a 
pharmacy owner who had three separate locations that I rotated around to. A Staff Pharmacist 
is responsible for supervising the pharmacy technician, inventory control, properly dispensing 
prescriptions to customers, and providing confidential consultation to patients. This experience 
lead me to want to open my own pharmacy. Unfortunately, I opened in 1983 and had to close in 
1984. The pharmacy and my marriage dissolved at the same time.   
 

 I then took a Staff Pharmacist position at Burnside Drug (Arthur’s Drug) where I worked 
from 1985 to 1998 when a new opportunity arose. I took a position with NeighborCare, 
which is a network of many Long-Term Care providers. I received the prescription 
orders, filled them, and shipped the prescriptions out via special courier to the right 
longer-term care facility for the patients to have their prescriptions. In 2006, 
NeighborCare was acquired by OmniCare, and I decided to move on to the next 
opportunity. I took a position at Shop rite Pharmacy in Bristol, CT. 
 

 After 33 years in pharmacy, I was presented with a unique opportunity to build a luxury 
home in the mountains of Montana. I took seized this opportunity and when I returned to 
Connecticut, I decided to take a short break from pharmacy and do a few more projects as 
a subcontractor for Dave’s Tile & Stone. 
 

 With Medical Marijuana now being legalized, an interesting, new field is evolving in the 
pharmacy world and I am excited to have an opportunity to be a part of this emerging 
industry as the Facility Manager for Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. 
 

Karen Dietz 
Appendix C answers for Karen 
 

 
Ph# 860-866-8469 
Karen-dietz@hotmail.com 
21 – 26 = NO 
 
27/28 = Yes 
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Multiple Myeloma Research Foundation (MMRF) located in Norwalk, CT.   
(myeloma is a rare blood cancer) 
2007 – 2009: Contracts Administrator 
2009 – Present: In-House Counsel (see resume attached exhibit for more details) 
 
The Services of the MMRF are relevant to this RFA because the emerging industry of medical marijuana 
could benefit from innovative research studies, which the MMRF is a leader for developing cutting-edge 
research models that can be used in any field of research. 
 

 MMRF Research Grants - fund innovative research, which brings new talent into the field of 
myeloma, an orphan disease.  
 

 Collaboration among leading cancer centers to establish a central tissue back for pre-clinical 
research. 
 

 CoMMpass Study - The MMRF’s Personalized Medicine Initiative is an eight-year, multifaceted 
program designed to identify the molecular origins of multiple myeloma and enable physicians to 
match specific treatment approaches to the patients most likely to benefit. The Personalized Medicine 
Initiative is centered around CoMMpass  (Relating Clinical Outcomes in Multiple Myeloma to 
Personal Assessment of Genetic Profile), a recently launched, landmark, 1000-patient longitudinal 
study that will track multiple myeloma patients from initial diagnosis through their course of 
treatment, accompanied by sequential tissue sampling to identify how a patient’s molecular profile 
may affect clinical progression and individual response to treatment. New treatment approaches 
tailored to multiple myeloma patients’ individual molecular profiles are urgently needed to extend 
lives and begin to cure the disease. With extensive experience in genomics and a strong clinical 
network in place, the MMRF is in the unique position to champion this bold concept and has become 
a model for other research groups seeking to advance personalized medicine. CoMMpass  sits on the 
razor’s edge of science and aims to vastly improve the understanding of the molecular features of 
multiple myeloma and, by leveraging this knowledge, match patients with the right treatments or 
combination of treatments. CoMMpass  is the first and largest study of its kind to analyze disease 
progression and response to treatment based on patients’ genomic or molecular profiles. Findings 
from this study can potentially transform multiple myeloma treatment approaches by enabling 
physicians, for the first time, to find individualized treatments that are most likely to be effective. 
Notably, academic and pharmaceutical industry partners in this initiative have given up rights to any 
inventions, signifying their commitment to expediting and revolutionizing the traditional drug 
discovery and development model. 
 

 Consortium - First collaborative research model of its kind that brings together academic and 
community cancer centers with industry to advance innovative PH1 and 2 trials of the most 
promising drug candidates. MMRC Member Institutions are supported by an advanced infrastructure 
(PRC, SC, MMPMs, IST Platform) allow for communications across the Membership to discuss the 
myeloma pipeline at each stage of development and to expand collaboration with those companies 
with the most promising drugs.   
 

 Publications - Emphasis placed on ensuring publications are released to share the data with the 
public.  
 

 Patient / Physician Education - MMRF hosts continuing medical education program sfor 
physicians and clinical insights programs for patients as well as providing print materials. 
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 Researcher Gateway - The MMRF intends to ensure the most widespread availability of and use of 
the Data subject to pre-publication review. Coded health information and information from more 
detailed analyses of the patient coded samples will be put in a controlled access database. Each 
researcher who requests access to the controlled-access database will be required to obtain approval 
from a CoMMpass  governance committee.  The MMRF will share the analyzed results of the study 
with the public by uploading the  CoMMpass  results to a secure web-based interface or Gateway 
which is accessible when the user agrees to an end user agreement that encourages maximum public 
accessibility and hence, public benefit.   
 

 Community Gateway - Patients, even those patients not participating in CoMMpass , will have an 
opportunity to participate in the MMRF Personalized Medicine Initiative and contribute towards a 
cure for multiple myeloma.  Integrated with the Researcher Gateway, there will also be a Community 
Gateway where patients, physicians, and other caregivers will be able to input data to be shared and 
analyzed by researchers.  Patients will be provided access to multiple myeloma oncology nurses for 
additional support and can communicate with other patients that have similar disease subtypes.  In 
multiple myeloma, knowledge is power, which is why creating a community of patients that are 
actively engaged in their own treatment and can share their results will contribute to expediting the 
search for a cure. 
 

 Clinical Trial Facilitation - MMRF set into motion 47 groundbreaking clinical trials and 26 new 
drugs and drug combinations with the MMRC. More than 1,100 multiple myeloma patients have 
received treatment that was previously not possible, thanks to the MMRC.  MMRF was instrumental 
in the launch of 6 new FDA-approved multiple myeloma treatments (Velcade®, Revlimid®, 
Thalomid®, Doxil®, Kyprolis™ and Pomalyst®) that not only doubled life expectancy among some 
patients, but are being tested or used in more than 30 other cancers. 

 

 
 

  
 
37 – 41 = NO 

 
 
3. The name, title and a copy of the resume of the person who will be responsible for  
all information security requirements, including the requirement that patient  
information remain confidential;  
 

 James Dietz will be the Security and Privacy Officer. 
 See resume in Exhibit #17 
 See Data Security and Privacy Policies, Exhibit #10 

  
4. A copy of all compensation agreements with dispensary facility backers, directors,  
owners, officers, other high-level employees or any other person required to MMP – Dispensary 
Facility RFA – September 2013 Page 8 of 12 complete Appendices B, C or E. For purposes of this 
RFA, a compensation agreement includes any agreement that provides, or will provide, a benefit to 
the recipient whether in the form of salary, wages, commissions, fees, stock options, interest, 
bonuses or otherwise;  
 

 See Appendix B, James Dietz 
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 See Appendix C, Karen Dietz, James Dietz, Sandra Wear, Robert Frumento, Jennifer Kokalari, 
Kenneth Kandrysawtz 

 See Contract of Sale and Mortgage for facility located at 100 New Hartford Rd, Winsted, CT, 
Exhibit #18 

 See loan from Nexum Group, Exhibit #19 
 See loan from James Dietz, Exhibit #20 
 See Employment Offer Letters: Karen Dietz, James Dietz, Kenneth Kandrysawtz, Daniel 

Vaughn, Exhibit #21 
 See Employment Contract template to be used if license granted from State. 

 
  
5. Describe the nature, type, terms, covenants and priorities of all outstanding  
bonds, loans, mortgages, trust deeds, pledges, lines of credit, notes, debentures  
or other forms of indebtedness issued or executed, or to be issued or executed, in  
connection with the opening or operating of the proposed dispensary facility;  
 
Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. does not have any current indebtedness; however, it does 
have three conditional loans that will become effective should it receive a license from the State of 
Connecticut to open a dispensary. 

 See Contract of Sale and Mortgage for facility located at 100 New Hartford Rd, Winsted, CT, 
Exhibit #18 

 See loan from Nexum Group, Exhibit #19 
 See loan from James Dietz, Exhibit #20 

 
 
 
6. Provide audited financial statements for the previous fiscal year, which shall include, but not be 
limited to, an income statement, balance sheet, statement of retained earnings or owners’ equity, 
statement of cash flows, and all notes to such statements and related financial schedules, prepared 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, along with the accompanying 
independent auditor’s report. If the applicant was formed within the year preceding this 
application, provide certified financial statements for the period of time the applicant has been in 
existence and any pro forma financials used for business planning purposes;  
 
Since dispensing medical marijuana was only recently legalized in the State of Connecticut and 
applications for the first licenses are now being filed, Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. was 
only recently formed on October 31, 2013. Therefore, audited financials are only available of the month 
of October 2013. 

 See Audited Financials, Exhibit #22. 
 
 
7. Provide complete copies of all federal, state and foreign (with translation) tax  
returns filed by the applicant for the last three years, or for such period the applicant has filed such 
returns if less than three years.  
Since dispensing medical marijuana was only recently legalized in the State of Connecticut and 
applications for the first licenses are now being filed, Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. was 
only recently formed on October 31, 2013. Therefore, there are no filed tax returns by Nutmeg State 
Health and Wellness Center to submit. However, the tax returns for the last three years of all financial 
backers have been provided.  

 See Tax Returns, James Dietz, Exhibit #23. 
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8. Provide complete copies of the most recently filed federal, state and foreign (with  
translation) tax returns filed by each: (i) dispensary facility backer; and (ii) each  
backer member identified in Section B of Appendix B.  
 
Dispensary facility backers are: 

 See Tax Returns, James Dietz, Exhibit #23. 
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F. BONUS POINTS  
  
The Department will award bonus points for preferred but not required initiatives. Applicants may 
provide information related to any or all of the categories below with their application. Should the 
applicant be awarded a license from the Department, their commitments in a bonus category shall 
become a condition of their license. If a violation of a condition occurs, it may be deemed a material 
breach and the Department may assess a penalty or seek suspension or revocation of the license.  
  
1. Employee Working Environment Plan: Describe any plans you have to provide a safe, healthy 
and economically beneficial working environment for your employees, including, but not limited to, 
your plans regarding workplace safety and environmental standards, codes of conduct, healthcare 
benefits, educational benefits, retirement benefits, and wage standards.  
 
Nutmeg State H ealth and Wellness Center , Inc. bel ieves that each em ployee contributes directly to the 
growth and success of the company.  Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. hopes its employees 
will take pride in being a member of the Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc., with a focus on 
providing a pr ofessional atmosphere that will be c lean, fr iendly and ups cale where customers will feel 
respected, comfortable, and secure. 
 
The N utmeg State H ealth and We llness Cen ter, I nc. Em ployee H andbook w as dev eloped to pr ovide 
guidelines for a safe, healthy and economically beneficial working environment for employees, including, 
but not limited to, w orkplace safety and env ironmental standards, codes of con duct, healthcare benefits, 
and wage standards. The Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc.  

 See Employee Handbook, Exhibit #09. 
 
  
2. Compassionate Need Plan: Describe any compassionate need program you  
intend to offer. Include in your response:  

 The protocols for determining which patients will qualify for the program;  
 The discounts available to patients eligible for the compassionate need program;  
 The names of any other organizations, if any, with which you intend to partner or 

coordinate in connection with the compassionate need program, including any producer 
applicant; and  

 Any other information you think may be helpful to the Department in evaluating your 
compassionate need program.  

  
 
 
3. Research Plan: Provide the Department with a detailed proposal to conduct,  
or facilitate, a scientific study or studies related to the medicinal use of  
marijuana. To the extent it has been determined, include in your proposal, a  
detailed description of:  

 
 

e method you will use to identify and select study participants;  
 

connection with the study, including the role of each;  
 

 study results.  
 See Research Plan and Patient Informed Consent Form 
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4. Community Benefits Plan: Provide the Department with a detailed description of any plans you 
have to give back to the community either at a state or local level if awarded a dispensary facility 
license.  
 
See Exhibit 20 
 
 
5. Substance Abuse Prevention Plan: Provide a detailed description of any plans you will 
undertake, if awarded a dispensary facility license, to combat substance abuse in Connecticut, 
including the extent to which you will partner, or otherwise work, with existing substance abuse 
programs.  
 
See Exhibit 21 











































































UNSECURED DEMAND PROMISSORY NOTE 

Up to $150,000.00 

Dated as of November 14, 2013 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc, a 
Connecticut Corporation (“Borrower”), upon receipt of a Dispensary license from the State of Connectcut 
PROMISES TO PAY ON DEMAND to the order of James C. Dietz, residing at 19 Hearthstone Drive, 
Barkhamsted, CT 6063 (together with its successors and assigns, “Holder”), the principal sum equal to the aggregate 
principal amount of the advances made under this Unsecured Demand Promissory Note (this “Note”) by Holder to 
Borrower or, if less, the above-indicated principal amount of the loan evidenced hereby or made hereunder by 
Holder to Borrower outstanding at the time of such demand. In addition, Borrower promises to pay interest on any 
and all such principal amount from time to time outstanding from the date hereof until such principal amount is paid 
in full, at a rate of six percent (6%) interest compounded monthly, provided, however, that in no event shall such 
rate of interest exceed the maximum rate of interest permitted to be charged under applicable law. Such interest shall 
be computed on the basis of a year equal to the number of days in the Holder’s fiscal Year and the actual number of
days occurring in the period for which such interest is payable. Borrower and Holder agree that for all purposes 
under this Note, the principal amount outstanding shall be the amount determined on a daily basis 

 The date, amount of advance and running unpaid principal balance (which shall not exceed U.S. 
$150,000) shall be recorded and endorsed by Holder with respect to each advance made by Holder to Borrower 
hereunder on or after the date hereof; provided, however, that any failure to make such recordation or endorsement 
shall not limit or otherwise affect the obligations of Borrower hereunder. The date, amount of principal paid or 
prepaid and running unpaid principal balance shall be recorded and endorsed by Holder with respect to each such 
payment or repayment of principal.

Interest shall accrue monthly under the Note and shall be payable on the last day of the Holder’s fiscal 
year. If interest is not paid within thirty (30) days following the close of Holder’s fiscal year, this Note shall be 
delinquent. Interest not paid prior to delinquency shall be added to principal outstanding under the Note. All 
payments under this Note shall be made without set off or counterclaim in lawful money of the United States of 
America in immediately available funds to Holder at such place or to such account as Holder may designate in 
writing from time to time. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Note, if demand for payment has not theretofore been made, 
all payments of principal and interest shall be due on December 31, 2016.

Borrower hereby waives diligence, presentment, demand, protest, notice of honor, and notices of any 
kind in the enforcement of this Note. The non-exercise by the holder hereof of any of its rights under this Note in 
any particular instance shall not constitute a waiver thereof in that or any subsequent instance. Borrower hereby 
waives, to the full extent permitted by law, the right to plead any statute of limitations as a defense to any demand 
hereunder or to any action to enforce this Note. 

As of the date hereof, Borrower represents and warrants to Holder as follows; 
(a) Borrower is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the 

State of Connecticut with full power and authority to own its property and assets and to carry on its business 
as now being conducted. 

(b) The execution, delivery and performance by Borrower of this Note are within Borrower’s corporate 
powers, have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action of Borrower, and do not contravene 
Borrower’s Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws or any law or material contractual restriction binding on or 
affecting Borrower. 

(c) This Note is the legal, valid and binding obligation of Borrower enforceable against Borrower in 
accordance with its terms. 

(d) No consent of any other person or entity and no authorization, approval or other action by, and no 
notice to or filing with any governmental or regulatory body is required for the execution, delivery or 
performance of this Note by Borrower. 



Borrower agrees to pay all costs and expenses, including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees, 
incurred by Holder in connection with enforcement of this Note and any other documents associated therewith.  

Nothing contained herein shall require the payment of any interest when the same would be unlawful 
under any applicable law. If any holder of this Note shall collect monies which constitute interest which would 
otherwise increase the effective interest rate of this Note to a rate in excess of the maximum rate permitted to be 
charged by the laws of the State of Connecticut, all such sums deemed to constitute interest in excess of such 
maximum rate shall, at the option of such holder, be credited to the payment of the sums due hereunder or returned 
to Borrower.  

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, any payment under this Note, shall be applied to 
principal and/or interest in the sole discretion of Holder. Borrower hereby irrevocably consents to the exercise of 
such discretion and irrevocably waives any right to compel application of any payment under this Note to either 
principal or interest.  

In the event any one or more provisions of this Note shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable, the same shall not affect any other provision of this Note and the remaining provisions of this Note 
shall remain in full force and effect.  

This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws [                    ].  

[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank]  
  
3  To be included in line of credit.  

 
Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. 

By:    
Name:   Karen A. Dietz 
Title:  Chief Executive Officer 

 























James C. Dietz, MS, PMP, CSM 
Background: Certified Project Management Professional (PMP) / Certified Scrum Master (CSM) with over 15 years IT experience with 
extensive expertise in the areas of Health Care/Insurance and Pharmaceutical/Biotechnology & Life Science Industries.
Strong background in Regulatory and Compliance related projects currently and previously supporting a wide variety of Health Care 
Reform based initiatives, ICD-10 related implementations, Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA)/HITECH, and 
Sarbanes Oxley Act (SOX) related projects. 
In depth knowledge and experience with many industry standard best practice frameworks and methodologies: Capability Maturity Model 
(CMM), Project Management Institute (PMI), Control Objectives for Information and related Technology (COBIT), Six Sigma, ITIL, as 
well as proprietary Software Development Lifecycle methodologies currently being used at companies such as Blue Cross Blue Shield, 
Pfizer, United Healthcare, and Aetna. 
Objective: To obtain a management position with a company where my experience, accomplishments, and proficiency will allow me to 
apply my knowledge and skills with the opportunity for growth.  Focused on providing Director Level Program Management oversight as 
well as in depth experience as a Senior Program/Project Manager executing consistently on-time/on-budget project delivery for in-house 
applications as well as commercial off the shelf software.   

Work Experience: 
Aetna Inc October 2013 – current 
Hartford, CT 
Senior Project Manager 
- Working Within the Pharmcy Domain; acted as Pro ject Manager responsible for the strategic Aetna Medicare – CVS/Caremark Integration 

Project. 

Yale University  November 2012 – April 2013 
New Haven, CT 
Senior Project Manager 
- Coordinated implementation of PaperCut software campus wide to an anticipated 10,000+ users under Office of Sustainability. 
- Responsible for migration of legacy ticketing system for Athletics Department. 
- Managed Vendor selection process for new Housing Director software. 

Burgess Group January 2012 – September 2012 
Alexandria, VA 
Director, IT Program Management / Senior Project Manager 
- Responsible for all aspects of implementing and managing the Agile Scrum SDLC program at Burgess Group LLC. 
- Ensured regulatory and compliance objectives were met on time and on budget.
- Implementation of new Michigan Medicaid Inpatient and Outpatient programs to expand client base/product offerings.
- Implementation of Microsoft Message Queuing (MSMQ) messaging protocol.
- Responsible for ICD-10 related project management and compliance activities.

OptumHealth Care Solutions – Reporting & Insights (formerly Ingenix) June 2011 – October 2011 
Rocky Hill, CT 
Project Manager – HIPAA 5010 / ICD-10
- Responsible for managing H IPAA 5010 i mplementation for O ptumHealth C are S olutions t o meet mandated D ecember 3 1st deadline for 

compliance. 
- For Prescription, manage the conversion of the National Council for Prescription Drug Programs (NCPDP) version 5.1 t o NCPDP version 

D.0.
- For enrollment/eligibility, manage the conversion of the 834 Enrollment file from the 4010 format to the 5010 format. 
- Communications liaison with outside vendors as well as o ther internal project leads to identify upstream and downstream dependencies of 

HIPAA 5010 related changes.  Facilitate working with our partners to obtain test files prior to implementation. 

Aetna Inc August 2010 – June 2011 
Hartford, CT 
Senior Project Manager 
- Within Claim Domain; acted as P roject Manager responsible for Health Care Ref orm (HCR) regulatory based initiatives as well as several 

other projects relating specifically to claim applications. 
- Executed P rojects u sing P lanView, Inu it Qu ickbase, an d R ational C learcase tool s uites to s upport Project Man agement activ ities in  

compliance with Aetna’s CMMI Level 3 rated Software Development Life Cycle approach.

OptumInsight - Hospital Solutions (formerly Ingenix) September 2009 – August 2010 
Rocky Hill, CT 
Senior Program/Project Manager 

19 Hearthstone Drive
Barkhamsted, CT 06063
Mobile: (203) 241-6464
E-mail: james_dietz@hotmail.com



- Responsible for managing entire portfolio of OptumInsight Hospital Solutions projects within all phases of the SDLC. 
- Compile annual Resource Demand Plans for HSS organization used for annual budgeting and project planning purposes. 
- Create Project plans, resource estimates, risk management, financial data, and reporting metrics for multiple projects. 
- As part of PMO, provide updates/dashboard to Executive Leadership relating to project status, risks, and issues. 
- Perform audits and gap analysis to identify areas for improvement within the organization. 
- Change Agent for migrating projects from Waterfall to Scrum / Agile methodology. 

Digital Autobahn, LLC September 2008 – September 2009 
Danbury, CT 
Project Manager 
- Managed projects for multiple clients specializing in areas of website services for small and medium size businesses. 
- Provided services and solutions relating to website creation, hosting, search engine optimization, email services, and maintenance. 

Science Applications International Corporation (SAIC) August 2004 to September 2008 
Client: Pfizer, Inc. - Groton/New London, CT 
Consultant; Master Scheduler / Project Manager 
- Managed/Supported 15+ projects simultaneously with cumulative budget of over twenty million dollars to ensure on-time on-budget delivery. 
- Enterprise In formatics (Ei) P roject Man ager f or B ulk Datab ase Migration p roject; liaiso n b etween site leads, d atabase ad ministrators, 

application owners and SME’s to move databases from legacy to target reference architecture.
- Ei P roject Man ager f or N T4 o perating sy stem re mediation eff ort; pr ovide co ordination an d s upport working with s ite l eads, app lication 

owners and SME’s at various PGRDi sites for NT server operating system and domain remediation. 
- Guided the planning efforts of projects in compliance with Project Management Office (PMO) processes and Project Support Team (PST),

familiar with associated toolsets (Activity Tracker, SourceForge, eContainer, Cognos). 
- Familiar with Enterprise Life Cycle (ELC), Solutions Life Cycle (SLC), Informatics System Life Cycle (iSLC) Processes including Project, 

Production Application Change Control (PACC), Environment Change Control (ECC), Retirement/Migration/Archival (ReMArc). 
- Experienced with P roject M anagement P lanning p rocesses, Developing Re source Lo aded N etworks, p roducing/analyzing E arned V alue 

Metrics (EVM), and expertise in the use of Microsoft Project Office 2007 and related toolsets. 
- Responsible for the tracking of pro jects in iPM/EPM; statusing of Resources, Schedule, and Tasking is timely, accurate, and schedules are 

maintained in good quality based on PMO standards and Scheduling Best Practices. 
- Responsible for understanding the meaning of data inputted into EPM as well as understanding the meaning of data extracted from EPM for 

Reporting at multiple le vels.  Data includes not o nly Scheduling of T asking, b ut Critical P ath, Reso urcing, a nd Co st as d erived t hrough 
Microsoft Project. 

- Provided data from Microsoft Project to Project Managers and the Project Support teams, communication with Stakeholders. 
- Developed work instructions to support Project Managers and Project Scheduling related activities. 
- Conducted Information Protection Program (IPP) Remediation effort to work with the business units to determine the appropriate IPP rating 

for applications. 
- Performed Application Repository Core (ARC) data remediation to ensure that all applications are present in ARC and data is complete and 

accurate. 

Keane, Inc.  June 2004 to August 2004 
Client: Capital District Physicians Health Plan (CDPHP) - Albany, NY 
Senior Consultant; Release Management / Change Management / Data Access / HIPAA / Sarbanes Oxley 
- Completed an IT Assessment/Audit of CDPHP’s current Release and Change Management policies and procedures for all areas including 

Web, Data Warehouse, HP, Paperfree. 
- Performed a Gap Analysis against Industry standard best practices. 
- Designed comprehensive detailed procedures ensuring compliance with HIPAA and Sarbanes Oxley. 

Keane, Inc.           A ugust 2002 to June 2004 
Client: Blue Cross Blue Shield of Vermont (BCBSVT) - Barre, VT 
Senior Consultant; Software Configuration Management / Change Management / Release Management / E-Commerce Support / HIPAA 
- Process Improvement project to examine and identify current SCM processes and procedures that need to be improved or created if they do 

not currently exist. 
- Conducted employee interviews and obtain relevant process assets and background material for Gap Analysis against industry best practice, 

Keane’s Application Management Methodology, SEI CMM, and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 
- Implemented tailored Software Configuration Management Processes and Procedures using PVCS Version Manager for Source Code Control 

for the Web development staff and TurnOver for the AS400 staff. 
- Reviewed / Audited and Approved QA results and coordinated release activities with the Quality Assurance Team and Business Units. 
- EDI / E-Commerce Configuration and Support Specialist responsible for setting up trading partners and troubleshooting incoming files. 
- Team Lead for Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) Security Remediation project and assisting with HIPAA Privacy 

rule compliance activities. 
- Created and maintained procurement-tracking database, which reduced overall procurement costs significantly. 

Keane, Inc. December 2001 to June 2002 
Client: Exsif Worldwide, Inc. - Purchase, NY 
Senior Consultant; Software Configuration Manager / Quality Assurance 
- Wrote and maintained build scripts using Apache Ant to successfully automate the build process of over 600 files and decrease time to 

deployment increasing efficiency and reducing costs. 



- Responsible for the administration of PVCS, WebLogic, Astra FastTrack / QuickTest including installation, configuration, troubleshooting, 
and the creation of any related user process documentation. 

- Synchronized test scenarios with use cases as needed to ensure they are updated and accurate for testing. 
- Performed load testing of application using Astra LoadTest and LoadRunner, setting baselines and noting any performance differences 

between builds to aid in identifying any possible performance bottlenecks. 
- Reviewed QA results and coordinated release activities with all parties within IT and with the respective Business Units. 
- Tank container leasing; M&R Protocol (Maintenance and Repairs) is a secure, paperless system that automates the repair estimate process for 

customers and depots. It allows the entry, review, revision, authorization, and routing of tank repair estimates 24 hours/day, 7 days/week. 
Keane, Inc. June 2001 to December 2001 
Client: Pfizer, Inc. - Groton/New London, CT - La Jolla, CA - Sandwich, UK
Senior Consultant; Software Configuration Management and Release Management - Process Improvement Project 
- Conducted Observation and Interview Sessions with a variety of staff from management to development at several different sites including 

Groton, CT - La Jolla, CA - Sandwich, England. 
- Identified and obtained relevant process assets from all sites for consideration during development of new process documentation. 
- Created site assessment documents that outlined the current state of software configuration management and release management activities at 

the different locations. 
- Performed a Gap Analysis of completed site assessments against Keane’s own Application Management Methodology and other industry 

recognized best practices. 
- Created process definitions and work procedures manual that encompassed all of the identified process improvements. 
- Conducted structured walkthroughs and process mentoring to ensure proper usage and implementation of new procedures.

Keane, Inc. September 2000 to June 2001 
Client: StarCite, Inc. (formerly b-there.com Corporation) - Westport, CT 
Senior Consultant; Software Configuration Manager / Release Manager 
- Provided version control for Cold Fusion based application in which code is r eleased into Production every two weeks following a R apid 

Application Development (RAD) lifecycle. 
- Responsible for moving all code through development, QA, User Acceptance Testing, Operational Acceptance Testing, performance, and 

staging, into a load balanced production environment. 
- Assisted with ap plication testi ng en suring co mpatibility with several v ersions o f d iffering web b rowsers a nd d ifferent o perating systems 

(Netscape, Internet explorer, PC, Mac, Windows 98, Windows 2000, etc) 
- Application security administration with regards to granting security rights for users to access restricted areas in all environments. 
- SourceSafe Administrator responsible for installing software, setting up users, and providing training documentation and standards. 
- Visual Intercept administration including installation, documentation, and enforcing defect tracking standards and guidelines. 
- Installed and supported various third party software needed for increased functionality of website including Verisign, eCal, and Mapquest. 
- Supported Windows NT 4.0 migration to Windows 2000 with the creation of additional environments for testing the new operating system. 
- Assisted with Inf rastructure operat ions an d s upport i ncluding i nstalling/upgrading s oftware pack ages, appl ying s ervice pack s, software 

patches, etc. 
- Provided support for move of physical servers and code from in house to third party data center (XAND). 
- Coordinated Release / Change Management schedule and deliverables with Quality Assurance Team and Business Units.  
- Created an d en forced p olicies an d proc edures reg arding de velopment codi ng st andards, qu ality as surance t esting methodologies, and 

supporting documentation. 
- Assisted with management of Quality Assurance and Development Team. 
- Assisted with integration of GetThere.com partner website code and testing.
- Developed attendee relationship management and enterprise meetings management tools.

Cartus (formerly Cendant Mobility Services Corporation) June 1998 to September 2000 
Danbury, CT 
Configuration Manager / Release Engineer 
- Responsible for creating releases, auditing deliverable products, version management, and preparing / u pdating configuration management 

plans. 
- SourceSafe Administrator of databases used to establish and maintain the integrity of the documentation and code that constitutes a software 

product. 
- Streamlined the configuration management process, which decreased the average build and deploy time from up to several days to several 

hours. 
- Ensured that all environments stay synchronized from development through QA and into production including but not limited to source code 

and stored procedures. 
- Reviewed / Audited and Approved QA test results in conjunction with Release Management activities. 
- Developed InstallShield packages used in SMS deployments to clients in several regions across the country to over 2000 users. 
- Worked closely with operations and help desk staff to support existing products in production and new product deployment issues. 
- Worked on numerous in-house software projects and with external vendors to ensure year 2000 readiness.
Education:
Master of Science (MS) in Managing Innovation & Information Technology 
Champlain College, Burlington, VT – May 2008 
Bachelor of Business Administration (BBA) in Management Information Systems (MIS)
Western Connecticut State University; Ancell School of Business, Danbury, CT – May 2002 



Affiliations: 
Project Management Institute (PMI) Member # 848893 
Scrum Alliance Member 
The United States Junior Chamber of Commerce (Jaycees) - Danbury, CT Chapter - 2009 & 2010 President 

References: Ava ilable upon request



INTELLECTUAL WORK PRODUCT, CONFIDENTIALITY 
AND NON-SOLICITATION AGREEMENT

This Intellectual Work Product, Confidentiality and Non-Solicitation Agreement (this “Agreement”) 
effective as of January 1, 2014, is hereby entered into between Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, 
Inc., having an office at 19 Hearthstone Drive, Barkhamsted, CT 06063 (“NSHWC”) and 

, residing at      (“Employee”).

Ownership.  Any ideas, concepts, discoveries, innovations, designs, specifications, models, techniques, 
research findings, inventions or other intellectual property of any kind whatsoever related in any way to 
the NSHWC mission or businesses (whether patentable or non-patentable or whether reduced to written 
or electronic form or otherwise) developed, conceived, or created by Employee, either singly or in 
combination with others, during the term of employment (whether created during working hours at the 
NSHWC facility or at any other time or location, and whether upon the suggestion or request of the 
NSHWC or otherwise) (collectively, “Intellectual Work Product”) shall exclusively belong to the 
NSHWC.  Employee agrees to promptly reveal to the NSHWC all information relating to any Intellectual 
Work Product.  Employee agrees to take any actions reasonably requested of Employee by the NSHWC 
to perfect or secure the NSHWC’s ownership interest in and to any such Intellectual Work Product, 
including, but not limited to, executing assignments thereof to the NSHWC.  Employee also agrees that 
any research grants, funding, and other corporate opportunities that Employee either becomes aware of, 
identifies, discovers, or develops while employed by the NSHWC shall belong exclusively to the 
NSHWC and that Employee shall not pursue such opportunities independent of the NSHWC, either 
personally or through any other entity.  Employee agrees to disclose any such opportunities to the 
NSHWC without delay.   

Any computer or other equipment provided by the NSHWC and any electronically-stored information on 
any computer or other equipment in connection with employment shall belong exclusively to the 
NSHWC and Employee acknowledges and agrees that Employee shall have no right of privacy with 
respect to any information, including e-mails, electronically-stored on any NSHWC equipment.  

Confidentiality.  Employee agrees, at any time after the date of this Agreement, , to maintain the 
confidentiality of any non-public information, documents, and materials that the NSHWC considers 
and/or treats as confidential, including, but not limited to: this Agreement, any business plans and models; 
strategic plans; fundraising strategies and techniques; methods of operation or fundraising; business 
development initiatives and plans; grant award targets and strategies; legal contracts and forms; clinical 
study plans and initiatives; and donor lists and related information (collectively, “Confidential 
Information”).  Employee agrees not to disclose or make any commercial use of any Confidential 
Information.   If Employee becomes obligated to testify about any information to comply with an 
applicable governmental law, regulation, or court order, Employee agrees to provide the NSHWC with 
written notice of such requirement as far in advance of disclosure as is reasonably possible so that the 
NSHWC may take any action it deems appropriate to prevent or limit disclosure, and Employee agrees to 
provide reasonable cooperation with such actions.  

Upon request by the NSHWC, (i) Employee shall promptly return to the NSHWC all Confidential 
Information, in any form or media, and all copies thereof; and (ii) Employee shall promptly delete all 
Confidential Information from any computers or electronic memory devices, including, without 
limitation, portable USB storage devices, PDAs, and cell phones, that Employee owns or uses, for the 
purpose of ensuring that the Confidential Information and business relationships of the NSHWC will not 
be put at risk in any new or future position Employee may assume.



Non-Solicitation / Non-Compete.  During the term of employment and for one year thereafter, Employee 
shall not solicit or encourage any employees of either the NSHWC to leave the employment of the 
NSHWC.  Employee agrees, during the term of employment and for one year thereafter, not to solicit or 
encourage any clients or vendors of NSHWC to cease doing business with NSHWC. 

Reasonableness of Restrictions; Injunctive Relief.  Employee expressly acknowledges and agrees that the 
confidentiality, non-solicitation, and non-compete restrictions set forth in this Agreement are reasonable 
and designed to promote the legitimate business and fundraising objectives of the NSHWC.  Employee
further acknowledges and agrees that any violation or threatened violation of these restrictions by 
Employee would cause a loss of goodwill and irreparable harm to the NSHWC, and that any remedy at 
law for any such violation or threatened violation may be inadequate.  Therefore, Employee agrees that 
the NSHWC may, in addition to and not in lieu of, all other remedies to which it may be entitled under 
this Agreement, obtain equitable relief, including but not limited to a temporary restraining order and/ or 
preliminary injunction or similar order from any court having personal jurisdiction over Employee.  

Non-Disparagement.  Employee agrees, both during and following the term of this Agreement, not to 
disparage or say anything of a negative nature about the NSHWC, or any individuals or organizations 
affiliated with the NSHWC.  

Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, along with any offer letter signed by the NSHWC and Employee, 
constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.  This 
Agreement may not be assigned, amended or modified without the express written consent of both parties 
hereto.  The waiver or unenforceability of any term of this Agreement shall not render unenforceable any 
other term.  The waiver of any term of this Agreement shall not prohibit the future enforcement of such 
term. 

Captions.  The captions in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall have no force 
or effect for any purpose whatsoever, including without limitation, the construction of the provisions of 
this Agreement. 

Governing Law. This Agreement is made in, and shall be governed by and construed in accordance with, 
the laws of the State of Connecticut without regard to its conflict of law provisions. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be effective as of January 1, 2014. 

Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. 

Date: James Dietz, President 
Date: 
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Reprinted from

August 26, 2013

By Matt Pilon
mpilon@HartfordBusiness.com

W hen the state legalized medical mari-
juana last year, health care infor-
mation technologist James Dietz 

thought about vying for a license to grow the 
drug in Connecticut.

The Litchfield resident sees the potential 
for a lucrative industry to sprout, and he want-
ed a piece of the action.

But Dietz quickly realized that growing pot 
here won’t be as simple as planting a garden: 
it will require a significant investment — as 
much as $5 million to $7 million, by his esti-
mate — which will likely price smaller com-
petitors like himself out of the market.

With only three to 10 cultivation licenses 
up for grabs, Dietz said he feels moneyed and 
established interests — some from other 
states — will likely dominate Connecticut’s 
medical marijuana growing industry. 

And as the unofficial field takes shape, there 
are several “gorillas” some perceive as favorites 
to win the coveted licenses when the application 
period begins in the coming months, Dietz said.

“That’s a big hurdle for us to overcome and 
still have money left over for infrastructure and 
operating costs,” Dietz said. “Without raising 
somewhere in the magnitude of $5 million to $7 
million, it’s probably not viable.”

Dietz’s concerns come at a critical time 
for the development of Connecticut’s medical 
marijuana industry.

The state legislature’s Regulations Review 
Committee will meet this week to potentially 
vote on proposed regulations that will in many 
ways determine how the state’s medical mari-
juana market blossoms. 

The 75 pages of regulations, drafted by 
the state Department of Consumer Protec-
tion which will oversee the industry, estab-
lishes rules for the sale, production and use 
of medical marijuana, and have already raised 
concerns similar to those expressed by Dietz.

Some prospective growers say the upfront 
costs to even compete for a license are too high. 

Potential licensees, for example, are 
required to post $2 million in escrow, or an 
equivalent bond, and pay a nonrefundable 
$25,000 application fee.

There are also concerns that the escrow pay-
ment could be seized by the federal government 
since marijuana remains illegal under federal law. 

The state has since tweaked some of the 
draft regulations, allowing the $2 million 
figure to be reduced as grow operations hit 
certain benchmarks. 

Still, the high price of admission has 
Dietz preparing to opt for a less costly dis-
pensary license instead. Seller licenses 
will be allocated based on the number of 

registered patients in the state, according 
to DCP. Sellers too will be tightly regulated 
with strict siting standards, background 
checks and pharmacist requirements.

It may not come as a surprise that well 
funded entities have an advantage in a strict 
licensing process, but Andrew Glassman, an 
attorney with Pullman & Comley, said the 
state is right to set minimum capital require-
ments, though he harbors concerns that 
banks will be too nervous about the federal 
status of marijuana to finance a growing oper-
ation in Connecticut.

“They’ve created significant barriers to entry 
with all these fees, but I think those barriers are 
appropriate,” Glassman said. “They’re looking 
for legitimate businessmen and women who 
want to be in on the ground floor of what I think 
will be a significant industry in Connecticut.”

Glassman said he represents a client — 
who he declined to name — that has applied 
for local approvals for a grow facility, a first 
step he thinks potential industry competitors 
will need to complete before they can seriously 
contend for a cultivation license from the state.

“I don’t think you can have a successful appli-
cation if you don’t have a site approved,” he said. 
“It looks like there might be four to five parties 
currently positioned to make the application.”

BARRIERS 
TO ENTRY

Growing pot in CT will be a high-rollers game
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Applications to open marijuana cultivation facilities, like the one shown above, have been sprouting up in cities and towns across the state, as Connecticut prepares to finalize regula-

tions that will govern its new medical marijuana industry. Some prospective growers are raising concerns that the cost of entry into the market will be too high. 

Continued
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Applications for grow facilities have been 
filed in Middletown, Watertown, West Haven 
and Bridgeport. Middletown and West Haven 
have approved grow locations with Fairfield-
based Greenbelt Management and Advanced 
Grow Labs, respectively.

DCP Commissioner William Rubenstein said 
his agency has juggled input from various play-
ers as best as it could, but the overall goal is to 
attract legitimate businesses into the industry. 

 “We want [potential growers] to be seri-
ous and to operate uninterrupted over a long 
period of time,” Rubenstein said.

He said the serious interest shown so far 
by potential growers proves that they believe it 
will be a lucrative and worthwhile investment. 

“We looked at the 
regulatory struc-
ture and experience of every other state,” 
Rubenstein said. 

As palliative pot laws have taken hold in 
nearly half the country over the past decade, 
Rubenstein said Connecticut will stand out 
in how much control enforcement authorities 
will have over the enterprise.

“Colorado had, at one point, over 1,100 
licensed producers,” Rubenstein said. “Can 
you imagine the difference in regulatory over-
sight and control when you’re overseeing 10 or 
fewer facilities?”

Joseph Palmieri, who owns an environmen-
tal firm and maintains a farm in Easton, said 
he plans to apply for a cultivation license. He’s 
visited Colorado to view grow operations, and 
even designed a type of pod he plans to grow 
marijuana in if he wins a license. Right now, 
those pods are sprouting tomatoes.

Palmieri, however, is concerned that there 

may not be enough patients to sustain three or 
more grow operations in the state. 

“I hope they start smaller,” Palmieri said. 
“With all the costs of doing this, if there’s no 
demand you’re in big trouble.” 

Rubenstein admitted it’s difficult to estimate 
what sort of market will develop in Connecticut, 
especially because of the state’s strict qualifying 
conditions. So far, 850 patients have been certi-
fied by physicians to use marijuana, but Ruben-
stein said he expects that number to increase 
once dispensaries open and product starts flow-
ing. “The experience with other states is in the 
first year, you get a ramp up,” Rubenstein said.

If the Regulations Review Committee doesn’t 
make major changes to draft regulations created 
by DCP, Rubenstein said a license application 
period would likely begin within a few weeks. 

The state would review applications for a few 
months, and marijuana would be legally for sale 
in Connecticut within three to six months. 

Medical marijuana market 

Connecticut’s new medical marijuana 
law makes it legal for patients to use 
the drug for “palliative use.” A quali-
fying patient must be at least 18 
years old and be diagnosed by a 
physician with one of the following 
debilitating medical conditions:

( specifically, damage to
spinal cord nervous tissue)

Fast Facts

escrow or bond

application fee

96

S O U R C E :  D E P T.  O F  C O N S U M E R  P R O T E C T I O N

Prospective pot growers  
vie for cultivation licenses

Medical marijuana is grown in cultivation fields and then treated in labs before 

being sold to patients. 
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Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center Community Benefits Program
Donation Geographic Target 

5% Local/Community Level 
3% State Level 
2% National Level 

10% Total (as % of Net Profit) 

Month Debilitating Condition Targeted Donations* 
January National Glaucoma Awareness Month 
February World Cancer Day (February 4) 

March 
MS Awareness Month 
National Colorectal Cancer Awareness Month 

April 
Parkinson's Awareness Month 
IBS Awareness Month (Crohn's Disease) 

May Cancer Research Month 
June Posttraumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD) 
July National HIV Awareness Month 
August Substance Abuse Program(s) ( 0% of Net Profit) 

September 

National Blood Cancer Awareness Month 
National Ovarian Cancer Awareness Month 
National Childhood Cancer Awareness Month 
National Prostate Cancer Awareness Month 
Childhood Cancer Month 
Leukemia and Lymphoma Awareness Month 
Thyroid Cancer Awareness Month 

October 
National Breast Cancer Awareness Month 
National Liver Cancer Month 

November 

National Epilepsy Awareness Month 
Lung Cancer Awareness Month 
Pancreatic Cancer Awareness Month 

December 
Cancer-Related Fatigue Awareness Month 
AIDS Awareness Month 

* Donations will fall under Local, State, or National Level or combination thereof

Charity Ratings Organizations: 
charitywatch.org 
charitynavigator.org 
bbb.org 
www2.guidestar.org 
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DRAFT TEMPLATE 
SUBJECT INFORMED CONSENT FORM AND HIPAA AUTHORIZATION 

Research Study Title: Based on the disease named being treated with medical 
marijuana 

Protocol #: NSHWC-14-001

Sponsor: Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center (NSHWC) 

Principal Investigator Name: Daniel Vaughan, RPh

Daytime telephone number(s): «Phone» 

Introduction and Purpose of the Subject Informed Consent Form 
You are being asked to take part in a research study because you are a medical marijuana patient 
registered in the State of Connecticut.

This is a consent form for research participation.  It contains important information about the 
research study and what you can expect if you decide to participate.  Please consider the 
information carefully.  After you have finished reviewing the information, you should talk to 
your pharmacist about the study and ask any questions you have. Feel free to discuss this study 
with your friends and family and to ask your pharmacist questions before making your decision 
whether or not to participate.  It is important that you are given all the information that this study 
is about before you decide to participate.  If you decide to participate, you will be asked to sign 
this form and you will receive a copy of the form. 

Your participation in this study is voluntary.  You may refuse to participate in this study.  If you 
decide to participate in the study, you may leave the study at any time.  No matter what decision 
you make, there will be no penalty to you and you will not lose any of your usual rights or 
benefits.  Your decision will not affect your future relationship with NSHWC. 

Who is sponsoring this study? 
Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. (“NSHWC”) is sponsoring this study.  NSHWC 
is a licensed medical marijuana dispensary in the State of Connecticut. Additional information 
can be found on the website (www.nshwc.com).

Why is this study being done? 
This research is being done because we hope that a better understanding of  Medical Marijuana 
and it’s benefits and risks in treating qualifying diseases. 

The purpose of this study is to learn about Medical Marijuana. 

Who can take part in this study? 
Patients that are registered with the State of Connecticut as legally able to obtain medical 
marijuana. 
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How many people will participate in this study? 
Approximately 1,500 patients that use medical marijuana are expected to be consented in this 
study in Connecticut over the next three (3) years. 

How long will I be in the study? 
We anticipate that you will be in the study for follow-up over the next 5 years and potentially 
longer.  Participating in this study is your choice.  You may participate in this study as long as 
you wish and as long as the study doctor agrees that you should be included in the study. 

What will happen if I participate in this study? 
You will fill out survey questions as part of this study each time you fill your medical marijuana 
prescription.  If you choose to take part in this study, a description of what will happen at each 
visit is listed below: 

Initial Survey: 
Once you decide to participate in this study, you will take an initial survey providing the 
following information: 

Disease type
Date of diagnosis
Treatment history
Medication history
Current symptomology
Perceived difficulties with current medicines
Other information important to determine baseline readings

Follow-up Assessments: 
Each time your prescription is filled the following information will be collected: 

Change in symptoms
Change in functionality
Change in lifestyle/quality of life
New emergent symptoms or side effects
Other experiences encountered with medical marijuana

Annual Assessment: 
Once per year, you will be asked to fill out a quality of life assessment (see attached Appendix). 

What are my responsibilities? 
While you are in the study, you must: 

Tell us about any changes in your health.
Tell us if you want to stop participating in the study at any time.
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What risks can I expect from participating in the study? 

Risks associated with the collection and sharing of health information:
While specific measures are in place to protect the confidentiality of your health information as 
provided in this consent form, there is a minimal risk that your health information could be 
released to persons or institutions that do not participate in medical marijuana research. These 
risks include potential harm to your reputation and a potential risk to your insurability or 
employability. 

Will the researchers tell me if they learn of new information that could change my 
willingness to stay in this study? 
Yes, the pharmacists will tell you if they learn of important new information that may change 
your willingness to stay in this study. If new information is provided to you after you have joined 
the study, it is possible that you may be asked to sign a new consent form that includes the new 
information.  You may contact Daniel Vaughan, RPh at any time after your participation ends to 
find out if any new information about this study has become available. 

What benefits can I expect from being in the study? 
You will not receive any personal benefits from being in this study.  Taking part in this study 
will not make your health better.  We hope the information learned from this study will help 
doctors learn more about medical marijuana as a treatment option.

What other choices do I have if I do not participate in the study? 
You have the right to not participate in this study.  If you decide not to participate in this study, it 
will have no effect on the services you receive from NSHWC now or in the future.  

If I participate in this study can I also participate in other research studies? 
Your participation in this study will not prohibit you from participating in future research 
studies. .

Do I have to pay to participate in this study? 
There is no cost for participating in this research study.  

Will I be paid for participating in this study? 
You will not be paid for participating in this study.  There is a chance that some commercial 
value may result from the use of your information.  If that should happen, you will not be offered 
a share in any profits. 

Who is paying for this study? 
NSHWC is paying for any costs associated with this study. 

What are my rights if I take part in this study? 
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You do not waive any legal rights by signing this Subject Informed Consent Form. 

Participating in this study does not take away any other rights or benefits you might have if you 
did not participate in the study.  You will not be penalized in any way if you decide not to 
participate or if you stop after you start the study.  You do not have to be in this study to receive 
or continue to receive services from NSHWC.

Can I stop being in the study? 
You may leave the study at any time. If you decide to stop participating in the study, there will 
be no affect, in any way, on the services you received from NSHWC to which you are otherwise 
entitled. Your decision will not affect your future relationship with NSHWC.

Could I be removed from the study even if I want to continue to participate? 
You may be removed from this study without your permission for any reason including: 

If NSHWC decides to end the study.
If funding is stopped or if new information becomes available that will affect your
willingness to participate in the study.

If you are removed from the study, Daniel Vaughan will explain to you why you were removed. 

Subject’s Statement of Consent

STUDY TITLE 

I have read the information printed on this form. I am aware that I am being asked to participate 
in a research study. I have been given the opportunity to discuss this study, its risks and potential 
benefits, and my other choices.  I have been given sufficient opportunity to consider whether to 
participate in this study.  I voluntarily agree to participate in this study.  I have been told who I 
can contact if I have more questions or concerns about the study or my participation as a research 
subject. I have been told that I will receive a copy of this form at the time I sign and date it and 
later upon request. This form will not expire unless I withdraw from the study as described 
above.  I have been told that I am not giving up any legal rights by signing this form. 

_____________________________________
Printed Name of Subject

_____________________________________
Signature of Subject

__________________________  AM/PM
Date and Time

Pharmacist 
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I have explained the research to the subject before requesting the signature above. A copy of this 
form will be given to the subject.  I certify that the information provided was given in language 
that was understandable to the subject 

____________________________________
Printed Name of Person Obtaining Consent

______________________________________
Signature of Person Obtaining Consent

__________________________  AM/PM
Date and Time 
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HIPAA AUTHORIZATION 

The United States government has issued a privacy rule to protect the privacy rights of patients.  
This rule was issued under a law called the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 
of 1996 (HIPAA).  The Privacy Rule is designed to protect the confidentiality of your personal 
health information.  The document you are reading, called an “Authorization,” describes your 
rights and explains how your health information will be used and disclosed (shared). 

Your privacy is very important to us and we will use many safety measures to protect your 
privacy and we will make all reasonable efforts to comply with applicable foreign, federal, state, 
and local laws regarding the privacy and security of your information. However, in spite of all 
the safety measures used, there is no guarantee that your identity will never become known.   

Once you agree to participate in this research study, a unique identification numbers will be 
generated and attached to your health  

Only Daniel Vaughan and his staff at NSHWC will be able to link your unique identification 
numbers to your name or survey.  To accomplish scientific analysis in the study, researchers may 
need to see or use some of your health information. Signing this authorization gives the 
researchers your permission to obtain, use, and share information about you for this study, and is 
required in order for you to take part in the study.   

There are many reasons why information about you may be used or seen by the researchers or 
others during this study.  Moreover, there may be circumstances where this information must be 
released to people other than researchers.  For example, your health information and the fact that 
you participate in this study may be disclosed if required by law.  Specifically, your records may 
be reviewed by the following groups: 

Office for Human Research Protections or other federal, state, or international regulatory
agencies,
United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA),
The sponsor (Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center) supporting the study, its agents,
contractors, and study monitors.

As a rule, the researchers will not continue to use or disclose information about you, but will 
keep it secure until it is destroyed. Sometimes, it may be necessary for information about you to 
continue to be used or disclosed, even after you have canceled your permission or the study is
over. Examples of reasons for this include: 

To avoid losing study results that has already included your information
To provide limited information for research, education, or other activities (this information
would not include your name, social security number, or anything else that could let others
know who you are)
To make sure that the study was conducted properly
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As long as your information is kept within NSHWC, it is protected by NSHWC privacy policies. 
For more information about these policies, ask for a copy of the NSHWC Notice of Privacy 
Practices. 

Note that once your information has been shared with others as described above, it may no 
longer be protected by the privacy regulations of the Privacy Rule. 

You have the right to see and get a copy of your records related to the study for as long as the 
NSHWC has this information.  However, by signing this Authorization, you agree that you might 
not be able to review or receive some of your records related to the study until after the study has 
been completed. 

Your permission will not expire unless you cancel it.  If you do not withdraw this Authorization 
in writing, it will remain in effect indefinitely.  You may cancel your permission at any time by 
writing to Daniel Vaughan whose information is listed on page one of this form.  You must 
notify the Daniel Vaughan in writing. 

You also have the right to withdraw your permission so that researchers are not allowed to use 
your health information for research.  This health information will be removed from the study 
unless it has already been used or if it becomes important to have a record of the people who 
start the study, not just those who finish it.  If you decide to withdraw such permission, please 
talk to Daniel Vaughan.  So that we may be clear as to your wishes, you must state, in writing 
that you wish to withdraw your permission. Once you withdraw from the study, we will not 
collect new information about you. 

If you withdraw from the study and withdraw your Authorization, no new information will be 
collected for study purposes.   

If you withdraw from the study, but do not withdraw your Authorization, new personal health 
information may be collected until this study ends. 

If you do not sign this Authorization, you cannot participate in this research study.  If you 
withdraw this Authorization in the future, you will no longer be able to participate in this study. 
Your decision to withdraw your Authorization or not to participate will not involve any penalty 
or loss of access to treatment or other benefits to which you are entitled. 
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Authorization 
I authorize the release of my medical records and personal health information related to this 
study to the sponsor and its representatives, the FDA, and other regulatory agencies as described 
above.  I have been told that I will receive a signed and dated copy of this Authorization for my 
records. 

__________________________________
Printed Name of Subject

_____________________________________
Signature of Subject

__________________________  AM/PM
Date and Time

____________________________________
Printed Name of Person Obtaining 
Authorization

______________________________________
Signature of Person Obtaining Authorization

__________________________  AM/PM
Date and Time



CLINICAL STUDY PROTOCOL 

Protocol Title

Protocol Number NSHWC–14–001

Date: 

Study Design: Patient Reported Outcomes Study

Investigator(s):  Daniel Vaughan, RPh

Sponsor: Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center (NSHWC)

Global Lead Investigator Daniel Vaughn, RPh

This study will be conducted in compliance with the protocol, Good Clinical Practice 
and all other applicable regulatory requirements, including the archiving of 
essential documents.  

Confidential Information
No use or disclosure outside NSHWC is permitted without prior written authorization from 

NSHWC. 
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PROTOCOL SYNOPSIS 

Study Title Based on the name of the disease being treated with Medical Marijuana

Recruitment 
Period

3-year Target to start Q2 2014 and end Q4 2016

Follow-up
Period

Follow-up of each patient for at least 5 years or until death.  All enrolled and living 
patients will be followed until the last enrolled and living patent has been followed for 5 
years; LPLV estimated Q4 2021

# Patients to 
be Enrolled

1,500 patients that are registered with the State of Connecticut and use medical marijuana
to be surveyed.

# Sites Up to the number of dispensaries licensed by the State of Connecticut
Primary 
Objective

Improvement of disease symptomology

Secondary
Objectives Improvement of quality of life

Protocol 
Design

This is a long-term, prospective, observational study of patients that are registered with the 
State of Connecticut and use medical marijuana. 

Key Inclusion 
Criteria

Patients that are registered with the State of Connecticut and use medical marijuana.
Patients that consent to participate in the study.

Key 
Exclusion 
Criteria

Patients that refuse to participate in the study.
Patients with draw prior authorized consent to participate in the study.

Endpoints
End of study period
Unable to tolerate medication
Patient with draws from study

Baseline Data
Elements

Verbal symptomology scales
Written experiential data

Follow-up
Data 

Verbal and written symptomology scales

Sample Size 
and Power

The proposed sample size for analysis in this study is 1500 patients.

The exploratory nature of this study will allow for sample size re-estimation after interim 
statistical analyses.  If strong trends suggest that a particular cohort should be expanded,
the overall study sample size could increase to more than 1500 or subsequent enrollment 
to other cohorts could be restricted.

Statistical 
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Methods Interim statistical analyses will be conducted at 6, 12, 18, 24, 30 and 36 months after the 
first patient is enrolled, then annually for the duration of the study.  After 12, 18, and 24 
months of patient enrollment, we anticipate that approximately 250, 500, and 750 patients, 
respectively, will have enrolled. At these analyses we will look at distributions of 
treatment and symptom paterns. If these analyses suggest that higher proportions of 
patients in one or more subgroups are required, recruitment will be adjusted accordingly. 

At the 24-, 30-, and 36-month interim analyses we anticipate a minimum of 250, 500, and 
750 patients, respectively, with at least one-year of follow-up.  At these analyses we will 
re-evaluate statistical assumptions and power of the study to detect clinically meaningful 
results. These re-evaluations will inform any changes in recruitment strategy. 
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1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Ov erview of Medical Marijuana

1.2 Clinical Presentation, Debilitating Medical Conditions include:
Cancer
Glaucoma
Positive Status for Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) or Acquired
Immune Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS)
Parkinson's Disease
Multiple Sclerosis
Damage to the Nervous Tissue of the Spinal Cord with Objective
Neurological Indication of Intractable Spasticity
Epilepsy
Cachexia
Wasting Syndrome
Crohn's Disease
Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder

1.5 Assessment of Response 

1.6 Current Symptoms for Use of Medical Marijuana 
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1.7 Stud y Rationale 

2. STUDY OBJECTIVES

3. STUDY DESIGN

This is a prospective observational study in patients that use medical marijuana. 

The type of medical marijuana and dosage during the period of observation is up to the 
discretion of the treating physician. 

Prospective observational data will be captured on enrolled patients until the last enrolled 
and living patient has completed five years. 

Data collection will occur each time a patient’s prescription is filled.

Written documentation of all data collected for the study must be available for review in 
the source documents. 

A panel of experts, the Scientific Advisory Board (SAB), will oversee this study and 
provide advice on analyzing patient data and on publications. The Global Lead 
Investigator will sign off on the protocol and any possible amendments. 

4. STUDY POPULATION

4.1 Genera l Considerations

The study will enroll patients that use medical marijuana. The selection of drug 
treatment, dose and regimen, is at the patient’s physician’s discretion.  
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4.2  Eligibility 

4.2.1 Inclusion Criteria 

1. Patients that are registered with the State of Connecticut and use medical marijuana.
2. Patients that consent to participate in the study.

4.2.2 Exclu sion Criteria 

1. Patients that refuse to participate in the study.
2. Patients with draw prior authorized consent to participate in the study.

5. TREATMENTS

5.1 Prior Treatment

5.2 Medical Marijuana as a treatment 

5.2.1 Cannabis Sativa

5.2.2 Cannabis Indica

6. OBSERVATIONAL PLAN / STUDY EVALUATIONS

The study will end when all patients have had at least five years of follow-up. 
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6.1.2 Demographics and Family History

The patient’s age, gender, race, ethnicity, and family history of cancer will be collected at 
baseline. 

6.1.3  Therapy and Medications 

Therapies and medications specific to multiple myeloma and supportive multiple 
myeloma care will be recorded for each patient during the study.   

6.1.4 Health-related Quality of Life Measures 

Patient-reported health-related quality of life (HRQoL) data will be collected 

6.1.10 Study Exit Form 

At the patient’s last study visit or after early termination, the investigator will complete 
the Study Exit Form, including the reasons for discontinuing the study if appropriate.   

6.2 Discontinuation of Individual Patients 

Patients may withdraw from the study at any time.  The Investigator may also elect to 
discontinue the study at any time. 

The Investigator may remove a patient from the study for the following reasons: 

• Patient no longer consents to participate in the study
• Patient is lost to follow-up (defined as the inability to contact the patient on 3 separate

occasions over a period of 12 weeks)

Every enrolled study participant has the right to withdraw further participation in the 
study at any time and without providing reasons. A study participant’s participation is to 
be terminated immediately upon his/her request. The Investigator will make every effort 
to complete the Study Exit Form for any study participant who withdraws, including the 
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participant’s reason for withdrawal. If the patient has previously provided consent, the 
investigator will attempt to obtain survival data at the end of the study. 

7. STATISTICAL METHODS AND SAMPLE SIZE

7.1 Statistical and Analytical Plans

7.2 Power and Sample Size 

8. ETHICS

8.1 Institutional Review Board or Independent Ethics Committee

8.2 Ethical Conduct of the Study 

The study will be conducted in accordance with the protocol and applicable regulations 
and guidelines governing clinical study conduct and the ethical principles that have their 
origin in the Declaration of Helsinki.  

8.3 Patient Information and Consent 

Informed consent will be obtained from the patient prior to the conduct of any study-
related assessments.  The investigator or his/her representative will explain the nature of 
the study to the patient and answer all questions regarding this study.   The informed 
consent process will be documented by use of an IRB/IEC approved consent signed and 
dated by the patient or the patient’s legally authorized representative. A copy of the 
signed informed consent will be provided to the patient and the original must be 
maintained by the investigator and available for inspection.   



NSHWC–14–001 Version 1.0 

January 1, 2014 DRAFT 11

Patient medical information obtained as part of this study is confidential, and must not be 
disclosed to third parties, except as noted below.  The patient may request in writing that 
medical information be given to his/her personal physician. 

The Investigator/Institution will permit direct access to source data and documents to the 
study sponsor, its designees, the FDA, and other applicable regulatory authorities.  The 
access may consist of trial-related monitoring, audits, IRB/IEC reviews, and 
FDA/regulatory authority inspections. 

Release of research results should preserve the privacy of medical information and must 
be carried out in accordance with Department of Health and Human Services Standards 
for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR 164.508. 

9. SOURCE DOCUMENTS AND CASE REPORT FORM
COMPLETION

9.1 Source Documents

Source documents are defined as original documents, data and records.  This will be the 
surveys completed by the patients 

10. DATA QUALITY ASSURANCE

A Data Management Plan (DMP) that includes procedures for quality control will be 
developed under the supervision of the Lead Investigator.  

The participant's data will be obtained from the surveys completed by the patients.

Record Keeping: The document administrator or designate, will log all study data 
documents into a tracking system.   
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The investigator(s) will permit trial-related monitoring review by providing direct access 
to source data/documents.  The investigator and study staff / research assistants are 
responsible for maintaining a comprehensive and centralized filing system of all study-
related (essential) documentation, suitable for inspection at any time by representatives 
from NSHWC.  
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11. COMPLETION OF THE STUDY

The end-of-study is defined as the date when all patients have had at least five years of 
observation or terminated study participation.   

Patients may withdraw from the study at any time.  The NSHWC may elect to 
discontinue the study at any time. 
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12. INVESTIGATOR’S AGREEMENT

Protocol Title

Protocol Number NSHWC–14–001

Version 1.0

Version Date

1. I have read this protocol and agree that the study is ethical.

2. I agree to conduct the study as outlined and in accordance with all applicable
regulations and guidelines.

3. I agree to maintain the confidentiality of all information received or developed in
connection with this protocol.

Signature of Principal Investigator Date

Name of Principal Investigator (printed or typed)
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Appendix 

Quality of Life Assessments 

E1. EORTC QLQ-C30 (version 3) 

© Copyright 1995 EORTC Quality of Life Group. All rights reserved.

[Answers from 1 to 4 corresponding to Not at All, A Little, Quite a Bit, Very Much] 

1. Do you have any trouble doing strenuous activities, like carrying a heavy shopping
bag or a suitcase?

2. Do you have any trouble taking a long walk?
3. Do you have any trouble taking a short walk outside of the house?
4. Do you need to stay in bed or a chair during the day?
5. Do you need help with eating, dressing, washing yourself or using the toilet?

During the past week: 

6. Were you limited in doing either your work or other daily activities?
7. Were you limited in pursuing your hobbies or other leisure time activities?
8. Were you short of breath?
9. Have you had pain?
10. Did you need to rest?
11. Have you had trouble sleeping?
12. Have you felt weak?
13. Have you lacked appetite?
14. Have you felt nauseated?
15. Have you vomited?
16. Have you been constipated?
17. Have you had diarrhea?
18. Were you tired?
19. Did pain interfere with your daily activities?
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20. Have you had difficulty in concentrating on things, like reading a newspaper or
watching television?

21. Did you feel tense?
22. Did you worry?
23. Did you feel irritable?
24. Did you feel depressed?
25. Have you had difficulty remembering things?
26. Has your physical condition or medical treatment interfered with your family life?
27. Has your physical condition or medical treatment interfered with your social

activities?
28. Has your physical condition or medical treatment caused you financial difficulties?

For the following questions please circle the number between 1 and 7 that best 
applies to you 

[7-point Likert scale with anchors Very poor (1) and Excellent (7)] 

29. How would you rate your overall health during the past week?
30. How would you rate your overall quality of life during the past week?

E2. EORTC  QLQ – MY20 

© Copyright 1999 EORTC Study Group on Quality of Life. All rights reserved. 

Patients sometimes report that they have the following symptoms or problems. Please 
indicate the extent to which you have experienced these symptoms or problems during 
the past week. 

Please answer by circling the number that best applies to you. 

[Answers from 1 to 4 corresponding to Not at All, A Little, Quite a Bit, Very Much] 

During the past week: 

31. Have you had bone aches or pain?
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32. Have you had pain in your back?
33. Have you had pain in your hip?
34. Have you had pain in your arm or shoulder?
35. Have you had pain in your chest?
36. If you had pain did it increase with activity?
37. Did you feel drowsy?
38. Did you feel thirsty?
39. Have you felt ill?
40. Have you had a dry mouth?
41. Have you lost any hair?
42. Answer this question only if you lost any hair: Were you upset by the loss of your

hair?
43. Did you have tingling hands or feet?
44. Did you feel restless or agitated?
45. Have you had acid indigestion or heartburn?
46. Have you had burning or sore eyes?
47. Have you felt physically less attractive as a result of your disease or treatment?
48. Have you been thinking about your illness?
49. Have you been worried about dying?
50. Have you worried about your health in the future?
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November 01, 2013

James Dietz, President
Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc.
19 Hearthstone Drive
Barkhamsted, CT 06063

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of  the services we are to pr ovide 
for Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. for the month ended October 
31, 2013. 

We w ill audit  th e financial stat ements of N utmeg State Healt h a nd Wellness 
Center, Inc., which compr ise the balance sheet(s) as o f October 31, 2013, and 
the r elated stat ements of  i ncome, r etained ear nings, and cash flows f or th e 
month then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Audit Objective

The obj ective of  our  audit i s the ex pression o f an o pinion a bout whether y our 
financial s tatements are fairly pr esented, i n al l m aterial r espects, i n con formity 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit will be conducted in 
accordance w ith audi ting standar ds g enerally accepted i n th e U nited St ates of 
America and will include tests of your accounting records and other procedures 
we consi der n ecessary to en able us to express such  an  o pinion.  We c annot 
provide assurance that an unmodified opinion will be expressed. Circumstances 
may ar ise i n w hich i t i s nec essary for  us  to modify our  opinion or  add an 
emphasis-of-matter o r o ther-matter p aragraph. If  o ur op inion i s o ther t han 
unmodified, we will d iscuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, 
we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed an 
opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or to issue a report as a result of 
this engagement.
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Audit Procedures

Our procedures w ill include tests o f d ocumentary ev idence supporting the 
transactions r ecorded i n the acc ounts, te sts o f th e phy sical ex istence of 
inventories, a nd d irect co nfirmation of  ce rtain a ssets and  lia bilities b y 
correspondence with selected customers, creditors, and financial institutions. We 
may al so r equest w ritten r epresentations from y our att orneys as par t o f th e 
engagement. A t the  co nclusion of  our a udit, w e will re quire c ertain w ritten 
representations from you about the financial statements and related matters.

An audit includes examining, on a t est basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclos ures in th e f inancial sta tements; there fore, our a udit will in volve 
judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the areas to be 
tested. An audit al so i ncludes ev aluating the a ppropriateness of acco unting 
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made 
by manag ement, as well as ev aluating t he overall pr esentation of the financial 
statements. We will p lan and perform the audit to ob tain reasonable assurance 
about w hether t he financial st atements a re f ree o f material misstatement, 
whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of 
assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable 
to the e ntity or  to acts by  manag ement or  employees acti ng on beh alf o f th e 
entity. 

Because o f th e i nherent l imitations o f a n audi t, co mbined w ith the i nherent 
limitations of in ternal co ntrol, an d because w e will n ot p erform a  de tailed 
examination o f al l transactions, there is a r isk that m aterial misstatements may 
exist and not be detec ted by us, ev en though the audi t is proper ly planned and 
performed i n acc ordance w ith U .S. g enerally accepted  au diting standards. In 
addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations 
of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect 
on the financial stat ements. H owever, we will i nform the a ppropriate l evel of  
management of any material er rors, f raudulent f inancial r eporting, or 
misappropriation of assets t hat com es to o ur a ttention. We w ill a lso info rm the 
appropriate l evel o f man agement o f any  v iolations o f l aws or  governmental 
regulations t hat c ome to our at tention, unl ess cl early i nconsequential. Our 
responsibility as au ditors is lim ited to the period covered by our a udit and does 
not extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.  

Our audit w ill inclu de ob taining an understanding o f th e entity and its  
environment, including internal c ontrol, sufficient to assess the risks o f material 
misstatement o f the financial s tatements and to design t he nature, timing, an d 
extent of further audit procedures. An audit is not designed to provide assurance 
on internal control or to identify deficiencies in internal control. However, dur ing 
the a udit, w e w ill co mmunicate t o y ou an d thos e ch arged w ith g overnance 
internal con trol r elated matt ers that ar e r equired to be com municated u nder 
professional standards.  
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We may from time to t ime, and depending on the ci rcumstances, use third-party 
service providers in serving your account. We may share confidential information 
about you with these service providers, but remain committed to maintaining the 
confidentiality and security of your information. Accordingly, we maintain internal 
policies, procedures and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal 
information. In addition, we will secure confidentiality agreements with all service 
providers to mai ntain the con fidentiality of y our information an d we will take  
reasonable precautions to d etermine that th ey hav e appr opriate p rocedures in 
place t o prevent th e unauthorized r elease of y our con fidential i nformation to 
others. In the event that we are unable to s ecure an appropriate confidentiality 
agreement, you will be asked to provide your consent prior to the sharing of your 
confidential information with the third-party service provider. Furthermore, we will 
remain r esponsible for the  w ork pr ovided by  any  such t hird-party ser vice 
providers.

Management Responsibilities

You a gree to a ssume a ll m anagement re sponsibilities for the ta x se rvices a nd 
any other nonattest services we provide; oversee the services by designating an 
individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, k nowledge, or 
experience; ev aluate the ad equacy and r esults o f the s ervices; and acce pt 
responsibility for them.  

You are responsible for establ ishing and maintaining internal controls, including 
monitoring ong oing a ctivities; f or th e sel ection a nd a pplication of acco unting 
principles; and  f or t he pr eparation and fai r presentation o f the f inancial 
statements i n con formity with U . S. generally accepte d accou nting pr inciples. 
You are also responsible for making all financial records and related information 
available to us an d for the accur acy and co mpleteness of that information. You 
are also responsible for providing us w ith (1) access to  al l information of which 
you ar e aw are th at i s r elevant to  th e pr eparation an d fair pr esentation of t he 
financial st atements, (2) addi tional i nformation t hat w e m ay r equest for the 
purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the company 
from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material 
misstatements and confirming to us in the management representation letter that 
the e ffects o f any  uncor rected mi sstatements ag gregated by  us dur ing the  
current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, 
both i ndividually and  i n th e aggregate, to  t he financial sta tements take n as a 
whole.
You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls 
to prevent and detect fraud, and for informing us abo ut all known or suspected 
fraud affecting the company involving (1) management, (2) employees who have 
significant roles in internal control, and ( 3) others where the f raud could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing 
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us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the 
company r eceived i n com munications from e mployees, former empl oyees, 
regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring 
that the entity complies with applicable laws and regulations.    
Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other
We understand that your employees will prepare all cash,  accounts receivable, 
and other confirmations we request and will locate any documents selected by us 
for testing. 

Christopher King, C PA is the  eng agement par tner an d is r esponsible for 
supervising the engagement.

It is difficult for us to project the time requirements of this engagement; however, 
we estimate that our  fees for these services will range f rom $2,000 to $3,000 .
You ma y a lso be  b illed for travel a nd o ther o ut-of-pocket co sts s uch as re port 
production, w ord pr ocessing, post age, e tc. The fee esti mate i s base d o n 
anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected 
circumstances w ill n ot b e e ncountered d uring th e e ngagement. If  sign ificant 
additional ti me i s necessary, w e will keep you i nformed o f a ny pr oblems w e 
encounter and our fees will be adjusted accordingly. Our invoices for these fees 
will be rendered as work progresses and are payable on presentation.  

We appreciate t he opportunity to be of ser vice to y ou and believe thi s l etter 
accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any 
questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of our engagement as 
described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us.

Very truly yours,

King, King & Associates, CPAs

RESPONSE:

This l etter cor rectly s ets for th th e un derstanding o f N utmeg State H ealth an d 
Wellness Center, Inc.

Management signature: ____________________________________

Title: ______________________________________________

Date: ______________________________________________



November 13, 2013 

King, King & Associates, CPAs
170 Holabird Avenue
Winsted, CT 06098

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audits of the f inancial statements of Nutmeg State 
Health and Wellness Center, Inc ., which comprise the bal ance sheets as of  October 31, 2013, and the related 
statements of income, retained earnings, and cash flows for the month then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial s tatements, f or the purpose of  ex pressing an  op inion as  t o whether the  f inancial s tatements ar e 
presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States.

Certain r epresentations in th is l etter ar e described as be ing l imited t o m atters that  ar e m aterial. Item s ar e 
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting information that, 
in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the j udgment of a reasonable person relying on the 
information would be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is 
monetarily small in amount could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors.

We confirm, to th e b est of our  k nowledge an d belief, as  of No vember 13 , 2 013, th e f ollowing r epresentations 
made to you during your audit.

Financial Statements

We have f ulfilled our  r esponsibilities, as  s et ou t in  the ter ms o f the audi t e ngagement letter  d ated
November 5, 20 13, inc luding our responsibility f or the preparation and fair presentation of  the f inancial
statements.

The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

We ack nowledge our r esponsibility f or the des ign, implementation, an d m aintenance of inter nal c ontrol
relevant to  the  pr eparation an d f air pr esentation of  f inancial s tatements that  ar e f ree f rom material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control to
prevent and detect fraud.

Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value,
are reasonable.

Related p arty r elationships and tr ansactions h ave b een a ppropriately ac counted f or and dis closed i n
accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP.

All e vents s ubsequent t o the  dat e of the f inancial s tatements and  f or which U. S. G AAP r equires
adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

The effects of all k nown actual or possible l itigation, c laims, and assessments have been accounted for
and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Material concentrations have been properly disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the company is contingently liable, have been properly
recorded or disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.



Note 4 to t he financial statements discloses all of  the matters of which we are aware that are relevant to
the c ompany’s a bility t o c ontinue as  a  g oing c oncern, i ncluding s ignificant c onditions and e vents, an d
management’s plans.

Information Provided

We have provided you with:

o Access to al l i nformation, of w hich we ar e a ware, that is r elevant to  the  pr eparation a nd f air
presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other matters.

o Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

o Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain
audit evidence.

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the f inancial
statements.

We have d isclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that t he financial statements may be
materially misstated as a result of fraud.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the entity and involves:

o Management,

o Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or

o Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have n o k nowledge of an y a llegations of  f raud or  s uspected f raud affecting th e en tity’s f inancial
statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others.

We have n o knowledge of  any instances of  noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with laws and
regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments, or unasserted claims
or assessments that are r equired to  be  accrued or disclosed in the  f inancial s tatements in  accordance
with U.S. GAAP, and we have not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation, claims, or assessments.

We have d isclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related party relationships
and transactions of which we are aware.

The company has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such
assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

We have provided you with all the information that is relevant to our plans to mitigate the adverse effects
of conditions and events that indicate there is substantial doubt about the company’s ability to continue as
a going concern for a reasonable period of time, including our evaluation of the likelihood that those plans
can be effectively implemented.

James Dietz, President
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
To the Management and Stockholders of 
Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. 
 
We have audited the accompanying f inancial statements of  Nutmeg State Health and Wellness 
Center, I nc. ( a Connect icut corporat ion), w hich comprise the bal ance sheet  as of  October 31, 
2013, and the related statements of income and reta ined earnings, and cash flows for the period 
from inception to October 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of  America; this 
includes the desig n, impl ementation, and mai ntenance of  internal control  rel evant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We 
conducted our audi t in accordance with auditing standards g enerally accepted i n the U nited 
States of  America.  T hose standards req uire th at w e pl an and perf orm the audi t to obtai n 
reasonable assurance about w hether the financial statements are f ree f rom material  
misstatement.   
 
An audi t inv olves perf orming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, i ncluding the assessment of the risks of  material  misstatement of  the f inancial 
statements, w hether due to f raud or err or.  I n mak ing those risk  assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to desig n audit procedures that are appropriate  in the circumstances, but not 
for t he p urpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  
Accordingly, we express no such opi nion.  An au dit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonablene ss of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audi t ev idence we have obta ined is  sufficient and appropriate to prov ide a 
basis for our audit opinion.     
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Opinion 
 
In our opini on, the f inancial statements ref erred to above present f airly, in al l material  respects, 
the f inancial posit ion of Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. as of  October 31, 2013, 
and the results of  its operations and its cash f lows for the initial period then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis-of-matter Regarding Going Concern 
 
The accompanying financial statements have been pr epared as suming t hat t he Com pany w ill 
continue as a g oing concern. As di scussed in note  4 to the f inancial statements, the Company  is 
applying f or a license as a di spensary of  me dical marijuana f rom t he St ate of  Connect icut 
Department of  Cons umer Pr otection. T he St ate w ill be is suing t hree t o f ive l icenses this year. 
These c onditions r aise s ubstantial doubt  about  it s ability to continue as a going concern. 
Management’s plans regarding those matters also are described in note 4. T he f inancial 
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of  this uncertainty. 
Our opinion is not modified with respect to that matter. 
   

 
King, King & Associates, CPAs. 
Winsted, Connecticut 
November 13, 2013 



NUTMEG STATE HEALTH AND WELLNESS CENTER, INC
Balance Sheet

October 31, 2013

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash -$                   
-                     

Total Current Assets -                     

Total Assets -$                   

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Shareholder Loans Payable 7,233$            
Current Liabilities 7,233              

Stockholders' Equity
Common Stock, 20,000 shares authorized -                     
Retained Earnings (7,233)            

Total Equity (7,233)            

Total Liabilities and Equity -$                   

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NUTMEG STATE HEALTH AND WELLNESS CENTER, INC
Statement of Income and Retained Earnings

For the Month Ended October 31, 2013

Operating Revenues

Sales -$                  
Total Revenues -                    

Administrative Expenses
Office Supplies 85                 
Filing Fees 300               
Memberships 800               
Technology 639               
Training 2,961            
Travel 2,448            

Total Expenses 7,233            

Net Income (Loss) (7,233)           

Beginning Retained Earnings -                    
Ending Retained Earnings (7,233)$         

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NUTMEG STATE HEALTH AND WELLNESS CENTER, INC
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Month Ended October 31, 2013
        

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Income (7,233)$       

Depreciation Expense -                  

Increase/(Decrease) In:
Shareholder Loan 7,233           

          Net Cash Flow Provided By Operating Activities -                  

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

          Net Cash Flow Used By Investing Activities -                  

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

         Net Cash Flow Provided By Financing Activities -                  

Net Increase in Cash Flows -                  

Cash at Beginning of Year -                  
Cash at End of Year -$                

Supplemental Disclosure:
Interest Paid -$                
Income Taxes Paid -$                

See accompanying notes of financial statements.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Organization 
Nutmeg State Health and W ellness Center,  Inc. (N utmeg) a Connecticut corporat ion formed for the 
purpose of becoming a licensed dispensary facility for medical marijuana in the State of Connecticut. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, Nutmeg considers all deposits and investments with an 
initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 
 
Property, Plant, and Equipment 
Property, Plant, and Eq uipment are recorded at cost.  Purchases ov er $1,000 are capital ized as 
Property, Plant, and Eq uipment.  De preciation is cal culated usi ng accel erated and strai ght-line 
methods over the following estimated useful lives: 
 
 Bui lding and Improvements 39 years 
 M achinery and Equipment 5-10 years 
 Furni ture and Fixtures 5-7 years 
 Vehicles 5 years 
 
Management Estimates 
The preparation of  f inancial statements in conf ormity w ith g enerally accepted accounting  principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the report ed amounts of  rev enues and expenses during  the report ing pe riod.  Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 
 
Review for Subsequent Events 
In connection with the preparation of the financial statements as of and for the month ended October 
31, 2013, events and t ransactions subsequent to October 31, 2013 through November 13, 2013, the 
date the f inancial statements w ere available to be issued, hav e be en ev aluated by  Nutm eg’s 
management for possible adjustment and/or disclosure 
 
 
NOTE 2 – INCOME TAXES 
 
Nutmeg is in it s init ial year of  existence and is  not required to f ile income tax returns for the period 
covered by the audit. 
 
 
NOTE 3 – DETAIL NOTES ON ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY 
 
Shareholder Loan Payable 
This amount represents expenses paid by the shareholders during the initial phase of the corporation.  
There is no formal note specifying repayment terms. 
 
 
NOTE 4 – GOING CONCERN 
 
Currently, Nutm eg is appl ying f or a medical  mari juana di spensary f acility l icense i n the State of 
Connecticut.  T he Depart ment of  Consumer  Protection is g ranting 3 -5 licenses, w ith no more than 
one in each County   If  Nutm eg is not g ranted a lic ense, o r t he T own in w hich t he f acility is to be 



 
NUTMEG STATE HEALTH AND WELLNESS CENTER, INC. 

 Notes to the Financial Statements 
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located does not approve the zoning application, there is substantial doubt that Nutmeg will continue 
more than one y ear bey ond the f inancial statemen t date.  M anagement is curr ently preparing  al l 
necessary information to submit a timely application for licensing. 
 
 NOTE 5 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Subsequent to the date of  the f inancial statements , a contract f or the purchase of  real  estate was 
executed for $300,000, and a deposit of $5,000 was placed in escrow with the seller’s broker.  A 
property survey was completed and paid by the shareholder for $3,750. 



289 north main street 
ambler, pa 19002 

215 643 9050 
800 783 2565 

fax 215 643 7001 
go2pts.com 

nnortheast midatlantic 
#7 davis street, harrison nj 07029 1550 caton center drive, suite m, baltimore md 21227 
800 905 3526 301 474 4470 

PRECISION CISION
technology  solutions  

1

November 14, 2013 

James Dietz 
President 
Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. 
203-241-6464 

Dear Mr. Dietz: 

Please see below for the proposed cost of (1) Magnetic Microdrive Barrier Gate plus installation. 

QTY P roduct ID        Product Description Ext Cost 
(1)  MAG Magnetic Automation Microdrive Barrier Gate         $  4,090.00 
Installation:
- Install one concrete pad. 
- Mount, furnish and install the equipment listed above. 
- Perform final wire termination, programming and system startup. 
- Instruct on programming, usage and maintenance.  

Equipment: $  4,090.00 
   Installation: $  3,130.00 

Total Investment: $ 7,220.00
Project Notes: 
1. Tax, If Applicable, Is Not Included
2. Permits, If Applicable, are not Included
3. Only equipment listed above is included in this proposal.
4. Labor is predicated on “Open Shop” rates.
5. Owner is responsible for running power.
a. Pricing is subject to change if additional equipment or labor is required to complete this project.
6. Preferred terms are 50% on order, 40% upon equipment delivery, and the final 10% due after two weeks of

equipment usage.

Thank you for your time and consideration of this proposal. If everything meets with your approval please sign where 
indicated and fax/email me this proposal back as soon as possible.  If you have any questions or concerns please feel free 
to give me a call.  

Sincerely, 

Christopher Patrick 
Northeast Sales Engineer 
(215) 237 – 5356 (Phone) 
(973) 268 – 2703 (Fax) 

Agreed & Accepted ______________________________________ 
Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. 



289 north main street 
ambler, pa 19002 

215 643 9050 
800 783 2565 

fax 215 643 7001 
go2pts.com 

nnortheast midatlantic 
#7 davis street, harrison nj 07029 1550 caton center drive, suite m, baltimore md 21227 
800 905 3526 301 474 4470 

PRECISION CISION
technology  solutions  
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PPrepared For:

Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc - Connecticut Medical Marijuana Dispensary - Access Control 

Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc 
100 New Hartford Road  

 Winsted, CT 06098 

Prepared By:
Diebold, Inc.

5995 Mayfair Road
North Canton, OH 44720

1-800-DIEBOLD
Patrick J. Farrell 

Senior National Account Manager 
203-231-7646 

patrick.farrell2@diebold.com 

Project Site:
Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc 

100 New Hartford Road 
Winsted, CT  06098 
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SScope of Work

I.   The Equipment and Material:
The Equipment and Material listed on the attached Schedule of Installation shall be installed in the locations indicated
on the attached device layout drawing (SC-01). 

II. Installation:
The installation services included in this proposal are all encompassing and are sufficient for the complete installation
as described on Schedules "B" and "C".  Installation is to be done during normal business hours.  Work shall begin
and finish in one complete continuous effort.  There is no planned phased delivery for this project.  After hour access
shall be provided if requested and coordinated in advance.  Installation price is based on free air cabling and a
construction environment composed of mainly lift out ceiling (10ft max. height), and hollow walls.
Specific exceptions to the required Installation above are as follows: 
Because permits and compliance fees vary considerably from area, they have been excluded from this proposal.
Permits and compliance fees  for this project will be billed under separate cover once the fees have been
identified.

Additional installation time required to complete the work beyond the quantities stated may be subject to charge if
sufficient access cannot be reasonably coordinated, if phased delivery is required, or if work by others is not complete
and causes unforeseen delays. 

III. Work by Others:
The following work is the responsibilities of others and is required to be complete and in place before Diebold begins
the installation:
1. Power
2. Conduit and stub ups
3. Network connections
4. IP Addresses
5. Core Drilling
6. Environmental
7. Fire Alarm Interface
8. Fire Stopping
9. Lift rental
10. Painting & Patching

IV. Training and Turn Over:
The customer shall be available for training, turn over and acceptance immediately after the project is complete. 
Should there be any punch list items they shall be established at this time.

V.   Services:
All services including monitoring, maintenance and enhanced managed services are to be provided as described
in the attached Schedule of Services.

IV. Clarifications and Exclusions
* 110V power is not included and will be provided, installed and connected by others. Diebold to extend the
hardwirepower to the security panel wall field.

* ALL Conduits [as required] will be supplied and installed as well as ring/j-hooks and pull strings by the base building
contractors under the direction of the project General Contractors.
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* Stub-ups, electrical wiring (power cabling/wiring), sleeves, etc. are not included in this proposal and will be
providedand installed by others.Proposal 20834 8/19/20133 of 11

* Diebold will provide low voltage security cable per the enclosed Schedule A amounts reflecting normally expected
wiring runs. Any additional wire beyond the following Schedule A quantities will be treated as an add-on via a change
order.

* As required: data, communications, network equipment and connectivity will be provided and installed by othersfor
field/access control panels and CCTV with a 15 ft service loop for installation purposes.

* A N/C dry contact must be provided and installed by the customer's fire alarm vendor at each access control
equipment backplane/closet location. Customer/Owner is responsible for coordinating obtaining the relays,
testing,etc. Customer/Owner is responsible for ensuring that the fire alarm vendor has tagged and fully tested the
systemfor proper relay activation after connection. This relay should be mounted within three feet of Diebold lock
power supply. Final quantity of relays to be determined by Project Manager. Customer/Owner is responsible for final
coordination and testing prior to Diebold, Inc. leaving the project site.

* All work will be completed during normal working hours. Overtime work is not included and will be charged
additionally. Unforeseen down time for elevator access, construction schedule changes, etc. will be charged
additionally.

* Unless specified otherwise, the costs for lifts and other construction and material moving equipment is not included.

* Diebold is not providing a bond for this project.

* Taxes are not included and will be invoiced additionally.
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SSchedule of Installation

Schedule "A" - Material

Access Head End 

Manufacturer Part Number Qty
Altronix AL400ULACM 1
(AL400ULACM) Altronix Lock Power Supply
Diebold Part Number: 19-071199-0000A

Altronix SMP3EK1 1
(SMP3EK1) Altronix SMP3 powersupply charger 12vdc @2.5 ampsw enclosure, LPD8 batt low disconnect@8vdc,
TP2450 24vac 50VA Xformer
Diebold Part Number: 19-068237-000A

Yuasa NP7-12 5
(NP7-12) 12VDC 7 AH Battery
Diebold Part Number: 19-036230-000A

DMP 734 4
(734) DMP Standard Hardwired Door Module
Diebold Part Number: 19-059777-000A

SDC 631RFAUR2A 1
(631RFAUR2A) 631RFAUR2A-1.5 AMP REGULATED Power Supply W/ UR2A

SDC 701ULT 1
(701ULT) Keyswitch Maintained Spdt 630 Finish

HID 1386-LGGMN/26 100
HID ISOProx II - plain white, programmable PVC cards, sequentially ink-jet numbered. Minimum Order Quantity is
100, shipped in packs of 50, price is per card
Diebold Part Number: 00-050725-000E

Access Field Devices 

Manufacturer Part Number Qty
Bosch DS150i 4
Request to Exit PIR - grey
Diebold Part Number: 19-041958-000A

HID 920PTNNEK00000 4
(920PTNNEK00000) SE RP40 Switchplate multiCLASS Reader
Diebold Part Number: 19-080309-000B
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Securitron SN-PB3N 2
(SN-PB3N) Egress push button, momentary, 1 x 3/4" rectangular, narrow stile plate
Diebold Part Number: 19-049057-000A
 
Anixter Inc. FRP-84 1
(FRP-84) Pedestal Pole Mount
Diebold Part Number: 19-081339-000A
 
Anixter Inc. FRH-2316 1
(FRH-2316) Pedestal Hood
Diebold Part Number: 19-081340-000A
 
CSC CSD16166SS6 1
Hoffman Wall-Mount Type 4X Enclosure 16.00x16.00x6.00 EA
 
 
MMetal Detector 
 
Manufacturer Part Number Qty
ADI 1168411 1
PD 6500i --- Standard 30" clearance in neutral beige color scheme. 33 distinct pinpoint zones for ultimate detection
and throughput. Precise target location identification on right, left or center of body from head to toe
 
TRIPP SMART1500LCD 1
(SMART1500LCD) 1500VA UPS System SmartPro Rack/Shelf/Tower Digital LCD Line-Interactive 120V 8 Outlet -
1500 VA, 1 USB, 1 DB9, 1 Line Modem/Fax/Ethernet
 
 
Intercom 
 
Manufacturer Part Number Qty
Aiphone JKS-1AEDV 1
PANTILT ZOOM HANDS-FREE 1 X 2 COLOR VIDEO SET W/MEMORY . (JK-1MED, JK-DV, PS-1820UL)
Diebold Part Number: 19-065534-000A
 
Aiphone MCW-S/A 1
Desk Stand for Video Monitor
Diebold Part Number: 19-064010-000A
 
Aiphone RY-18L 1
Aiphone Relay Door Release Module, Form C, 12-18VDC
Diebold Part Number: 19-064017-000A
 
 
 
 
Schedule "C" - Diebold Subcontracting & Cable
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CCategories Qty U
5-Non Union Licensed Low Voltage Per Plans and Specifications 

Part Cables
CABLE-B - 6 cond, 18 Ga - Plenum - Montana 975.0 
CABLE-M - Cable M - for card reader doors - Montana  300.0 

Additional Cables and Locks:
(CABLE-B) - Montana - 6 cond, 18 Ga - Plenum 500 
(Single Magnetic Lock) - As Required - Example: Single MinMag 750 LBS  4 
(Electric Door Strike) - As Required - Example: HES 2 
(CABLE-C) - Montana - 2 cond 18Ga - Teflon 500 

Schedule "D" - Service and Support Offerings (Priced Separately)
Categories Qty Diebold Part # Mon. Ext. Sell
Monthly Charges Per Attached Schedule of Services 1 $302.06 
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PPurchase Investment Summary  

Included in the cost below is the specified scope of work and the equipment indicated on the Schedule of Installation.

Total:  $27,436.40 
*Prices quoted do not include Sales or Use tax. Applicable Sales and Use tax will be added to the quoted prices.

Monthly Charges Per Attached Schedule of Services $302.06 

Customer agrees to pay Diebold the sum per month, plus all applicable taxes, for the Services, as indicated on the
Schedule of Services, prepaid, Monthly for a period of  3 year(s).

Billing Terms

100% Upon completion of Installation. Payment Terms: Due Upon Receipt.

This proposal is valid for 30 days
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Thank you for the opportunity to provide this proposal.  Please sign, date and return the proposal in its entirety to

eMail: patrick.farrell2@diebold.com 

Please issue any Purchase Order or other contract documents to Diebold, Incorporated.

This Agreement shall not become binding on Diebold until approved and accepted by Diebold's management as
provided below.

SSeller: Buyer:

Diebold, Incorporated Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc 
Company Trade, partnership or corporate name if different

from above

100 New Hartford Road

,  Winsted, CT 06098
Address Address

Patrick J. Farrell, Senior National Account
Manager
Account Representative Name & Title Name & Title

Diebold Management Authorized Signature Date

Diebold Management Signature Date
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PPrepared For:

Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc - Connecticut Medical Marijuana Dispensary - CCTV 

Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. 
100 New Hartford Road  

 Winsted, CT 06098 

Prepared By:
Diebold, Inc.

5995 Mayfair Road
North Canton, OH 44720

1-800-DIEBOLD
Patrick J. Farrell 

Senior National Account Manager 
203-231-7646 

Project Site:
Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. 

100 New Hartford Road 
Winsted, CT  06098 
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SScope of Work

I.   The Equipment and Material:
The Equipment and Material listed on the attached Schedule of Installation shall be installed in the locations indicated
on the attached device layout drawing (SC-01). 

II. Installation:
The installation services included in this proposal are all encompassing and are sufficient for the complete installation
as described on Schedules "B" and "C".  Installation is to be done during normal business hours.  Work shall begin
and finish in one complete continuous effort.  There is no planned phased delivery for this project.  After hour access
shall be provided if requested and coordinated in advance.  Installation price is based on free air cabling and a
construction environment composed of mainly lift out ceiling (10ft max. height), and hollow walls.
Specific exceptions to the required Installation above are as follows: 
Because permits and compliance fees vary considerably from area, they have been excluded from this proposal.
Permits and compliance fees  for this project will be billed under separate cover once the fees have been
identified.

Additional installation time required to complete the work beyond the quantities stated may be subject to charge if
sufficient access cannot be reasonably coordinated, if phased delivery is required, or if work by others is not complete
and causes unforeseen delays. 

III. Work by Others:
The following work is the responsibilities of others and is required to be complete and in place before Diebold begins
the installation:
1. Power
2. Conduit and stub ups
3. Network connections
4. IP Addresses
5. Core Drilling
6. Environmental
7. Fire Alarm Interface
8. Fire Stopping
9. Lift rental
10. Painting & Patching

IV. Training and Turn Over:
The customer shall be available for training, turn over and acceptance immediately after the project is complete. 
Should there be any punch list items they shall be established at this time.

V.   Services:
All services including monitoring, maintenance and enhanced managed services are to be provided as described
in the attached Schedule of Services.

IV. Clarifications and Exclusions
* 110V power is not included and will be provided, installed and connected by others. Diebold to extend the
hardwirepower to the security panel wall field.

* ALL Conduits [as required] will be supplied and installed as well as ring/j-hooks and pull strings by the base building
contractors under the direction of the project General Contractors.
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* Stub-ups, electrical wiring (power cabling/wiring), sleeves, etc. are not included in this proposal and will be
providedand installed by others.Proposal 20834 8/19/20133 of 11

* Diebold will provide low voltage security cable per the enclosed Schedule A amounts reflecting normally expected
wiring runs. Any additional wire beyond the following Schedule A quantities will be treated as an add-on via a change
order.

* As required: data, communications, network equipment and connectivity will be provided and installed by othersfor
field/access control panels and CCTV with a 15 ft service loop for installation purposes.

* A N/C dry contact must be provided and installed by the customer's fire alarm vendor at each access control
equipment backplane/closet location. Customer/Owner is responsible for coordinating obtaining the relays,
testing,etc. Customer/Owner is responsible for ensuring that the fire alarm vendor has tagged and fully tested the
systemfor proper relay activation after connection. This relay should be mounted within three feet of Diebold lock
power supply. Final quantity of relays to be determined by Project Manager. Customer/Owner is responsible for final
coordination and testing prior to Diebold, Inc. leaving the project site.

* All work will be completed during normal working hours. Overtime work is not included and will be charged
additionally. Unforeseen down time for elevator access, construction schedule changes, etc. will be charged
additionally.

* Unless specified otherwise, the costs for lifts and other construction and material moving equipment is not included.

* Diebold is not providing a bond for this project.

* Taxes are not included and will be invoiced additionally.
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SSchedule of Installation

Schedule "A" - Material

CCTV Head End 

Manufacturer Part Number Qty
Costar CR1600E-2000 1
16-Channel Digital Video Recorder, H.264, Up to 480 ips Recording, 2000 GB, Time & Date Search, RS-232,
RS-485, 4 Channels Two Way Audio, USB, Text interface, IP, Linux OS, RAS+, iPhone compatible
Diebold Part Number: 29-018028-000A

APC BE650G 1
APC Uninterruptible Power Supply - EdgeVR
Diebold Part Number: 19-069527-000A

MG Electronics DPS-16UL/PTC 1
16 channel Power Supply
Diebold Part Number: 19-065304-000A

CCTV Field Devices 

Manufacturer Part Number Qty
CSC CP8810 4
CONN,BNC,RG59,TEFLON CRIMP **10 Pack**
Diebold Part Number: 19-056517-000A

Costar CDC3613FEIR 7
(CDC3613FEIR) Dome, Flush / Surface Mount, 600TVL, 36 LED/115ft beam, 2.8-12 mm, IP66, DC12V / AC24V
Diebold Part Number: 19074650000A

Costar CDC3613FEIRH 8
(CDC3613FEIRH) Dome, Flush & Surface Mount, 600TVL, 36 LED/115ft beam, 2.8-12 mm, IP66, DC12V / AC24V,
with Heater Kit
Diebold Part Number: 19080281000A

Costar CDC3613FEIRM 1
(CDC3613FEIRM) Dome, Flush / Surface Mount, 600TVL, 36 LED/115ft beam, 2.8-12 mm, IP66, DC12V / AC24V,
and (CDMKVFE) Wall Bracket
Diebold Part Number: 19080282000A

Costar CHG2511 1
(CHG2511) Adapter Pole Mount
Diebold Part Number: 19-080341-000A
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SSchedule "C" - Diebold Subcontracting & Cable
Categories Qty U
5-Non Union Licensed Low Voltage Per Plans and Specifications 

Part Cables
S649948 - 18 COMPOSITE MULTI-CABLE, CONSISTS ONE EACH: 18 GAUGE 2 CONDUCTOR
STRANDED BARE COPPER, UNSHIELDED, TWISTED AND ACKETED + RG-59U COAX CABLE 20
AWG SOLID BARE COPPER, BARE COPPER BRAID SHIELD - Anixter Inc.

1200.0 

Additional Cables and Locks:
(91-200175-0062) – Diebold - Pink Cable Siamese Cable. 18WG, 2 Conductors and RG59 coax
cable, Plenum

450 

Schedule "D" - Service and Support Offerings (Priced Separately)
Categories Qty Diebold Part # Mon. Ext. Sell
Monthly Charges Per Attached Schedule of Services 1 $156.52 
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PPurchase Investment Summary   
 
 
Included in the cost below is the specified scope of work and the equipment indicated on the Schedule of Installation.
 

Total:  $13,264.17 
*Prices quoted do not include Sales or Use tax. Applicable Sales and Use tax will be added to the quoted prices.  

Monthly Charges Per Attached Schedule of Services
 

$156.52 

Customer agrees to pay Diebold the sum per month, plus all applicable taxes, for the Services, as indicated on the
Schedule of Services, prepaid, Monthly for a period of  3 year(s).
 

 

Billing Terms
 
100% Upon completion of Installation. Payment Terms: Due Upon Receipt.
 
 

 
  
 

This proposal is valid for 30 days
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Thank you for the opportunity to provide this proposal.  Please sign, date and return the proposal in its entirety to

Please issue any Purchase Order or other contract documents to Diebold, Incorporated.

This Agreement shall not become binding on Diebold until approved and accepted by Diebold's management as
provided below.

SSeller: Buyer:

Diebold, Incorporated Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. 
Company Trade, partnership or corporate name if different

from above

patrick.farrell2@diebold.com 100 New Hartford Road

,  Winsted, CT 06098
Address Address

Patrick J. Farrell, Senior National Account
Manager
Account Representative Name & Title Name & Title

Diebold Management Authorized Signature Date

Diebold Management Signature Date
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SScope of Work

I.   The Equipment and Material:
The Equipment and Material listed on the attached Schedule of Installation shall be installed in the locations indicated
on the attached device layout drawing (SC-01). 

II. Installation:
The installation services included in this proposal are all encompassing and are sufficient for the complete installation
as described on Schedules "B" and "C".  Installation is to be done during normal business hours.  Work shall begin
and finish in one complete continuous effort.  There is no planned phased delivery for this project.  After hour access
shall be provided if requested and coordinated in advance.  Installation price is based on free air cabling and a
construction environment composed of mainly lift out ceiling (10ft max. height), and hollow walls.
Specific exceptions to the required Installation above are as follows: 
Because permits and compliance fees vary considerably from area, they have been excluded from this proposal.
Permits and compliance fees  for this project will be billed under separate cover once the fees have been
identified.

Additional installation time required to complete the work beyond the quantities stated may be subject to charge if
sufficient access cannot be reasonably coordinated, if phased delivery is required, or if work by others is not complete
and causes unforeseen delays. 

III. Work by Others:
The following work is the responsibilities of others and is required to be complete and in place before Diebold begins
the installation:
1. Power
2. Conduit and stub ups
3. Network connections
4. IP Addresses
5. Core Drilling
6. Environmental
7. Fire Alarm Interface
8. Fire Stopping
9. Lift rental
10. Painting & Patching

IV. Training and Turn Over:
The customer shall be available for training, turn over and acceptance immediately after the project is complete. 
Should there be any punch list items they shall be established at this time.

V.   Services:
All services including monitoring, maintenance and enhanced managed services are to be provided as described
in the attached Schedule of Services.

IV. Clarifications and Exclusions
* 110V power is not included and will be provided, installed and connected by others. Diebold to extend the
hardwirepower to the security panel wall field.

* ALL Conduits [as required] will be supplied and installed as well as ring/j-hooks and pull strings by the base building
contractors under the direction of the project General Contractors.
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* Stub-ups, electrical wiring (power cabling/wiring), sleeves, etc. are not included in this proposal and will be
providedand installed by others.Proposal 20834 8/19/20133 of 11

* Diebold will provide low voltage security cable per the enclosed Schedule A amounts reflecting normally expected
wiring runs. Any additional wire beyond the following Schedule A quantities will be treated as an add-on via a change
order.

* As required: data, communications, network equipment and connectivity will be provided and installed by othersfor
field/access control panels and CCTV with a 15 ft service loop for installation purposes.

* A N/C dry contact must be provided and installed by the customer's fire alarm vendor at each access control
equipment backplane/closet location. Customer/Owner is responsible for coordinating obtaining the relays,
testing,etc. Customer/Owner is responsible for ensuring that the fire alarm vendor has tagged and fully tested the
systemfor proper relay activation after connection. This relay should be mounted within three feet of Diebold lock
power supply. Final quantity of relays to be determined by Project Manager. Customer/Owner is responsible for final
coordination and testing prior to Diebold, Inc. leaving the project site.

* All work will be completed during normal working hours. Overtime work is not included and will be charged
additionally. Unforeseen down time for elevator access, construction schedule changes, etc. will be charged
additionally.

* Unless specified otherwise, the costs for lifts and other construction and material moving equipment is not included.

* Diebold is not providing a bond for this project.

* Taxes are not included and will be invoiced additionally.

Proposal 26013             11/13/2013 4 of 10



 
Proposal 26013             11/13/2013

                      
                       5 of 10



SSchedule of Installation
 
 
Schedule "A" - Material
Intrusion Head End
 
Manufacturer Part Number Qty
DMP KIT-DBLD-XR100N 1
Panel, in 350 enclosure (includes 50 VA Transformer)
Diebold Part Number: 19-067405-000A
 
Yuasa NP7-12 2
(NP7-12) 12VDC 7 AH Battery
Diebold Part Number: 19-036230-000A
 
DMP 464-263H 1
(464-263H) 4G HSPA+ GSM Cellular Communicator for XR100 and XR500
Diebold Part Number: 19-080852-000A
 
DMP 386 1
(386) Chrome 90 Degree Antenna Mounting Bracket Chrome 90 degree antenna mounting bracket with an 8/32
inch opening.
Diebold Part Number: 19-069018-000A
 
DMP 381-25 1
(381-25) DMP Remote Antenna Cable
Diebold Part Number: 19-069014-000A
 
DMP 714-8 1
(714-8) Eight Point Zone Expander in 340 Enclosure
Diebold Part Number: DM-714800-0000
 
Altronix SMP3EK1 1
(SMP3EK1) Altronix SMP3 powersupply charger 12vdc @2.5 ampsw enclosure, LPD8 batt low disconnect@8vdc,
TP2450 24vac 50VA Xformer
Diebold Part Number: 19-068237-000A
 
Yuasa NP4-12 1
(NP4-12) 12VDC 4AH battery sealed lead acid
Diebold Part Number: 29-014313-000A
 
 
Intrusion Field Devices
 
Manufacturer Part Number Qty
DMP 7060-I 1
Thin LCD Keypad Ivory
Diebold Part Number: 19-049388-000A
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Bosch ISC-BPR2-W12 6
Blue Line Gen2 PIR Motion Detector (12 m [40 ft] coverage) Voltage operating: 9 VDC to 15 VDC, Tampe
Diebold Part Number: 19-071847-000A

Bosch ISC-PDL1-WA18G 3
(ISC-PDL1-WA18G) 60' Professional Series Tritech Motion Detector
Diebold Part Number: 19-080500-000A

UTC 1076D 8
1' DPDT Door Contact
Diebold Part Number: SE-1076D0-0000

UTC 2707A-L 2
High Security Contacts w/Armored Cable, Triple Biased, SPDT, 3/16" to 5/8" Gap Size. Single Pole-Double Throw.
3' Stainless Steel Armored Cable
Diebold Part Number: 19-049120-000A

DMP 1142BC-B 6
(1142BC-B) 2 Button Wireless Hold-up Device, with Belt Clip
Diebold Part Number: 11-046736-000A

SSchedule "C" - Diebold Subcontracting & Cable
Categories Qty U
5-Non Union Licensed Low Voltage Per Plans and Specifications 

Part Cables
CABLE-C - 2 cond 18Ga - Teflon - Montana 750.0 
91-200178-0062 - 22 GAUGE STRANDED BARE COPPER, 4 CONDUCTORS TWISTED, UNSHIELDED,
PVC/PVC JACKET - Diebold  

750.0 

Additional Cables and Locks:
(91-200183-0062) - Diebold - 22AWG Stranded Bare copper, 4 conductors, unshielded, plenum 150 

Schedule "D" - Service and Support Offerings (Priced Separately)
Categories Qty Diebold Part # Mon. Ext. Sell
Monthly Charges Per Attached Schedule of Services 1 $170.28 
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PPurchase Investment Summary  

Included in the cost below is the specified scope of work and the equipment indicated on the Schedule of Installation.

Total:  $6,892.66 
*Prices quoted do not include Sales or Use tax. Applicable Sales and Use tax will be added to the quoted prices.

Monthly Charges Per Attached Schedule of Services $170.28 

Customer agrees to pay Diebold the sum per month, plus all applicable taxes, for the Services, as indicated on the
Schedule of Services, prepaid, Monthly for a period of  3 year(s).

Billing Terms

100% Upon completion of Installation. Payment Terms: Due Upon Receipt.

This proposal is valid for 30 days
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Thank you for the opportunity to provide this proposal.  Please sign, date and return the proposal in its entirety to

eMail: patrick.farrell2@diebold.com 

Please issue any Purchase Order or other contract documents to Diebold, Incorporated.

This Agreement shall not become binding on Diebold until approved and accepted by Diebold's management as
provided below.

SSeller: Buyer:

Diebold, Incorporated Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc 
Company Trade, partnership or corporate name if different

from above

100 New Hartford Road

,  Winsted, CT 06098
Address Address

Patrick J. Farrell, Senior National Account
Manager
Account Representative Name & Title Name & Title

Diebold Management Authorized Signature Date

Diebold Management Signature Date
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PROPOSAL 
  

© Diebold, Incorporated CONFIDENTIAL 
Proposal is valid for 30 days from date of proposal.                  Rev. 9/10     Page 1 of 3 

15 Chapel Road ● North Hampton, NH 03862 ● Ph: (617) 549 5945    Fax: (508) 480 6499

November 12, 2013 

Mr. James Dietz 
Nutmeg State Health and Wellness, Inc. 
19 Hearthstone Drive 
Barkhamsted, CT 06063

RE: Connecticut Medical Marijuana Dispensary 

Dear Mr. Dietz,

We at Diebold thank you for the opportunity to present this proposal for a range of Security Solutions in 
connection with Medical Marijuana facility being planned in Winsted, CT. This proposal includes a Secure 
Vestibule for the main entrance, Five Custom Bullet Resistant Windows – one of which will be deployed in the 
Drive-thru along with a Transaction Drawer, The windows and drawer will all be U.L. rated Level 1 from a 
Bullet Resistant (B.R.) standpoint. This proposal also includes a TL-15 Rated Safe.  
The pricing contained herein presumes that all work will be done during standard business hours, and that our 
installers will have free and easy access to site. All site preparation, wall opening modifications, demolition, 
electrical work and permit requirements are not included within the scope of this proposal. There is also not a
Sales Tax allowance included in this pricing.    

We understand your need to provide quality service to your customers in a secure and safe environment. We are 
certain Diebold’s experience and our portfolio of high quality, flexible, easily installed products will enable you 
to enhance your operations. At Diebold we work hard to continuously improve performance standards, working 
relationships with our customers and the quality of our products and services.  

We appreciate your consideration and look to putting our experience and expertise to work for you on this 
groundbreaking project. If you have any questions or need additional information please contact me at 617 549 
5945.

Sincerely 

Michael Whittier 

Michael Whittier 
DIEBOLD, Inc. 
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DIEBOLD PRICING 

QTY DESCR IPTION 

(1) Secure Vestibule # 40625: Four Doors, Finish TBD, 7’-6”H x 6’-11”W x 9’-7”D.
System Includes:  
-Door hardware: concealed door closers, handles, manual locks on exterior doors. 
All hardware is brushed stainless steel 
- Bullet Resistive Ceiling with BR Vent Baffle System 
- (4) Desktop RF Remote Transmitters 
- (4) Ceiling light kits, LED 24V 
- Electronics Package: Ceia Panel 02PN8 Metal Detector, Electromagnetic Locks 
(1,200 lbs), Occupancy Sensors, Handicapped Call Button, Intercom between 
Staff and entry chamber, Touch Screen Master Control Station, Power Supply and 
Control Cables. 
- Secure Vestibule electronics supplied with Secure Vestibule status relay and 
Staff capture status relay. The Secure Vestibule electronics can be programmed to 
lock door A and door D upon a Staff capture signal. It can also be programmed to 
lock door D only. 
- Dual Emergency Release Assemblies 
- (1) 1/3” Color Super Hi-Res Dome Camera, 540 TVL, with 3.3 – 12 mm Auto 
Iris Varifocal Lens on hinge side of door #4. 
- (1) Height Strip Camera, 1/3” Color, 350 TVL, 0.9 Lux, 3.7 mm Lens
- (1) 19” LCD Monitor with wall mount. Location is TBD 

(1) Level 1 Bullet Resistant Window – approx. dimensions 6’-3 1/2” W. x 7’-8“ H.*
(1) Level 1 Bullet Resistant Window – approx. dimensions 7’-4” W. x 7’-8“ H.*
(2) Level 1 Bullet Resistant Windows – approx. dimensions 8’-4” W X 7’-8“ H.*
(1) Level 1 Bullet Resistant Drive-Thru Window – dimensions 8’ 4”W. x 3’-0” H.
(1) Level 1 Bullet Resistant Transaction Drawer – Manual with Heater 
(1) TL- 15 271-95 Chest – Includes Dual Interior Lockers and Full Alarm Package  

* Units to include two pieces of glass and two B.R. Panels above each window.

Equipment Subtotal $113,530.00 
Freight Subtotal $3,704.00 
Installation Subtotal  $22,662.00 
Delivered & Installed Total $139,896.00
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This proposal is based upon your acceptance of the provisions of one of the following signed agreements: 
 
 

    **Your signed Diebold Comprehensive Agreement (“DCA”) on file with Diebold.   
 
 

    Your Master Agreement on file with Diebold. Note: The Sale of Fire Product under a Master Agreement is  
          subject to Diebold review and approval.  
 

    Diebold’s Offer of Sale Terms of Diebold’s Memorandum of Agreement.  Please go to Diebold’s Web site at  
        http://www.diebold.com/tc.for a copy of the Terms & Conditions. Note: Fire Product cannot be purchased  
       under the Sale of Terms of the Memorandum of Agreement.   
 

   **Diebold Healthcare Comprehensive Agreement on file with Diebold 
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15 Chapel Road ● North Hampton, NH 03862 ● Ph: (617) 549 5945    Fax: (508) 480 6499 
 
 
November 13, 2013 
 
Mr. James Dietz 
Nutmeg State Health and Wellness, Inc. 
19 Hearthstone Drive 
Barkhamsted, CT 06063 
 
RE: Connecticut Medical Marijuana Dispensary 
 
Dear Mr. Dietz, 
 
We at Diebold thank you for the opportunity to present this proposal for a range of Security Solutions in 
connection with Medical Marijuana facility being planned in Winsted, CT. This proposal includes Five Custom 
Bullet Resistant Windows – one of which will be deployed in the Drive-thru along with a Transaction Drawer, 
The windows and drawer will all be U.L. rated Level 1 from a Bullet Resistant (B.R.) standpoint. This proposal 
also includes a TL-15 Rated Safe.  
The pricing contained herein presumes that all work will be done during standard business hours, and that our 
installers will have free and easy access to site. All site preparation, wall opening modifications, demolition, 
electrical work and permit requirements are not included within the scope of this proposal. There is also not a 
Sales Tax allowance included in this pricing.    
 
We understand your need to provide quality service to your customers in a secure and safe environment. We are 
certain Diebold’s experience and our portfolio of high quality, flexible, easily installed products will enable you 
to enhance your operations. At Diebold we work hard to continuously improve performance standards, working 
relationships with our customers and the quality of our products and services.  
 
We appreciate your consideration and look to putting our experience and expertise to work for you on this 
groundbreaking project. If you have any questions or need additional information please contact me at 617 549 
5945. 
 
Sincerely 
 
Michael Whittier 
 
Michael Whittier 
DIEBOLD, Inc. 
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DIEBOLD PRICING 

QTY DESCR IPTION 

(1) Level 1 Bullet Resistant Window – approx. dimensions 6’-3 1/2” W. x 7’-8“ H.*
(1) Level 1 Bullet Resistant Window – approx. dimensions 7’-4” W. x 7’-8“ H.*
(2) Level 1 Bullet Resistant Windows – approx. dimensions 8’-4” W X 7’-8“ H.*
(1) Level 1 Bullet Resistant Drive-Thru Window – dimensions 8’ 4”W. x 3’-0” H.
(1) Level 1 Bullet Resistant Transaction Drawer – Manual with Heater 
(1) TL- 15 271-95 Chest – Includes Dual Interior Lockers and Full Alarm Package  

* Units to include two pieces of glass and two B.R. Panels above each window.

Equipment Subtotal $46,530.00 
Freight Subtotal $1,704.00 
Installation Subtotal  $12,662.00 
Delivered & Installed Total $60,896.00

This proposal is based upon your acceptance of the provisions of one of the following signed agreements:

**Your signed Diebold Comprehensive Agreement (“DCA”) on file with Diebold. 

Your Master Agreement on file with Diebold. Note: The Sale of Fire Product under a Master Agreement is 
subject to Diebold review and approval. 

Diebold’s Offer of Sale Terms of Diebold’s Memorandum of Agreement.  Please go to Diebold’s Web site at 
http://www.diebold.com/tc.for a copy of the Terms & Conditions. Note: Fire Product cannot be purchased 

under the Sale of Terms of the Memorandum of Agreement.  

 **Diebold Healthcare Comprehensive Agreement on file with Diebold 
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Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. 

Code of Ethics 

Approved by Board of Directors on November 11, 2013
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CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY 

ARTICLE I 
PURPOSE 

1.1 The purpose of the conflict of interest policy (“Policy”) is to protect the interest of Nutmeg State Health 
and Wellness Center, Inc. (“NSHWC”) when it is contemplating entering into a Contract or Transaction that might 
benefit the private interest of an officer or director of NSHWC or might result in an excess benefit transaction.  
Further, this Policy ensures the operation of NSHWC in a manner that will avoid the appearance of impropriety.  
This policy is intended to supplement but not replace any applicable federal and state laws governing conflicts of 
interest applicable to non-profit and charitable corporations. 

ARTICLE II 
DEFINITIONS 

2.1 Compensation Arrangement.  “Compensation” is the receipt of any form of income from working, 
including salary or wage; deferred compensation; retirement benefits, whether in the form of qualified or non-
qualified employment plan (for example:  pensions or annuities); fringe benefits (for example:  personal vehicles, 
meals, lodging, personal and family educational benefits, low interest loans, payment of personal travel, 
entertainment, or other expense, athletic or country club membership, and personal use of property); and bonuses.  
A Compensation Arrangement includes the receipt of direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that 
are substantial in nature. 

2.2 Contract or Transaction.  Any agreement or relationship involving the sale or purchase goods, services or 
rights of any kind, the providing or receipt of a loan or grant or the establishment or any other type of pecuniary 
relationship.  The making of a gift to NSHWC is not a Contract or Transaction. 

2.3 Related Person.  A “Related Person” includes any of the following: 
(a) one’s spouse or a parent or sibling thereof; 
(b) a child, grandchild, parent or sibling of the director or officer, or the spouse of any thereof;  
(c) a person with whom one is living;  
(d) a trust or estate in which anyone mentioned in (a), (b) or (c) is a substantial beneficiary;  
(e) any entity (other than NSHWC or an entity controlled by NSHWC) controlled by the director or officer or 
by any person mentioned in (a), (b) (c) or (d);  
(f) any domestic or foreign business or nonprofit corporation (other than NSHWC or an entity controlled by 
NSHWC) of which the director is a director, or unincorporated entity of which the director is a general partner 
or a member of governing body; 
(g) any individual, trust or estate for whom or of which the director or officer is a trustee, guardian, personal 
representative or like fiduciary; or  
(h) any person or entity that is controlled by an employer of the director or officer. 

2.4 Interested Person.  Any director, officer, or member of a standing or advisory committee with powers 
delegated by NSHWC Board of Directors (the “Board”) who has a direct or indirect Financial Interest (as defined 
in Section 2.5 below) is an “Interested Person.”

2.5 Financial Interest. 

2.5.1 A person has a “Financial Interest” if the person has, directly or indirectly, through business relationship, 
investment or a Related Person: 

(a) an ownership or investment interest in any entity with which NSHWC has a Contract or Transaction; 
(b) a Compensation Arrangement with NSHWC or with any entity or individual with which NSHWC has a 
Contract or Transaction; or 
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(c) a potential ownership or investment interest in, or Compensation Arrangement with, any entity or 
individual with which NSHWC is negotiating a Contract or Transaction. 

2.5.2 A Financial Interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest.  A person who has a Financial Interest may 
have a conflict of interest only if the Board decides that a conflict of interest exists as provided under Section 3.5. 

2.6 Resource Allocation.  “Resource Allocation” is the allocation of research and educational resources by 
NSHWC, including without limitation, the implementation of strategies pursuant to the Strategic Plan, the issuance 
of grants to research or health care providers and/or pharmaceutical organizations, or the entrance into Contracts or 
Transactions by and between NSHWC and research or health care providers and/or pharmaceutical organizations 
with respect to the implementation of the Strategic Plan and/or the allocation of research and educational resources. 

2.7 Resource Allocation Relationship.  Any relationship involving any director, officer or member of a 
standing or advisory committee with powers delegated by the Board having a Financial Interest in any entity which 
currently benefits from or may become the beneficiary of a Resource Allocation from NSHWC shall be a 
“Resource Allocation Relationship.”

ARTICLE III 
DUTIES AND PROCEDURES 

3.1 Duty of Care. The NSHWC’s directors and officers owe a duty of care to NSHWC and shall conduct the 
affairs of NSHWC in good faith, acting honestly and lawfully. Directors and officers shall be diligent in their duties 
to NSHWC and shall act reasonably, remain informed, and exercise independent judgment. At all times, directors 
and officers shall act in the best interests of NSHWC. 

3.2 Duty of Loyalty.  The NSHWC’s directors and officers owe a duty of loyalty to NSHWC and shall not use 
their position with NSHWC for personal gain.  A director’s or officer’s duty of loyalty applies equally whether the 
director or officer is engaged in NSHWC’s activities or outside activities. The director’s and officer’s duties of 
loyalty include, but are not limited to, the director’s and officer’s obligations to protect the confidences of NSHWC 
and to refrain from engaging in transactions that would create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of 
interest. 

3.3 Confidentiality.  In the course of carrying out their duties and responsibilities, directors and officers will be 
privy to information that was created, discovered, acquired or developed by or disclosed to NSHWC and, as such, 
is considered to be confidential and proprietary in nature. This information includes, but is not limited to, research 
and development data, business plans, strategic plans, financial statements, lists and information about gifts and 
grants. Directors and officers shall recognize that they have a legal and ethical duty not to disclose this information, 
shall hold all such information in strictest confidence and shall agree not to release confidential and proprietary 
information to anyone outside of NSHWC except for authorized purposes or unless required by law. 

3.4 Duty to Disclose a Potential Conflict of Interest.  Any Interested Person must disclose the existence of his 
or her Financial Interest to the Board and must be given the opportunity to disclose all material facts to the Board 
when considering the proposed Contract or Transaction. 

3.5 Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists.  After disclosure of the Financial Interest and all 
material facts, and after any discussion with the Interested Person, the Interested Person shall leave the Board 
meeting while the determination of a conflict of interest is discussed and voted upon.  The remaining Board 
members, as applicable, shall decide if a conflict of interest exists. 
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3.6 Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest.  

3.6.1 An Interested Person may make a presentation at the Board meeting, but after such presentation, he or she 
shall leave the meeting during the discussion of, and the vote on, the Contract or Transaction that result in the 
conflict of interest. 

3.6.2 The Board shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or appoint or establish an advisory 
committee to investigate alternatives to the proposed Contract or Transaction. 

3.6.3 After exercising due diligence, the Board shall take all reasonable steps to determine whether NSHWC can 
obtain a more advantageous Contract or Transaction with reasonable efforts from a person or entity that would not 
give rise to a conflict of interest. 

3.6.4 If a more advantageous Contract or Transaction is not reasonably attainable under circumstances that 
would not give rise to a conflict of interest, the Board shall determine by a majority vote, but not less than two, of 
the disinterested directors or members thereof whether the Contract or Transaction is in NSHWC’s best interest and 
is fair and reasonable to NSHWC; provided, however, if such Contract or Transaction is approved by disinterested 
directors who do not satisfy a quorum or voting requirement applicable to the authorization of the action by reason 
of NSHWC’s certificate of incorporation, bylaws or a provision of law, the action must be independently approved 
by such interested and disinterested directors as satisfy the applicable quorum or voting requirement.   

3.7 Violation of the Conflicts of Interest Policy.  

3.7.1 If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a director, officer or committee member has failed to 
disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall inform such person of the basis for such belief and afford 
such person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. 

3.7.2 After hearing the response of the director, officer or committee member and making such further 
investigation as may be warranted in the circumstances, the Board determines that such person has in fact failed to 
disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, the Board, as applicable, shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 

ARTICLE IV 
RECORDS OF PROCEEDINGS

4.1 The minutes of the Board shall contain: 
(a) The names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have a Financial Interest in connection 

with an actual or possible conflict of interest, the nature of the Financial Interest, any action taken to determine 
whether a conflict of interest was present, and the Board’s decision as to whether a conflict of interest in fact 
existed. 

(b) The names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the Contract or 
Transaction, the content of the discussion, including any alternatives to the proposed Contract or Transaction, and a 
record of any votes taken in connection therewith. 

ARTICLE V 
COMPENSATION 

5.1 A director of the Board who has a Compensation Arrangement, directly or indirectly, with NSHWC for 
services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that director’s Compensation Arrangement.
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5.2 A voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes Compensation Arrangements and who has 
a Compensation Arrangement, directly or indirectly, with NSHWC for services is precluded from voting on matters 
pertaining to that member’s Compensation Arrangement.

5.3 Researchers or physicians (other than directors), who have a Compensation Arrangement, directly or 
indirectly, with NSHWC for services are precluded from membership on any committee whose jurisdiction may 
include their Compensation Arrangements. No researcher or physician, either individually or collectively, is 
prohibited from providing information to any committee regarding Compensation Arrangements. 

5.4 No director of the Board or a voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes Compensation 
Arrangements and who has a Compensation Arrangement, directly or indirectly, with NSHWC, either individually 
or collectively, is prohibited from providing information to the Board or any committee regarding Compensation 
Arrangements. 

ARTICLE VI 
RESOURCE ALLOCATION 

6.1 Any member of a standing or advisory committee (a) whose jurisdiction includes Resource Allocation; and 
(b) who has a Resource Allocation Relationship, shall disclose such Resource Allocation Relationship (including 
the Financial Interest involved therein) to the other members of the committee prior to such committee addressing 
any Resource Allocation matter.  Such member shall be permitted to participate in and provide information to such 
committee regarding such Resource Allocations, including participating in any vote by such committee; provided, 
such member’s Resource Allocation Relationship (including the Financial Interest involved therein) shall be 
disclosed in writing to the Board along with the written recommendation of such committee to the Board with 
respect to such Resource Allocation. 

6.2 Any member of a committee disclosed in the written recommendation to the Board pursuant to Section 6.1 
as having a Resource Allocation Relationship with respect to a Resource Allocation matter, is precluded from 
voting on such Resource Allocation matter at the Board level, and the Board’s approval of the Resource Allocation 
shall occur in accordance with Section 3.6.4 of this Policy.  

6.3 No director of the Board or a voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes Resource 
Allocation and who has a Resource Allocation Relationship is prohibited from providing information to the Board 
or any committee regarding Resource Allocation. 

ARTICLE VII 
ANNUAL STATEMENTS 

7.1 Each director, officer, and member of a committee with Board-delegated powers shall sign a statement that 
affirms that such person: 

(a) has received a copy of this conflicts of interest policy; 
(b) has read and understands the policy; 
(c) has agreed to comply with the policy; and 
(d) understands that NSHWC is a charitable organization and that in order to maintain its federal tax 

exemption it must engage primarily in activities which accomplish one or more of its tax-exempt purposes. 
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ARTICLE VIII 
PERIODIC REVIEWS 

8.1 To ensure that NSHWC operates in a manner consistent with its charitable purposes and that it does not 
engage in activities that could jeopardize its status as an organization exempt from federal income tax, periodic 
reviews shall be conducted by the Board. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, include the following subjects: 

(a) whether Compensation Arrangements and benefits are reasonable and are the result of arm’s-length 
bargaining; 

(b) whether partnerships, joint venture arrangements and arrangements with external organizations conform to 
NSHWC’s written policies, are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for goods and 
services, further NSHWC’s charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, impermissible private benefit or in 
an excess benefit transaction, all as determined by applicable law.  

ARTICLE IX 
USE OF OUTSIDE EXPERTS

9.1 In conducting the periodic reviews provided for in Article VIII, NSHWC may, but need not, use outside 
advisors, If outside experts are used their use shall not relieve the Board of its responsibility for ensuring that 
periodic reviews are conducted. 
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DOCUMENT RETENTION POLICY 

ARTICLE I 
PURPOSE 

1.1 Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. (the “NSHWC”) has a strong desire to control and manage 
the significant costs incurred in retaining, storing and retrieving records.  The NSHWC is also committed to 
complying with applicable state and federal laws regarding the maintenance of various types of records, including 
any that may be relevant to actual or threatened litigation involving NSHWC.  This policy is designed to establish a 
systematic, cost-effective policy for controlling, maintaining, processing, retrieving and disposing of files within 
NSHWC, in accordance with the requirements of applicable laws.  

ARTICLE II 
RESPONSIBILITY 

2.1 Every employee of NSHWC bears responsibility for meeting the goals of this policy.  EACH EMPLOYEE 
IS REQUIRED TO READ THIS POLICY AND ACKNOWLEDGE IN WRITING HIS OR HER REVIEW 
THEREOF.    

ARTICLE III 
CREATION, STORAGE AND DESTRUCTION 

3.1 Creation.  Everyone at NSHWC is charged with the duty of creating and indexing files so that they are 
readily identifiable.  Files should normally be kept in active file cabinets until activity related to that file ceases.  
Thereafter, they should be placed in archive storage for the appropriate retention period outlined in the attached 
Record Retention Schedule, as the same may be revised from time to time upon notice to employees by the 
President as necessary to ensure compliance with applicable law and recognized standards of document retention 
and disposal.    

3.2 Labeling.  The retention period for each file shall begin upon the date activity ceases (for instance, the 
expiration of the program or the termination of the contract). Before forwarding documents to archives, every effort 
should be made to label files in accordance with the different type of records contained in such file and the 
anticipated disposal date in accordance with the attached schedule.  In addition, reasonable efforts should be made 
not to mix different types of records in a single file before sending such file to archives.  Where different types of 
records must be held in a single file, the latest disposal date will govern the entire file.   

3.3 Retention.  No employee should retain files either in hard copy or electronic formats for longer than the 
periods specified in the attached schedule.  Items not specified on the attached schedule, should be retained only for 
fairly short periods of time consistent with the limited value associated with the items.  Any files residing in 
personal computers, laptops, notebooks, removable storage media, or PDAs are covered by this policy.  This policy 
also applies to any of NSHWC’s records that may be authorized by NSHWC to be in your home or otherwise 
outside the office.  

3.4 Electronic Records.  Electronic records are generally subject to the same retention periods as documents in 
other formats.  However, as a general rule, e-mail records should be purged in accordance with the documentation 
schedule in Section 4.3 herein and all other emails should be purged at fairly short regular intervals because the 
bulk of e-mail messages have limited value.  E-mails that transmit substantive information, such as an 
acknowledgement of receipt of goods or the transmission of a NSHWC policy, should be retained in accordance 
with the attached Record Retention Schedule.   
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ARTICLE IV 
SUSPENDED DISPOSAL OF RECORDS 

4.1 Suspension.  There may be circumstances in which NSHWC must suspend the normal disposal of records 
because production of those records may be required by subpoena or other forms of compulsory legal process.  
Failure to suspend record disposal in these situations could lead to liability and adverse evidentiary rulings in court. 

WHENEVER THE NSHWC FINDS ITSELF IN THE MIDST OF A LEGAL DISPUTE THAT COULD 
RESULT IN THE FILING OF LITIGATION, AN INVESTIGATION OR AN ARBITRATION BY OR 
AGAINST THE NSHWC, IT IS CRITICAL THAT THE NSHWC IMMEDIATELY SUSPEND ANY ROUTINE 
DOCUMENT DESTRUCTION OF ANY RECORDS OR FILES THAT HAVE ANY RELEVANCE TO THE 
SUBJECT MATTER IN DISPUTE. 

4.2 Electronic Records.  The above admonition also applies to NSHWC’s electronic records.  For example, if 
NSHWC is faced with litigation, the recycling of backup tapes should be suspended.  

4.3 Threatened Action.  If you become aware of possible or threatened litigation, investigation or similar action 
against NSHWC you should immediately alert the President.  For clarity, you should suspend disposal of records if 
NSHWC:

receives a subpoena for documents;
is served with a complaint or if litigation is threatened against NSHWC;
if NSHWC is embroiled in a legal dispute which NSHWC may eventually seek to litigate;
learns of a pending or threatened grand jury proceeding against NSHWC;
learns of a criminal investigation against NSHWC; or
learns of a government investigation against NSHWC.

DOCUMENT RETENTION SCHEDULE 

TYPE OF RECORD DURATION
Patient Data
Patient Records 10 years
Accounting and Finance
Annual Financial Reports and Work Papers 7 years
Accounting Reports (monthly reports) Schedule Department 
Balances, Transaction Statements, Account Analysis Statements, 
Monthly and Year-to-Date Salary and Wage Statements

7 years

Inventories of Products, Materials and Supplies 7 years
Bank Statements 7 years
Depreciation Records Life of Asset
Internal Audit Reports 3 years
Invoices 7 years
New Account Records and Back-up Documentation 6 years after account 

closing
Other Accounting and Finance Records     6 years
Communications
Press Releases Permanent
Publications 7 years
Press Clippings 7 years
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TYPE OF RECORD DURATION
Community Philanthropy
Approved grants—all documentation support grant payment, 
including application/recommendation, due diligence, grant 
agreement letters, grant transmittal letters, and post-grant 
reporting information, if any

7 years from termination

Declined/withdrawn grant applications 7 years
Investments
Fund Agreements 7 years
Investment Funding Statements 7 years
Corporate Records
Board and Committee Meeting Agendas and Minutes Permanent
Bylaws and Articles of Incorporation Permanent
Corporate Resolutions Permanent
Conflict of Interest Disclosure Forms 4 years
Human Resources
Federal Reporting Requirements: Welfare Benefits and other Fringe 
Benefit Plans (i.e., 5500-s).

Permanent

Workers’ Compensation Claims and Insurance Policies 18 years
Employee Personnel Files (including application, resume, payroll, 
appointment/salary forms)

6 years after termination

Solicited Resumes and Employment Applications 1 year after date of 
decision not to hire

Individual Contracts of Employment 6 years after termination
I-9 Forms 3 years, or 1 year after 

termination (whichever is 
greater)

Insurance
Insurance Policies (Liability, Property, and Other Policies) Permanent
Certificates of Insurance, Indemnification Agreements, Hold 
Harmless Agreements, Contracts

6 years after expiration

Incident Reports, Accident Reports 4 years after report date
Legal
Consent Orders, Court Orders, Judgments, Releases, Settlement 
Agreements 

Permanent

Intellectual Property
Original Patents, Trademarks, and Copyrights Permanent
Royalty Records Life of intellectual 

property plus 6 years
Licensing Agreements 10 years after expiration
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Payroll
Annual Payment Records Permanent
Information Returns filed with Federal and State authorities (W-2,
941, etc.)

6 years

Payroll Deduction Authorization Forms (W-4, etc.) 5 years after 
employment ends

Record of Payments and Deductions (payroll registers, deductions 
lists, adjustments)

5 years

Payroll Vouchers & Time Cards 3 years
Purchasing
Purchase Orders, Contracts, Agreements (and related 
documentation including correspondence, invoices, shipping 
records, bills of lading)

6 years from 
termination or 
expiration

Real Property
Property Deeds, Easements, Licenses, Rights of Way, Rights of 
First Refusal, Remainder Interests 

Permanent

Leases (expired), Mortgages, Security Agreements 7 years after 
obligations end

Title Insurance Policies 10 years after 
disposal of property

Property Tax Returns filed with taxing jurisdiction 6 years
Tax
Information Returns (1099, W-2, etc.) Permanent
Other Tax Returns (e.g., excise, income, payroll, property, and sales 
tax returns)

7 years
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WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY 

ARTICLE I 
PURPOSE 

1.1 Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. (“NSHWC”) exists to serve its mission and purposes.  To 
these ends, the Board of Directors adopts this Whistleblower Policy in order to encourage and empower NSHWC's 
directors, officers, employees, and agents to report misuse, inappropriate allocation or diversion of NSHWC's 
resources, each, a “Misuse.”  Without limitation, examples of illegal or dishonest activities are violations of federal, 
state or local laws; billing for services not performed or for goods not delivered; and other fraudulent financial 
reporting.   

1.2 This policy shall be shared among directors, officers and, as appropriate, agents.  Employees have received 
notice of this policy in the employee handbook.  

ARTICLE II 
OBLIGATION TO REPORT 

2.1 Reporting.  Actual, suspected, or threatened Misuses shall be promptly reported to the President, or in the 
case of a report concerning the President, to the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) or any Board of Director (each a 
"Responsible Officer").  Insofar as reasonably possible, the confidentiality of the person making the report (the 
"Whistleblower") will be maintained.  However, identity may have to be disclosed to conduct a thorough 
investigation, to comply with the law and to provide accused individuals their legal rights of defense. Furthermore, 
a Whistleblower may submit a report anonymously, in writing.  However, the Whistleblower should be aware that, 
in some instances, preserving anonymity could make it more difficult to investigate the report and ensure 
appropriate resolution of the reported Misuse.   

The Responsible Officer shall take the following steps: 

1. Take appropriate action to investigate the reported Misuse;

2. If, after such investigation, the Responsible Officer reaches the conclusion that no Misuse has occurred, the
Responsible Officer shall forward a final written report to the Board of Directors and meet with the Whistleblower 
(unless the report was made anonymously) for the purpose of providing a copy of the Responsible Officer's report 
and discussing the report, including decisions regarding the report and recommended resolutions; 

3. Any reported M isuse th at is believ ed to be credib le and does no t exce ed $500  may be resolv ed by  the
Director, with a report to the Board of Directors as outlined in Paragraph 2 above; and  

4. Any reported Misuse that is believed to be c redible and exceeds $500 shall be forwarded to the Board of
Directors.  The Boa rd o f D irectors sh all af ford the person acc used o f th e M isuse an opp ortunity to de fend th e 
accusation in a proceeding that is fair and reasonable.  Thereafter, the Board of Directors may further investigate 
the reported Misuse, as it deems appropriate.  

2.2 Determination.  The Board of Directors shall determine whether a Misuse has occurred, with an affirmative 
finding requiring a two-thirds vote of the disinterested directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present.  
If the Board of Directors determines that a Misuse has occurred, it shall consider and take appropriate action which 
may include, but not be limited to: (a) requiring the return of any misappropriated assets or funds; (b) removal or 
dismissal of the person who committed the Misuse; and (c) reporting the Misuse to the appropriate legal and law-
enforcement authorities. 



11

ARTICLE III 
NO RETALIATIONS 

3.1 Good Faith Reports.  Every director, officer, employee, or volunteer who has a reasonable belief or 
suspicion that a Misuse has occurred should feel free to raise the concern, in good faith, without fear of retaliation.  
It shall be considered a violation of this Policy for any director, officer, employee, or volunteer to retaliate, 
encourage, or permit retaliation against a person for reporting an actual, suspected, or threatened Misuse.  
Employees will not be disciplined, demoted or terminated for bringing concerns, in good faith, to the attention of 
NSHWC and providing NSHWC a reasonable opportunity to investigate and take appropriate action.  Any director, 
officer, employee, or volunteer who engages in retaliation will be subject to disciplinary action, which may include, 
but not be limited to, removal and/or dismissal.  Reports of retaliation should be made pursuant to the reporting 
procedures of this Policy. 

3.2 Disciplinary Action.  This Policy is intended to be used in good faith and in a judicious manner.  NSHWC 
may take action against a person who has committed an offense even though they cooperated with the investigation 
or against an individual who files a complaint without having a reasonable belief in the truth of the matters 
reported.  In both cases such action may include termination.  The right of a Whistleblower for protection against 
retaliation does not include immunity for any personal wrongdoing on the part of the Whistleblower. 

I have reviewed this Whistleblower Policy 

Print Name: 
Signature: 
Date: 



BY-LAWS OF 

NUTMEG STATE HEALTH AND WELLNESS CENTER, INC. 

Approved by the Board of Directors on November 11, 2013 
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ARTICLE I 

NAME AND OFFICE 
 

1.1 Name.  The name of the corporation is Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. 
(“Corporation”). 

 
1.2 Office.  The office of the Corporation shall be located at such place or places as the board of 

directors of the Corporation (“Board”) may from time to time determine. 
 
 

ARTICLE II 
SHAREHOLDERS 

 
2.1  Annual Meeting.  The annual meeting of the shareholders shall be held on the first Monday in the 

month of October in each year, beginning with the year 2014 for the purpose of electing Directors and for the 
transaction of such other business as may come before the meeting. If the day fixed for the annual meeting shall be 
a legal holiday in the State of Connecticut, such meeting shall be held on the next succeeding business day. If the 
election of Directors shall not be held on the day designated herein for any annual meeting of the shareholders, or at 
any adjournment thereof, the Board of Directors shall cause the election to be held at a special meeting of the 
shareholders as soon thereafter as conveniently may be. 

 
2.2 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the shareholders, for any purpose or purposes, unless 

otherwise prescribed by statute, may be called by the Chief Executive Officer or by the Board of Directors, and 
shall be called by the Chief Executive Officer at the request of the holders of not less than 20% percent of all the 
issued shares of the Corporation entitled to vote at the meeting. 

 
2.3 Place of Meetings. The Board of Directors may designate any place, within the State of 

Connecticut, unless otherwise prescribed by statute, as the place of meeting for any annual meeting or for any 
special meeting. A waiver of notice signed by all shareholders entitled to vote at a meeting may designate any 
place, within the State of Connecticut, unless otherwise prescribed by statute, as the place for the holding of such 
meeting. If no designation is made, the place of meeting shall be the principal office of the Corporation. 

 
2.4 Notice of Meetings.  Notice of the time and place of each regular, special or annual meeting of the 

shareholders, and, to the extent possible, a written agenda stating all matters upon which action is proposed to be 
taken, shall be mailed to each shareholder, postage prepaid, addressed to him or her at his or her residence or usual 
place of business (or at such other address as he or she may have designated in writing to the Secretary), no less 
than seven (7) days before the day on which such meeting is to be held, provided that notice of special meetings to 
discuss any matter requiring prompt action may be sent to the shareholders at such addresses by hand delivery, 
email, or by facsimile or similar means, no less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time at which such meeting is 
to be held.  Notice of a meeting need not be given to any director who submits a signed waiver of notice, whether 
before or after the meeting, or who attends such meeting without protesting, prior thereto or at its commencement, 
lack of notice to him or her. 

 
2.5 Closing of Transfer Books of Existing Record. The purpose of determining shareholders entitled to 

notice of or to vote at any meeting of shareholders or any adjournment thereof, or shareholders entitled to receive 
payment of any dividend, or in order to make a determination of shareholders for any other proper purpose, the 
Board of Directors of the Corporation may provide that the stock transfer books shall be closed for a stated period, 
but not to exceed in any case fifty (50) days. If the stock transfer books shall be closed for the purpose of 
determining shareholders entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of shareholders, such books shall be closed for 
at least thirty (30) days immediately preceding such meeting. In lieu of closing the stock transfer books, the Board 
of Directors may fix in advance a date as the record date for any such determination of shareholders, such date in 
any case to be not more than sixty (60) days and, in case of a meeting of shareholders, not less than forty five (45) 
days, prior to the date on which the particular action requiring such determination of shareholders is to be taken. If 
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the stock transfer books are not closed and no record date is fixed for the determination of shareholders entitled to 
notice of or to vote at a meeting of shareholders, or shareholders entitled to receive payment of a dividend, the date 
on which the notice of the meeting is mailed or the date on which the resolution of the Board of Directors declaring 
such dividend is adopted, as the case may be, shall be the record date for such determination of shareholders. When 
a determination of shareholders entitled to vote at any meeting of shareholders has been made as provided in this 
section, such determination shall apply to any adjournment thereof. 

2.6 Voting Lists.  The officer or agent having charge of the stock transfer books for shares of the 
Corporation shall make a complete list of the shareholders entitled to vote at each meeting of shareholders or any 
adjournment thereof, arranged in alphabetical order, with the address of and the number of shares held by each. 
Such list shall be produced and kept open at the time and place of the meeting and shall be subject to the inspection 
of any shareholder during the whole time of the meeting for the purposes thereof. 

2.7 Quorum. A majority of the outstanding shares of the Corporation entitled to vote, represented in 
person or by proxy, shall constitute a quorum at a meeting of shareholders. If less than a majority of the outstanding 
shares are represented at a meeting, a majority of the shares so represented may adjourn the meeting from time to 
time without further notice. At such adjourned meeting at which a quorum shall be present or represented, any 
business may be transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally noticed. The shareholders 
present at a duly organized meeting may continue to transact business until adjournment, notwithstanding the 
withdrawal of enough shareholders to leave less than a quorum. 

2.8 Proxies. At all meetings of shareholders, a shareholder may vote in person or by proxy executed in 
writing by the shareholder or by his duly authorized attorney-in-fact. Such proxy shall be filed with the secretary of 
the Corporation before or at the time of the meeting. A meeting of the Board of Directors may be had by means of a 
telephone conference or similar communications equipment by which all persons participating in the meeting can 
hear each other, and participation in a meeting under such circumstances shall constitute presence at the meeting. 

2.9 Voting of Shares. Each outstanding share entitled to vote shall be entitled to one vote upon each 
matter submitted to a vote at a meeting of shareholders. 

2.10 Voting of Shares by Certain Holders. Shares standing in the name of another Corporation may be 
voted by such officer, agent or proxy as the Bylaws of such Corporation may prescribe or, in the absence of such 
provision, as the Board of Directors of such Corporation may determine. Shares held by an administrator, executor, 
guardian or conservator may be voted by him, either in person or by proxy, without a transfer of such shares into 
his name. Shares standing in the name of a trustee may be voted by him, either in person or by proxy, but no trustee 
shall be entitled to vote shares held by him without a transfer of such shares into his name. Shares standing in the 
name of a receiver may be voted by such receiver, and shares held by or under the control of a receiver may be 
voted by such receiver without the transfer thereof into his name, if authority so to do be contained in an 
appropriate order of the court by which such receiver was appointed. A shareholder whose shares are pledged shall 
be entitled to vote such shares until the shares have been transferred into the name of the pledgee, and thereafter the 
pledgee shall be entitled to vote the shares so transferred. Shares of its own stock belonging to the Corporation shall 
not be voted, directly or indirectly, at any meeting, and shall not be counted in determining the total number of 
outstanding shares at any given time. 

2.11 Informal Action by Shareholders. Unless otherwise provided by law, any action required to be 
taken at a meeting of the shareholders, or any other action which may be taken at a meeting of the shareholders, 
may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the 
shareholders entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof. 
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ARTICLE III 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

3.1 General Powers.  The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by the Board in 
accordance with the purposes and limitations set forth in the Corporation’s Certificate of Incorporation 
(“Certificate”), these By-Laws, and the Connecticut Business Corporation Act (the “Act”), each as amended from 
time to time. 

 
3.2 Number.  The number of directors constituting the entire Board shall be such number as shall be 

designated by the Board at any time provided that the Board at all times shall have no fewer than three (3) 
members.  No decrease in the number of directors shall serve to diminish the term of any director then in office.  As 
used in these By-Laws, “entire Board” means the total number of directors entitled to vote which the Corporation 
would have if there were no vacancies on the Board.  At all times, directors comprising more than 50% of the entire 
Board shall consist of persons who are not receiving fees or other compensation from the Corporation (other than 
any compensation received solely in his or her capacity as a director).   

 
3.3 Term; Election; Removal.   

 
3.3.1 Subject to the provisions of this Section 3.3.1 and Sections 3.3.2 and 3.3.4, the directors 

shall be elected by two-thirds majority vote at the annual meeting of the Board at which a quorum is present, from a 
slate of nominees proposed by the Board Development Committee.  The directors shall serve for three-year terms. 
In any event, each director shall continue in office until his or her successor shall have been elected and qualified, 
or until his or her death, resignation or removal.  Any increase or decrease in the number of directors shall be 
allocated among the staggered terms as equally as possible.  The slate of nominees for directors to be elected at the 
applicable annual meeting of the Board shall be submitted to the Secretary not less than ten (10) days prior to the 
date of such annual meeting.  There shall be no limit upon the number of successive three-year terms which may be 
served by a director. 

 
3.3.2 A director may be removed from office at any time, with or without cause, by a vote of 

two-thirds of the entire Board. 
 

3.3.3 Any director may resign at any time by giving written notice of such resignation to the 
Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation. 
 

3.3.4 Vacancies among the directors occurring prior to the completion of the vacating director’s 
term shall be filled by the Board from a slate of nominees proposed by the Board.  Directors so appointed to fill 
vacancies shall serve until the expiration of the vacating director’s term. 
 

3.4 Place and Time of Meetings.  The time and place for holding annual and regular meetings of the 
Board shall be fixed by the Board.  The Board shall hold a minimum of two (2) Board meetings per year.  A special 
meeting of the Board may be called at any time by the Chief Executive Officer or upon the written demand of any 
two (2) directors, at such time and place as shall be determined by the Chief Executive Officer.  Meetings of the 
Board may be held at any location within the State of Connecticut. 

 
3.5 Participation in Meetings by Conference Telephone.  Subject to the provisions of 3.9, a director 

may participate in any meeting of the Board by means of conference telephone or other communications equipment 
by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and, in such event, such director 
shall be counted for the purpose of determining a quorum and such director may exercise all rights and privileges, 
including all voting rights, to which he or she would be entitled if physically present at such meeting. 
 

3.6 Notice of Meetings.  Notice of the time and place of each regular, special or annual meeting of the 
Board, and, to the extent possible, a written agenda stating all matters upon which action is proposed to be taken, 
shall be mailed to each director, postage prepaid, addressed to him or her at his or her residence or usual place of 
business (or at such other address as he or she may have designated in writing to the Secretary), no less than seven 
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(7) days before the day on which such meeting is to be held, provided that notice of special meetings to discuss any 
matter requiring prompt action may be sent to the directors at such addresses by hand delivery, email, or by 
facsimile or similar means, no less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time at which such meeting is to be held.  
Notice of a meeting need not be given to any director who submits a signed waiver of notice, whether before or 
after the meeting, or who attends such meeting without protesting, prior thereto or at its commencement, lack of 
notice to him or her. 

3.7 Quorum and Voting.  At all meetings of the Board, a majority of directors then in office and 
entitled to vote shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.  Except as otherwise required by the Act, 
the Certificate, or these By-Laws, an act approved by the affirmative vote of a majority of directors present at such 
meeting at which a quorum is present shall be an act of the Board. 

3.8 Consent of Directors in Lieu of Meeting.  Any action required or permitted to be taken by the 
Board or by any Standing Committee thereof may be taken without a meeting if all directors or members of such 
Standing Committee consent in writing to the adoption of a resolution authorizing such action, which such 
resolutions and written consents shall be filed in the minute book of the Corporation. 

3.9 Attendance at Meetings.  All directors shall be required to attend, at a minimum, at least one (1) 
Board meeting per year in person, unless excused by the Chairman. 

ARTICLE IV 
OFFICERS 

4.1 Officers.  The officers of the Corporation shall be the Chief Executive Officer, President, 
Secretary, Treasurer, and such other officers of the Corporation as the Board may from time to time elect 
(collectively, the “Officers”).  Any two or more offices may be held by the same person. 

4.2 General Powers; Term of Office; Removal.  In addition to the specific powers and duties set forth 
in these By-Laws, each Officer shall have such powers and duties customary to his or her office and as the Board 
shall from time to time prescribe.  As provided herein, all Officers shall be appointed by the Board and shall 
continue in office until his or her successor is appointed, or until his or her resignation or removal.  Any Officer 
appointed by the Board may be removed at any time with or without cause, by the Board.   

4.3 Other Agents.  The Board may from time to time appoint such agents of the Corporation as it 
deems necessary, who shall have such authority and perform such duties as the Board may from time to time 
prescribe.  Any such agents shall serve at the pleasure of the Board. 

4.4 Chair of the Board.  The Chair of the Board shall be chosen from among the directors of the 
Corporation and shall preside at all meetings of the Board and shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed 
from time to time by the Board. 

4.5 Chief Executive Officer.  The Chief Executive Officer shall be the chief executive officer of the 
Corporation and shall supervise and control its property, business and affairs, subject to the policies and directions 
of the Board.  The Chief Executive Officer shall report to the Board.  The Chief Executive Officer shall have the 
power to sign, in the name of the Corporation, all contracts generally or specifically authorized by the Board. The 
Chief Executive Officer shall perform all other duties incident to his or her office or as may be from time to time 
prescribed by the Board. 

4.6 President. The President shall supervise and control its property, business and affairs, subject to the 
policies and directions of the Board.  The President shall report to the CEO.  The President shall have the power to 
sign, in the name of the Corporation, all contracts generally or specifically authorized by the Board.  The President 
shall perform all other duties incident to his or her office or as may be from time to time prescribed by the CEO. 
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4.7 Secretary.  The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board, shall issue or cause 
to be issued all notices of the Corporation, shall have charge and custody of the seal and records of the Corporation 
(other than financial records) and shall perform all other duties incident to his or her office or as may be from time 
to time prescribed by the Board. 

 
4.8 Treasurer.  The Treasurer shall be responsible for the safekeeping of all funds of the Corporation, 

shall maintain an accurate accounting system, shall present financial reports to the Board at such times and in such 
manner as the Board may from time to time determine, and shall perform all other duties incident to his or her 
office or as may be from time to time prescribed by the Board.  The Treasurer shall have the power to sign, in the 
name of the Corporation, all contracts generally or specifically authorized by the Board. 

 
 

ARTICLE V 
INDEMNIFICATION 

 

5.1 Right to Indemnification.  The Corporation shall indemnify, to the fullest extent permitted under 
the Act, any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending, or 
completed action, suit, or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative by reason of the fact 
that such person is or was a director, Officer, committee member, employee, or agent of the Corporation, or who, 
while a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation serves at the Corporation’s request as a director, 
officer, partner, trustee, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee 
benefit plan or other entity, against any and all loss, liability damage, cost or expense (including attorney’s fees), 
judgments, fines, excise taxes, and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonable incurred by such person in 
connection with such action, suit, or proceeding, to the extent that such person is not insured or otherwise 
indemnified and the power to so indemnify has been or may be granted by statute, provided that such person acted 
in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the 
Corporation and, with respect to any criminal proceedings, had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct 
was unlawful.  The termination of any action or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, or conviction, or upon a 
plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not of itself create a presumption that such person did not act in 
good faith and in a manner that he or she reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the 
Corporation and, with respect to any criminal proceedings, had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct 
was unlawful.  For this purpose the Board may, and on request of any such person shall be required to, determine in 
each case whether the applicable standards in the Act have been meet, which such determination may be made by 
independent legal counsel if the Board so directs or if the Board is prohibited from making such determination 
under the Act. 

 
5.2 Advance of Expense.  The Corporation shall pay reasonable expenses (including attorneys’ fees) 

incurred by any person in defending any action or proceeding referred to in Section 6.1 above in advance of the 
final disposition of the action or proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of such person to repay 
the amounts so advanced if it is ultimately determined that such person is not entitled to be indemnified by the 
Corporation. 
 

5.3 Indemnification Not Exclusive.  The foregoing indemnification shall not be deemed exclusive of 
any other rights to which a person indemnified by the Corporation may be entitled, both as to action in such 
person’s official capacity and as to action in any other capacity approved by the Board, and shall inure to the 
benefit of the heirs, executors, and administrators of such person. 
 

5.4 Insurance and Other Indemnification.  The Corporation shall have the power, to the full extent 
permitted under the Act, to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of the Corporation and/or any person who is 
a director, Officer, committee member, employee, or agent of the Corporation, or who, while a director, officer, 
employee or agent of the Corporation serves at the Corporation’s request as a director, officer, partner, trustee, 
employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other entity, 
against liability asserted against or incurred by such person in such capacity or arising from his or her status as a 
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director, officer, employee or agent, whether or not the Corporation would have power to indemnify or advance 
expenses to such person under Sections 6.2. 

ARTICLE VI 
CERTIFICATES FOR SHARES AND THEIR TRANSFER 

6.1 Certificates for Shares. Certificates representing shares of the Corporation shall be in such form as 
shall be determined by the Board of Directors. Such certificates shall be signed by the Secretary and Treasurer or 
by such other officers authorized by law and by the Board of Directors so to do. All certificates for shares shall be 
consecutively numbered or otherwise identified. The name and address of the person to whom the shares 
represented thereby are issued, with the number of shares and date of issue, shall be entered on the stock transfer 
books of the Corporation. All certificates surrendered to the Corporation for transfer shall be canceled and no new 
certificate shall be issued until the former certificate for a like number of shares shall have been surrendered and 
canceled, except that in case of a lost, destroyed or mutilated certificate, a new one may be issued upon such terms 
and indemnity to the Corporation as the Board of Directors may prescribe. 

6.2 Transfer of Shares. Transfer of shares of the Corporation shall be made only on the stock transfer 
books of the Corporation by the holder of record thereof or by his legal representative, who shall furnish proper 
evidence of authority to transfer, or by his attorney thereunto authorized by power of attorney duly executed and 
filed with the Secretary of the Corporation, and on surrender for cancellation of the certificate for such shares. The 
person in whose name shares stand on the books of the Corporation shall be deemed by the Corporation to be the 
owner thereof for all purposes.  

ARTICLE VII 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

7.1 Fiscal Year.  The fiscal year of the Corporation shall end on the 31st day of December of each year. 

7.2 Audit.  The Board shall select an independent public accountant to audit the books and accounts of 
the Corporation annually. 

7.3 Books.  There shall be kept at an office of the Corporation correct books of account of the activities 
and transactions of the Corporation.  The Corporation’s minute books, which shall contain a copy of the Certificate, 
these By-Laws, and all minutes of meetings of the Board and Executive Committee, shall be kept at such office as 
the Board may direct from time to time. 

ARTICLE VIII 
AMENDMENT OF BY-LAWS 

8.1 Amendments.  Except as otherwise required by the Act, these By-Laws may be amended by the 
affirmative vote of no less than two-thirds of the entire Board then serving at a duly held meeting of directors, 
provided notice of such proposal shall have been provided to all directors at least seven (7) days before such 
meeting.  
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NSHWC Privacy Policies and Procedures 
Privacy Policy #01 

PHI Subject to Minimum Necessary Requirement 
 
Purpose 
Nutmeg State  Health and Wellness Center, Inc. (“NSHWC”) is committed to protecting the privacy of  the electronic P rotected 
Health Information (“ePHI”) in its NSHWC Databases.  NSHWC understands the importance of limiting the collection, use, and 
disclosure of PHI to the minimum necessary for its intended business purposes.  
 
Policy 
When requesting PHI from Patients or Cov ered Entites  for entry into the NSHWC Databases and when using or disclo sing, or 
accessing ePHI from the NSHWC Databases, such ePHI will be limited, to the extent practicable, to the limited data set (as defined 
below) or, if needed, to the minimum necessary to accomplish the intended purpose of the use, disclosure, or request. 
 
Procedures 

1. The NSHWC Databases user accounts will have limited access to data within the NSHWC Databases based on 
the following classes of user: 
a) NSHWC User.   The NSHWC Databases shall be configured to limit the access of users at NSHWC or 

its a ffiliate, other than ad ministrator users (see next item), to th e minimum necessary, to the greatest 
extent practicable. 

b) Administrator.  Users with system administrator access to the NSHWC Databases are able to access all 
data within the NSHWC Databases.  W hile these users are not restricted by  the application itself, the  
users must comply with NSHWC’s minimum use policy.  For these users, access to ePHI is generally 
incidental to their administrative functions and they must exercise caution not to access or disclose any 
ePHI except the minimum necessary for the conduct of their official duties on behalf of NSHWC.  

 
2. Contents of Limited Data Set.  A Limited Data Sets (LDS) is an exception to the Privacy Rule requirement for 

an aut horization f rom the s ubject for research u se of  protected health i nformation. A LDS lacks 16 of  the 18  
identifiers itemized by the Privacy Rule. Specifically, a LDS does NOT  include the following direct identifiers 
of the individual or of relatives, employers, or household members of the individual: 

a) Names; 
b) Postal address information, other than town or city, State or zip code; 
c) Telephone numbers; 
d) Fax numbers; 
e) Electronic mail addresses; 
f) Social security numbers; 
g) Medical record numbers; 
h) Health plan beneficiary numbers; 
i) Account numbers; 
j) Certificate/license numbers; 
k) Vehicle identifiers and serial numbers, including license plate numbers; 
l) Device identifiers and serial numbers; 
m) Web Universal Resource Locators (URLs); 
n) Internet Protocol (IP) address numbers; 
o) Biometric identifiers, including finger and voice prints; and 
p) Full face photographic images and any comparable images. 
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An LDS may contain, for example: 

a) Dates of birth 
b) Dates of death 
c) Dates of service 
d) Town or city, State, Zip code 

 
The difference between a LDS and de-identified information is that a LDS may contain dates and certain geographic information 
associated with an individual that are absent from de-identified information. 
 
 
 

 
 
__________________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013  
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NSHWC Privacy Policies and Procedures 

Privacy Policy #02 
Breach Notification 

 
Purpose 
Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc. (NSHWC) is committed to protecting the privacy of the Protected Health 
Information (PHI) in the NSHWC Databases.  
 
Policy 
This policy documents the steps that NSHWC will take to provide notification to NSHWC Site Members in the event of breach of 
unsecured PHI in accordance with the procedures set forth below.   
 
DEFINITIONS: 
“Breach” means the unauthorized acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of protected health information in a manner not permitted 
under the HIPAA Privacy Rule and that compromises the security or privacy of such information.  “Compromises the security or 
privacy of the protected health information” means poses a significant risk of financial, reputational, or other harm to the 
individual.   

 
The term "breach" does not include-- 
       (1) any unintentional acquisition, access, or use of protected health information by a workforce member or individual acting 
under the authority of NSHWC if: 
         (a) such acquisition, access, or use was made in good faith and within the scope of authority of NSHWC; and 
         (b) such information is not further acquired, accessed, used, or disclosed in a manner not permitted by the HIPAA Privacy 
Rule; or 
       (2) any inadvertent disclosure from an individual who is otherwise authorized to access protected health information at 
NSHWC to another person authorized to access protected health information at NSHWC; and 
       (3) any such information received as a result of such disclosure is not further acquired, accessed, used, or disclosed in a 
manner not permitted under the HIPAA Privacy Rule. 
 
“Unsecured protected health information” means protected health information that is not secured through the use of a technology 
or methodology specified by the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services.   
 
Procedures 

1. Discovery of a Breach or Suspected Breach of Protected Health Information. 
a) All NSHWC or affiliate workforce members and agents are responsible for reporting an actual or 

suspected breach of protected health information, whether secured or unsecured, to the NSHWC Chief 
Executive Officer as soon as possible.    

b) A breach is treated as discovered as of the first day on which such breach is known to NSHWC or, by 
exercising reasonable diligence, would have been known to NSHWC. 

c) The NSHWC Chief Executive Officer will receive, document, and investigate, in conjunction with the 
NSHWC Security & Privacy Officer as appropriate, all actual or reasonably suspected breaches of 
protected health information in a timely manner, in accordance with this policy. 

2. Determining Whether a Breach Has Occurred 
a) Determining Impermissible Use or Disclosure.  To determine whether a breach of protected health 

information has occurred, the NSHWC Chief Executive Officer will first determine whether the 
incident involved an impermissible use or disclosure of protected health information that would violate 
the HIPAA Privacy Rule. 
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b) Determining Whether Unsecured Protected Health Information was Involved.  If it is determined that 
the incident involved an impermissible use or disclosure of protected health information, the NSHWC 
Chief Executive Officer will then determine whether the incident involved secured or unsecured 
protected health information.  If the incident did not involve unsecured protected health information, the 
notice requirements set forth below do not apply.  The NSHWC Chief Executive Officer will, however, 
work with staff and others as appropriate to mitigate any harmful effect of the incident to the extent 
practicable, in accordance with applicable policies and procedures. 

c) Determining Whether an Exception to the Definition of Breach Applies.  The NSHWC Security & 
Privacy Officer will determine whether an incident involving unsecured protected health information 
falls under one of the exceptions to the definition of breach, as specified in the Definitions section 
above.  If an exception applies, the incident would not constitute a breach, and the NSHWC Chief 
Executive Officer will document such determination.  If the incident did not involve a breach, the notice 
requirements set forth below do not apply. 

d) Determining Whether there is a Significant Risk of Harm to the Individual.  If it is determined that the 
incident involved an impermissible use or disclosure of unsecured protected health information, and an 
exception to the definition of breach does not apply, the NSHWC Chief Executive Officer will perform 
a risk assessment to determine whether such incident poses a significant risk of financial, reputational, 
or other harm to the individual whose protected health information has been breached.  The Chief 
Executive Officer will document such risk assessment.   
Examples of the types of factors that may need to be taken into account in determining whether an 
impermissible use or disclosure presents a significant risk of harm to the individual include, without 
limitation: 

 
 Nature of the Data Elements Breached.  In assessing whether significant harm may result, the 

data element(s) should be considered in light of their context and the broad range of potential 
harms flowing from their disclosure to unauthorized individuals.  
 

- Social Security numbers and account information are useful to committing 
identity theft, as are date of birth and mother’s maiden name. 

 
- The means by which the compromise of information occurred, including whether 

the incident might be the result of a criminal act or is likely to result in criminal 
activity, should also be assessed in considering whether the loss of information 
could result in identity theft or fraud. 

 
o For example, theft of a database containing individuals’ names in 

conjunction with Social Security numbers, and/or dates of birth may pose a 
high level of risk of harm, while a theft of a database containing only the 
names of individuals may pose a lower risk, depending on its context. 

 
 Likelihood the Information is Accessible and Usable. The likelihood that personal health 

information will be or has been used by unauthorized individuals should be assessed.  Other 
considerations may include the likelihood that any unauthorized individual will know the 
value of the information and either use the information or sell it to others. 

 
 Broad Reach of Potential Harm.  A number of possible harms associated with the loss or 

compromise of information should be assessed.  Such harms may include the effect of a 
breach of confidentiality or fiduciary responsibility, the potential for blackmail, the disclosure 
of private facts, mental pain and emotional distress, the disclosure of address information for 
victims of abuse, the potential for secondary uses of the information which could result in fear 
or uncertainty, or the unwarranted exposure leading to humiliation or loss of self-esteem.  
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If it is determined, following the risk assessment, that the impermissible use or disclosure of unsecured protected health 
information will cause a significant risk of harm to the individual whose information has been impermissibly used or 
disclosed, then NSHWC will comply with the notice requirements set forth below.  If it is determined that the 
impermissible use or disclosure of unsecured protected health information will not cause a significant risk of harm to the 
individual whose information has been impermissibly used or disclosed, then there is no breach. 

 
e) Documentation.  The NSHWC Chief Executive Officer is responsible for maintaining documentation of 

(i) all required notifications that were made as provided in this policy, (ii) all assessments performed in 
determining whether a breach has occurred and the outcomes of such assessments, including whether an 
impermissible use or disclosure of protected health information satisfied an exception to the definition 
of breach. 

 
3. Notification of Breach to Covered Entities.   

a) General Notification Requirement.  In the event that a breach of unsecured PHI is discovered, the 
NSHWC Site Member shall be notified by the NSHWC Chief Executive Officer of such breach so that 
the covered entity may comply with any notice obligations it may have.      

b) Content of Notification.  Notice of breach provided to the NSHWC Site Member shall include, to the 
extent possible, the identification of each individual whose unsecured protected health information has 
been, or is reasonably believed to have been, accessed, acquired, or disclosed during such breach. The 
NSHWC Site Member will also be provided with any other available information as it becomes 
available that NSHWC Site Member is required to include in the notification to the individual under 45 
C.F.R. § 164.404(c), either at the time it provides notice to the NSHWC Site Member of the breach or 
promptly thereafter as information becomes available.    

c) Notification Timeframe.  NSHWC shall notify the NSHWC Site Member of a breach without 
unreasonable delay and in no case later than 60 calendar days after the discovery of the breach or the 
earlier timeframe as may be indicated in a Business Associate Agreement between NSHWC and 
NSHWC Site Member. NSHWC will provide the NSHWC Site Member with the information required 
under Section 2(b) of this policy even if it becomes available after notifications have been sent to 
affected individuals or after the 60-day period has elapsed. 

d) Delaying the Notification.  If a law enforcement official determines that providing a notification of 
breach would impede a criminal investigation or cause damage to national security, then the 
notification of breach will be delayed.  If a law enforcement official provides the notification in writing 
and such notification includes the length of time that the notification must be delayed, then the 
notification of breach will delayed for the time specified.  If the law enforcement official provides such 
notification orally, then the statement and identity of the official will be documented and the 
notification of breach will be delayed no longer than 30 days, unless the law enforcement official 
provides a written statement as provided above.    

 
 4. State Law Breach Notification Requirements.  The NSHWC Chief Executive Officer shall also determine 
whether state laws regarding data breach notification obligations may apply, and may consult with outside Chief 
Executive Officer as necessary in making this determination.   

 
5. Documentation.  The NSHWC Security & Privacy Officer will maintain documentation that (a) all required 
notifications were made as provided in this policy, (b) the risk assessment revealed that there was less than a significant 
risk of harm as a result of the impermissible use or disclosure of protected health information, and/or (c) the use or 
disclosure of protected health information satisfies an exception to the definition of breach.        

 
 
 
 
 
       ____ ___________________________________ 

       Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
       Effective 10/31/2013 
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NSHWC Security Policies and Procedures 

Security Policy #01 
Risk Assessment and Management 

 
Purpose 
NSHWC is committed to protectin g the security and privacy of ePHI contained in the NSHWC Databases.  Ri sk assessment and 
management is an important aspect of the NSHWC’s commitment to ensuring the security and privacy of ePHI in the NSHWC 
Databases.  
 
This policy documents the risk assessment procedure for identifying actual or potential s ecurity and privacy risks to the NSHWC 
Databases and the risk management procedure for remedying any actual or potential security and privacy risks through the use of 
appropriate security measures and safeguards.    
 
Policy 

1. NSHWC will regularly assess risks and vulnerabilities to e PHI in the NSHWC Databases and develo p, implement, and 
maintain appropriate security measures and safeguards. 

2. NSHWC will i mplement sec urity measures a nd safeguards s ufficient to re medy or red uce ris ks a nd vulnerabilities to 
reasonable and appropriate levels.  

3. NSHWC will implement policies and procedures to prevent, detect, contain, and correct security and privacy violations.  
 
Procedures 

1. The Security & Privacy Officer is respon sible for the ongoing development and day-to-day security and priv acy of the 
NSHWC Databases.  

2. The Security & P rivacy Officer shall perform a ri sk assessment of security and access control measures, including cost-
effectiveness analysis, on at least an annual calendar basis. 

3. The Security & Privacy Officer may have designees, under his/her direction, to perform or assist with the risk assessment 
process.  

4. The risk assessment procedure shall address, at a minimum, the following: 
(a) The ability of the NSHWC Databases to secure ePHI and potential risk of unauthorized disclosure of ePHI. 
(b) Steps to be taken to reduce any actual or potential risks. 
(c) Processes for maintaining an acceptable level of risk. 

 
5. Risk Assessment Procedure: 

(a) Identify tec hnology (e.g ., hardware, sof tware, ap plications, inf ormation/data set s) and  perf orm a crit icality 
analysis of the NSHWC Databases (see Contingency Plan policies and procedures, SP-009); determine the value 
and relative desired ass urance levels.  Co nsider the levels desired f or confidentiality, integrity and availability. 
Ensure that systems and technology containing or accessing ePHI are identified and included.   

(b) Leverage the results of information system activity reviews and evaluation programs to identify the current status 
of safeguards protecting NSHWC Databases. 

(c) Identify a ny act ual or poten tial vulnerabilities o f s ystems a nd tech nologies co ntaining or acces sing eP HI.  
Consider techn ical, ad ministrative/process, hum an, and phy sical vulnerability so urces.  In clude vu lnerabilities 
that could impact the confidentiality, integrity and availability of data. 

(d) Identify th e t hreats t hat co uld exploit th e vulnerabilities identi fied.  Con sider h uman (i ntentional and 
unintentional) a nd en vironmental threats.  I nclude th reats that co uld i mpact t he co nfidentiality, integrity a nd 
availability of data. 
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(e) Estimate the likelihood that a  threat would successfully exploit each of the identified vulnerabilities, given the 
current countermeasures in place to guard against such exploits. 

(f) Evaluate the level of impact that a successful exploitation would cause to NSHWC. 
(g) From the above factors, compute the relative magnitude of each identified risk using a qualitative scale. 

 
6. Risk Management Procedure: 

(a) For each risk identified in the risk assessment process above, determine if the current level of risk is acceptable.  
Formulate a scale for determining “reasonableness and appropriateness” of the risk to the NSHWC.   

(b) In deciding what level o f risk is acceptab le, co mpare the cost and i mpact o f additional security measures and 
safeguards against the magnitude of the risk.   

(c) Select and i mplement secu rity measures a nd saf eguards th at are co st-effective i n red ucing ris k to acceptab le 
levels. 

(d) Once safeguards have been incorporated, identify any residual risk remaining.  For the residual risk, analyze the 
applicable th reats, v ulnerabilities and co untermeasures to  f urther ass ess th e poten tial for a  secu rity i ncident.  
Base residu al ris k tolerance on f actors speci fic to NS HWC (e.g ., size, en vironment, operatin g c hanges, a nd 
configuration). 

(e) Ensure personnel are ad equately trained with respect to  information security policies and procedures, including 
relevant threats, vulnerabilities and countermeasures. 

(f) The Security & Privacy Officer (or desig nee) shall provide an an nual report to th e Chief Executive Officer in 
conjunction with the annual audit.  

 
 

________________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013 
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NSHWC Security Policies and Procedures 

Security Policy #02 
Sanction Policy 

 
Purpose 
The NSHWC is committed to protecting the security and privacy of ePHI contained in the NSHWC Databases. Sanction policies 
are an important aspect of NSHWC’s commitment to ensuring that the NSHWC applies appropriate penalties against NSHWC 
Workforce Members and Subcontractors who fail to comply with the Security Policies and Procedures.  
 
Policy 

1. NSHWC will co mmunicate t his Sa nction P olicy to N SHWC W orkforce Me mbers a nd v endors t hat h ave acce ss to 
NSHWC Database s, and N SHWC will i nstruct N SHWC Workforce Me mbers and vendors on  th e proper h andling of 
actual or reasonably suspected security violations and incidents.  

2.  NSHWC W orkforce Me mbers ar e req uired to rep ort actual o r reasonably suspected se curity v iolations and  i ncidents, 
including without limitation, any breaches of unsecured ePHI (as defined in the PHI Breach Notification Policy) to t he 
Security & P rivacy O fficer. Vendors are req uired to re port actu al or reason ably s uspected secu rity violation s a nd 
incidents, in cluding without limitation, an y breaches o f unsecured eP HI (as def ined in  th e P HI B reach No tification 
Policy) to th e Securit y & P rivacy Officer, and as otherwise in accordance with NSHWC’s written agreement with the 
Subcontractor. 

3. Failure to co mply with t he Security P olicies a nd P rocedures will res ult i n co rrective or discip linary ac tion.  P ossible 
actions may include the following: 

 Verbal warnings; 
 Retraining; 
 Suspension of privileges; 
 Employment termination; 
 Termination of any contractual agreements; 
 Notification to law enforcement officers, regulatory, accreditation, and/or licensure organizations; or  
 Civil and/or criminal penalties. 

4. The type of sanction applied shall vary depending on the severity of the violation, whether the violation was intentional or 
unintentional, whether the violation indicates a pattern  or practice of improper access, use or disclosure of ePHI, or any 
other applicable factors. 

5. The Securit y & P rivacy Officer sh all notify t he C hief E xecutive O fficer of  a ny violations or reason ably suspected 
violations of the Security and Privacy Policies.  The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for determining the severity of 
any sanctions. 

6. The NSHWC will not retaliate against any individual who reports a violation of the Security Policies and Procedures, or 
who reports a security violation or incident. 
 

Procedures 
1. Upon disco very of th e violat ion, th e Sec urity & P rivacy Officer will notify t he Chief Ex ecutive O fficer.  T he C hief 

Executive O fficer is responsible f or th e i nvestigation of alleged  violation s or other wrongful actio ns, and t he 
determination of whether sanctions are necessary and, if so, the severity of the sanctions. 

2. The following compliance violation categories apply to violations of the Security Policies and Procedures and/or with the 
requirements of applicable laws and regulations.  The category of a particular violation will be taken into account, along 
with any resulting financial or rep utation damages incurred by NSHWC, when determining appropriate sanctions to be 
applied. 
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• Tier 1  (Accidental) 
– 1a: No Reportable Breach 
– 1b: Reportable Breach 

• Tier 2 (Not Willful Neglect, but Not Accidental) 
– 2a: No Reportable Breach 
– 2b: Reportable Breach 

• Tier 3 (Willful Neglect, but Corrected) 
– 3a: No Reportable Breach 
– 3b: Reportable Breach 

• Tier 4 (Willful Neglect, Not Corrected) 
– 4a: No Reportable Breach 
– 4b: Reportable Breach 

 
3. Any sanctions imposed upon NSHWC Workforce Members and vendors will be docu mented and retained  by President 

for a period of  at least six (6) years from the date a sanc tion was imposed or the date when any such sanction was last in 
effect, whichever is later.  

4. The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) will ensure any necessary changes are i mmediately made after identifying 
the contributing causes of the security violation or incident. 

 
 

 
 
__________________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013 
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NSHWC Security Policies and Procedures 

Security Policy #03 
Activity Review 

 
Purpose 
The NSHW C is co mmitted to protecting  th e sec urity and  priv acy of eP HI co ntained in  th e N SHWC Databa ses.  In formation 
systems activity review is an important aspect of the NSHWC’s commitment to co nducting periodic in ternal system reviews o f 
records to minimize security violations to ePHI.  
 
Policy 

1. The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) will be responsible for conducting an i nternal review of the activity of the 
NSHWC Databases on a regular, ongoing basis. The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) may designate one or more 
individuals to assist in monitoring and reviewing activity within the NSHWC Databases. 

2. The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) will perform an audit of the monthly system activity monitoring and review 
process on an annual basis. 

3. When evaluating technology upgrades, NSHWC will take into consideration the upgrades’ ability to track activity and 
generate activity reports. Preference will be given to upgrades that have the required features and functionality to support 
this policy. 

 
Procedures 
 

1. The Securit y & P rivacy O fficer will establi sh a n i nternal review process whereby acti vity o f th e NSHW C Database s, 
including, but not limited to, security incidents, system audit logs, activity reports, access reports, logins, file access, or 
other mechanisms that document systems activity, is reviewed at least monthly. 

2. Upon revie w of  t he activ ity of th e NSHW C Database s, th e Securit y & P rivacy O ffice (or  desig nee) will rep ort a ny 
suspicious or qu estionable act ivity to Legal Counsel. The Security & P rivacy Officer and Chief Executive Officer will 
investigate the matter, which will include a determination of whether a breach, as def ined in the PHI Breach Notification 
Policy (PP002), has occurred. 

3. The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) will ensure that a process has been implemented whereby activity reports of 
the NSHWC Databases are maintained and archived as follows: 
 System generated activity log files – no less than one (1) year; and  
 Incident reports and other documentation – no less than six (6) years. 

4. The Securit y & P rivacy O fficer (or designee) will maintain acti vity rep orts of  th e NSHWC Database s in  secure, 
designated areas. 

5. Findings a nd reco mmendations will be i ncorporated in to t he security trai ning a nd a wareness prog ram ad ministered t o 
NSHWC Workforce Members as appropriate. 

6. Adjustments to the Security Policies and Procedures will be made as necessary based on the review findings. 
 
 
 

 
________________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013 
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NSHWC Security Policies and Procedures 

Security Policy #04 
Assigned Security Responsibility 

 
Purpose 
NSHWC is committed to protectin g the security and privacy of ePHI contained in th e NSHWC Databases.  Assigned security 
responsibility is an important aspect of NSHWC’s commitment to the privacy and security of ePHI.  
 
Policy 
NSHWC will identify a qualified individual to serve as the Security & Privacy Officer who will supervise the NSHWC Databases 
and ensure its compliance with the Security Policies and Procedures.  
 
Procedures: 
Responsibilities of Security & Privacy Officer 

1. The Security & Privacy Officer leads in th e development and enforcement of the Security Policies and Procedures, and 
measures and mechanisms to ensure the prevention, detection, containment, and correction of security incidents.  

2. The Security & Privacy Officer maintains the Security Policies and Procedures that include, without limitation: 
(a) Administrative Safeguards:  formal mechanisms for risk analysis and management, information access controls, and 

appropriate sanctions for failure to comply; 
(b) Physical Safeguards:  formal mechanisms for ensuring assigned security responsibilities, control access to media 

(e.g., diskettes, tapes, backups, disposal of data), protection against unauthorized access to systems containing ePHI, 
and secure workstation locations and use; 

(c) Technical Safeguards: formal mechanisms for establishing access controls, emergency procedures, authorization 
controls, and data/entity access and authentication. 

(d) The Security & Privacy Officer maintains appropriate security measures and mechanisms to guard against 
unauthorized access to ePHI and protect against reasonably anticipated threats. 

3. The Security & Privacy Officer oversees and/or performs on-going security monitoring of the NSHWC Databases. 
4. The Security & Privacy Officer ensures compliance through periodic security audits. 
5. The Security & Privacy Officer may, at his/her discretion, assign qualified designees (internal or external) to fulfill all 

assigned duties.   
6. The Security & Privacy Officer serves as a resource regarding matters of informational security and, on an as needed, but 

no less than on an annual basis, reports the status of information security activities to the Chief Executive Officer.  
7. All applicable NSHWC Workforce Members and Subcontractors will be made aware of the Security & Privacy Officer, 

as well as the Security & Privacy Officer’s role and responsibilities.  Any Security & Privacy Officer personnel change 
will be promptly communicated.   

 
 
 
 

 
________________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013 
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NSHWC Security & Privacy Officer Appointment 
 

James Dietz has been designated the Privacy & Security Officer for Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc.  The Security 
& Privacy Officer is responsible for assuring appropriate and reasonable implementation of the Security Policies and Procedures. 
 
This designation shall be effective on October 31, 2013 until amended or revoked. 
 
The Security & Privacy Official will be responsible for development, implantation, documentation and monitoring of the Risk 
Management Program, and policies and procedures implementation, review and updates as needed. 
 
 
Security & Privacy Officer: 
 
              
Printed Name     Sign ature     Date  
 
Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center, Inc.: 
 
              
Printed Name     Sign ature     Date  
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NSHWC Security Policies and Procedures 
Security Policy #05 

Databases Security – Workforce Users 
Purpose 
NSHWC is co mmitted to protecting the security and privacy of ePHI contained in its Databases.  Securit y of the Databases is an 
important aspect of the NSHWC’s commitment to developing, implementing, and maintaining appropriate security measures for 
ePHI. 
 
Policy 
NSHWC maintains formal procedures to ensure that all NSHWC Workforce Users have appropriate levels o f access to ePHI and 
to prevent those NSHWC Workforce Users who do not require access to such information from obtaining access to ePHI.   

 
Procedures 

1. The Security & Privacy Officer shall ensure that NSHWC Workforce Users are granted the appropriate access level to the 
NSHWC Databases. 

2. The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) will perform the functions associated with establishing or removing access 
authorization as described in this policy. 

3. The Securit y & P rivacy O fficer will revie w o n an  an nual basis t he acce ss levels o f NSHW C W orkforce Users to 
determine whether their respective access to ePHI conforms with the appropriate level of access authorized. 

4. The Security & Privacy Officer will define the level of access to ePHI for each NSHWC Workforce User. There are two 
levels of access: 

a) ePHI Access – access level allowing User to access data containing ePHI. 
b) No-ePHI Access – access level not allowing User to access data containing ePHI. 

5. A bac kground ch eck i s p erformed on  a ll s taff bef ore be ing hired. T he res ults o f t hose backg round c hecks will be 
considered prior to providing access to ePHI in NSHWC Databases. 

6. Terminations and changes in NSHWC Workforce Member or Subcontractor positions will be immediately communicated 
to the CEO, President, Security & Privacy Officer, and Legal Counsel.      

7. Upon the termination of a NSHWC Workforce Member, the Security & Privacy Officer will retrieve all physical media, 
devices, or eq uipment co ntaining eP HI of  th e respecti ve NSHWC W orkforce Me mber to deter mine and, if  necessary, 
mitigate ris k ass ociated with th eir u se or disclo sure of  ePHI.  Up on term ination of  a  NSHW C W orkforce User, th e 
Security & Privacy Officer will remove/revoke such MMRF Workforce User’s access to the NSHWC Databases.   

 
 
 

________________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013 
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NSHWC Security Policies and Procedures 

Security Policy #06 
Information Access Management 

 
Purpose 
The NSHWC is committed to protecting the security and privacy of ePHI contained in the NSHWC Databases.  Information access 
management is an important aspect of NSHWC’s commitment to continually assess potential risks and vulnerabilities to ePHI in 
its possession, and towards developing, implementing, and maintaining appropriate security measures.  
 
Policy 
NSHWC Workforce Members, vendors, and Users are g ranted access only to that ePHI to which they are authorized according to 
the procedures herein, in order to perform the particular function specified.   
 
Procedures 

1. The Securit y & P rivacy Officer is respon sible f or deter mining ap propriate lev els of  a ccess to eP HI based u pon the 
individual’s position and need for access to ePHI.  Granti ng appropriate access to eP HI is co mpleted by the Security & 
Privacy Officer (or designee).  

2. NSHWC W orkforce Me mber access to f acilities, restricte d area s, workstations, co mputer eq uipment, phy sical files or 
other areas/items containing ePHI shall be granted in accordance with the Security Policies and Procedures.   

3. The Securit y & P rivacy Officer  is respon sible f or e nsuring t hat NS HWC W orkforce Me mbers with th e f ollowing 
requirements: 
(a) Use of ePHI only for purposes authorized by NSHWC.  
(b) Comply with the Security Policies and Procedures. 
(c) Not disclose ePHI unless authorized to do so. 

4. Vendors’ access to ePHI shall be outlined in agreements with the applicable vendor. 
5. The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) is responsible for conducting an annual review of the Security Policies and 

Procedures addressing access to systems containing ePHI. 
6. The Security & Privacy Officer is responsible for determining a User’s initial right of access to NSHWC Databases based 

on such User’s position. Users will be assigned access a uthorization by the Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) for 
access control purposes.  If an NSHWC Workforce Member’s, vendor’s or User’s duties, role, function, or responsibilities 
change, the access permissions of the applicable NSHWC Workforce Member or Subcontractor shall be re-evaluated and 
revised as necessary. 

7. The Security & Privacy Officer will ensure that all Users enter into agreements which set forth the terms and conditions 
for accessing ePHI.   

 
 
 

 
 
________________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013 
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NSHWC Security Policies and Procedures 

Security Policy #07 
Security Awareness and Training 

 
Purpose 
The NSHW C is co mmitted to protecting  th e secu rity an d priv acy of  eP HI co ntained in  th e NSHW C Database s.  Securit y 
awareness and training is an important aspect of the NSHWC’s commitment to maintaining the security of ePHI.  
 
Policy 
NSHWC Workforce Members having access to ePHI on NSHWC Databases will receive training regarding security awareness. 
 
Procedures 

1. The Security & Privacy Officer is responsible for the development and implementation of the security training program.   
2. The security training program shall include, without limitation, the following: 

a. Overall discussion of threats and vulnerabilities specific to ePHI. 
b. Information access control. 
c. Access Authorization Levels. 
d. Incident Reporting. 
e. User log-in. 
f. Password creation, maintenance and safeguarding. 
g. Security principles. 
h. HIPAA and org anizational privacy and security rules, policies and procedu res, and th e sanctions, and ci vil and 

criminal penalties prescribed for wrongful actions. 
3. Successful co mpletion of  th e in itial and periodic secu rity train ing prog ram is a prereq uisite f or access to eP HI on th e 

NSHWC Databases.  The Security & Privacy Officer (or desi gnee) will maintain a record of  each NSHWC Workforce 
Member who has completed the security training program. 

4. An NSHWC Workforce Member’s job responsibilities will determine whether such NSHWC Workforce Member will be 
required to complete the Security Training Program. 

5. Security train ing will be pr ovided to NSHW C W orkforce Me mbers du ring i nitial orientation, when a n NS HWC 
Workforce Member’s role and access level changes, and thereafter on an annual calendar basis. 

 
 
 

________________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013 
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NSHWC Security Policies and Procedures 

Security Policy #08 
Security Incidents 

Purpose 
The NSHW C is co mmitted t o protecting  the sec urity a nd priv acy of eP HI co ntained i n t he NSHWC Database s.  I dentifying 
security incidents and working to prevent them is an important aspect of the NSHWC’s commitment to developing, implementing 
and maintaining appropriate security measures.  
 
Policy 
It is t he policy o f t he NSHWC to i mplement procedures to identify a suspected or k nown occurrence of  a security incident, to  
enable NSHWC Workforce Members, vendors or IT systems to rep ort a secu rity i ncident to th e Security & Privacy Off icer, to  
mitigate the harmful effect of any incident to the extent practicable and to document any security incident and its outcome.   
 
Procedures 

1.  NSHWC W orkforce Me mbers and v endors will i mmediately re port an y and all suspected  and actu al v iolations of  t he 
Security Policies and Procedures and any and all suspected and actual breaches of ePHI to the Security & Privacy Officer.  

2.  The Security & Privacy Officer shall notify the Chief Executive Officer of actual or reasonably suspected violations.  The 
Chief E xecutive O fficer is respon sible f or deter mining whether a breach exi sts, i n ac cordance w ith the PHI Breach 
Notification Policy (PP02). 

3. The Security & Privacy Officer is respon sible for coordinating the response to all sec urity incidents.  Securi ty incidents 
include any and all atte mpts to gain unauthorized access to NSHWC Databases and the use, disclosure, modification or 
destruction of information or interference with systems containing ePHI. 

4. NSHWC W orkforce Me mbers and vendors who s uspect a secu rity i ncident will immediately notify t he Sec urity & 
Privacy O fficer.  W hen rep orting a security i ncident, NS HWC W orkforce Me mbers a nd v endors s hould prov ide t he 
following information, which will be documented by the Security & Privacy Officer in a the formal report: 

a. Name and phone number of person reporting the incident; 
b. Date and time the incident was discovered; 
c. Observed behaviors that led to the incident being suspected; 
d. Any unusual circumstances surrounding the event. 

The Securit y & P rivacy O fficer (or desig nee filling out t he formal rep ort) sh all also  i nclude th e date, ti me, a nd t he 
Security & Privacy Officer’s name and contact information on the formal report.  The report will be immediately 
provided to the Chief Executive Officer. 

5. The Chief Executive Officer will respond to a reported security incident in the following manner: 
a. Determine if the reported security incident meets the definition of a breach o f unsecured ePHI pursuant to 

the PHI Breach Notification Policy (PP02), and take the steps outlined therein, as applicable. 
b. Record all findings of the reported security incident.   
c. Assess the risk of continuing operations. 
d. Take appropriate actions which may include the following:  

i. Change passwords used on affected systems and/or networks containing ePHI as necessary. 
ii. Restore affected systems using the last uncompromised backup. 
iii. Recommend and/or make changes necessary to ad dress vulnerabilities exploited with respect to th e 

reported security incident. 
iv. Reinforce training of NSHWC Workforce Members. 

6. The Security & Privacy Officer will ensure that sufficient products and/or serv ices are dedicated to th e monitoring and 
reporting of security incidents.  Methods to monitor and report security incidents may include dedicated email alarm/alert 
functionality regarding misuse of data, i mproper system and network activity, unauthorized system and network activity 
and the regular review of system and/or network generated incident reports.  
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7. In the event of a sec urity incident, the Security &  Privacy Off icer will take steps to mitigate any harmful effects (e.g., 

repairing damage, restoring IT Service).   
8. Chief E xecutive O fficer may rep ort a secu rity i ncident to  la w en forcement personn el or  oth er ou tside en tities, i f 

appropriate. 
9. Security incidents reported to the Chief Executive Officer will be processed in the following manner: 

a. Investigate the security incident. 
b. Identify any persons and/or parties involved. 
c. Obtain a full description of the security incident. 
d. Document all communications.  
e. Determine the best course of action to resolve the security incident. 
f. Determine a mitigation plan to resolve the security incident. 
g. The Chief Executive Officer will file copies of any personnel actions, sanctions, or legal opinions.   

 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013 
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NSHWC Security Policies and Procedures 

Security Policy #09 
Contingency Plan 

 
Purpose 
The NSHWC is committed to protecting t he security and privacy of ePHI contained in the NSHWC Databases.   A Contingency 
Plan is an important aspect of the NSHWC’s commitment to maintaining access to and protection of the ePHI stored and processed 
in the NSHWC Databases.  
 
Policy 
NSHWC shall establish and implement a Contingency Plan including procedures for responding to an emergency or other 
occurrence (e.g., fire, vandalism, system failure, or natural disaster) that impacts NSHWC Databases.  It is acknowledged that 
access to the NSHWC Databases is not required for the provision of patient care. 
 
Procedures 

1. In th e e vent of  a n e mergency or oth er occu rrence th at impacts t he NS HWC Datab ases, NSHW C will follow t he 
procedures outlined in the attached Contingency Plan.  The Contingency Plan contains the following sections: 
a. Data Backup Plan  
b. Disaster Recovery Plan  
c. Emergency Mode Operation Plan  

2. The Privacy & Security Officer  shall review and approve the Contingency Plan to ensure that: 
a. The Contingency Plan is thorough and considers all significant risks to continuity of operations and protection of the 

ePHI stored and p rocessed by the system containing ePHI.  In  particular, the Contingency Plan should demonstrate 
how ePHI protections will be maintained regardless of an emergency situation. 

b. Any noted deficiencies in the Contingency Plan are corrected prior to approval. 
3. The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) shall implement the Contingency Plan in case of an emergency and follow 

the procedures prescribed in the Contingency Plan to respond to and recover from the emergency. 
4. The Securit y & P rivacy O fficer (or desig nee) shall te st the Contingency P lan as  n eeded, bu t n o le ss th an a nnually.  

Results of such tests must be formally documented and presented to the Chief Executive Officer. The Contingency Plan 
must be revised as necessary to address issues or gaps identified in the testing process. 

5. The Security & Privacy Officer shall review the Contingency Plan and the associated test results on an annual calendar 
basis and ensure that: 
a. The Contingency Plan was effective in dealing with the emergency situation. 
b. Any deficiencies exposed by the testing process have been addressed by the Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) 

with a revision to the Contingency Plan or system as needed. 
 

 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013 
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Background 
 
The NSHW C Database Co ntingency P lan co nsiders all si gnificant risk s to co ntinuity of operation s and protectio n of th e eP HI 
stored and processed  b y the system.  In particu lar, t he P lan demonstrates how NSHWC Database b usiness processes  and eP HI 
protections will be maintained regardless of an emergency situation. 
 

To achieve this objective this Contingency Plan contains the following sections: 
A – Data Backup Plan  
B – Disaster Recovery Plan  
C – Emergency Mode Operation Plan  
D – Contingency Plan Testing 

 
The Securit y &  P rivacy Officer sh all i mplement th e Contingency Plan in  case of  a n em ergency a nd f ollow t he procedures 
prescribed in the Plan to resp ond to and recov er from the emergency.  T he Security & Privacy Officer will commence Disaster 
Recovery and Emergency Mode Operations at the request of the Chief Executive Officer. 
 
The Chief Executive Officer will consist of senior management that will meet in the advent of an emergency or eve nt (such as a 
flood, fire, storm) that severely impacts NSHWC’s ability to conduct critical business processes and bring up required support 
systems.  T he NSHWC Databases and associated business processes are just one of many systems that must be ad dressed by the 
Chief E xecutive O fficer.  I f required, th e C hief Ex ecutive Off icer will n otify t he Sec urity &  P rivacy O fficer to i nvoke t his 
NSHWC Databases Contingency Plan, specifically Sections B and C.  
 
A – Data Backup Plan 
 
A Data Backup Plan is a required part of the NSHWC Contingency Plan.   It establishes and implements procedures to create and 
maintain retrievable exact copies of needed NSHWC Databases servers and associated electronic protected health information.   
 
NSHWC Databases Backups 
The NSHWC Databases is contained on the following servers: 
 

Liquid Web Inc. is responsible for the hosting and regular backup of the NSHWC Databases servers.  Liquid Web Guardian 
runs on each server and sends the backup data to  Terabyte backup media agents which then stores the data on tapes. 

 
 By default everything on the servers gets backed up and the backups are retained for 18 days. 

o Full back up once a week 
o Incremental backups 7 days a week 

 If the agents or actual backup fails, the system generates an alert 
 Containers are opened with a master key that is signed out with each use.  Tapes are loaded into the container. 
 The containers are then locked  
 2 days after a full back up is done it is sent to a secure facility (Recall).  Tape containers are given to a credentialed agent 

for Recall who transports them in a locked vehicle to Recall’s hardened facility 
 
The Backup Restoral Tests include the following steps: 

 Liquid Web recalls the tapes from Recall 
 Once received, Liquid Web installs the backups 
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B – Disaster Recovery Plan 
 
The Disaster recovery plan is required within the NSHWC Contingency Plan.  It establishes, and implements as needed, 
procedures to restore any loss of NSHWC Databases data and supportive system hardware and software.  
 

Applications and Data Criticality Analysis   

Because the NSHWC Databases represents a single asset and is NSHWC’s only ePHI asset, we have not included any evaluation 
of the relative criticality as would normally be done to prioritize multiple assets.  We did evaluate the desired assurance levels for 
confidentiality, integrity, and availability as follows: 

 

Assurance 
Factor 

Analysis Recommended 
Assurance 

Level 
Confidentiality The data in the NSHWC Databases consists of individually identifiable 

patient records. 
HIGH 

Integrity The data in the NSHWC Databases is considered a system of record for 
health information as that information is retained by the NSHWC.  The data 
is used to fill prescriptions for patients and to contribute patient background 
information to assist researchers in evaluate the results of the medicine.   

HIGH 

Availability The NSHWC Databases is not used to make any time-sensitive health care 
decisions.   

MEDIUM 

 
Based on this Criticality assessment NSHWC has determined that the Recovery Time Objective (RTO) for the NSHWC Databases 
is 1 day.  This is to be co nsidered the worst case scenario.  Ideally, it is desired that NSHWC Databases functionality be re stored 
within 4 hours whenever possible. 
 
NSHWC Databases Recovery 
Disaster Recov ery w ork practices are the shared respon sibility of  Liquid W eb, NSHW C, or its  agent, with a ssistance f rom                 
as required. If it is determined there has been a system disaster resulting in data corruption or loss, mutually agreed upon after a 4 
hour or g reater outage of the primary server environment, a Cold Site Disaster Reco very process of Data f rom Backup Tape will 
be initiated as follows: 
 

1. Disaster Recovery request submitted to the Liquid Web by calling (800)580-4985. The Liquid Web Data Center is staffed 
24x7x365. 

2. Liquid Web will order replacement server(s) as required. 
3. Liquid Web will request backup tape stored off site. 
4. Liquid Web will install, configure Microsoft 2008 OS to affected server(s). 
5. Liquid Web will transfer Oracle License from Production Environment to new server(s). 
6. NSHWC, or its agent, will work with Liquid Web to install configured NSHWC Databases Application. 
7. NSHWC, or its agent, will work with Liquid Web to verify network settings function with installed application. 
8. NSHWC, or its agent, will be responsible to transfer all licenses for other software, as required. 
9. Liquid Web will restore data from Most Recent Backup Tape. 
10. Liquid Web will configure Network Connectivity to Server(s). 
11. Liquid Web will monitor Disaster Recovery process for success/failure (and will restart Disaster Recovery process if 

failed) 
12. NSHWC, or its agent, will work with Liquid Web to validate new application and configuration. 
13. NSHWC, or its agent, will test new application and configuration. 
14. Liquid Web will verify Disaster Recovery process of Data from Tape to be successful. 
15. Liquid Web Disaster Recovery process of Data from Tape completion time depends on the volume of data to be restored.   
16. To ensure recovery process is completed in a timely manner, the following communication and coordination steps will be 

implemented with oversight by NSHWC, or its agent, and representatives from Liquid Web. 
a. Liquid Web notifies the Security & Privacy Officer of a need for NSHWC Databases restoration to be 

performed.   
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b. Liquid Web will communicate the nature of the problem (hardware failure, hosting site destroyed, etc) and how 
long it is anticipated that the recovery steps will take.  

c. A conference call will be held with NSHWC to review all recovery steps required. 
d. Liquid Web will keep the NSHWC Security & Privacy Officer updated regarding restoration progress through 

regular updates of at least 4 hour intervals.   
e. Testing will be coordinated to confirm that the restoration of the NSHWC Databases was successful. 
f. NSHWC will give the approval to commence with usage of the restored NSHWC Databases.  
g. A post restoration report will be created by Liquid Web that describes the nature of the outage and all steps taken 

to restore the NSHWC Databases.  The report will also point out any preventative steps that could be taken to 
prevent a repeat of the particular outage.   

 
 
C - Emergency Mode Operation Plan 
 
Emergency mode operation p lan i s required within the NSHWC Co ntingency P lan.   It establishes and implements, a s needed, 
procedures to enab le co ntinuation of  NSHW C Databases operations and th e protectio n of  th e sec urity o f electron ic protected  
health information while operating in  e mergency mode. The Security & P rivacy O fficer shall i mplement t he E mergency Mo de 
Operation P lan in case  of an  e mergency and follow the procedu res prescribed  in  t he P lan to  respon d to a nd recov er f rom t he 
emergency.  T he Security & Privacy Officer will commence Emergency Mode Operations at t he request of the Chief Executive 
Officer. 
 
NSHWC Databases Continuity of Operations 
All appropriate steps will be taken to protect all ePHI data while in Emergency Mode Operation. 
 

 Hard copy papers will be stored in secure locations 
 Hard copy papers will be isolated so only authorized personnel have access of can view ePHI data 
 Hard Copy papers containing ePHI will be archived in a secure manner. 
 No ePHI will be sent via email. 

 
D – Contingency Plan Testing 
 
The Securit y & P rivacy O fficer must i mplement procedu res f or periodic testi ng and r evision of th e Co ntingency Plan.  T he 
following rep resents so me te sting sce narios th at sh ould be co nducted on  an an nual ba sis.  B ased on  th e resu lts of  these tests, 
revisions may be made to the Contingency Plan. 
 
System Backups 

 Confirm that needed NSHWC Databases backups are being performed as scheduled and they are being stored off-site. 
 Confirm that backups are being tested to ensure they can be restored properly. 
 Monitor storage and removal of backups; ensure all applicable access controls are enforced. 

 
Hosting System Failure 

 Walk through with the hosting company how the NSHWC Databases will be restored in the event of catastrophic 
hardware failure at the hosting site. 

o Notifications 
o Procedures to be followed 
o Confirm that all administrative passwords are available 

 Walk through with the hosting company how the NSHWC Databases will be restored in the event of the hosting facility 
being destroyed or incapacitated for an extended period.  

o Notifications 
o Procedures to be followed 
o Confirm that all administrative passwords are available 

 
Continuity of Business Operations 

 Confirm that call lists and notification procedures are current. 
 Walk through the Emergency Mode Operation Plan to ensure that the procedure steps are still valid and proper 

communications and results will take place. 
 Manually submit, receive and store a test tissue sample in manual operations mode. 
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 Communicate to Consortium Member Sites how the Emergency Mode Operation Plan works and the procedures they will 
follow to protect ePHI and tissue samples.  (This could be achieved through written communications) 

 Confirm that all hard copy ePHI is protected throughout the manual process. 
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NSHWC Security Policies and Procedures 

Security Policy #10 
Security Evaluation 

 
Purpose 
The NSHW C is co mmitted to protecting  th e secu rity an d priv acy of  eP HI co ntained in  th e NSHW C Database s.  Securit y 
evaluation is an important aspect of the NSHWC’s commitment to developing, implementing and maintaining appropriate security 
measures.   
 
Policy 
The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) will evaluate and confirm compliance with the Security Policies and Procedures.   

 
Procedures 

1. The Security & Privacy Officer will perform an evaluation on an annual calendar basis or upon the occurrence of one or 
more of the following events: 
a) Changes in the HIPAA Security or Privacy Regulations, as communicated by the Chief Executive Officer. 
b) New Federal, State, or local laws and regulations, or changes thereto, affecting security of ePHI, as communicated by 

the Chief Executive Officer. 
c) Changes in the risk assessment recommendations, pursuant to the Risk Assessment and Management Policy (SP001). 
d) Material changes to the underlying information technology of the NSHWC Databases. 
e) Material changes in the NSHWC’s business processes with respect to information technology. 
f) A major security incident. 

2. The revie w will be co mprised of  both  technical a nd non-technical e valuations to e stablish th e ex tent to t he N SHWC 
Databases meet the security requirements of these policies. 

3. The Security &  Privacy Off icer (or designee) w ill m ake recommendations for revi sions to t he Sec urity P olicies a nd 
Procedures to ref lect the current operating environment. The Security & Privacy Officer will take into co nsideration the 
results of inspections, i nterviews, and/or tests since the last evaluation, and any recent threats, vulnerabilities, and/or risk 
assessment results, to ensure any significant findings are addressed sufficiently.  

 
 

 
 
 
________________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013 
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NSHWC Security Policies and Procedures 

Security Policy #11 
Vendor Contracts and Other Arrangements 

 
Purpose 
The NSHWC is committed to protecting the security and privacy of ePHI contained in the NSHWC Databases.  Vendor contracts 
and oth er arrang ements are an i mportant a spect of MMRF’s commitment to ensuring that vendor having access to ePHI also 
protect the security and privacy of ePHI.   
 
Policy 
Prior to disclosing or making available any ePHI to a Vend or, NSHWC will obtain satisfactory assurances from the vendor that it 
will ap propriately sa feguard ePHI it receiv es, maintains or cr eates on  beha lf of  MMRF.  NS HWC shall req uire all v endors 
requiring acces s to eP HI to e nter i nto written a greements ensuring t he security a nd pri vacy of  eP HI or b y i ncluding necessary 
compliance req uirements within e xisting co ntracts. Any disclosures of  eP HI to a v endor m ust be li mited to th e m inimum 
necessary, must be limited to only such use or disclosure as is necessary to allow the vendor to carry out the function or activity it 
is engaged to carry out on behalf of MMRF, and may not be made for the vendor’s independent use or purposes.  
 
Procedures 

 Examples of a vendor requiring ePHI may include: 
a. A vendor to review the NSHWC Databases. 
b. A vendor that provides data center services that host NSHWC systems that contain ePHI. 
c. A vendor that provides document shredding services to NSHWC for the purpose of shredding documents containing 

ePHI. 
d. An attorney who assists in assessing MMRF’s compliance with HIPAA.   

1. Disclose only minimum necessary:  NSHWC will disclose to a vendor only the ePHI that is reasonably necessary to 
accomplish the intended purpose of the disclosure.    

2. Agreements for Vendors requiring access to ePHI: If a vendor requires access to ePHI to perform its services, a contract 
or other written arrangement is required to document the assurances from the vendor that the vendor will appropriately 
safeguard the ePHI it receives or creates on behalf of NSHWC. 

3. Non-Compliance by Vendor having access to ePHI:  If NSHWC has actual knowledge of a pattern of activity or practice 
of the Vendor that constitutes a material breach or violation of an obligation of the vendor under any agreement , 
NSHWC, at the discretion of the Security & Privacy Officer and in conjunction with the Chief Executive Officer, will 
take reasonable steps to cure the breach or end the violation, as applicable, and if such steps are unsuccessful, NSHWC 
may: 
(a) terminate the agreement or arrangement with the vendor, if feasible; or  
(b) mitigate and address, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to NSHWC arising from the use or 

disclosure of ePHI in violation of the Security Policies and Procedures. 
4. Authority to Sign Vendor Agreements: All v endor agreements, or oth er written contracts evidencing the subcontractor 

agreement, must be signed by an officer of the NSHWC having authority to sign contractual agreements on MMRF’s 
behalf. 

 
 
________________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013 
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NSHWC Security Policies and Procedures 

Security Policy #12 
Facility Access Controls 

 
Purpose 
The NSHWC is co mmitted to protecting the security and privacy of  ePHI contained in the NSHWC Databases. Fac ility acce ss 
controls are an important aspect of NSHWC’s commitment to limiting physical access to its NSHWC Databases and the facility or  
facilities in which such systems are housed, while ensuring that properly authorized access is allowed.  
 
NSHWC un derstands th e i mportance of  ensu ring on ly registered  patient s obtain  th e m edical marijuana as prescribed  by  th eir 
treating physician. NSHWC is committed to securing its inventory of Medical Marijuana.   
 
Policy 
Physical access to th e eP HI s ystem hosting f acility i s li mited so as to saf eguard su ch f acility and t he eq uipment t herein f rom 
unauthorized physical access, tampering, and theft. 

 
Procedures 

1. NSHWC and Ho sting Facilit y shall create a f acility security plan th at ad dresses phy sical access to th e eq uipment 
contained therein. This plan shall serve as the master plan for safeguarding the data contained in the hosting facility from 
unauthorized physical access, tampering, or theft.   

2. NSHWC and Ho sting Facility shall document all i nstallations, repairs and maintenance that affect security of NSHWC 
and Hosting Facility, such as hardware, walls, doors, and locks. 

3. Physical access to the hosting facility and the equipment therein by all persons must be controlled and validated based on 
their role or function, including visitor control, and control of access to software programs for testing and revision.  

4. Physical acces s to NSHW C and Ho sting Facilit y a nd th e eq uipment t herein b y all person s must be co ntrolled an d 
validated based on their role or function, including visitor control, and control of access to software programs for testing 
and revision.  

5. All repairs and modifications to the physical components of the hosting facility which are related to security (for example, 
hardware, walls, doors, and locks) must be documented. 
 

________________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013 

 
Hosting Facility Plan 

 Liquid Web has many years of experience in designing, constructing, and operating large-scale data centers. This 
experience has been applied to the Liquid Web platform and infrastructure.  

 Liquid Web data centers are housed in nondescript facilities, and critical facilities have extensive setback and military 
grade perimeter control berms as well as other natural boundary protection.  

 Physical access is strictly controlled both at the perimeter and at building ingress points by professional security staff 
utilizing video surveillance, state of the art intrusion detection systems, and other electronic means.  

 Authorized staff must pass two-factor authentication no fewer than three times to access data center floors. All visitors 
and contractors are required to present identification and are signed in and continually escorted by authorized staff.  

 Liquid Web only provides data center access and information to employees who have a legitimate business need for such 
privileges.  
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 When an employee no longer has a business need for these privileges, his or her access is immediately revoked, even if 
they continue to be an employee of Liquid Web or Liquid Web Web Services.  

 All physical and electronic access to data centers by Liquid Web employees is logged and audited routinely. 
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NSHWC Security Policies and Procedures 

Security Policy #13 
NSHWC Workforce Member Workstation Use and Security 

 
Purpose 
The NSHWC is co mmitted to protecting  the security and privacy of ePHI contained in the NSHW C Databases.  T he workstation 
use and security policy is an important aspect of the NSHWC’s commitment to ensuring t he proper u sage a nd security of 
workstations utilized to access the NSHWC Databases.  This policy applies to a NSHWC Workforce Member’’ computing devices 
used to access the NSHWC Databases. 
 
Policy 
Only au thorized workstations (or classes o f workstations) sh all be used to acces s the NSHW C Database s. User s sh all use 
workstations only for conducting official business on behalf of the NSHWC.  
 
Only specif ically authorized w orkstations sh all be u sed to access or store eP HI (e.g ., reports and extract s from t he NSHW C 
Databases).  All workstations accessing or storing ePHI must be approved by the Security & Privacy Officer.  
 
Procedures 

1.  Authorized Workstations.  Only the following classes of workstations are authorized to access the NSHWC Databases:   
a) NSHWC Workforce Member Workstations.  Properly secured workstations operated by NSHWC Workforce 

Members.  Workstation use, physical security and workstation configuration is the responsibility of the Security & 
Privacy Officer.  Storage of ePHI on these workstations is permitted only on encrypted media. 

2. NSHWC Workforce M ember Res ponsibilities.  An NSHWC W orkforce Me mber sh all ab ide b y t he following 
workstation use guidelines: 
a) Use care at all times to protect the NSHWC Databases from unauthorized access or misuse. 
b) Prevent unauthorized physical access to workstations.  For portable workstations moved outside of secure areas, 

maintain personal control of such workstation at all times. 
c) When using a workstation, ensure the physical surroundings prevent unauthorized persons from viewing sensitive 

information such as ePHI or passwords.  For portable workstations moved outside of secure areas, maintain personal 
control of the Workstation during use. 

d) Log off prior to leaving the workstation unattended; workstations will automatically be locked/logged off after fifteen 
(15) minutes of inactivity. 

e) Comply with al l ap plicable pass word policies a nd procedu res, in cluding storing written pass words on ly i n secure 
locations.  

f) Close files and application windows that are not in use. 
g) Perform memory-clearing functions (e. g., close browser and application windows, re -boot) at th e end of a s ession 

before using the workstation for other non-NSHWC functions.  
h) Do n ot load  or in stall un authorized sof tware.  On ly t he Securit y &  P rivacy O fficer may grant per mission for 

additional software on workstations. 
i) Do not disable or b ypass anti-virus, account res trictions, password protection, or an y other security measures on a  

Workstation. 
j) For workstations ap proved f or local storage of  eP HI, store eP HI (e.g ., re ports an d exports f rom t he NSHW C 

Databases) only on secure encrypted media approved by the Security & Privacy Officer.  Back up any locally stored 
ePHI in accordance with the NSHWC Data Backup Policy. 

k) Do not use workstations to access ePHI beyond that which is the minimum necessary for conduct of official duties on 
behalf of NSHWC. 
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l) Do n ot acces s t he NS HWC Database s from unauthorized co mputer s ystems or from non-secure phy sical 
surroundings.  

m) Notify the Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) of any changes to the location or status of assigned workstations. 
n) Immediately report any of the following events, whether actual or s uspected, to th e Security & Privacy Officer ( or 

designee): 
a. Loss or theft of any workstation regardless of whether ePHI was stored on the workstation. 
b. Loss or theft of media containing ePHI, regardless of whether the ePHI was encrypted. 
c. Loss or t heft o f acces s cred entials to  an y o f t he datab ases or n etworks containing eP HI (i.e., u sername and  

password). 
d. Any other breach or suspected breach of the security or privacy of ePHI. 

3. The Security & Privacy Officer shall ensure that all NSHWC Workforce Members having access to the NSHWC 
Databases are trained in the proper functions to be performed, the manner in which those functions are to be performed, 
and the security policies and guidelines that apply.  The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) shall include 
workstation security as a topic in the security awareness and training program. 

4. The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) will maintain an inventory that documents the location, status, responsible 
NSHWC Workforce Member, configuration, and other security attributes of each workstation.   

5. The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) will annually assess a NSHWC Workforce Member’s workstations to 
ensure that: 
a) Workstations are running an operating system that allows for: 

a. Secure log-in; 
b. Automatic Logoff or Secure Screensaver; and 
c. Encryption where required by the Risk Assessment. 

b) Workstations have had all non-essential devices and software removed or disabled if they pose a security threat. 
c) Workstations have had all necessary operating system patches, updates, and service packs applied. 
d) Workstations are running appropriate anti-virus and anti-spyware software. 
e) Workstations are free from all forms of malware. 
f) No unauthorized software is installed on a workstation that poses a security threat. 
g) The workstation is approved for local storage of ePHI, that the media used (e.g., hard disk, removable media) is 

encrypted. 
h) Any locally stored ePHI is backed up in accordance with NSHWC’s Backup Policy. 
i) Any other requirements as determined by the Risk Assessment are met. 

6. The Security & Privacy Officer will take appropriate action to correct any deficiencies found with an NSHWC Workforce 
Member’s workstation. 

 
 

 
 
________________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013 
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NSHWC Security Policies and Procedures 

Security Policy #14 
Device and Media Controls 

 
Purpose 
The NSHWC is committed to protecting the security and privacy of ePHI contained in the NSHWC Databases.  Device and media 
controls are an important aspect to NSHWC’s commitment to maintaining formal practices to monitor the receipt, movement and 
disposal of hardware and electronic media (e.g., flash memory, magnetic disks, magnetic tapes, optical disks) that contains ePHI.    
 
Policy 

1. The NSHWC will maintain formal practices to monitor the receipt, movement and disposal of ePHI. 
2. This policy applies to all h ardware components of the NSHWC Databases.  T his policy applies only to storage devic es 

where the information is retained after power is removed from the device. 
3. A retrievable, exact copy of ePHI, when needed, must be created before movement of NSHWC Databases equipment and 

systems containing ePHI. 
 
Procedures 

1. Vendors shall be responsible for all hardware and electronic media devices containing ePHI under their control and shall 
follow the procedures herein. 

2. Users aut horized to store e PHI on  th eir workstations an d ass ociated electron ic media sh all be respon sible f or their 
assigned workstations and associated ePHI Media and shall follow the procedures herein. 

3. The NSHW C Sec urity & P rivacy Officer shall maintain a n i nventory o f all hardware and electron ic media co ntaining 
ePHI in NSHWC’s possession. 

4. All use of hardware or electronic media containing ePHI must be authorized as follows: 
(a) Vendors may authorize routine transfers of backup media to/from a hosting facility. 
(b) All ot her trans fers o f h ardware or electron ic m edia co ntaining eP HI bet ween NS HWC and v endors must be 

authorized by the Security & Privacy Officer. 
5. The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) shall ensure that a backup copy of transferred ePHI is created prior to movement 

or transfer of such ePHI.  
6. The record of all ePHI Media movement and transfer must contain the following information:  

(a) Date and time of movement of the hardware or electronic media containing ePHI.  
(b) Person/location sending/receiving the hardware or electronic media containing ePHI.  
(c) Brief description of the purpose of transferring the hardware or electronic media containing ePHI.  
(d) Name of person authorizing the transfer. 

7. When hardware or electronic media containing ePHI will be released beyond NSHWC’s control for re-use or recy cling, the 
Security & Privacy Officer shall ensure or shall receive assurances from Subcontractors that the hardware or electronic media 
containing ePHI is cleared of any ePHI as follows: 

(a) Media Re-use. When hardware or electronic media containing ePHI will be re-used, a “wipe” utility must be used to 
perform a three (3) pass minimum random wipe, where each sector of the hardware or electronic media containing 
ePHI is erased a nd written to  with random data a minimum of three (3) ti mes. The Security & Privacy Officer (or 
designee) must verify and document that such sanitization steps have been completed successfully.   

(b) Disposal. When re-use is not possible (e.g., a failed device) or desired, hardware or electronic media containing ePHI 
will be destro yed in s uch a manner t hat th e previousl y stored in formation is not reco verable.  T his ca n include 
magnetic “degaussing” (wiping with a strong magnetic f ield) or physical mutilation of  th e storage media (e.g ., 
cutting, severing, drilling, breaking). The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) must remove any labeling that had 
been affixed to the hardware or electronic media containing ePHI prior to disposal. 
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8. The Securit y & P rivacy O fficer (o r designee) shall revie w t he inventory a nd movement records f or hardware or el ectronic 
media co ntaining eP HI on  a n a nnual cale ndar basis and verify t hat the hardware or electron ic media co ntaining e PHI is 
correctly acco unted for.  If a ny discrep ancies are found, t he Security & P rivacy Officer (or desig nee) s hall ta ke acti on to 
correct the procedures for handling hardware or electronic media containing ePHI and, if applicable, the designee shall notify 
the Security & Privacy Officer of any missing or u naccounted hardware or electron ic media containing ePHI, regardless of 
whether the ePHI was encrypted.  

 
 

 
 
________________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013 
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NSHWC Security Policies and Procedures 

Security Policy #15 
Access Control  

 
Purpose 
The NSHWC is committed to protecting the security and privacy of ePHI contained in the NSHWC Databases.  Access control is 
an important aspect of the NSHWC’s commitment to implement technical policies and procedures for electronic information 
systems that maintain ePHI to allow access only to those persons that have been granted access rights.  
 
Policy 
The NSHWC grants access to  the NSHWC Databases only to those Users that have been formally granted specific access rights.  
In case of an  emergency, necessary ePHI within the NSHWC Databases is made accessible when needed, in accordance with the 
Contingency Plan.   

 
Procedures 

1. Unique U ser Ide ntification.  T he Securit y &  P rivacy Officer (or desi gnee) will c onfigure access co ntrols on  the 
NSHWC Databases to regulate access based on approved authorizations.   

a) Only the Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) is permitted to create or change access control settings. 
b) The Securit y & P rivacy O fficer (or  desig nee) will verify that acces s per missions are set co rrectly and functioning 

properly when any modifications are made to a list of authorized users.   
c) The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) will assign a unique username and password to Users. 
d) The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) will maintain a protected record of username assignments.  

2. Automatic Logoff.  The NSHWC Databases will configured so th at sessions are auto matically terminated after fifteen 
(15) minutes of inactivity.  The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) will test this feature at least annually to ensure 
proper operation. 

3. Encryption and Decryption.  The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) is responsible for ensuring that the NSHWC 
Databases is configured so that only encrypted Secure Sockets Layer (SSL) sessions are allowed and all non-SSL requests 
are ignored.  

4. The Securit y & P rivacy O fficer (or designee) must en sure th at an y new or modified NSHW C Databases software 
incorporates sufficient controls to limit access to electronic data on an individual basis to only those Users that have been 
granted acce ss righ ts, prov ide f or e mergency acce ss, ter minate sessions a fter a perio d of  i nactivity, a nd e ncrypt data 
transmissions, all in accordance with the Security Policies and Procedures.  

 
 
 

 
 
________________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013 
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NSHWC Security Policies and Procedures 

Security Policy #16 
Audit Controls 

 
Purpose 
The NSHW C is co mmitted to protecting  th e sec urity of  t he eP HI in th e N SHWC Dat abases.  Audit co ntrols are a n i mportant 
aspect of the NSHWC’s commitment to recording and examining activity in information systems that contain or use ePHI. 
 
Policy 
NSHWC Databases will record security-relevant events and is capable of producing audit logs that identify who has accessed ePHI 
and whether such ePHI has been altered in any way. NSHWC will examine suspicious and/or unauthorized activity in accordance 
with the procedures set forth herein to detect whether ePHI has been accessed without proper authority. 
 
Procedures 
1. The NSHWC Security & Privacy Officer (or design ee) will determine the components of the NSHWC Databases that will 

record audit logs and be used in the internal audit process.  Such components shall include, at a minimum: 
a. Firewall event logs recording network traffic 
b. Operating System security event logs recording system level access events 
c. Database journals recording transactions in database systems 
d. Application activity logs recording user actions within the application 
e. Manual logs where automated logs are not available 

2. The NSHWC Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) will ensure the capability to log all user logins and changes, additions 
and deletions of ePHI in the Databases, including the time of the transaction and the responsible user.    

3. The NSHW C Security & P rivacy O fficer (or desi gnee) shall en sure desi gnated audit  log s are properly  co nfigured f or 
network, operating system, and database components. 

4. The NSHW C Securit y & P rivacy O fficer (or desig nee) shall ens ure auto mated audit log s are properly  co nfigured f or th e 
Databases application software. 

5. NSHWC Vendors shall ensure available storage capacity to retain audit trails for a minimum of one (1) year. 
6. Audit trails and internal audit reports are segregated and stored in a locked cabinet when not being used.   
7. The NSHWC Security & Privacy Officer (or design ee) shall review audit reports at lea st monthly in accordance with the 

NSHWC Information Security Policies and Procedures. 
8. The NSHWC Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) must ensure that any new or modified Database software incorporates 

sufficient audit logging features to record and examine activity in accordance with the policies and procedures herein. 
 

 
________________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013 
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NSHWC Security Policies and Procedures 

Security Policy #17 
Data Integrity 

 
Purpose 
The NSHW C is co mmitted t o protecting  th e security a nd priv acy of eP HI co ntained i n th e NSHWC Databases.  This Data 
Integrity Policy is an important aspect of NSHWC’s commitment to protecting ePHI f rom i mproper alteration , access or 
destruction.  
 
Policy 
Data in the NSHWC Databases are used by for research purposes only.  In accordance with the procedures outlined below, the data 
in the NSHWC Databases are corroborated and reconciled by NSHWC as necessary to verify the reliability of the data contained 
in the NSHWC Databases.  Security or system deficiencies that result in a risk of improper alteration or destruction of ePHI will be 
addressed with reasonable integrity safeguards. 
 
Procedures 

1. The Secu rity & P rivacy O fficer sh all ov ersee th e co llection and processing  data from NSHWC iden tify a ny is sues or 
concerns regarding the integrity of the data. 

2. The Securit y & P rivacy O fficer (or designee) will send out d ata monitors, i f n ecessary, to ad dress in tegrity is sues 
associated with the data. 

3. The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) shall investigate any issues or findings to determine the cause of such issues 
or findings and, if applicable, such designee shall report such findings to the Security & Privacy Officer.   

4. The Security & Privacy Officer shall perform, on an annual calendar basis, risk analysis, using available audit reports as a 
basis, to determine the adequacy of integrity protection mechanisms incorporated in the NSHWC Databases.  Changes to 
such mechanisms will be made as necessary given the nature of the purpose for which data in the NSHWC Databases is 
used. 

 
 
________________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013 
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NSHWC Security Policies and Procedures 

Security Policy #18 
Person or Entity Authentication 

 
Purpose 
The NSHWC is co mmitted to protecting the security and privacy of ePHI contained in the NSHWC Databases.  P erson or entit y 
authentication is an important aspect of NSHWC’s commitment to verifying that an individual or entity seeking access to ePHI 
located in the NSHWC Databases.   
 
Policy 
NSHWC Databases must validate the identity of individuals seeking access to the NSHWC Databases by requiring the individual 
to insert a unique identification and password that is known only to the individual authorized user. 
 
Procedures 

1. The NSHWC Databases must require an individual who is attempting to access such system to insert a unique user 
identification and password at the start of each session prior to gaining access to the system. 

2. System Configuration Guidelines.  The password management features of the NSHWC Databases shall meet the 
following password configuration guidelines: 
a) Password files will be encrypted with a one-way hash or other function that renders the stored passwords inaccessible 

by anyone, including system administrators.    
3. Password Selection Guidelines.  All passwords for NSHWC Databases shall meet the following general password 

guidelines: 
a) Temporary passwords for must be changed upon first login. 
b) Password must be changed at least quarterly. 
c) Do not use the same password for gaining access to pu blicly available websites as they select for gaining access to 

the NSHWC Databases.  
d) Use different passwords for system-level access (e.g., workstation login) and NSHWC Database access. 
e) Password must co ntain t he follo wing c haracteristics (or as many of  t hem a s th e s ystem allo ws i f n ot all are 

supported): 
a. Minimum of eight characters in length. 
b. Contain at least three (3) types of the following: 

 Uppercase letters 
 Lowercase letters 
 Numbers 

c. Not a common usage word such as: 
 Names of family, pets, friends, co-workers or characters 
 Computer terms and names, commands, sites, companies, hardware, software 
 Birthdays and other personal information such as addresses and phone numbers 
 Word or number patterns like qwerty, zyxwvuts or 123321 
 Any of the above spelled backwards 
 Any of the above preceded or followed by a digit (e.g., street1, 1street) 

4. Password Use Guidelines.  Use of password will comply with the following rules: 
a) Passwords must be changed at least quarterly 
b) The re-use of passwords will not be allowed for twelve (12) months. 
c) The Database shall be configured to automatically disable a user’s password after Six (6) consecutive unsuccessful 

login attempts.  Login deactivation will last for fifteen (15) minutes 
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5. The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) shall conduct a review of the password settings on the NSHWC Databases 
(network, operating system, database, application, and workstation) on an annual basis to verify the password 
management features are properly configured.  If deficiencies are found the Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) will 
be notified of such deficiencies and the Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) will take action to correct the system 
configuration. 

6. The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) must ensure that any new or modified software incorporates sufficient 
password management features to comply with the Security Policies and Procedures.   

7. Terminations or changes in an individual’s position will be communicated to the Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) 
immediately to enable the revocation or modification of any accounts and passwords, if necessary, in accordance with the 
Access Control Policy, SP-015.  

8. The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) will revoke an individual’s password the Security & Privacy Officer has 
reasonable cause to believe the password has been created, used or disclosed in a manner not compliant with the Security 
Policies and Procedures. 

9. The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) may grant an individual a password in an emergency situation in 
compliance with the Access Control Policy, SP-015.  
 

 
 

 
________________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013 
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NSHWC Security Policies and Procedures 

Security Policy #19 
Transmission Security 

 
Purpose 
The NSHW C is co mmitted t o protecting  t he sec urity a nd privacy of  eP HI co ntained i n the NS HWC Database s.  T ransmission 
security is an important aspect of the NSHWC’s commitment to implementing tech nical secu rity measures to gu ard again st 
unauthorized access  to eP HI th at i s maintained i n t he NSHWC Database s or th at is bein g tran smitted ov er a n electron ic 
communications network.   
 
Policy 
The following procedures are used by the NSHWC and its vendors to ensure the validity and security of ePHI transmitted over an 
electronic communications network.   
 
Procedures 

1. The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) is responsible for ensuring that the configuration of the NSHWC Databases 
only allows encrypted Secure Sockets Layer (SSL) sessions and all non-SSL requests are ignored.   

2. If def iciencies are f ound, th e Securit y & P rivacy O fficer will h ave th e s ystem co nfiguration co rrected to ensu re th ese 
mechanisms are working properly to protect ePHI transmissions. 

 
 
 

________________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013 
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NSHWC Security Policies and Procedures 

Security Policy #20 
Information Security Policies, Procedures and Documentation 

 
Purpose 
The NSHWC is co mmitted to protecting the security and privacy of ePHI contained in the NSHWC Databases.  T he NSHWC is 
committed to creating, implementing and reviewing policies, procedures, and related documents that document NSHWC’s 
protection of ePHI located in the NSHWC Databases.   
 
Policy 
The NSHWC maintains policies and procedures that demonstrate NSHWC’s commitment to the security of ePHI. 
 
Procedures 

1. The Securit y & P rivacy O fficer (or designee) will create  an d maintain in  written form (pap er and/or electron ic) t he 
Security Policies and Procedures. 

2. The Securit y & P rivacy O fficer (or  designee) will continually monitor for event s (in  ac cordance with th is polic y) that 
would necessitate revisions to the Security Policies and Procedures. 

3. The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) will recommend changes to existing documents to address these events.   
4. The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) will conduct a review of the Security Policies and Procedures on an annual 

basis.   
5. The Security & Privacy Officer and Chief  Executive Officer must approve any revisions made to t he Security Policies 

and Procedures before such revisions are effective. 
6. The Security & Privacy Officer (or designee) will disseminate all official updates to the Security Policies and Procedures 

to NSHWC Workforce Members and vendors, as applicable, within thirty (30) days of any changes.   
7. The Securit y P olicies and P rocedures will be maintained by  t he Securit y & P rivacy Off icer in  a manner th at allo ws 

necessary availability. 
8. The Securit y & P rivacy O fficer (or desig nee) will maintain docu mentation, i n written or electron ic f orm, of  polici es, 

procedures, communications, and other administrative documents for a period of  at least six  (6) years from the date of 
creation or the date when last in effect, whichever is later. 

 
 

_______________________________ 
Karen Dietz, Chief Executive Officer 
Effective 10/31/2013 
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WELCOME! 

Welcome new employee! 

On behal f of y our colleagues, I  welcome you to Nutmeg State H ealth and Wellness Center  and wish you every 
success here. 

We believ e tha t ea ch em ployee contrib utes di rectly to  Nutmeg State H ealth a nd Wel lness Center growth and  
success, and we hope you will take pride in being a member of our team. 

This Employee Handbook was developed to describe some of the expectations of our employees and to outline the 
policies, programs, and benefits available to eligible employees. Employees should familiarize themselves with the 
contents of the Employee Handbook as soon as possible, for it will answer many questions about employment with 
Nutmeg State Health and Wellness Center. 

We hope that your experience here will be challenging, enjoyable, and rewarding. Again, welcome! 

Sincerely, 

Karen A. Dietz 

Karen A. Dietz, JD, MBA 
Chief Executive Officer 



4

EMPLOYMENT

101 Nature of Employment 

Your relationship with  NSHWC is that of an employee-at-will. Your job status does not guarantee employment for 
any specific length of time. Your employment with  NSHWC is entered into voluntarily and both you and  NSHWC 
are free to end the employment relationship at any time, for any reason, with or without cause or advance notice. 
Your employment at-will status with  NSHWC may be altered only with written authorization by the CEO or 
President. If you have any questions about this please feel free to contact NSHWC at 203-241-6464. 

If your positi on r equires additional pr e-employment cri teria, su ch a s a b ackground i nvestigation and/or a pre -
employment drug test and if you have been offered employment before any such investigation or test is completed, 
your employment is contingent upon a satisfactory result on all required tests. 

102 Employee Relations 

If employees have concerns about work conditions or compensation, they are strongly encoura ged to voice these 
concerns openly and directly to their supervisors. Our experience has shown that when employees deal openly and 
directly with supervisors, the work environment can be excellent, communications can be clear, and attitudes can be 
positive. We believe that  NSHWC amply demonstrates its commitment to employees by responding effectively to 
employee concerns. 

103 Equal Employment Opportunity 

In order to p rovide equal employment and adv ancement opportunities to a ll individuals, employment decisions at 
NSHWC w ill b e ba sed o n m erit, qua lifications, a nd ab ilities. NSHWC is an equa l employment opp ortunity 
employers and do not di scriminate ag ainst any  person because of ra ce, co lor, cre ed, re ligion, sex, sexual 
orientation, national or igin, di sability, ag e, g enetic in formation, o r any oth er ch aracteristic p rotected by law  
(referred to as "protected status"). This nondiscrimination policy extends to all terms, conditions and privileges of 
employment as w ell as the use of all company facilities, participation in all company-sponsored activities, and all 
employment actions such as promotions, compensation, benefits and termination of employment. 

NSHWC will make reasonable accommodations for qualified individuals with known disabilities unless doing so 
would result in a n un due hardship. This po licy g overns a ll asp ects of employment, in cluding se lection, job 
assignment, compensation, discipline, termination, and access to benefits and training. 

Any employees with questions or concerns about any type of di scrimination in the workplace are encouraged to 
bring the se is sues to th e a ttention of the CEO  or Pr esident a t  N SHWC at  20 3-241-6464. E mployees can raise  
concerns and  m ake report s w ithout fear o f reprisal. A nyone fo und to be  en gaging in a ny ty pe o f un lawful 
discrimination will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. 

104 Business Ethics and Conduct 

The successful business operation and reputation of  NSHWC is built upon the principles of fair dealing and ethical 
conduct of our employees. Our reputation for integrity and excellence requires careful observance of the spirit and 
letter of all applicable laws and regulations, as well as a scrupulous regard for the highest standards of conduct and 
personal integrity. 
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The continued success of  NSHWC is dependent upon our constituents’ trust and we are dedicated to preserving 
that trust. Employees owe a duty  to  NSHWC and constituents’ to act in a w ay that will merit the continued trust 
and confidence. 
 
 NSHWC will comply with all applicable laws and regulations and expects its directors, officers, and employees to 
conduct business in accordance with the letter, spirit, and intent of all relevant laws and to refrain from any illegal, 
dishonest, or unethical conduct. 
 
In general, the u se of g ood judg ment, based on hig h et hical pri nciples, w ill g uide y ou w ith r espect t o l ines o f 
acceptable conduct. I f a s ituation arises where it i s d ifficult to de termine the proper course of action, the m atter 
should be discussed openly with the CEO or President at NSHWC at 203-241-6464 for advice and consultation. 
 
Compliance w ith this po licy of busines s ethic s an d conduct i s th e r esponsibility of ev ery  N SHWC employ ee. 
Disregarding or fa iling to com ply with th is standa rd of busi ness e thics and co nduct co uld l ead t o dis ciplinary 
action, up to and including possible termination of employment. 
 
 
105 Immigration Law Compliance 
 
NSHWC is  com mitted to employing only  U nited St ates c itizens and aliens w ho a re authorized t o w ork in  th e 
United States and do not unlawfully discriminate on the basis of citizenship or national origin. 
 
In co mpliance w ith t he I mmigration Re form and C ontrol A ct of 19 86, ea ch new em ployee, as a cond ition o f 
employment, must com plete the Em ployment Eli gibility Verif ication Fo rm I-9 and presen t docum entation 
establishing iden tity and employment elig ibility. For mer em ployees w ho are  r ehired m ay al so b e r equired t o 
complete the form. 
 
Employees with questions or seeking more information on immigration law issues are en couraged to contact th e 
CEO at  203-241-6464. Employees may raise questions or complaints about immigration law compliance without 
fear of reprisal. 
 
 
106 Conflicts of Interest 
 
Employees have an  obl igation to conduct bus iness within guidelines that prohibit actual or  potential conflicts of  
interest. This pol icy establishes only the f ramework within which  NSHWC wishes the business to op erate. The 
purpose of these guidelines is to provide general direction so that employees can seek further clarification on issues 
related to the subject of acceptable standards of operation. Contact the CEO at 203-241-6464 for more information 
or questions about conflicts of interest. 
 
Transactions with outside firms must be conducted within a framework established and controlled by the CEO and 
President. Bus iness dea lings with outs ide f irms should not result in unusual gains for those f irms. Unusual gain 
refers to br ibes, produ ct b onuses, spec ial fr inge ben efits, unu sual pr ice b reaks, and othe r w indfalls d esigned to  
ultimately benefit either the employer, the employee, or both. Promotional plans that could be interpreted to involve 
unusual gain require specific executive-level approval. 
 
An actual or potential conflict of interest occurs when an employee is in a position to influence a decision that may 
result in  a p ersonal g ain f or t hat em ployee or  fo r a  relative as a result of   N SHWC bus iness d ealings. F or t he 
purposes of this policy, a relative is any person who is related by blood or marriage, or whose relationship with the 
employee is similar to that of persons who are related by blood or marriage. 
  
No "p resumption o f g uilt" is  cr eated by  the m ere existence o f a  re lationship with outside f irms. H owever, i f 
employees have any influence on transactions involving purchases, contracts, or leases, it is imperative that they  
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disclose to the CEO or President as soon as possible the existence of any actual or potential conflict of interest so 
that safeguards can be established to protect all parties. 
 
Personal gain may result not only in cases where an employee or relative has a significant ownership in a firm with 
which  NSHWC does business, but also when an employee or relative receives any kickback, bribe, substantial gift, 
or special consideration as a result of any transaction or business dealings involving  NSHWC. 
 
 
107 Outside Employment 
 
Employees may hold ou tside jobs as long as they meet the performance standards of their job with  NSHWC. All 
employees will be judged by the same performance standards and will be subject to  NSHWC scheduling demands, 
regardless of any existing outside work requirements. 
 
If  N SHWC det ermines t hat a n em ployee's outside work interferes w ith performance or the a bility t o m eet the 
requirements of  NSHWC as they are m odified from time to tim e, the employee may be ask ed to te rminate the 
outside employment if he or she wishes to remain with  NSHWC. 
 
Outside employment that constitutes a conflict of interest is prohibited. Employees may not receive any income or 
material gain from individuals outside  NSHWC for materials produced or services rendered while performing their 
jobs. 
 
 
108 Non-Disclosure 
 
The p rotection of co nfidential bus iness i nformation a nd tra de secrets is v ital to  the in terests an d the success of  
NSHWC. Such confidential information includes, but is not limited to, the following examples: 

 Patient Information  
 Confidential Information of Third Parties Entrusted to NSHWC 
 Customer Lists  
 Customer Preferences  
 Financial Information  
 Marketing Strategies  
 New Materials Research  
 Pending Projects and Proposals  
 Proprietary Production Processes  
 Research And Development Strategies  
 Scientific Data  
 Scientific Formulae  
 Scientific Prototypes  
 Technological Data  
 Technological Prototypes  

 
All employees may be required to sign a non-disclosure agreement as a condition of employment. Employees who 
improperly use or disclose trade secrets or confidential business information will be subject to disciplinary action, 
up to and inc luding term ination of em ployment and  leg al action, ev en if t hey do not actu ally benefi t fr om the  
disclosed information. 
 
 
109 Disability Accommodation 
 
NSHWC is committed to com plying fully with the  Americans with Di sabilities Act (ADA)  and  app licable state 
law, and to en sure equa l opportunity in em ployment fo r qu alified pe rsons w ith dis abilities. A ll em ployment 
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practices and activities are conducted on a non-discriminatory basis. 
 
Hiring pr ocedures a re d esigned to pr ovide pe rsons with d isabilities m eaningful em ployment opport unities. Pr e-
employment inquiries are made only regarding an applicant's ability to perform the duties of the position. 
 
Reasonable accommodations for qualified individuals with known disabilities will be made unless to do so would 
be an undue hardship. All employment decisions are based on the merits of the situation in accordance with defined 
criteria, not the disability of the individual. 
 
Qualified ind ividuals w ith disabilities ar e ent itled to equal pay and othe r fo rms of com pensation (o r changes in  
compensation) as well as in job assignments, classifications, organizational structures, position descriptions, lines 
of progression and seniority lists. Leave of all types will be available to all employees on an equal basis. 
 
NSHWC is also committed to n ot discriminating against any qualified employees or  applicants because they are 
related to or associated with a person with a disability. M NSHWC will follow any state or local law that provides 
individuals with disabilities greater protection than the ADA. 
 
This po licy is ne ither ex haustive nor exc lusive.  N SHWC is committed to tak ing all othe r ac tions nec essary to 
ensure equal em ployment opport unity f or pe rsons wi th d isabilities i n ac cordance wi th the ADA and al l ot her 
applicable federal, state, and local laws. 
 
 
EMPLOYMENT STATUS & RECORDS     
 
201 Employment Categories 
 
It is the inten t of  NSHWC to clar ify the de finitions of employment classifications so tha t employees understand 
their employment status and benefit eligibility. These classifications do not guarantee employment for any specified 
period of time.  
 
Each employee is des ignated as eithe r NONEXEMPT or EXEMPT from federal and s tate wage and hour  laws. 
NONEXEMPT employees are en titled to ov ertime pay under the specific pro visions of f ederal and state laws . 
EXEMPT em ployees are exc luded f rom s pecific provisions o f federal a nd st ate w age and  hour  l aws. A n 
employee's EXEMPT or  NONEXEMPT class ification m ay be chang ed o nly upon w ritten notification by  
management. 
 
REGULAR F ULL-TIME em ployees are those who are reg ularly scheduled to w ork  N SHWC's full-time 
schedule. G enerally, they  are elig ible f or NSHWC's bene fits pa ckage, subj ect to th e te rms, condi tions, and  
limitations of each benefit program, typically, employees who work thirty (30) or more hours per week.  
 
PART-TIME employees are those who work continuously for a specified number of hours per week which is less 
than a regular schedule of thirty (30) or more hours per week. Part -time employees receive all legally mandated 
benefits (such as Social Security and workers' compensation insurance). 
 
 
202 Access to Personnel Files 
 
NSHWC m aintains a pe rsonnel f ile on  ea ch employee. T he p ersonnel file includes such in formation as the 
employee's j ob ap plication, re sume, reco rds of  t raining, docum entation o f p erformance ap praisals and  sal ary 
increases, and other employment records. 
 
Personnel files are the property of  NSHWC and access to the information they contain is restricted. Generally, only 
supervisors and management personnel of  NSHWC who have a leg itimate reason to rev iew information in a fi le 
are allowed to do so. 



 8 

 
Employees w ho w ish to review the ir ow n file sh ould co ntact t he President. With re asonable adv ance notice, 
employees may review their own personnel files in  NSHWC's offices and in the presence of the President. 
 
 
203 Employment Reference Checks 
 
To ensure that individuals who join NSHWC are well qualified and have a strong potential to be productive and 
successful, it is the policy of  NSHWC to check the employment references of all applicants.  
 
NSHWC will respond verbally only to those reference check inquiries that are submitted in writing. Responses to 
such inquiries will confirm only dates of employment and position(s) held. No employment data will be released 
without a written authorization and release signed by the individual who is the subject of the inquiry. If you have 
questions, please contact the COE or President at 203-241-6464.  
 
 
204 Personnel Data Changes 
 
It is th e responsibility of each employee to promptly notify  NSHWC of any changes in personnel data. Personal 
mailing addresses, telephone numbers, number and names of dependents, individuals to be contacted in the event of 
an emergency, educat ional accomplishments, and other such status reports shou ld be ac curate and curren t at  a ll 
times. If any personnel data has changed, notify the President at 203-241-6464. 
 
 
205 Performance Evaluation 
 
Supervisors and employees are strongly encouraged to discuss job performance and goals on an informal, day-to-
day basis. Formal pe rformance ev aluations are c onducted to pr ovide both  superv isors and em ployees th e 
opportunity to d iscuss job tasks, identify and correct weaknesses, encourage and recognize strengths, and discuss 
positive, purposeful approaches for meeting goals. 
 
The performance of all employees is generally evaluated once a year, beginning at the calendar-year end. 
 
Merit-based pay ad justments may be awa rded by   NSHWC in an e ffort t o r ecognize t ruly sup erior e mployee 
performance. The de cision to awar d such a n ad justment is dependent up on num erous fac tors, in cluding the  
information documented by this formal performance evaluation process. 
 
 
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PROGRAMS     
 
301 Employee Benefits 
 
Eligible employees at  NSHWC are provided a wide range of benefits. A number of the programs (such as Social 
Security, workers' compensation, state disability, and unemployment insurance) cover all employees in the manner 
prescribed by law. 
 
Benefits eligibility is depe ndent upon a v ariety of fac tors, including employee classification. Your supervisor can 
identify the programs for which you are eligible. Details of many of these programs can be found elsewhere in the 
employee handbook. 
 
The following benefit programs are available to eligible employees: 

 Medical Insurance  
 Dental Insurance  
 Vision Care Insurance  
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 Life Insurance  
 Long-Term Disability (LTD) 
 Short-Term Disability (STD) 

 
NSHWC will mail newly elig ible employees a B enefits Enrollment package (for enrollment in M edical, Dental, 
Vision, Li fe and L TD) at their h ome addres ses w ithin a f ew w eeks of  th eir hi re da te, o r t he transfer date to a  
benefits-eligible po sition. I f a Benef its En rollment Package is not rece ived in a tim ely manner, plea se c all t he 
President at 203-241-6464 to request an enrollment package. Each enrol lment package will have a return deadline 
for eligibility. If employees miss the return deadline they must wait until the next Open Enrollment period to enroll 
in these benefits. 
 
 
302 Vacation Benefits 
 
Employees in the following employment classification(s) are eligible to earn and use vacation time as described in 
this policy: 

 Regular full-time employees  
 
The amount of paid vacation time employees receive each year increases with the length of their active employment 
as shown in the following schedule: 

 Upon initial eligibility the employee is ent itled to 10 vacation days each y ear, pro-rated from the dat e of 
hire for the first year.  

 After 5 years of eligible service the employee is entitled to an extra 5 vacation days.  
 
The length of eligible service is calculated on the basis of a calendar year.  
 
Paid v acation t ime can b e used in m inimum increm ents of one d ay. T o tak e vacation, em ployees must request 
advance a pproval f rom thei r sup ervisors. R equests will be reviewed ba sed on a num ber of factors, including 
business needs and staffing requirements.  Approved vacation requests must be submitted to the President. 
 
Vacation time off is paid at the employee's base pay rate at the time of vacation for the amount of days absent.  
 
In the ev ent that available vacation is not used by the end of  the benefit year, employees will forfeit the unused 
time. 
 
Upon te rmination of employment, employees will be paid for unused vacation time accrued at th e rate of  0.385 
days per year (or other prorated amount if the employee has more than ten (10) vacation days per year in the year of 
termination).  
 
 
303 Holidays 
 
 NSHWC will grant holiday time off to all active employees on the holidays listed below: 

 New Year's Day (January 1)  
 Martin Luther King Jr. Day 
 Presidents' Day (third Monday in February)  
 Memorial Day (last Monday in May)  
 Independence Day (July 4)  
 Labor Day (first Monday in September)  
 Columbus Day (second Monday in October) 
 Veteran’s Day (second Monday in November 
 Thanksgiving (fourth Thursday in November)  
 Day after Thanksgiving (fourth Friday in November) 



 10 

 Christmas Eve (December 24)  
 Christmas (December 25)  
 New Year's Eve (December 31)  

 
NSHWC w ill g rant pai d h oliday time off to a ll e ligible employees immediately upon assi gnment t o an e ligible 
employment classification. Holiday pay will be calculated based on the employee's straight-time pay rate (as of the 
date of the holiday). Eligible employee classification(s): 

 Regular full-time employees  
 
A recognized holiday that falls on a Saturday will be observed on the preceding Friday. A recognized holiday that 
falls on a Sunday will be observed on the following Monday.  
 
If a recog nized holiday falls dur ing an eligible employee's paid absence (such as v acation or s ick leave), holiday 
pay will be provided instead of the paid time off benefit that would otherwise have applied and time deducted for 
that day is counted as a holiday.  
 
 
304 Workers' Compensation Insurance 
 
NSHWC prov ides a  com prehensive w orkers' com pensation insurance p rogram at  no co st to  em ployees. This 
program cov ers any  inj ury or ill ness s ustained in th e c ourse of em ployment that  re quires m edical, surg ical, o r 
hospital treatment. Subject to the applicable legal requirements, workers compensation insurance provides benefits 
after a waiting period. 
 
Employees who sus tain work-related injuries or illnesses should inform their supervisor immediately. No matter 
how minor an on -the-job injury may appear, i t is important that it be reported immediately. T his will enable an 
eligible employee to qualify for coverage as quickly as possible. 
 
 
305 Bereavement Leave 
 
All e mployees who w ish t o tak e time off due to th e deat h of an immediate f amily member shoul d no tify thei r 
supervisor immediately.  
 
Up to 3 days of paid bereavement leave will be provided to eligible employees in the following classification(s): 

 Regular full-time employees 
 
Bereavement pay is calculated based on the base pay rate at the time of absence. 
 
Bereavement leav e w ill n ormally be g ranted un less ther e are unus ual b usiness needs or s taffing require ments. 
Employees may, with their supervisors' approval, use any available paid leave for additional time off as necessary.  
Approved bereavement leave must be submitted to the President. 
 
NSHWC defi nes "immediate family" for th e pu rposes o f be reavement le ave as the em ployee's spouse  (o r 
significant o ther), and the employee’s or employee’s spouse’s (or significant other’s) parent, ch ild, sibling 
grandparents, grandchildren, uncles and aunts. Special consideration will also be given to any  other person whose 
association with the employee was similar to any of the above relationships. 
 
 
306 Jury Duty 
 
NSHWC encourages employees to fulfill their civic responsibilities by serving jury duty when required. Employees 
will be compensated for jury duty consistent with state law. Employees in an eligible classification may request up 
to one (1) week of paid jury duty leave over any one (1) year period. 
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Jury duty pay will be cal culated on th e employee's base pay rate on the d ay of absen ce. Employee classifications 
that qualify for paid jury duty leave are: 

 Regular full-time employees 
 
If employees are required to serve jury duty beyond the period of paid jury duty leave, they may use any available 
paid time off (for example, vacation benefits) or may request an unpaid jury duty leave of absence. 
 
Employees must show th e jury duty summons to th eir supervisor as soon as possible so that the supervisor may 
make arrangements to accommodate their absence. Of course, employees are expected to report for work whenever 
the court schedule permits. 
 
Either  NSHWC or the employee may request an excuse from jury duty if, in  NSHWC's judgment, the employee's 
absence would create serious operational difficulties.  
 
NSHWC will continue to provide health insurance benefits until the end of the month in which the unpaid jury duty 
leave beg ins. A t that t ime, em ployees w ill be come respons ible for the fu ll costs o f t hese ben efits i f th ey w ish 
coverage to continue. W hen the em ployee ret urns f rom j ury duty , benefit s w ill ag ain be prov ided by  NSHWC 
according to the applicable plans. 
 
 
307 Benefits Continuation (COBRA) 
 
The f ederal Cons olidated Omnibus Budg et Reco nciliation A ct (CO BRA) g ives em ployees a nd their qu alified 
beneficiaries the op portunity to continu e hea lth insurance cov erage unde r NSHWC 's health p lan when a 
"qualifying event" would normally result in the loss of eligibility. Some common qualifying events are resignation, 
termination of employment, or death of an employee; a reduction in an employee's hours or a leave of absence; an 
employee's divorce or legal separation; and a dependent child no longer meeting eligibility requirements. 
 
Under COBRA, the employee or beneficiary pays the full cost of coverage at NSHWC's rate plus an administration 
fee. NSHWC provides each eligible employee with a written notice describing rights granted under COBRA when 
the employee becomes eligible for coverage under NSHWC's health insurance plan. The notice contains important 
information about the employee's rights and obligations. 
 
 
TIMEKEEPING/PAYROLL 

    

 
401 Timekeeping (Part time employees only) 
 
Accurately reco rding tim e w orked is the responsibility of ev ery nonex empt e mployee. Federa l and state laws  
require  NSHWC to keep an accurate record of time worked in order to calculate employee pay and benefits. Time 
worked is all the time actually performing assigned duties. 
 
Nonexempt employees should accurately record the time they begin and end the ir work, as w ell as the b eginning 
and ending time of each meal period using  NSHWC’s approved tracking system. Overtime work must always be 
approved before it is performed. 
 
If for any  reason an employee’s own time records show any sort of disparity from NSHWC’s time records or the 
workers’ pay stubs, then the employee must report that disparity immediately and submit those records to  NSHWC 
in order to ensure accurate wage payments. 
 
Altering, falsifying, tampering with time records, or recording time on another employee's time record may result in 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.  
 
Nonexempt employees should not report to work prior to their scheduled starting time nor stay after their scheduled 
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stop time without expressed, prior authorization from their supervisor. 
 
It is the  em ployees' respo nsibility to  s ign the ir time records to  ce rtify th e a ccuracy of  all time re corded. T he 
supervisor will review and then initial the time record before submitting it for payroll processing. 
 
 
402 Paydays 
 
All employees a re paid b iweekly on ev ery o ther F riday. E ach paycheck w ill include ea rnings for a ll w ork 
performed through the end of the previous payroll period.  
 
In the ev ent that a r egularly scheduled p ayday falls o n a day  off such as a w eekend or holi day, employees will 
receive pay on the last day of work before the regularly scheduled payday.  
 
If a regular payday falls during an employee's vacation, the employee's paycheck will be available upon his or her 
return from vacation.  
 
 
403 Employment Termination 
 
Termination of employment i s an  inevitable part of personnel ac tivity within any organization, and m any of the 
reasons for termination are routine. Below are examples of some of the m ost common circumstances under which 
employment is terminated: 

 Resignation - voluntary employment termination initiated by an employee.  
 Discharge - involuntary employment termination initiated by the organization.  
 Layoff - involuntary employment termination initiated by the organization for non disciplinary reasons.  

 
Since employment with  N SHWC is based on m utual consent, both the employee and  NSHWC have the right to 
terminate employment at will, with or without cause, at any time. Employees will receive their final pay on the next 
scheduled payroll.  
 
Employee benefi ts w ill be  affe cted by  em ployment termination in th e fo llowing manner. A ll ac crued, vested 
benefits that are due and payable at termination will be paid on the next scheduled payroll. Some benefits may be 
continued at the employee's expense if the employee so choos es. The employee will be notified in writing of th e 
benefits that may be continued and of the terms, conditions, and limitations of such continuance. 
 
 
404 Pay Advances 
 
NSHWC does not provide pay advances on unearned wages to employees. 
 
 
405 Administrative Pay Corrections 
 
NSHWC takes all reasonable steps t o ensure that employees receive the correct amount of pay  in each pay check 
and that employees are paid promptly on the scheduled payday. 
 
In the unlik ely ev ent that there i s an error i n the amount of pay , the em ployee shoul d prom ptly bri ng the  
discrepancy to the attention of the President at  NSHWC so that corrections can be made as quickly as possible. 
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406 Pay Deductions  
 
The law requires that NSHWC make certain deductions from every e mployee's compensation. Among th ese a re 
applicable f ederal, sta te, and loc al i ncome taxes. NSHWC al so m ust dedu ct Soc ial Se curity tax es on each  
employee's earnings up t o a specified l imit that is called the Social Security "wage base."  NSHWC matches the 
amount of Social Security taxes paid by each employee.  
 
If you have questions concerning why deductions were made from your paycheck or how they were calculated, the 
Chief Financial Officer can assist in having your questions answered. 
 
 
407 Compensation 
 
It is the  practice and policy of  NSHWC to accurately compensate employees and to do so in compliance with all 
applicable state and federal laws. 
 
Review Your Pay Check 
We make every effort to ensure our employees are paid correctly. Occasionally, however, inadvertent mistakes can 
happen. When m istakes d o happen and a re c alled to our  attention, w e w ill promptly m ake any  corre ctions 
necessary. Please review your pay check when you receive it to make sure it is correct. If you believe a mistake has 
occurred, or you have any questions please use the reporting procedure outlined below. 
 
Nonexempt Employees 
If you are cl assified as a n onexempt employee, you must maintain a record of the total hours you work each day . 
You must accurately record your hours in accordance with  NSHWC’s time keeping procedures. Your time record 
must accura tely refl ect all reg ular and overtime hours w orked, any  absences, l ate arrivals, ea rly depar tures, and 
meal breaks. Employees are prohibited from performing any “off-the-clock” work. “Off-the-clock” work means 
work y ou m ay perfo rm but fail to re port. A ny em ployee w ho fa ils to report or inaccurately re ports an y hours  
worked will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including discharge. 
 
It is a violation of company policy for any employee to falsify or alter his or her or another employee’s time. It is 
also a serious violation of company policy for any employee or manager to instruct another employee to incorrectly 
or falsely report hours. If any manager or employee instructs you to: 1) incorrectly or falsely under- or over-report 
your hours worked; or 2) alter another employee’s time records to inaccurately or falsely report that employee’s 
hours worked, you should report it immediately to the CEO or President at 1-203-241-6464. 
 
Exempt Employees 
If you are classified as an exempt, salaried employee, you will receive a set salary which is intended to compensate 
you for any hours you may work. This salary will be established at the time of hire or when you become classified 
as a n ex empt em ployee. The s alary w ill b e a p redetermined am ount th at w ill not b e subject to d eductions f or 
variations in the quantity or quality of the work you perform. 
 
Under federal and state law, your sa lary is subject to certain deductions. For  example, absent contrary s tate law 
requirements, your salary may be reduced for the following reasons: 

 Full day absences for personal reasons, 
 Full day absences for sickness or disability, if  NSHWC has a sickness or disability policy that provides for 

wage replacement benefits and you have exhausted or have not yet accrued enough leave time. 
 Full day disciplinary suspensions for infractions of our written policies and procedures. 
 Family and Medical Leave absences. 
 To offset amounts received as payment for jury and witness fees or military pay. 
 The first or last week of employment in the event you work less than a full week. 
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Your salary may also be reduc ed for cer tain ty pes of deduction such  as  y our por tion of health, den tal, or life 
insurance premiums; state, federal, or local taxes, or social security. 

Your salary will not be reduced for any of the following reasons: 
Partial day absences for personal reasons, sickness or disability.
Absences for jury duty, attendance as a witness or military leave in any week in which you have performed
any work.
Any other deductions prohibited by state or federal law.
Please note, it is not an improper deduction to reduce an employee’s vacation, personal or other forms of
paid time off from an employee’s leave bank for full day absences for personal reasons, or for sickness or
disability.

Should you have any questions with respect to  NSHWC’s policy, please contact the CEO or President at 1-203-
241-6464. 

To Report Concerns or Obtain More Information 
If you have questions about deductions from your pay, please contact the CEO or President at 1-203-241-6464. If 
you believe you have been subject to any improper deductions, you should immediately report t he matter to your 
supervisor or the CEO or President at 1-203-241-6464. 

Every report will be fully investigated and corrective action will be taken where appropriate, up to and including 
discharge for any employee(s) who violate this policy. In addition, we will not allow any form of retaliation against 
individuals w ho repo rt alleged v iolations o f th is po licy or w ho cooperate i n t he i nvestigation of s uch r eports. 
Retaliation is unacceptable, and any form of retaliation in violation of this policy will result in disciplinary action, 
up to and including discharge. 

WORK CONDITIONS & HOURS

501 Safety 

To assist in providing a safe and healthful work environment for employees, customers, and visitors, NHSWC has 
established a w orkplace safety prog ram. T his program is a top  pr iority fo r  N HSWC. The President ha s 
responsibility for implementing, administering, monitoring, and evaluating the safety program. Its success depends 
on the alertness and personal commitment of all. 

NHSWC prov ides inf ormation t o em ployees about  workplace sa fety and heal th iss ues th rough reg ular i nternal 
communication channels such as supe rvisor-employee meetings, bulletin board postings, memos, or othe r written 
communications. 

Some of the best sa fety improvement ideas come from employees. Those with ideas, concerns, or suggestions for 
improved safety in the workplace are encouraged to raise them with their supervisor, or with another supervisor or 
manager. Reports and concerns about workplace safety issues may be made anonymously if the em ployee wishes. 
All reports can be made without fear of reprisal. 

Each em ployee is expected to  obey  sa fety rul es and to exercise cau tion in a ll w ork act ivities. Em ployees m ust 
comply with al l occupational safety and healt h standards and regulations es tablished by the O ccupational Safety 
and Health Act and s tate and local regulations. Employees must immediately report any unsafe condition to the 
appropriate supervisor and/or the President at 203-241-6464. Employees who violate safety standards, who cause 
hazardous or dangerous situations, who fail to report or where appropriate remedy such si tuations, may be subject 
to disciplinary action, up to and including suspension and/or termination of employment. 

If you believe that you are being exposed to a k nown or suspected hazard when working with toxic chemicals or 
substances, you have a right under the Hazard Communications Law to know about such hazards through Material 
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Safety Data Sheets (MSDS). Your supervisor will review the MSDS with you. If your supervisor does not have this 
information, your supervisor will contact the President at 203-241-6464. In addition, you will receive information 
on w hat haz ardous s ubstances a re in th e w ork area  and regular t raining on t he adv erse effects o f eac h toxi c 
substance w ith w hich y ou com e into  con tact in t he w orkplace. Y ou w ill be pro tected ag ainst d iscipline or 
termination that results from exercising employee rights under the law. 
 
In the case of accidents that r esult in in jury, reg ardless o f how  in significant the in jury m ay appear, em ployees 
should immediately notify the President or the appropriate supervisor. Such reports are n ecessary to comply with 
laws and initiate insurance and workers' compensation benefits procedures. 
 
 
502 Work Schedules 
 
Work schedules for each employee will be created between the employee and supervisor based on the specific job 
of the employee. 
 
 
503 Use of Phone and Mail Systems  
 
Personal use of telephones for outgoing calls, including local calls, is not permitted. Employees may be required to 
reimburse  NHSWC for any charges resulting from their personal use of the telephone.  
 
The m ail sy stem is rese rved for bus iness purp oses only . E mployees shoul d r efrain f rom sending  or recei ving 
personal mail at the workplace. 
 
To ensure effective telephone communications, employees should always use the approved greeting and speak in a 
courteous and professional manner. Please confirm information received from the caller, and hang up only after the 
caller has done so. 
 
 
504 Smoking 
 
In keeping with  NHSWC's intent to provide a safe and healthful work environment, smoking in the w orkplace is 
prohibited except in those locations that have been specifically designated as smoking areas. In situations where the 
preferences of  sm okers and nonsm okers are  in  di rect conflict, th e pr eferences of  nonsm okers w ill p revail. 
Violations of this policy will lead to discipline up to and including termination of employment. 
 
This policy applies equally to all employees, customers, and visitors. 
 
 
505 Meal Periods  
 
All full-time all employees are provided with one meal period of 30 minutes in length each workday. Supervisors 
may schedule meal periods to accommodate operating requirements.  
 
 
506 Use of Equipment and Vehicles  
 
Equipment and vehicles essential in accomplishing job duties are expensive and may be difficult to replace. When 
using property, employees are expected to exercise care, perform required maintenance, and follow all operating 
instructions, safety standards, and guidelines. 
 
Please notify your supervisor if any equipment, machines, tools, or vehicles appear to be damaged, defective, or in 
need o f r epair. Prom pt r eporting of d amages, defec ts, and the n eed for re pairs co uld prev ent de terioration o f 
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equipment and po ssible i njury to em ployees or ot hers. The supe rvisor c an answ er any  ques tions a bout an  
employee's responsibility for maintenance and care of equipment or vehicles used on the job. 
 
The im proper, ca reless, ne gligent, des tructive, or u nsafe u se o r ope ration of equipment or v ehicles, a s w ell as 
excessive o r av oidable t raffic and p arking v iolations, ca n r esult in d isciplinary act ion, up t o and  in cluding 
termination of employment. 
 
 
507 Emergency Closings 
 
At tim es, em ergencies such as sev ere w eather, fi res, pow er failures, or e arthquakes, c an di srupt co mpany 
operations. In extreme cases, these circumstances may require the closing of a work facility. 
 
When operations are officially closed due to emergency conditions, the time off from scheduled work will be paid 
for exempt employees only. 
 
 
508 Business Travel Expenses 
 
NHSWC will reimburse employees for  reasonable business t ravel expenses incurred while on assignments away 
from the normal work location. All business travel must be approved in advance by your supervisor of  NHSWC. 
 
Employees whose travel plans have been approved are responsible for making their own travel arrangements. 
 
When a pproved, t he a ctual c osts of  t ravel, meals, l odging, a nd o ther e xpenses directly r elated to a ccomplishing 
business travel objectives will be reimbursed by  NHSWC. Employees are expected to limit expenses to reasonable 
amounts.  
 
Expenses that generally will be reimbursed include the following: 

 Airfare or train fare for travel in coach or economy class or the lowest available fare. 
 Fares for shuttle or airport bus service, where available; costs of public transportation for other ground 

travel. 
 Cost of meals. 
 Mileage reimbursed at IRS annual recommended rate. 

 
Employees who are involved in an accident while traveling on busine ss must promptly report the incident to the 
President at 203-241-6464. V ehicles ow ned, leased, or rented by  N HSWC m ay not b e us ed for pe rsonal u se 
without prior approval. 
 
When t ravel is com pleted, em ployees shoul d subm it co mpleted tr avel expen se reports w ithin 10 day s. Report s 
should be accompanied by receipts for all individual expenses. Expense reports submitted after thirty (30) days 
will not be paid. 
 
Employees shoul d con tact the ir supervisor for g uidance and assistance o n proce dures re lated to trav el 
arrangements, expense reports, reimbursement for specific expenses, or any other business travel issues. 
 
Abuse of this business travel expenses policy, including falsifying expense reports to reflect costs not incurred by 
the employee, can be grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. 
 
 



 17 

509 Computer and Email Usage 
 
Computers, computer files, the email system, and software furnished to employees are  NHSWC property intended 
for business use. Employees should not use a password, access a file, or retrieve any stored communication without 
authorization. To ensure compliance with this policy, computer and email usage may be monitored. 
 
NHSWC st rives t o m aintain a w orkplace f ree of h arassment and sen sitive t o the di versity of its em ployees. 
Therefore,  NHSWC prohibits the use of com puters and the email system in ways that are disruptive, offensive to 
others, or harmful to morale. 
 
For example, the display or transmission of sexually explicit images, messages, and cartoons is not allowed. Other 
such misuse includes, but is not limited to, ethnic slurs, racial comments, off-color jokes, or anything that may be 
construed as harassment or showing disrespect for others.  
 
Email may not be used to solicit others for commercial ventures, religious or political causes, outside organizations, 
or other non business matters.  
 
NHSWC purchases and licenses the use of various computer software for business purposes and does not own the 
copyright to this software or its related documentation. Unless authorized by the software developer, NHSWC does 
not have the right to reproduce such software for use on more than one computer. 
 
Employees may only use software on local area networks or on multiple machines according to the software license 
agreement.  NHSWC prohibits the illegal duplication of software and its related documentation. 
 
Employees should notify the President at 203-241-6464 or any member of management upon learning of violations 
of this po licy. Em ployees w ho v iolate th is po licy will be  sub ject to disciplinary ac tion, up  to  and  in cluding 
termination of employment. 
 
 
510 Internet Usage 
 
Internet a ccess to g lobal e lectronic information r esources on the Wor ld Wide Web is provided by  NHSWC to 
assist employees in obtaining work-related data and technology. The following guidelines have been established to 
help ens ure r esponsible a nd produc tive I nternet us age. A ll Internet usag e is  lim ited to job-related act ivities. 
Personal use of the Internet is not permitted. 
 
All Internet data that is composed, transmitted, or received via our computer communications systems is considered 
to be part of the official records of  NHSWC and, as such, is subject to disclosure to law enforcement or other third 
parties. Consequently, employees should always ensure that the business information contained in Internet email 
messages and other transmissions is accurate, appropriate, ethical, and lawful.  
 
The equipment, se rvices, and tech nology prov ided to acce ss th e I nternet rem ain at a ll t imes the prope rty of   
NHSWC. As such,  NHSWC reserves the right to monitor Internet traffic, and retrieve and read any data composed, 
sent, or received through our online connections and stored in our computer systems. 
 
Data that is composed, t ransmitted, accessed, or received via the Internet must not contain content that could be 
considered discriminatory, offensive, obscene, threatening, harassing, intimidating, or disrup tive to any  employee 
or other person. Examples of unacceptable content may include, but are not limited to, sexual comments or images, 
racial slurs, gender-specific comments, or any other comments or images that could reasonably offend someone on 
the basis of race, age, sex, religious or political beliefs, national origin, disability, sexual orientation, or any other 
characteristic protected by law.  
 
The unauthorized use, installation, copying, or distribution of copyrighted, trademarked, or patented material on the 
Internet is expressly prohibited. As a general rule, if an employee did not create material, does not own the rights to 
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it, or has not gotten authorization for its use, it should not be put on the Internet. Employees are also responsible for 
ensuring that the person sending any material over the Internet has the appropriate distribution rights. 
 
Abuse of  th e I nternet ac cess p rovided by   N HSWC in  v iolation of  law o r  N HSWC poli cies w ill result in  
disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. Employees may also be held personally liable 
for any violations of this policy. The following behaviors are examples of previously stated or additional actions 
and activities that are prohibited and can result in disciplinary action: 

 Sending or posting discriminatory, harassing, or threatening messages or images  
 Using the organization's time and resources for personal gain  
 Stealing, using, or disclosing someone else's code or password without authorization  
 Copying, pirating, or downloading software and electronic files without permission  
 Sending or po sting confi dential m aterial, trade se crets, or p roprietary info rmation outs ide of t he 

organization  
 Violating copyright law  
 Failing to observe licensing agreements  
 Engaging in unauthor ized transactions that may incur a cost to the organization or initiate unwanted 

Internet services and transmissions  
 Sending or posting messages or material that could damage the organization's image or reputation  
 Participating in the viewing or exchange of pornography or obscene materials  
 Sending or posting messages that defame or slander other individuals  
 Attempting to break into the computer system of another organization or person  
 Refusing to Presidentperate with a security investigation  
 Sending o r po sting cha in letters, s olicitations, or advertisements no t related to business pu rposes o r 

activities  
 Using the Internet for political causes or activities, religious activities, or any sort of gambling  
 Jeopardizing the security of the organization's electronic communications systems  
 Sending or posting messages that disparage another organization's products or services  
 Passing off personal views as representing those of the organization  
 Sending anonymous email messages  
 Engaging in any other illegal activities  

 
 
511 Workplace Monitoring 
 
Workplace monitoring may be conducted by   NHSWC to en sure quality control, em ployee safety, security, and 
customer satisfaction. 
 
While on  NHSWC 's premises, employees have no expectation of privacy in their belongings or in the non-private 
workplace a reas w hich in clude, bu t are no t lim ited t o, o ffices, cu bicles, w ork locations, Com pany prov ided or  
designated pa rking areas,  desk s, com puters, lo ckers, re st or ea ting areas, o r v ehicles eng aged in Com pany 
operations, and any personal belongings on or in any of the above. 
 
Employees w ho reg ularly communicate v ia th e telephone may hav e their c onversations m onitored o r r ecorded. 
Telephone monitoring is used to identify and correct performance problems through targeted training. Improved job 
performance enhances our customers' image of  NHSWC as well as their satisfaction with our service. 
 
Computers furnished to employees are the property of  NHSWC. As such, computer usage and files, including e-
mail usage and related files, may be monitored or accessed. 
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NHSWC m ay conduct v ideo su rveillance of non -private w orkplace areas. V ideo m onitoring i s u sed to  i dentify 
safety concerns, maintain quality control, detect theft and misconduct, and discourage or prevent acts of harassment 
and workplace violence. 
 
Because  N HSWC is sensitive to t he legitimate privacy rights of employees, every effort will be made to conduct 
workplace monitoring in an ethical and respectful manner. 
 
 
512 Social Security Number Privacy 
 
Officers and em ployees a re perm itted to a ccess an d use ce rtain pe rsonal information, su ch as Soc ial S ecurity 
Numbers, only as necessary and appropriate for such persons to carry out their assigned tasks for  NHSWC and in 
accordance with  NHSWC’s policy.  
 
The unauthorized access, viewing, use, dis closure, o r the intentional pub lic display of such information and the 
unauthorized removal of d ocuments from  NHSWC’s premises that contain social security number information is 
prohibited and can result in discipline up to and including termination of employment. 
 
If you co me into co ntact w ith S ocial Se curity N umbers or oth er s ensitive pers onal in formation without 
authorization from  NHSWC or under circumstances outside of your assigned tasks, you may not use or disclose the 
information further, but m ust contact your supervisor and tu rn over to h im or her all cop ies of the i nformation in 
whatever form.  
 
When necessary, documents containing social security information will be properly destroyed through shredding or 
other means prior to disposal to ensure confidential social security information is not disclosed. 
 
For m ore in formation ab out w hether and  unde r w hat c ircumstances y ou m ay hav e acc ess to this i nformation, 
review your job description or contact your supervisor. 
 
 
513 Telecommuting 
 
Telecommuting is the practice of working at  home or at  a si te near the home instead of physically traveling to a  
central workplace. It is a work alternative that  NHSWC may offer to some employees when it would benefit both 
the organization and the employee. 
 
The employee's compensation, benefits, work status, work responsibilities, and the amount of time the employee is 
expected t o work per day  or per pay  period w ill no t change due to par ticipation in the t elecommuting pr ogram 
(unless otherwise agreed upon in writing). 
 
Telecommuting is an alternative method of meeting the needs of the organization and is not  a universal employee 
benefit. As such, NHSWC has the right to refuse to make telecommuting available to an employee and to terminate 
a telecommuting arrangement at any time. 
 
 
514 Social Networking and Blogging 
 
To protect the  NHSWC’s interests, employees must adhere to the following rules: 
 
Employees may not post  on a blog  or soc ial ne tworking site du ring the ir w orking tim e or at any  tim e using   
NHSWC equipment or property. The  NHSWC’s electronic communication systems are for business use only. 
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If an employee identifies himself or her self as an employee of th e  NHSWC on any  soc ial networking si te, the 
communication m ust inclu de a d isclaimer that t he v iews expressed do no t nec essarily refl ect the v iews of th e  
NHSWC management. 
 
All rules reg arding co nfidential bu siness in formation app ly in  fu ll t o b logs a nd so cial networking si tes. A ny 
information that cannot be disclosed through a conversation, a note or an e-mail also cannot be disclosed on a blog 
or social networking site. The transmission of confidential or proprietary information without the permission of the  
NHSWC is prohibited.  
 
If you mention the  NHSWC in a blog or elsewhere in online social media, or it is reasonably clear you are referring 
to  N HSWC or a po sition tak en by   N HSWC, and also express a po litical op inion or an op inion r egarding the   
NHSWC’s positions, actions, or products, the post must specifically disclose your relationship with the  NHSWC 
and note that the opinion expressed is your personal opinion and not the  NHSWC’s position. 
 
Any conduct w hich i s impermissible under the law if expressed in any  other form or forum  is im permissible i f 
expressed t hrough a social ne tworking site.  For  ex ample, pos ted m aterial that is d iscriminatory, de famatory, 
libelous or malicious is fo rbidden. The  NHSWC’s policies, including but not limited to the Equal Employment 
Opportunity, Sexual  H arassment, H arassment and Work place V iolence pol icies, app ly eq ually to employ ee 
comments on social networking sites even if done on nonworking time. Employees are encouraged to review those 
sections of the Handbook for further guidance. 
 
 
515 Workplace Violence Prevention 
 
NHSWC is com mitted to preventing workplace violence and to maintaining a s afe work environment. Given the 
increasing violence in society in general,  NHSWC have adopted the following guidelines to deal with intimidation, 
harassment, or other threats of (or actual) violence that may occur during business hours or on Company premises. 
 
All employees, including supervisors and temporary employees, should be treated with courtesy and respect at all 
times. Employees are expe cted to re frain f rom fighting, "horseplay," or o ther conduct that may be dang erous to 
others.  
 
Firearms, weapons, and other dangerous or hazardous devices or substances are prohibited from the premises of the 
company unless contrary to state law. 
 
Conduct that threatens, intimidates, or coerces another employee, a customer, or a member of the public will not be 
tolerated. T his prohibition inc ludes all acts of harassment, incl uding harassment tha t i s based on an individual's 
protected status. 
 
All threats of (or actual) violence, both direct and indirect, should be reported as soon as possible to your immediate 
supervisor or any othe r member of m anagement. T his includes threats by  employees, as w ell as  th reats by  
customers, vendors, solicitors, or other members of the public. When reporting a threat of violence, you should be 
as spec ific and d etailed as  possib le. A ll susp icious i ndividuals or a ctivities sh ould also be re ported as s oon a s 
possible to a sup ervisor. Do not  place yourself in peril. If you see or hear a co mmotion or dis turbance near your 
work station, do not try to intercede or see what is happening. 
 
NHSWC  w ill promptly and thoroug hly investigate all reports of threats of (o r actual) violence and of susp icious 
individuals or activities. The identity of the individual making a report will be protected as much as is practical. In 
order to m aintain workplace safety and th e integrity of its investigation, NHSWC may suspend em ployees, either 
with or without pay, pending investigation. Anyone determined to be responsible for threats of (or actual) violence 
or othe r cond uct that is in  v iolation of th ese g uidelines w ill be sub ject to pr ompt discip linary act ion up  to and  
including termination of employment. 
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Problem Resolution 
If an employee has a problem, suggestion, question or complaint, it should be talked over with the employee’s 
immediate supervisor.  Matters are usually best handled when they are discussed frankly and promptly. 
 
If a discussion with the immediate supervisor does not resolve the matter to employee’s satisfaction, or if the 
problem is with the immediate supervisor, then employee should discuss it with the next level of management. 
 
Complaint Resolution Procedure 
The purpose of this procedure is to establish fair, orderly and speedy resolution of disputes that sometimes arise in 
the workplace. 
 
Usage 
Employees may utilize this procedure to review an alleged misapplication of Company policies or rules pertaining 
to employment in t he department involved or applicable laws or regulations including anti-discrimination laws or 
regulations that directly and adversely affect the employee. 
 
Informal Resolution of Complaints 
Regular and forthright communication between employees and supervisors reduces the likelihood of the need for 
more form al rev iew.  Suc h comm unication i s in the m utual bes t in terest of b oth th e Com pany and employ ees.  
Therefore, em ployees s hould b ring to  th e a ttention of their su pervisors any  w ork-related p roblems as soon a s 
possible a fter they a rise and di scuss the con cern w ith the ob jective o f resolving it. S upervisors sh ould discuss 
concerns with staff in a timely fashion in an effort to resolve the matters.  Should these initial attempts at resolution 
not be effective, employees may then contact the President for further assistance. 
 
Employee Relations Assistance 
President is available for assistance in the resolution of such matters.  The President may be contacted for informal 
counseling if the employee believes he or she cannot approach the supervisor with the problem.  President will meet 
with th e em ployee, the s upervisor(s), or bo th as may be appropri ate, to a ssist in am icably resolv ing their  
differences.  President can also provide advice on m atters of p olicy interpretation and in formation concerning the 
formal grievance procedure. 
 
Protection Against Retaliation 
Employees may not be discriminated against for utilizing this procedure.  When an employee alleges he or she has 
been discriminated against for utilizing this procedure, or for participating in as a witness in a dispute resolution, a 
complaint m ay be init iated.  The C ompany consid ers suc h ac ts o f dis crimination by  a sup ervisor ag ainst a ny 
employee as a result of her or her involvement in this procedure to be unacceptable conduct and a violation of the 
Company policy. 
 
Reporting Claims or Potential Claims 
 
It is important that claims or potential claims and complaints are reported to someone in a supervisory role as soon 
as they become known.  If told of any bodily injury, property damage or financial injury allegedly attributable to 
the NSHWC please collect any available information regarding the incident and immediately forward it to 
President.  It is generally suggested that responses to the speaker/caller be sympathetic, but do not admit any 
liability, and let the speaker/caller know that the claim or complaint will be reported to management.   
 
As soon as President becomes aware of a claim or a potential claim it should be reported to the appropriate 
insurance carrier.  
 
 
516 Cell Phone Usage 
 
If you are provided a cellular phone by  NSHWC (“Company Cellular Phone”), it is provided to you as a business 
tool on ly. Co mpany Cel lular Phones a re pr ovided to  as sist employees in comm unicating w ith management an d 
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other employees, their  NSHWC associates, and others with whom they may conduct business. Company Cellular 
Phone use is intended for business-related calls only and personal calls are not permitted. Company Cellular Phone 
invoices and text messages (including those sent on data pagers) may be regularly monitored to ensure compliance 
with this policy. 

Whether the cellular phone is provided by  NSHWC or the employee is using his or her own phone, employees who 
have access to a c ell phone while in their cars should remember that their primary responsibility is d riving safely 
and obey ing the  ru les of the ro ad. Em ployees are pr ohibited f rom usi ng cel l p hones to co nduct bu siness w hile 
driving and should safely pull off the road and come to a complete stop before dialing or talking on the phone or 
writing, sending, or reading a text-based communication. 

As a representative of  NSHWC, cell phone users are reminded that the regular business etiquette employed when 
speaking from office phones or in meetings applies to conversations conducted over a cell phone. 

LEAVES OF ABSENCE

601 Medical Leave and Family Care 

Purpose 
To establish the guidelines for employees to take time off from work to care for a serious health condition of either 
themselves or family members in accordance with the requirements of NSHWC Medical Leave and Family Care 
(MLFC) Policy.  

Eligibility
The NSHWC provide leaves of absence without pay to eligible employees for based on the following eligibility 
criteria: 

1. Employee has completed at least twelve (12) consecutive months of employment with NSHWC.
2. And has worked an average of more than thirty (30) hours per week over the preceding twelve (12) months

(1,000 hours).

Qualifying Events
The NSHWC provide leaves of absence without pay to eligible employees based on the following qualifying events:

(1) The birth and care of a newborn child; 
(2) The placement of a child with the employee for adoption, or by the State for foster care; 
(3) To care for a spouse or domestic partner, son, daughter or parent (“covered family member”) with a serious 

health condition;
(4) Or because of your own serious health condition which renders you unable to perform an essential function of 

your position.  Leave because of reasons (1) or (2) must be completed within the 12 month period beginning 
on the date of birth or placement. 

For purposes of this policy, serious health condition or disabilities include inpatient care in a hospital, hospice, or 
residential medical care facility; continuing treatment by a health care provider; and temporary disabilities associated 
with pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions. In the event that state or federal law provides for greater 
rights than provided by this policy, it is up to the NSHWC to govern its actions in accordance with those laws. 
Entitlement to leave for the birth of a child or the placement of a child for adoption or foster care expires twelve (12) 
months from the date of birth or placement. 

Requesting Leave 
Eligible employees may request a leave by submitting a leave request using the “Certification of Health Care Provider 
MLFC Leave of Absence Form” to their supervisors at least thirty (30) days in advance of foreseeable events and as 
soon as possible for unforeseeable events. 

To request leave for a serious health condition of either the employee or family members, the employee will be 
required to submit certification from a medical doctor (or other appropriate health care provider) providing information 
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on the “Certification of Health Care Provider MLFC Leave of Absence Form”.

Once the President receives the MLFC request form from the employee’s supervisor and has reviewed the standard 
practice with the employee. The employee will sign the “Acknowledgement of Review of the Employer MLFC 
Standard Practice Form”.

Any of these forms can be obtained from the President.

The forms together with any required supporting documentation must be submitted at least thirty (30) days before the 
date on which your requested leave is to begin, unless the need for a leave is not sufficiently foreseeable to give such 
notice.

If the leave is foreseeable, the employee shall make a reasonable effort to schedule any planned leave so as not to 
unduly disrupt NSHWC operations. 

Medical Certification Requirements
Employees must provide a copy of their medical certification in a timely matter; the request may be delayed until the 
required certification is provided. Failure to provide a medical certification may result in a delay of the continuation of 
the employee’s leave. If an employee fails to produce the required certification, the leave will not be MLFC leave, and 
the employee will not be entitled to MLFC leave protection. 

If NSHWC grant the medical leave of absence, the leave will begin on the first workday which is missed as a result of 
the emergency or other situation requiring the leave, and will end on the expected return date.  Should the employee 
request an extension of his/her medical leave of absence, the employee must furnish the President with a written 
request for an extension before the expiration of the original leave of absence or most recent extension.  NSHWC will 
request documentation, including certification by a medical doctor (or other appropriate health care provider), of any 
circumstances requiring an extension of leave. The President will notify the employee of extended leave eligibility in 
writing. 

It is the employee’s responsibility to communicate immediately with the President if extended leave beyond twelve 
(12) weeks will required. A leave of absence, or any extension of a leave, must be approved by the President.

Leave Period
When applying the MLFC policy with the Short Term Disability (STD) benefit, there is a one week verification period 
in which the employee will not be covered under the STD benefit when the leave is deemed foreseeable by our STD 
provider. In conjunction with the NSHWC STD benefit, NSHWC  requires that the employee use one (1) week of 
Vacation days upon approval of MLFC during the verification period. In the event the employee does not have enough 
Vacation days available, the employee will be required to use any available Vacation days for the verification period, 
and any remaining days will be processed as unpaid leave for the employee. If the leave is deemed unforeseeable (i.e., 
on the job accident and/or injury) by our provider, STD coverage will begin immediately and will not have verification 
period. 

Benefits Coverage During FMLA Leave
During an approved MLFC Leave, employee benefits elected through NSHWC will remain effective for up to twelve 
(12) weeks under the same terms that would have applied had the employee not taken leave Employees remain 
responsible for payment of the employee contribution while on leave.

The employee will be notified in writing of the monthly premium amount that he/she is responsible for prior to the
approved MLFC leave. All premiums must be submitted to the President by the first (1st) of each month to cover the 
employee/dependent/spousal premium contributions. Failure to make timely payments may result in a termination of 
health insurance benefits. 

In the event that an employee has exhausted their twelve (12) weeks maximum period of covered MLFC leave, the 
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employee will become responsible for the full cost of these benefits and may apply for benefits continuation under 
COBRA. Upon an employee’s return from leave, automatic deduction of employee contributions through payroll will 
be reinstated on the first of the month following the employee’s return to work. 

Employee Returning to Work
The employee should notify the NSHWC of his/her intent to return to work at least four (4) weeks prior to the 
anticipated date of return, or of any medically necessary changes in the date of return. 

If the leave was due to the employee’s serious health condition, a Return to Work Medical Certification form must be 
submitted before an employee can return to work.

Job restoration is not guaranteed. However, when a leave ends, NSHWC will make reasonable efforts to reinstate the 
employee to the same position previously held by the employee if it is available. In the event that the employee’s job is 
filled, the NSHWC will make reasonable efforts to reinstate the employee to an equivalent position for which the 
employee is qualified; in the event that an equivalent position is not available, then NSHWC may offer to reinstate the 
employee to a lower level position.

In accordance with section VII (A) of the employee handbook; if an employee fails to return to work within three (3) 
business days of the agreed upon return date, NSHWC may assume that the employee has voluntarily resigned.

EMPLOYEE CONDUCT & DISCIPLINARY ACTION 

701 Employee Conduct and Work Rules 
Effective Date: 10/31/2013 

To en sure o rderly opera tions and prov ide t he bes t poss ible w ork env ironment,  N SHWC expect em ployees t o 
follow rules of conduct that will protect the interests and safety of all employees and the organization. 

It is not poss ible to list all the forms of behavior that are considered unacceptable in the workplace. The following 
are ex amples of in fractions of ru les o f condu ct t hat m ay resul t in d isciplinary actio n, up to and including 
termination of employment: 

Supplying false or misleading information when applying for employment or during employment
Personal use of company gas or credit cards
Theft or inappropriate removal or possession of property
Falsification of timekeeping records
Working under the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs
Possession, distribution, sale, transfer, or use of alcohol or illegal drugs or abuse of prescription drugs in
the workplace, while on duty, or while operating employer-owned vehicles or equipment
Failure or refusal to submit or consent to a required alcohol or drug test
Fighting or threatening violence in the workplace
Boisterous or disruptive activity in the workplace
Negligence or improper conduct leading to damage of employer-owned or customer-owned property
Insubordination or other disrespectful conduct
Engaging in unethical or illegal conduct
Having a conflict of interest
Violation of safety or health rules
Smoking in prohibited areas
Sexual or other unlawful or unwelcome harassment
Possession of dangerous or unauthorized materials, such as explosives or firearms, in the workplace
Excessive absenteeism or tardiness or any absence without notice
Unauthorized absence from work station during the workday
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 Unauthorized use of telephones, mail system, or other employer-owned equipment 
 Unauthorized disclosure of business "secrets" or confidential proprietary information 
 Conduct that reflects adversely upon you,  NSHWC 
 Making or publishing false or malicious statements concerning an employee, supplier, client,  NSHWC 
 Violation of personnel policies 
 Unsatisfactory performance or conduct that does not meet the requirements of the position 
 Other circumstances which warrant discipline 

 
Employment with  NSHWC is at the mutual consent of  NSHWC and the employee, and either party may terminate 
that relationship at any time, with or without cause, and with or without advance notice. 
 
 
702 Drug and Alcohol Use 
 
It is  NSHWC 's desire to provide a drug-free, healthful, and safe workplace. To promote this goal, employees are 
required t o r eport to w ork in app ropriate m ental and phy sical cond ition to  perform the ir jobs in a  s afe and 
satisfactory manner. 
 
While on  NSHWC premises and while conducting business-related activities off  NSHWCpremises, no employee 
may use, possess, distribute, sell, or be under the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs.  However, if an employee is 
attending a function where alcohol is served, employees may consume alcohol, but are expected to not overindulge 
in alcohol consumption and to comport themselves in an appropriate and professional manner. NSHWC shall not be 
responsible for violations of this policy or any unlawful acts by employee for violations of this policy. The legal use 
of prescribed drugs is permitted on the job only if it does not impair an employee's ability to pe rform the essential 
functions of the job effectively and in a safe manner that does not endanger other individuals in the workplace.  
 
Violations of this policy may lead to disciplinary action, up to and including immediate termination of employment, 
and/or required participation in  a substance abuse r ehabilitation or  t reatment p rogram. Such v iolations may also  
have legal consequences. 
 
Employees w ith drug  or al cohol p roblems that  hav e not  re sulted in, and a re not the immediate su bject o f, 
disciplinary ac tion m ay request  app roval to take un paid time off to p articipate in  a rehabilitation or  t reatment 
program. Leave may be granted if the employee agrees to abstain from use of the problem substance; abides by all  
NSHWC pol icies, rules, and prohibitions relating to conduct in the workplace; and if granting the leave will not 
cause  NSHWC any undue hardship. 
 
Employees with questions on this policy or issues related to drug or alcohol use in the workplace should raise their 
concerns with the President at 203-241-6464 without fear of reprisal. 
 
703 Sexual and Other Unlawful Harassment 
 
 NSHWC are committed to providing a work environment that is free from all forms of discrimination and conduct 
that can be co nsidered harassing, coerc ive, or dis ruptive, including  sexual harassment. Actions, words, jokes, or  
comments based on an individual's sex, r ace, color, national origin, age, religion, disability, sexual orientation, or 
any other l egally pro tected chara cteristic w ill n ot be tolerated. NSHWC p rovides sexu al h arassment tr aining to  
ensure you the opportunity to work in an environment free of sexual and other unlawful harassment. 
 
Sexual harassment is defined as unwanted sexual advances, or visual, verbal, or physical conduct of a sexual nature. 
This definition includes many forms of offensive behavior and includes gender-based harassment of a person of the 
same sex as the harasser. The following is a partial list of sexual harassment examples: 

 Unwanted sexual advances. 
 Offering employment benefits in exchange for sexual favors. 
 Making or threatening reprisals after a negative response to sexual advances. 
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Visual con duct th at includes l eering, m aking sexual  g estures, or d isplaying of sexually sug gestive
objects or pictures, cartoons or posters.
Verbal conduct that includes making or using derogatory comments, epithets, slurs, or jokes.
Verbal sexual advances or propositions.
Verbal abuse of a sexual nat ure, graphic verbal commentaries about an indi vidual's body, sexually
degrading words used to describe an individual, or suggestive or obscene letters, notes, or invitations.
Physical conduct that includes touching, assaulting, or impeding or blocking movements.

Unwelcome sexual advances (either verbal or  physical), r equests fo r sexual favors, and other verbal o r physical 
conduct of a se xual nat ure const itute sexua l ha rassment w hen: (1) subm ission to such con duct is m ade ei ther 
explicitly or implicitly a t erm or condition of employment; (2) submission or rejection of the conduct is used as a 
basis for m aking e mployment deci sions; o r, (3) th e condu ct has the purp ose or e ffect o f interfering w ith w ork 
performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment. 

If you experience or witness sexual or other unlawful harassment in the workplace, report it immediately to CEO or 
President at 203-241-6464. You can raise concerns and make reports without fear of reprisal or retaliation. 

All alleg ations o f sexu al harassment w ill be qui ckly a nd discreetly inv estigated. T o the ex tent poss ible, y our 
confidentiality and that of any witnesses and the alleged harasser will be protected against unnecessary disclosure. 
Communications will be made to others only on a limited "need to know" basis. If you make a complaint under this 
policy and h ave not received a satisfactory response, you should co ntact the CEO or P resident a t 203-241-6464.
When the investigation is completed, you will be informed of the outcome of the investigation. 

Any supervisor or manager who becomes aware of possible sexual or other unlawful harassment must immediately 
advise President or any member of management so it can be investigated in a timely and confidential manner. Upon 
completion of the inv estigation, if necessary, corrective measures will be taken. These measures may include, but 
are n ot limited to : t raining, counseling , w arning, s uspension, or immediate dismissal. A nyone, r egardless of  
position or title, found through investigation to have engaged in improper harassment will be subject to discipline 
up to and inc luding discharge. If the inv estigation is inconclusive,  NSHWC may still prov ide counseling or tak e 
other appropriate steps. 

NSHWC prohibit any  form of discip line or retaliation for reporting in g ood faith the incidents of harassment in  
violation of this policy, pursuing any such claim or cooperating in the investigation of such reports. 

704 Attendance and Punctuality 

To maintain a safe and productive work environment,  NSHWC expects employees to be reliable and to be punctual 
in repo rting for sch eduled w ork. Y ou are al so e xpected to t ake y our lunch/ meal t imes w ithin reasonable 
timeframes. Absenteeism and ta rdiness place a burden on o ther employees and on  NSHWC. In the rare instances 
when em ployees c annot a void bei ng l ate t o w ork o r a re un able to w ork as s cheduled, th ey shoul d no tify the ir 
supervisor as soon as possible in a dvance of the anticipated tardiness or absence. If you are g oing to m iss work 
because you are going to be late or you or a family member is sick, you must notify your supervisor before the time 
you are to repo rt fo r w ork. Y our superv isor w ill adv ise you of an altern ative person to contac t if he o r she i s 
unavailable. 

If you do not inform  ei ther y our superv isor or the alternative, y our tard iness or absen ce w ill be con sidered an  
unapproved, unscheduled absence. If you fail to notify your supervisor after three (3) business days of consecutive 
absences, you will be con sidered to hav e abandoned your job. These rules will be enforced uniformly on a non -
discriminatory basis. 

Poor attendance and excessive tardiness are disruptive. Either may lead to disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination of employment. 
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705 Personal Appearance 

Dress, g rooming, and pers onal c leanliness st andards cont ribute to t he m orale of all em ployees and aff ect the  
business image NSHWC presents to customers and visitors. 

During bus iness ho urs or  when re presenting  N SHWC, y ou are exp ected to present a c lean, n eat, and  tasteful 
appearance. Y ou shou ld dr ess and g room yourself ac cording to the req uirements of y our posi tion and a ccepted 
social standards. This is particularly true if your job involves dealing with constituents or visitors in person. 

If your supervisor feels your personal appearance is inappropriate, you may be asked to l eave the workplace until 
you are pr operly dressed or groomed. Under such circumstance, you will not be compensated for the time away 
from work. Consul t your supervisor i f you have questions as  to w hat constitutes appropriate appearance. Where 
necessary, reasonable accommodation may be made to a person with a disability.  

Without unduly restricting individual tastes, the following personal appearance guidelines should be followed: 
Tank tops, tube or halter tops, or shorts may not be worn.
Mustaches and beards must be clean, well trimmed, and neat.
Hairstyles are expected to be in good taste.
Facial jewelry, such as ey ebrow ri ngs, nose ring s, lip ring s, and tong ue st uds, is not pro fessionally
appropriate and must not be worn during business hours and at business events.
Visible excessive tattoos a nd similar body art m ust be cov ered during business hours  and a t business
events.

706 Resignation 

Resignation i s a v oluntary act ini tiated by  the employ ee to t erminate em ployment w ith  N SHWC. A lthough 
advance notice is not required,  NSHWC requests at least 32weeks' written resignation notice from all employees.  

Prior to an employee's departure, an exit interview may be scheduled to discuss the reasons for resignation and the 
effect of the resignation on benefits. 

707 Security Inspections 

NSHWC wishes to maintain a work environment that is free of illegal drugs, alcohol, firearms, explosives, or other
improper materials. To this end,  NSHWC prohibits the possession, transfer, sale, or us e of such m aterials on it s 
premises.  NSHWC requires the cooperation of all employees in administering this policy. 

While NSHWC's premises, employees have no expect ation of  pr ivacy in their belongings or in w orkplace areas 
which include, but are not limited to, offices, cubicles, work locations, Company provided or designated parking 
areas, d esks, com puters, rest or  ea ting a reas, o r v ehicles eng aged in  Com pany opera tions, and any p ersonal 
belongings on or in any of the above. 

Desks and other storage devices may be provided for the convenience of employees but remain the sole property of 
NSHWC. A ccordingly, th ey, as w ell as any  arti cles found w ithin them , can be inspe cted by  any a gent or  
representative of  NSHWC at any time, either with or without prior notice. 

NSHWC likewise wishes to discourage theft or unauthorized possession of the p roperty of employees,  NSHWC, 
visitors, and customers. To facilitate enforcement of this policy,  NSHWC or its representative may inspect not only 
desks, but also persons entering and/or leaving the premises and any packages or other belongings. Any employee 
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who wishes to avoid inspection of any articles or materials should not bring such items onto  NSHWC's premises. 

708 Solicitation 

In an effort to ensure a productive and harmonious work environment, persons not employed by  NSHWC may not 
solicit or distribute literature in the workplace at any time for any purpose, without express permission from the 
President. 

NSHWC rec ognizes th at employees m ay hav e inte rests in events and  org anizations o utside th e w orkplace. 
However, employees may not solicit or distribute literature concerning these activities during working time.  

Examples of impermissible forms of solicitation include: 
The Collection of Money, Goods, or Gifts for Community Groups
The Collection of Money, Goods, or Gifts for Religious Groups
The Collection of Money, Goods, or Gifts for Political Groups
The Collection of Money, Goods, or Gifts for Charitable Groups
The Sale of Goods, Services, or Subscriptions Outside the Scope of Official Organization Business
The Circulation of Petitions
The Distribution of Literature Not Approved by the Employer
The Solicitation of Memberships, Fees, or Dues

In addi tion, the posting o f w ritten s olicitations on company bulletin boa rds is  restricted. T hese bul letin board s 
display important information, and employees should consult them frequently for:  

Postings Required by Law

If e mployees have a m essage of interest to the workplace, they m ay sub mit i t to the President for approval. All 
approved messages will be posted by the President. 

709 Employee Discipline 

This section is to help you understand what is expected of you with regard to proper behavior, performance, and 
personal conduct. The p urpose o f th is po licy is to  state  N SHWC's posi tion on adm inistering equita ble an d 
consistent discipline for unsatisfactory conduct in the workplace. By complying with these standards you will help 
to maintain a positive, safe work environment for you and your colleagues.  

To address those t imes when you have not l ived up t o positive s tandards, we may provide you with counseling, 
institute progressive discipline, or terminate your employment if your conduct warrants it. We have the d iscretion 
to decide whether counseling, progressive discipline or immediate termination is appropriate. The best disciplinary 
measure is the one that does not have to be enforced and comes from good leadership and fair supervision at all 
employment levels. 

NSHWC's own best interest lies in ensuring fair treatment of all employees and in making certain that disciplinary 
actions are prompt, uniform, and impartial. The major purpose of any disciplinary action is to correct the problem, 
prevent recurrence, and prepare the employee for satisfactory service in the future. 

Although employment with  NSHWC is based on mutual consent and bo th the employee and  NSHWC  have the 
right to terminate employment at w ill, with o r w ithout cause or a dvance not ice,  NSHWC may use prog ressive 
discipline at its discretion. 

Disciplinary action may call for any of four steps -- verbal warning, written warning, suspension with or without 
pay, or term ination of em ployment -- depending on the severity of the p roblem and the num ber of occu rrences. 
There may be circumstances when one or more steps are bypassed. 
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Progressive discipline will be used when your supervisor NSHWC feels it is appropriate. The system of progressive 
discipline gives you notice of deficiencies in performance and an opportunity to improve. When misconduct occurs, 
progressive disciplinary action may include but is not limited to the following: counseling and/or verbal warning, 
written warning, suspension with or without pay, and/or termination. 

Depending on the n ature and sev erity of the m isconduct as w ell a s w hether it h as pr eviously occur red, y our 
supervisor and/or the President may investigate your actions. An investigation is designed to ob tain all pertinent 
facts a nd m ay incl ude in terviewing y ou and ot her w itnesses, rev iewing docum ents, etc. Y our friends, relatives, 
attorneys or other third parties are not allowed to participate in internal investigations. Failure to cooperate with an 
internal investigation is grounds for disciplinary action up to and including discharge. 

When the investigation is complete, your supervisor and/or an the President will review the facts and the policies. 
At tha t po int, y our supervisor an d/or the Pr esident w ill de termine w hether y ou should be d isciplined up to and  
including termination. 

NSHWC recognizes that there are c ertain types of employee problems that are serious enough to justify either a 
suspension, or, in ex treme si tuations, t ermination of  employment, w ithout g oing throug h the usual p rogressive 
discipline steps. 

By using employee discipline, we hope that most employee problems can be corrected at an early stage, benefiting 
both the employee and  NSHWC. 

710 Problem Resolution 

NSHWC is committed to all employees. Part of this commitment is encouraging an open and frank atmosphere in 
which any problem, complaint, suggestion, or question receives a timely response from the company's supervisors 
and management. 

NSHWC strives to ensure fair treatment of a ll employees. Supervisors, managers, and employees are expected to 
treat each other with mutual respect. Employees are encouraged to offer positive and constructive criticism. 

If e mployees disagree w ith est ablished rules o f co nduct, policies, or p ractices, they  can  exp ress th eir c oncern 
through the problem resolution procedure. No employee will be  penalized, formally or in formally, for voicing a  
complaint with the company in a reasonable, business-like manner, or for using the problem resolution procedure. 

If a situation occurs when employees believe that a condition of employment or a decision affecting them is unjust 
or ineq uitable, th ey are encour aged to bring  thos e issu es to m anagement's at tention us ing the sam e procedu re 
described in the Harassment policy. 

Employee presents problem to immediate supervisor at NSHWC after incident occurs. If supervisor is
unavailable or employee believes it would be inappropriate to contact that person, employee may present
problem to the President.
Supervisor at NSHWC responds to problem during discussion or after consulting with appropriate
management, when necessary. Supervisor documents discussion.
Employee contacts the CEO or President at 203-241-6464 if the problem is unresolved.
The CEO or President counsels and advises employee.
CEO or President reviews and considers problem. CEO or President informs employee of decision and
forwards copy of written response to employee's file.

Not every problem can be resolved to everyone's total satisfaction, but only through understanding and discussion 
of m utual p roblems can employees and m anagement dev elop con fidence in  each o ther. This c onfidence i s 
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important to the operation of an efficient and harmonious work environment. 
 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
 
801 Life-Threatening Illnesses in the Workplace 
 
Employees w ith li fe-threatening il lnesses, such a s cancer, heart di sease, and A IDS, often w ish to c ontinue the ir 
normal pursuits, including work, to th e extent a llowed by their co ndition.  NSHWC supports these endeavors as 
long as employees are able to meet acceptable performance standards.  
 
Medical information on individual employees is treated confidentially. M NSHWC will take reasonable precautions 
to protect such information from inappropriate disclosure. Managers and other employees have a responsibility to 
respect and maintain the confidentiality of employee medical information. Anyone inappropriately disclosing such 
information is subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. 
 
802 Recycling 
 
NSHWC suppo rts env ironmental awa reness by enc ouraging re cycling and  w aste m anagement in  i ts business 
practices and o perating pr ocedures. This sup port i ncludes a commitment to t he pur chase, us e, a nd d isposal of  
products and materials in a manner that will best utilize natural resources and minimize any negative impact on the 
earth's environment. 
 
Special recycling receptacles have been set up to promote the separation and collection of the following recyclable 
materials at  NSHWC: 

 Computer Paper  
 White High Grade or Bond Paper  
 Ledger Paper  
 Mixed or Colored Paper  
 Newspaper  
 Corrugated Cardboard  
 Brown Paper Bags  
 Aluminum  
 Plastics  
 Printer Cartridges  

 
The s imple ac t of  pl acing a pi ece of paper, c an, o r bot tle in  a recycling cont ainer is the first s tep in reducing 
demand on the earth' s lim ited resou rces. Succ ess of  this program depends on  activ e partic ipation by  al l of us. 
Employees are encouraged to make a commitment to recycle and be a part of this solution.  
 
NSHWC encou rages reducing and, w hen pos sible, e liminating t he u se o f d isposable p roducts. Sour ce reduction 
decreases the consumption of valuable resources through such workplace practices as: 

 Two-Sided Photocopying 
 Minimum Packaging 
 Reusing Paper Clips, Folders, and Binders 
 Reusing Packaging Material 
 Turning Off Lights When Not in Use 

 
Whenever possible, employees of  N SHWC are encouraged to purchase products for the workplace that contain 
recycled or easily recyclable materials. Buying recycled products supports recycling and increases the markets for 
recyclable materials. 
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803 NSHWC Interpretation 

The President is responsible for the official interpretation of these policies.  Questions regarding the application too 
this practice should be d irected to the President. The NSHWC reserves the right to rev ise this policy at a ny time 
with our without prior notice to employees. 
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NSHWC EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT 

The employee handbook describes important information about my employment with  NSHWC and I understand 
that I should consult with the President at 203-241-6464 regarding any questions not answered in these policies. I 
have ent ered in to m y e mployment rel ationship w ith  N SHWC voluntarily a nd ack nowledge that  there is no 
specified length of employment. Accordingly, either NSHWC or I  can te rminate the relationship at will, with or 
without cause, at any time, so long as there is no violation of applicable federal or state law. 

Since the information, policies, and benefits described here, or on the Intranet, are subject to change, I acknowledge 
that revisions to t he handbook may occur, exce pt to the pol icy of em ployment at w ill. All such changes will be 
communicated th rough of ficial notices, a nd I  underst and that rev ised information m ay supersed e, m odify, or  
eliminate existing policies.  

Only NSHWC has the ability to adopt any revisions to the policies in this handbook. 

Furthermore, I acknowledge that this handbook is neit her a contract of em ployment nor a leg al document. I have 
received the handbook, and I understand that it is my responsibility to read and comply with the policies contained 
in this handbook and any revisions made to it. 

Employee name (please print): _____________________________________ 

Employee Signature: ______________________________________________ 

Date: __________________________ 







Kenneth Kandrysawtz, RPh 
15 Shannon Drive 

Barkhamsted, CT 06063 
(406) 640-0603 

CT Pharmacist License #0005229 

EXPERIENCE: 

Dave’s Tile & Stone, Canton, CT 2009 - Present 
Subcontractor 

Designed and built luxury mountain home in Cameron, MT.
Designer and on-site supervisor/contractor.

Shop Rite Pharmacy, Bristol, CT 2006 – 2009 
Staff Pharmacist 

Supervise pharmacy technician.
Responsible for inventory control.
Properly dispense prescriptions to customers.
Provide confidential consultation to patients.

Reason for leaving – personal decision to move temporarily to Montana. 
Allegations of violations of law – None. 

NeighborCare Long-Term Care Pharmacy, Windsor, CT 1998 – 2006 
Staff Pharmacist

Supervise pharmacy technician.
Properly dispense prescriptions and ship to network of long-term care facilities.
Maintain relationships with doctors and nurses.

Reason for leaving – NeighborCare was acquired by OmniCare. 
Allegations of violations of law – None. 

Burnside Drug / Arthurs Drug, East Hartford, CT 1985 – 1998 
Staff Pharmacist 

Supervise pharmacy technician.
Responsible for inventory control.
Properly dispense prescriptions to customers.
Provide confidential consultation to patients.

Reason for leaving – New pharmacist position opportunity. 
Allegations of violations of law – None. 

East Hartford Pharmacy, East Hartford, CT 1983 – 1984 
Owner / Pharmacist 

Oversee Pharmacy business operations.
Oversee pharmacy technician.
Responsible for inventory control.
Properly dispense prescriptions to customers.
Provide confidential consultation to patients.

Reason for leaving – Sold business due to personal reasons (divorce). 
Allegations of violations of law – None. 



Leone Phamacy, East Hartford, CT 1977 – 1983 
Staff Pharmacist / Manager 

Two other locations under same ownership. Rotating schedule between the three pharamcies:
o Boulavard Apothecary, East Hartford, CT
o Sebastian Pharmacy, Vernon, CT

Oversee pharmacy technician.
Responsible for inventory control.
Properly dispense prescriptions to customers.
Provide confidential consultation to patients.

Reason for leaving – Opportunity to open my own pharmacy. 
Allegations of violations of law – Owner was investigated by insurance company and State of 
Connecticut for financial discrepancies. I was not involved and have no further details. 

Hartford Hospital Pharmacy 1975 – 1976 
College Intern 

EDUCATION: 

University of Connecticut School of Pharmacy, B.S. 



Jennifer Kokalari, MHS, PA-C 

Objective Use my nine years of experience as a medical and cardiology physician assistant to 
contribute to an organization that acts as an adjunct to standardized medicine

Education Quinnipiac University, Hamden, CT; May 2001 - October 2003
Master of Health Science 

AMA - approved fully accredited Physician Assistant Program

Siena College, Loudonville, NY; 1995 - 1999  
Bachelor of Science in Biology 

Work Experience 
Yale Hospital, New Haven, CT; January 2013 – Present

Medical Cardiology Full Time Physician Assistant
- Daily rounding, admissions, coordinating care, and discharges of cardiology service

patients
- Work directly with university and private cardiologists
- EPIC EMR
- Daily multidisciplinary rounds

Saint Francis Hospital, Hartford, CT; January 2004 – December 2012
Medical Cardiology Full Time Physician Assistant

- Cardiology and Internal Medicine admissions, formulating diagnostic and therapeutic
strategies with attending physicians

- Respond to cardiac emergencies including chest pain, symptomatic post cardiac
catheterization patients, arrhythmia management, and acute pulmonary edema

- Respond to medical emergencies including altered mental status, stroke, and diabetic
emergencies

- Part of hospital wide rapid response team
- Helped facilitate the integration of new hospitalist/cardiology service
- Assist in interview process of potential new employees/ train new employees

Gaylord Hospital, Wallingford, CT; November 2007 - June 2010
Internal Medicine Per Diem Physician Assistant

־ Part of team managing medically complex patients with respiratory, cardiac, and 
neurological conditions in a long term acute care hospital 

- Daily rounds, documenting in EMR, medication maintenance, responding to 
emergencies

Related 
Experience 

Mohawk Ambulance, Schenectady, NY; June 1999 - May 2001
Emergency Medical Technician - Critical Care.  
Worked in rural and urban setting. BLS and ACLS to medical and trauma patients.

Colonie Emergency Medical Service, Colonie, NY; January 1996 - March 2001  
Emergency Medical Technician - Critical Care.  
Responsibilities as above.



Licensure and 
Certifications 

National Commission on Certification of Physician Assistants - Current
State of Connecticut Physician Assistant License - Current
Drug Enforcement Administration - Current 
Connecticut Department of Consumer Protection - Current 
Advanced Cardiovascular Life Support – Current
Level II Reiki Certification

References Available upon request
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SENIOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT: Controller Assistant Controller 

Well roun ded, res ults-oriented fin ancial pro fessional w ith a prov en re cord of co ntrolling co sts and  
guiding c ompanies thro ugh s ubstantial c hange. Financial re porting a nd exe cuting financial 
management’s objectives while overseeing and streamlining accounting processes and proc edures 
are among the many strengths. 

Specific Areas of expertise: 
Financial Analysis  Interface with DCAA & Public auditors  Cost Reduction  Revenue

Improvement  Forecasting  Strategic Planning  All Accounting Functions  ERP Software 
Upgrades & Implementations  Procedure Improvement  Budgets  Problem Solving – Kaizen Team 

– Lean Manufacturing  Revenue Recognition  Financial Reporting  Sarbanes Oxley & GAAP

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

Advanced Reconnaissance Corp  Fishkill, New  York                                             2012-Oct 2013 
Engineering c ompany of adv anced scientific sensor systems f or inte lligence, surveillance an d 
commercial applications with annual revenue of $5+ million. 

Accounting M anager: Responsible for a ll ac counting, purc hasing an d financial re porting o f th e 
company with two locations.

Support the CFO with accounting procedures and financial reporting.
Support the Director of Accounting with accounting practices and procedures
Improved purchase requisition to purchase order process.
Proposed changed in accounting procedures when implementing new chart of accounts.
Audit liaison for year end audit

Ashcroft  Inc.  Stratford, Connecticut 2010-2012
Manufacturer of electronic and mechanical instruments with annual revenue of $125+ million. 

Manager, C ost A ccounting: Provide fin ancial support to the D irector o f Manufacturing and c o-
ordinate the month ly cost account ing closing, reporting of  Factory actual  results, variances, annual 
budget and quarterly forecasts.  

Improving the ann ual Fa ctory budget process by  co-coordinating the Facto ry budget w ith the
income statement resulted by identifying $1.5m disconnect.
Creating and improving the Factory reporting of expenses, efficiencies, and inventory reporting.
Improving the quarterly Factory f orecast by estimating expenses, earned l abor and overhead,
and efficiencies in detail rather than summarizing.

ZYGO CORPORATION  Connecticut 2004-2009 
Manufacturer of metrology and optical systems with up to $200 million in annual revenue. 

Product Line/ Metrology Div ision Co ntroller: Spearhead fina ncial re porting and proc esses f or a 
$120 million division. Responsible for all financial reporting of the division.  Co llaborate with Senior 
Management to dev elop strategic p lans, annual budgets, monthly forecasts and analyzing monthly 
results and variances. 
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Analyze monthly P&L results including manufacturing variances for labor & overhead efficiency,
purchase price, material usage and quality variances, along with R&D spending and Operating
Expenses for two major business units and d iscussing explanations with business unit VPs to
improve efficiencies that improved profitability.
Prepared and an alyzed monthly P& L forecast and r eviewed w ith b usiness unit V Ps for
presentation to senior management at monthly Operations Review meetings.
Provide quarterly audit documentation to public auditors for GAAP and SOX compliance.
Member of sev eral K aizen tea ms to stu dy the manufacturing pro cess to remove n on-value
added steps to r educe cost, to lower raw material inventory and to short en the lead time from
receiving a customer order and fulfilling shipment.
Saved $75K by eliminating wall-to-wall year-end warehouse physical inventory by improving the
inventory cycle count program.
Established d ivision procedures for reducing exc ess &  ob solete inv entory and r eserves a nd
standard cost issues, preventing several potential deficiencies under Sarbanes Oxley.
Provide financial support to Business Unit Director in negotiations of government contract with
Lawrence Livermore Laboratory (LLL), calculate indirect rates and negotiate with LLL auditors.

JDS UNIPHASE  Horsham, Pennsylvania       1997- 2003 
Developer of fiber optic transmitters and receivers for the CATV and telecommunications industries. 

Division Co ntroller (2002-2003): Directed a ccounting an d financial p lanning function for $ 400M 
annual revenue Transmission Systems Division and led financial reporting and monthly forecasting. 
Supervised a 5-person staff of financial analysts and accountants while interfacing with division and 
corporate management. 

Saved $2 million in s alaries a nd b enefits by  analyzing Man ufacturing’s annual budget hiring
plans to forecasted headcount based on sales forecast and product routings.
Coordinate quarterly and  ann ual a udits pr oviding docu mentation to public aud itors f or GAAP
compliance
Justified an inventory cycle count program to auditors, eliminating year-end physical inventories
for warehouses with 97% accuracy saving time and money.

. 
Product Line Controller (2000-2002): Managed financials for the CATV product line director and his 
staff, lea ding div ision acc ounting an d f inancial reporting funct ions. Co mpiled and an alyzed annu al 
budgets and monthly forecast s, matching f inancial an d manu facturing plans a nd en suring 
compatibility. Supervised a 5-person staff and reported to the Division Controller. 

During a Corporate “Best Practice” teleconference call, I proposed a fixed ass et transf er
program between divisions. When implemented it saved the company between $ 1 to $3
million.
Led a l egal claim against a cu stomer, c ommunicating w ith lawyers a nd gathering te chnical
information for the case.

Accounting M anager (1997-2000): Oversaw division fin ancial re porting, focusing on improving 
accounting processes a nd establishing m onthly forecasts. Ma naged 2  senior ac countants a nd 
interfaced with all levels of corporate management to achieve goals. 

Spearheaded cost accounting and general le dger m odule for Orac le 11.3 i mplementation,
partnering with outside consultants.
Improved revenue by $375,000 or 10% in 1997’s fourth quarter by reconciling accounts
receivable and re-invoicing clients when necessary.
Directed the calculation of indirect rates and negotiated rates and contracts with DCAA auditors.

FRAMATOME CONNECTORS USA (FCUSA)  Norwalk, Connecticut            1994-1997
A $50 0 million subsidiary of  Fra matome Connectors supp lying co nnectors, consu mer electron ics, 
data storage, networks and telecom infrastructures, and medical and instrumentation applications. 
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Manager, C orporate A ccounting: Consolidated financial d ata f rom 1 1 glo bal manufacturing a nd 
sales l ocations, providing ana lysis in local currencies an d U SD. E xamined actua l, bu dgeted a nd 
forecasted finances from five Pacific R im and six W estern Hemisphere locations while pinpo inting 
areas of auditing concern in manufacturing locations.

Selected for a s pecial assign ment and c hallenged w ith increasing e fforts to colle ct age d
accounts receivable and improving corporate and division reporting. 
Implemented Hyperion Software at the U.S. location after training at Paris, France Headquarter.

ANDREES CONSULTING  Danbury, Connecticut              1992-1994
Provided fin ancial serv ices to v arious siz e c ompanies w hile looking for a  new corp orate p osition. 
Two Long-term assignments were Electro-Energy Inc. (EEI), Danbury, CT and Swales & Associates 
(S&W) in Beltsville, MD. 

Interfaced with the Founder/President to develop EEI’s first Strategic Business Plan that resulted
with the President presentation of Plan to banks for financial funding and in proposals to  
customers such as The Nati onal Inst itute o f Health. Provided interface betw een EEI and  
auditors for indirect rate submissions. 
Audited and reconciled S&W’s government contract cost in Pea ch Tree accounting system and
transferred contract cost to new Deltek accounting system.  Provided CFO with audit report and
documented support that allowed an additional $100K revenue and profit.

NORDEN SYSTEM, INC  Norwalk, Connecticut    1990-1992
A $500 million government contracting subsidiary of United Technologies. 

Manager, Standard Cost: 
Reported to Assistant Controller of Treasury Services. 

Co-directed the successful completion of the Company’s Cost Management System
incorporating both  standard cost  and actual j ob order-costing techn iques to  be  inter faced w ith 
the manufacturing MRP II System 

PERKIN-ELMER CORPORATION, INC  Optical Group, Danbury, Connecticut   1973-1990
Government contracting Division, now a Division of Goodrich, Corp.  Held DoD Secret clearance 

Manager, Optical Group Accounting Operations and various other positions: 
Reported t o O ptical G roup Director of  Ac counting and Division Controller: Responsible for a ll 
aspects of accounting and Group consolidations. 

Responsible for all Gov ernment c ontract rep orting including, in direct rate su bmission, div ision
rate disclosure statements, DCAA audits, indirect rate negotiations and contract closeouts.

EDUCATION 

Master of Business Administration in Finance University of Bridgeport Bridgeport, Connecticut 
Bachelor of Science in Accounting Central Connecticut State College New Britain, Connecticut 

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
Oracle Financial Module Training Hyperion Business Planning Software Seminar 

Government Contracting Seminar CMA Study Courses AMA Financial Analysis Courses 
Investool Seminar
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Sandra M. Wear 

Professional Experience 

Desire To Retire, LLC   Feb 07 – present 
CEO and Co-Founder 
Responsible for setting the vision and tone of the company via: 

Development of the organization in accordance with its evolving business plan
Collaboration with industry professionals to ensure offerings to partners are both substantial and
beneficial
Hiring talent through outsourcing to meet business goals and timelines

Multiple Myeloma Research Consortium (non-profit), Norwalk, CT  Apr 07- June 12
Associate Director, Consortium Operations reporting directly to the Chief Medical Officer
Provided strategic operational leadership focused on execution of MMRC Phase 1 and 2 clinical trials within 
the field of multiple myeloma:

Developed the MMRC PM (Project Management) infrastructure with associated processes and
technologies to meet corporate mission of rapid execution of MMRC’s Phase 1 and 2 trials.
Developed contingency plans to mitigate risks to approved clinical trials (plans, timelines and
budgets); reported project progress to Executive Management.
Implemented EDC system designed to capture, analyze and report performance metrics across the
membership of academic centers.
Managed MMRC operational budget forecasts and spend; recommended adjustments to PM
strategies/operational plans to optimize corporate objectives.

Endpoint Research, Mississauga, Canada  
Vice President, Regional Monitoring Operations      2006-2007 
Served in leadership role accountable for: 

Development of CRA management infrastructure / monitoring division.
Contract profitability and delivery of quality monitoring services to industry clients.
Setting of department goals in alignment with corporate objectives.

MannKind Corporation, Danbury, CT 
Sr. Manager Clinical Process and Training & Clinical Trial Manager    2004-2006 
Managed scientific and operational aspects of clinical projects (CROs, contractors, budgets, timelines, 
finances, and resources). Supervised staff through career development and annual appraisals and 
contributed to the overall development of the clinical department including:  

Development of job descriptions for clinical operations personnel and clinical SOPs.
Establishment of an electronic Global Library comprised of SOPs, template forms and trial conduct
documents streamlining the process of training new / CRO staff.

Purdue Pharma - Stamford, CT 
Asst. Director, Clinical Operations, Monitoring       2002-2004 
Assembled and managed a new regionally-based monitoring division within the Clinical Operations division 
of the Medical Research department.  Highlights include:  

Hired and trained CRA Managers and expanded the department by forty regionally-based,
contracted CRAs.
Developed CRA Management Guidelines and CRA metrics reporting systems.
Developed processes and procedures for a newly established PRC (Protocol Review Committee)
with a view to reduce protocol amendments after release to investigators/Central IRBs.

Quintiles Transnational - Mountain View, CA 1997- 2002 
Project Manager (2000 - 2002) 
Accountable for cross-functional team management on Phase 2 programs in lung and colon cancer. 

Maintained communications and focused project activities to ensure timelines, revenues and
customer satisfaction was achieved on all assigned projects.
Developed comprehensive Safety Management Plan setting a new standard for Quintiles.
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Manager, Clinical Monitoring (1997 – 2000) 
  Managed and supervised between 10 -14 CRAs (office based and regional)

Achieved CRA utilization rates of between 90-100% with low employee turn-over rate
Obtained certification as Quintiles Corporate University Instructor within 18 months of employment

Pharmacia & UpJohn Inc. - Don Mills, Ontario, Canada 1989-1997
Clinical Research Manager   (1996 – 1997) 
Supervised Canadian operations activities on pivotal Phase 3 International clinical study for prevention of 
DVT in hip replacement surgery 

Managed all trial aspects including contract agreements with investigators, CRO and independent
contractors and executed payments as per schedule.
Provided clinical trial leadership and monitoring guidance to field-based CRAs and investigator site
personnel plus managed the process of endpoint adjudication for central X-rays (the key endpoint in
this pivotal trial) across all sites in Canada and US.

Clinical Research Associate/Sr. CRA   (1994 – 1996) 
Conducted all monitoring and management activities on assigned clinical trials at investigator sites

Jr. Product Manager - Cardiovascular Devices (1993 – 1994) 
Developed, implemented and monitored a focused marketing launch plan for a new central IV line targeted 
for patients with breast cancer 

Trained 6 regional sales reps on device benefits and use.  Worked directly with surgeons and
radiologists in outpatient surgical suites to provide support during implantation procedures.

Key Account Manager (1989 – 1993) 
Attained annual sales objectives while managing important key customer relationships including negotiating 
RFPs and resolving supplier and customer issues 

Hospitals of Ontario - Hamilton and Mississauga, Ontario, Canada 
Registered Nurse  1980-1989
Performed all aspects of nursing care including direct patient care and supervisory activities 

Areas of nursing expertise - gastrointestinal, cardiovascular and thoracic disease management
including post operative rehabilitation; active oncology, hematology and palliative care.
Experienced as Nursing Team Leader and Primary Care Nurse

Education, Training 
Mohawk Nursing College, Nursing Graduate, Dean's Honors List - - Hamilton, Ontario Canada 
Quintiles University Corporate Courses (1997-2002);
American Management Association: Leadership Conference (Aug 2000);
Leading for Success - Purdue Center for Continuous Learning February (2004) 

Professional Memberships 
American Society of Quality – member since 2006 
American Society of Clinical Oncology – member since 2009 
Nurse’s College of Ontario – member since 1980 

Presentations: 
Nov 2009 - AACR Triple Meeting (Poster) – Decreasing the time to activate clinical trials – Initial data from 
the Multiple Myeloma Research Consortium (MMRC); Boston, MA;  
Dec 2010 - American Society of Hematology (Poster) - The Multiple Myeloma Research Consortium 
(MMRC) Model:  Reduced Time to Trial Activation and Improved Accrual Metrics; Orlando, FL  
Dec 2011 - American Society of Hematology (Oral Presentation) – The Multiple Myeloma Research 
Consortium (MMRC) Model:  Accelerated Start Up and Accrual Metrics Speeds Drug Development;
San Diego, CA 

References:  
Will be provided upon request 







KAREN A. DIETZ, JD, MBA
       

 

EXPERIENCE

MULTIPLE MYELOMA RESEARCH FOUNDATION, INC., (MMRF) Norwalk, CT  February 2009 - Present
In-House Counsel / Corporate Secretary 
Additional responsibilities with promotion include: 

As the senior attorney, work with executive management to develop business strategies, identify legal
issues and propose solutions.
Draft and negotiate vendor, consultant, and employee agreements and policies, including the employee
handbook.
Manage and ensure protection of company intellectual property.
Draft HIPAA/HITECH Security Policies and oversee annual security audit of biorepository database.
Work with Chief Operating Officer and Finance Department to manage business accreditations, state
and federal tax-exempt filings, and monetary and non-monetary donations. Drafted Endowment
Investment and Spending Policies.
Attend Board of Director meetings, provide guidance on corporate compliance, manage Board member
terms, annual conflict of interest disclosures, Board Conflict of Interest Committee, draft Bylaw and
Code of Ethics revisions, resolutions, meeting minutes and other Board documents, and manage
corporate records for both the MMRF and its wholly owned subsidiary, the Multiple Myeloma Research
Consortium, Inc. (MMRC).
Draft and manage documents between the MMRF and MMRC.
Manage legal department staff, outside counsel, and legal department budget.

Counsel, Contracts Administration  March 2007 - February 2009
Draft and negotiate venture capital model contracts with biotech companies, including equity, royalties,
licenses, change of control and march-in rights.
Draft and negotiate multi-party clinical trial and basic research agreements between leading academic
cancer centers and pharmaceutical companies.
Organize and lead annual legal roundtable attended by attorneys from pharmaceutical companies and
cancer centers to create contract templates (clinical trial agreement, consortium member agreement,
validation agreement, confidentiality agreement), which have significantly decreased negotiation time.

UNITED STATES JUNIOR CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  May 2007 - December 2007
National Legal Counsel (pro bono)

Provided general legal advice and negotiated contracts.
Annual review of Bylaws and Policies.

SCIBELLI ENTERPRISE CENTER, Springfield, MA  January 2006 - April 2006
Law Student Intern 

Prepared privacy policy, employee handbook, licensing agreement, and trademark application.
Presented guidelines on company formation to local entrepreneurs at Small Business Association.

LAW OFFICE OF ATTORNEY RAYMOND C. LUBUS, New Fairfield, CT August 2002 - March 2006
Paralegal (part time 2003-2006 during law school)

Prepared court documents for business, criminal, probate, and civil litigation cases, including personal
injury, property disputes, and family matters.
Prepared business documents, including state business filings, start-up and dissolution documents,
partnership agreements, bylaws, third-party business contracts, and liens and real estate closing
documents.
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PRESENTATIONS 

Licensing Executives Society, Spring Meeting, panelist 2012
National Association of College and University Attorneys, panelist  2008
Massachusetts Small Business Association, Springfield Chapter, presenter 2006

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS

American Bar Association  Junior Chamber International (Jaycees)
Connecticut Bar Association   United States Junior Chamber 
Connecticut Bar Corporate Counsel Section Connect icut Junior Chamber
Licensing Executives Society  Hartford Junior Chamber 

COMMUNITY SERVICE AND AWARDS

DANBURY JUNIOR CHAMBER (Executive VP, President, Chairman of Board) 2002 - 2010
ANCELL SCHOOL OF BUSINESS CITIZENSHIP AWARD   2000
BOY SCOUT EXPLORER GOLD AWARD (Eagle Scout Equivalent)  1999

EDUCATION

WESTERN NEW ENGLAND UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF LAW, Springfield, MA  May 2006
Doctor of Jurisprudence Top 1/3 of class
Competitively Selected for National Environmental Moot Court 
Student Bar Association Representative
Best 1L Oral Advocate - Section 2A 
Ski Club, Vice-President

WESTERN NEW ENGLAND UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF BUSINESS, Springfield, MA June 2006
Master of Business Administration GPA 3.76/4.00

WESTERN CONNECTICUT STATE UNIVERSITY, Danbury, CT May 2000
Bachelor of Science GPA 3.47/4.0 
Major in Justice and Law Administration, Paralegal Concentration 
Minor in Business Administration  
Student Government, Sr. Senator 1999 - 2000
Justice and Law Honor Society, President 1999 - 2000  
Justice and Law Club 1998 - 2000
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LIQUID WEB HIPAA COMPLIANT HOSTING

Liquid Web HIPAA Compliant Hosting

Protect Your Users With Liquid Web’s Paramount Peace of Mind
As Liquid Web has grown, we’ve come to host many enterprises that utilize and/or transfer highly confidential information. 
Often, the consequences of the loss or compromise of this data could cause irreparable damage to our clients’ reputations, if
not even more serious legal penalties. Considering this, we have crafted the ideal plan to ensure that your data is secured 
by HIPAA compliance standards.

Liquid Web Features:

HIPAA Compliant Network Solutions
A Multitude of Physical Security Measures Beyond Those Required
Extensive Data Security Measures
High Availability Infrastructure
A 24/7/365 ON-SITE HIPAA Trained Staff

When choosing a host, it is important to consider the physical data center(s) where your information will be stored. If that 
data includes sensitive and/or confidential information, the importance of this decision is magnified considerably. All Liquid 
Web Data Centers are designed to provide you with the tools to ensure compliance physically, environmentally and across 
the entire network infrastructure in addition to around the clock HIPAA-trained Heroic Support® engineers available, on-site, 
whenever you need them.

Compliance with HIPAA requires organizations to implement safeguards and security standards when electronically storing 
and transmitting personal health information. HIPAA mandates standardized formats for all patient health, administrative and 
financial data. While Liquid Web does not offer full HIPAA compliance certification, we do offer separate services to ensure 
that technical controls and physical security policies are in place to ensure your server is HIPAA compliant. It is 
recommended that Liquid Web customers consult with a certified Auditor in order to ensure their application will be 
compliant. A Business Associate Agreement (BAA) is available upon request, which will require the acquisition of server 
configurations that meet minimum security requirements shown below:

SINGLE SERVER CONFIGURATION
RECOMMENDED FOR HIPAA COMPLIANT HOSTING

Single Dedicated Server for Web & Database Use
Guardian Continuous Backup Protection
Cisco Firewall
Hardware Disk Raid Configurations
Hot Swappable Disk Chassis
Physically Locked Cabinets



Fully Managed with Heroic Support®

Configure Linux
Configure Windows

MULTIPLE SERVER CONFIGURATION
RECOMMENDED FOR HIPAA COMPLIANT HOSTING

Web Server with Separate Database Server
Guardian Continuous Backup Protection
Cisco Firewall
Hardware Disk Raid Configurations
Hot Swappable Disk Chassis
Physically Locked Cabinets
Fully Managed with Heroic Support®

Configure Linux
Configure Windows

HIPAA Compliance Features:
Data Center Physical System Security

Minimize Risk of Loss and Theft

o 24x7x365 manned facility
o Multiple closed circuit tv security cameras, covering all entrances and datacenter space. Such system is operated

24/7/365 by a third party Security Company.
o Site entrance controlled by electronic perimeter access card system

Minimize Risk of Damage

o Liquid Web Data Centers are high security facilities.
o Liquid Web Owns and Operates private Data Centers, which allows us to design, build and maintain ideal server

environment.
o Our Data Centers have been designed using reinforced poured concrete, which provides high strength, high tensile

strain, good bond with thermal compatibility which results in durability in the concrete within the external walls.
o We are located in premium geographic locations, neutral to natural phenomena such as earthquakes or hurricanes.

Fire Prevention

o Dry Pipe Preaction, Double Interlock System.
o Resistant to high and low external ambient temperatures, preventing damage to the fire suppression system.
o Compliant with NFPA 13 regulation and divided into regions for effective use.
o Effective in ensuring server protection in case of accidental physical damage to the sprinkler system.
o Requires that both a “preceding” fire detection event, typically the activation of a heat or smoke detector, and an

automatic sprinkler operation take place prior to the “Action” of water introduction into the system piping.



Entry Security - Access Controls

o All exterior entrances secured by mantraps with interlocking doors.
o Access to the Data Center space requires proximity badge with names and employee pictures printed on them.
o Visitors are required to provide a valid official government issued identification or driver’s license and sign in prior

entering facilities. All visitors are escorted by designated employees at all times. Visitors are required to wear a visible
VISITOR’s badge at all times. These badges DO NOT have access to any electronic doors.

o Only authorized personnel can access Data Center where servers are physically located.

Uninterruptible Power Supplies (UPS)

o Multiple N+1 MPS Generators.
o Multiple fuel contracts around the State that ensure fuel availability for generators.
o Multiple N+1 UPS Systems with 30 minute minimum runtime.
o Server Chassis with redundant power supplies in combination with A+B power configurations available (Different

UPS and Generator circuit paths).
o Redundant ASCO Closed Transition Bypass Isolation Transfer Switches.
o Capability to provide Tier-4 Power
o Four 10 megawatt feeds available
o Diverse paths from substation
o 2N power available

SSAE-16 (formerly SAS70) & Safe Harbor Compliant.

Security Zones

Office space is separated from Data Center Space. Proximity badges are required to access Data Center space.

All Employees are screened upon employment.

Physical server rack enclosures are available that guarantee private server space. These racks are equipped with key
locks to prevent unauthorized access.

Component level redundancy available for hard drives including hot and cold spare onsite servers.

Technical Security
Network Configuration and Security

Network Device Management



o Hardware Cisco Firewall Devices available with full management by qualified Engineers available 24/7/365. Our
Engineers are able to provide best practice recommendations for Network Device Passwords (Customer’s
responsibility). In addition, we are able to provide assistance with logging for Network devices, Application Servers
and Critical Devices. Liquid Web can provide assistance with best practice recommendations, customers are
responsible for implementing, maintaining and reviewing log information via a set policy including retention.

o Our Engineers can provide assistance with Hardware firewall configuration in an effort to implement outbound and
inbound traffic filtering (Leased managed Cisco device required).

o Intrusion Detection/Intrusion Prevention Modules available.
o Network redundancy options available to ensure failover.
o Diverse connectivity fiber paths into building
o Dedicated meet-me room
o Bandwidth co-op solutions
o Carrier neutral
o On-net transport to most major global cities

Remote VPN

o We offer remote secure VPN implementations and management with our leased Cisco devices which assist with:

Encryption (Triple DES or AES)
Authentication (Site-to-Site VPN Tunnels) with strong passwords, pre-shared key and certificate
DMZ Implementations
Assistance with log management and monitoring.

Backup Management
Liquid Web Guardian is a fully managed robust backup solution that provides continuous data protection and off-site 
disaster recovery for Linux and Windows Dedicated Servers. Liquid Web Guardian uses replication and synchronization, 
with point-in-time snap shots, to provide up to the minute data protection of your complete server configuration. In the case 
of a catastrophic event, our Sonar® Monitoring Team recovers your exact server configuration to what it was several minutes 
before the event occurred. In other words, Liquid Web Guardian is a Backup solution that continuously captures your 
entire system configuration to an off-site facility which allows for up to the minute recovery of your information.

Features

Continuous Backups During normal host operation, the Liquid Web Guardian agent keeps a journal of disk changes.
Incremental backups know what sectors on the disk have changed before the backup operation even starts. Guardian’s
method is less resource intensive than traditional file-by-file or block-by-block backup methods.

Incremental Snapshots Our technology provides consistent point-in-time system-wide backup images.

Bare-Metal Disaster Recovery Restore servers directly from disk-based backup. Unlike traditional backup software,
there is NO need to first partition your drive and install the operating system. Bare-Metal-Recovery greatly increases
the speed of complete system recovery from a catastrophic failure.

High Performance, Low System Impact Sector based backups increase throughput and reduce overhead. Servers
can be fully operational with minimal performance impact during backups. Backups can usually be performed at
anytime, even on busy servers.



 cPanel Administration Plug-in Our Managed Dedicated Server customers who are running Linux can take advantage 
of the Liquid Web Guardian cPanel Plug-in, accessible directly from your cPanel interface for easy management of your 
backups. 

 MySQL Database Backup Plug-in Continuous table level backup of MySql databases is available as an optional 
plugin. 

 Disk Safe Data Encryption available The Disk Safe feature allows us to safely store your backup data by encrypting it 
on our nodes. This feature can’t be disabled later, it has to be configured with a fresh backup snapshot. Disk Safe 
currently supports encryption using 128-bit RSA Keys and the Blowfish Cipher for symmetric encryption. 

Security Services 

 

 Server Secure Plus - We have innovated on top of our exclusive ServerSecure™ installation service. A setup option 
available for our dedicated servers, ServerSecure™ ensures optimal compatibility, paramount integrity and the most 
efficient usage of your server/servers. We have upgraded this service to iron-clad standards by adding daily CSX scans 
and a multitude of server hardening features available exclusively to those opting for ServerSecurePLUS™. What would 
have taken hours of installation work and the help of an outside system administrator, is now at your fingertips with the 
help of ServerSecure™ and ServerSecurePLUS™. 

o Brute Force Detection and Evasion 
o Apache DOS Prevention/Protection 
o E-Mail Virus Filtering 

Exclusive to ServerSecurePLUS™ 

o Daily CSX Scan 
o SSH/cPanel/FTP Hardening 
o WebServer & PHP Hardening 
o Monthly Nessus® vulnerability scans 

 DDOS Attack Protection/Mitigation 

o Detect and block emerging application-layer 
o DDoS attacks 
o Deploy a turnkey solution to stop threats 
o Accelerate responses to DDoS attacks to prevent legitimate services from going down 
o Prevent illegitimate botnet communications by leveraging real-time security intelligence 
o Mitigate volumetric attacks 
o Block illegitimate traffic from costing you money in bandwidth charges 
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I. INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONER’S TRUST SERVICES REPORT 

To the Management of Liquid Web, Inc.: 

Scope 
We have examined Management’s assertion that as of  J une 30, 20 13, L iquid Web, Inc. (Liqu id Web) 
maintained effective controls over the web hosting services and supporting systems based on the AICPA 
and CICA trust services availability and security criteria to provide reasonable assurance that:  

The systems were available for operation and use, as committed or agreed;

The systems were protected against unauthorized access (both physical and logical)

Liquid Web’s management is responsible for this assertion. Our resp onsibility is to express an  op inion 
based on our examination. Management’s description of the aspects of the hosting services and 
supporting s ystems c overed b y its ass ertion is at tached. We di d not  exam ine t his d escription, an d 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion on it.   

Our exam ination was conducted i n accordance wit h attestat ion standards estab lished b y the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and included (1) obtaining an understanding of Liquid Web’s 
relevant controls over the availability and security of the web hosting services and supporting systems; (2) 
testing a nd evaluating th e op erating ef fectiveness of  the c ontrols; an d (3)  perf orming s uch other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides 
a reasonable basis for our opinion.   

Inherent limitations 
Because of their nature and inherent limitations of controls, Liquid Web’s ability to meet the 
aforementioned c riteria m ay be af fected. For exam ple, contro ls m ay n ot pre vent, or d etect a nd correct 
error or fraud, una uthorized access to s ystems and in formation, or f ailure t o c omply with i nternal an d 
external policies or requ irements. The proj ection of an y c onclusions b ased o n our f indings t o f uture 
periods is subject to the risk that changes may alter the validity of such conclusions.  

Opinion 

In our opinion, management’s assertion referred to above is fairly stated, in all material respects, based 
on the AICPA and CICA trust services security and availability criteria. 

Farmington Hills, Michigan 
August 23, 2013

A member of UHY International, 
a network of independent accounting and consulting firms
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II. MANAGEMENT’S ASSERTION
Liquid Web’s Assertion:

As o f Ju ne 30 , 20 13, Li quid Web, i n al l m aterial respects maintained ef fective controls over the w eb
hosting services based on the AICPA and CICA trust services criteria for security and system availability 
set forth in TSP section 100, Trust Services Principles, Criteria, and Illustrations for Security, Availability, 
Processing I ntegrity, Co nfidentiality, a nd P rivacy (AICPA, Technical P ractice Ai ds). W e confirm, to the 
best of our knowledge and belief, that: 

The system was protected against unauthorized access (both physical and logical)

The system was available for operation and use, as committed or agreed

Further, Liquid Web confirms that to the best of our knowledge and belief, that 

The controls related to the trust services criteria were s uitably designed and operated effectively 
as of  J une 3 0, 2 013 to a chieve t hose c ontrol ob jectives. T he c riteria we use d in  m aking th is 
assertion were that  

i. The risks that threat en the achievement of  the c ontrols related to the trust s ervices
criteria have been identified by Liquid Web.

ii. The control s rel ated to t he trust servi ces criteria would, if operat ing as d escribed,
provide re asonable ass urance tha t thos e ris ks w ould not pr event th e c ontrol
objectives stated in the trust services criteria from being achieved.
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III. DESCRIPTION OF THE LIQUID WEB SYSTEM USED TO MANAGE
AND CONTROL WEB HOSTING SERVICES 

Liquid Web Inc. Overview 
Liquid Web Inc. is a privately held managed web hosting company founded in 1997, with four data center 
facilities located in L ansing, M ichigan and Phoenix, A rizona. L iquid Web is  a lead er in t he professional 
web hosting market with an unwavering dedication to providing the best hosting products available. Liquid 
Web has  over 20, 000 c lients served i n o ver 120 countries. Liqu id Web received the IN C.5000 F astest 
Growing Companies award in 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, and 2012. 

Description of Relevant Transactions Processed 
Liquid Web provides limited transaction processing. Transactions are focused on providing web-hosting 
services. Transactions include:  

Help Desk tickets and other technical support requests
Requests for changes to equipment configuration
Requests for new or additional servers and/or services
Requests for updates or modifications to existing servers and/or services

Transactions proc essed b y Liquid Web on beh alf of  c ustomers are ini tiated, auth orized, r ecorded, 
processed, and reported via the Liquid Web website and the help desk system. Via the help desk system 
and the Liquid Web website clients may: 

Monitor hardware and services
Generate and track support requests
Monitor bandwidth usage and history
Initiate online chat sessions with support personnel
Upload and download documents
View Invoices and Contracted Services
Add or Remove Services via the website

Customer di rected changes to hosted servers and services can also be performed v ia cPanel, a  c lient 
control pa nel interface. c Panel a utomates an d s implifies the  adm inistration of  customer machines b y 
supplying a client control panel to any domain names customers add to their server, which includes all of 
the f eatures located un der Li quid Web c ontrol. cPanel a lso s upplies a webhost m anager interf ace f or 
customer usage t o add a ccounts a nd perf orm many o f th e basic a dministrative tasks which w ould 
normally be very complex without the assistance of cPanel.  

Liquid Web also receives transactions via email, online chat, and by phone. 

Certain m onitoring act ivities are aut omated an d will ge nerate a lerts in  v arious f ormats bas ed on  
significant events a nd c onditions. Refer to Environmental Mon itoring and Threat M anagement on 
subsequent pages.   

A variety of web based reporting tools are a vailable to customers. Refer to “Liquid Web Heroic Support” 
on page 8. Clients have flexibility to customize reporting and alerts based on their preferences. Billing and 
other f inancial rep orts are  s tandardized based on the client’s Statement of Work and the services 
selected.  

Control Environment Elements 
Liquid Web’s control environment reflects the position taken by management, its Board of Directors, and 
others c oncerning the im portance of  c ontrols and the em phasis given t o controls in i ts po licies, 
procedures, methods, and organizational structure. The following is a description of the key elements of 
Liquid Web’s web hosting services:   

Management Oversight
Organizational Structure
Personnel Policies and Procedures
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Management Oversight
The oversight of the day-to-day operations of the Company is under the direction of the President and the 
Executive M anagement Team c onsisting of  the  v arious he ads of f unctional de partments. The 
Management Team meets on a weekly basis to review the results of operations, discuss unusual activity 
or events, review key metrics and financial results, and discuss other matters important to the operation of 
the Company. 

In addition, the Executive Management Team is responsible for: 

Reviewing the professional services to be provided by Liquid Web’s independent auditors
and the independence of such auditors;
Reviewing the scope and results of all audits - internal and external;  and
Reviewing the system of internal accounting controls and other matters relating to Liquid
Web’s web hosting services.

Organizational Structure 
The Organiz ation em ploys a s taff o f approx imately 300 pe ople. Liquid Web i s di vided into o perating 
departments, which provide a f ramework for planning, directing, and controlling its operations. Personnel 
and business functions are segregated into distinct process units listed here:  

Sales and Marketing – R esponsible f or al l new b usiness dev elopment f or the c ompany as
well as Account Management.
Finance a nd Administration – Supports the c ompany in all tra ditional Fi nance, Ac counting
and G&A f unctions including m aintaining t he General Ledger, Accounts Pa yable, Accounts
Receivable, Fixed Assets, and Human Resources.
Operations – Responsible for the data center, network infrastructure, client’s deployments,
and managed services. Supports all technologies, i ncluding, but not lim ited to: hardware,
software programs, s oftware development, n etworks, desktops, telecommunications, and
security.

Personnel Policies and Procedures 

Liquid Web’s controls cover all critical aspects of employment, including hiring, training and development, 
performance appra isals, and term inations. In a ddition, a ll em ployees h ave a ccess to an em ployee 
handbook, pol icies, an d procedures. Changes to these doc uments are  c ommunicated to exis ting 
personnel in writing. The sensitivity of  the j ob determines the level of  background checks performed on 
applicants before his/her employment.  

The Human Resources Department is  primarily responsible for recrui ting and evaluating j ob applicants. 
Hiring practices are designed to ensure that new employees are qualified for their job responsibilities. The 
Human Resources Department and the m anagement of the department hiring the employee must jointly 
approve each hiring of a n ew employee. Liquid Web has a s tructured interview process, which includes 
application screening, a screening interview, testing, and interviews.  

Training of  pers onnel is  accomplished t hrough s upervised o n-the-job tra ining and  i n-house c lasses. 
Certain pos itions require the completion of  special tr aining. Department managers are al so responsible 
for enc ouraging th e tra ining an d d evelopment of  em ployees s o th at all p ersonnel c ontinue t o im prove 
their skills applicable to their functional responsibilities.  

Risk Assessment Process 
Liquid Web recognizes that risk management is  a c ritical component of  i ts operation that helps ensure 
that ass ets are  pro perly m anaged an d c lients a re prop erly s erved. Through regu lar an d open 
communication am ong s taff, management, and its c lient b ase, Li quid Web i dentifies ri sks th at co uld 
negatively im pact the security of  the business. For an y s ignificant ris ks that are identified an d 
communicated, the Executive Management Team is responsible for implementing appropriate measures 
to monitor and manage these risks. Appropriate measures may include the addition or revision of control 
procedures, c onducting s pecific in vestigations, or  any other m eans nec essary t o pro vide ad equate 
control.  
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Monitoring 
Management and s upervisory personnel ar e respon sible f or monitoring th e q uality of i nternal c ontrol 
performance as a routi ne part of  their da ily d uties. To ass ist the m, Li quid W eb uti lizes a s eries of  
management reports  an d oth er m ethods to m onitor the  bus iness. Key re ports are r eviewed by 
management to help ens ure appropriate action is  taken as needed. If issues arise that c annot be readily 
resolved, issues are escalated to the Executive Management Team.  

Liquid Web Data Centers 
Liquid Web's data center locations are staffed by highly skilled engineers around the c lock. Liquid Web 
data centers are designed with redundancy installed at every level, ensuring that a failure at any level will 
not af fect your s erver. Liquid Web data c enters p ower is  c onditioned and reliab le t hrough t he use  of  
centralized U PS so lutions b acked by  sta te-of-the-art gen erator t echnology. Liqui d Web's netw ork is  
robust and reliable. We exclusively utilize premium Tier-1 bandwidth providers, ensuring minimal latency 
and fast connections to all points of the global internet. 

Security On-Site 
Datacenter access i s s trictly limited t o t echnical sta ff. El ectronic se curity systems co ntrol data cen ter 
access and are accompanied by a f ull complement of  motion detecting security cameras which monitor 
the e ntire f acility. Our Dat acenter f acility exter nal walls are  reinf orced pour ed c oncrete. We are a f ully 
managed facility, which means we have level 3 t echnicians on s ite 24 hours per day, a llowing incident 
response times to be kept to a minimum.  

All D atacenter visitors are  requ ired to  reg ister a nd wear a visitor ba dge at  al l ti mes. All vi sitors a re 
escorted by a Liquid Web associate at all times while on site.   

Power Systems 
Our po wer s ystems feature extens ive f ault t olerance an d resi lience at e very layer. Incom ing servi ce i s 
routed u nderground t o a dedicated o n-site trans former. This s ystem routes t o o ur a utomatic tra nsfer 
switch that monitors power quality, and automatically transfers to our emergency generators in the event 
they are ne eded. Each facility is  also protec ted by one or m ore un interruptible Power Supplies (UP S), 
featuring re dundant battery cabinets, a nd f ull m aintenance bypass ca binets al lowing fo r se rvice a nd 
upgrades without interruption of power to our servers.  

Power d istribution units h andle f inal po wer tra nsformation a nd di stribution to ra cks, e nsuring cle an 
consistent power to data center equipment. 

Each f acility has m ultiple em ergency generators waiting o n s tandby, f eaturing o ver 24 hours of  
autonomous runtime before requiring refueling. Each generator is test run at least once a week to ensure 
they are ready in the event they are needed. Generator fuel is maintained in sub-base storage tanks that 
are locked.  

Liebert Precis ion p ower dis tribution u nits ha ndle f inal po wer trans formation a nd di stribution t o rack s, 
ensuring clean consistent power to data center equipment.  

Generator power is activated automatically in the event of a uti lity failure by the transfer switch. The data 
center load is m aintained by the U PS u nits with at l east 1 5 m inutes of  c apacity, ho wever t his is not 
necessary as the generator is active and up to speed within 10 seconds of a power failure.  

Cooling 
Environmental proc essing systems include re dundant Li ebert Precis ion 22 ton up  flow ai r conditioning 
units. T emperature and hu midity ar e prec isely m onitored and reg ulated year r ound to  e nsure o ptimal 
equipment reliability. Alerts are sent to Operat ions personnel any time temperature or humidity is outside 
an established range. Each unit contains independent compressors and cooling loops to further enhance 
fault to lerance a nd re liability. Air f iltration s ystems actively rem ove f oreign particulates f rom c irculation 
and cycle the entire data center air supply in a matter of minutes.  
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Fire and Smoke 
Each facility is monitored with state of the art smoke and fire detection systems. In the unlikely event of a 
fire, automated fire suppression systems are also in place. 

The Liquid Web Network 
The Li quid Web network  has bee n des igned t o ac commodate c lients dem anding the highest quality 
network perf ormance. There is  a c entral f ocus on re dundancy a llowing our  n etwork to rapidly s elf-heal 
failures without i nterruptions to conn ectivity. Our redundancy is  multi-tiered with N+1 int ernal device 
elements as well as e ntirely re dundant chassis allowing a ny routing d evice to  f ail w ithout interrupting 
client data connectivity. All core routing and switching equipment is state of the art Cisco.   

Engineered by Liquid Web™
Unlike most providers , L iquid Web ow ns and operates i ts en tire infrastructure. B y engineering a nd 
controlling our inf rastructure personally, f rom routers  to servers, we are able to immediately respond to 
any issue d irectly. This means that the Liquid Web Engineers that you re ly on will have direct physical 
access to the server.  

Tier-1 Premium Bandwidth Providers 
Providing the highest quality Internet connectivity and performance is our top prio rity. We have selected 
premium Tier-1 bandwidth providers, ensuring m inimal latency and fast connections to a ll points of  the  
global internet. Our aggregate connectivity reaches an astounding 8,500+ networks just a single network 
away from our uplinks.  

Network architecture includes a dua l feed network fiber ring c onnected at t wo diverse points at op posite 
ends of the physical building. These network feeds take d iverse paths to separate telecommunications 
providers where separate colocation facilities house connections to multiple internet service providers.   

Core n etwork de vices are m aintained within a  l ocked c age f acility within the main dat a c enter. Only 
network administration personnel have access to the core network devices.  

Network arc hitecture i ncludes f our l ayers of f ull re dundancy. The f irst thre e la yers ar e c ontrolled 
exclusively by network adm inistrators, with  the  l owest le vel i ncluding limited a ccess b y the  c ustomer 
service group in order to facilitate customer access requests.  

Network Security 
The entire network is constantly monitored using a custom developed real time network monitoring and 
alerting s ystem. Any unusual or s uspicious ne twork acti vity is  highlighted and f orwarded t o ne twork 
administrators for investigation and resolution. 

Logical Security 

Liquid Web maintains a collection of more than 20 corporate policies dedicated to maintaining the security 
of the e quipment and the data in their facilities. Security policies are regularly reviewed and updated to 
account for changes in risks and technologies. Security policies are available at all times via the corporate 
intranet. All employees are required to read and acknowledge their understanding of all security policies 
as part of their initial orientation. Employees are also required to sign a c omprehensive non-disclosure 
agreement to ensure that client privacy and confidentiality is protected. 
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Logical Security (continued) 
Security Policies include but are not limited to the following topics: 

Acceptable Use Policy
E-mail policy
Password Policy
Information Sensitivity Policy
Personal Communication Device policy
Remote Access Policy
Malware Protection Policy
VPN security policy
Wireless Communication Policy

Liquid Web Heroic Support® Overview 

Liquid Web's Heroic Support® provides 24/7/365 access to level 3 engineers by phone or email, state of 
the art infrastructure engineered for complete reliability, software hardening to protect the integrity of your 
server, proactive monitoring and service restoration, complete user level tools for monitoring the health of 
your server, and if anything was to go wrong - a 100% up-time SLA.  

Heroic Support® provides our clients confidence and peace of mind through complete reliability, engineer 
accessibility, and proactive service restoration. 

Our av erage s upport req uest pho ne c all is  a nswered within 20 s econds, with an a verage e lectronic 
support response time of 30 minutes. 

Our Support Staff 

Liquid Web has  establ ished a  world c lass Heroi c Support t eam that is prof essionally educated an d 
available o n-site at eac h data c enter 2 4 ho urs pe r da y. Liqu id Web c urrently employs 3 20+ Her oic 
Support engineers with specialties in Technical Support, Server Setup, Networking, Security and more.  

Liquid Web Sonar Monitoring® 

Sonar Monitoring is a ded icated division of Liquid Web solely focused on providing service reliability and 
immediate incident resolution. The Sonar Monitoring team utilizes a robust set of proprietary system level 
health and service monitoring tools to constantly ensure your server's optimal performance through early 
detection of  prob lems. In the event tha t a n issue is i dentified, ou r Sonar Monitoring T eam respo nds 
immediately, reducing downtime and re pairing any issues proactively, in many cases before the client is 
even aware of the problem.  

The So nar Monitoring team focuses on prevention of , as  well as immediate respo nse to, s ervice 
interruptions, whether th ey be sof tware, h ardware or  network-related. With the bul k of s ervice f ailures 
being pr evented b efore o ccurrence, and nearly all remaining s ervice f ailures be ing c orrected within 
minutes, the team  operates as a pe rsistent proactive manager of  c lient service consistency. The L iquid 
Web Sonar  Mo nitoring T eam has  enab led us to provide t he i ndustry's l eading 30-minute har dware 
replacement SLA.  

Comprehensive Statistics 

System statistics are presented to customers in an overview and drill down format, allowing clients to view 
all of their s erver s tatistics on a s ingle page, including m ultiple server accounts. Drill down capabilities 
include the ability to view details on any individual metric and view  the status graphically over a period of 
hours, days, or weeks.   

Trending is both easy and convenient and offers peace of mind that would oth erwise be impossible with
random s ampling. Without a to ol s uch as Sonar, off-hour perio ds of  s ervice degradation are nearly 
impossible to identify.  
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Sonar Improves Server Up-Time 

Without L iquid Web Sona r, f ailures of s ervices or severe s ervice de gradations are m ore s ingle hit 
scenarios where an incident occurs and a restore is in itiated with no c lear vector for repair of  the bas e 
cause.  
With Sonar in place, the failure of a s ervice will be detected and restoration will be initiated by technical 
staff, however with Liquid Web Sonar both client and technician are able to evaluate the forensic data of 
all critical statistics leading to that failure and correct the root of the issue. This powerful tool allows Liquid 
Web to s olve problems that c ould live for many months even with the most vigilant competing managed 
providers.  
Escalation capabilities are bui lt into the c ore of Sonar technology, ensuring that any complete system or 
service failures are instantly sent to the Liquid Web Service Restoration team for correction before clients 
even need be a ware. Li quid Web's Service Restoration T eam corrects a huge m ajority of  f ailures lo ng 
before the client is even a ware. The Service Restoration Team is a highly trained division of Liquid Web 
specializing in restorations of all levels tasked solely with the purpose of keeping the servers of our clients 
responsive at all times.  

Dedicated Server Service Level Agreement (SLA) 

Hardware Replacement Service Level Agreement 
Liquid Web guarantees t hat in t he event of a d edicated server hardware failure, the faulty hardware will 
be repl aced within 30 M inutes of  i dentifying the pro blem. In the ev ent t hat th is guarante e is  not m et, 
Liquid Web w ill issue a  c redit f or ten  t imes the actu al amount of  a dditional d owntime. T he am ount of 
compensation may not exceed the customer's monthly recurring charge. This guarantee does not include 
the time it requires to perform additional software related maintenance, including rebuilding web accounts 
from bac kups, c loning hard dri ves, reload ing the op erating s ystem, rel oading and c onfiguring 
applications, or rebuilding raid arrays.

Network Uptime Service Level Agreement 
Liquid Web guarantees network uptime to be 100%. This guarantee assures that all major routing devices 
within our network are reachable from the global internet 100% of the time.  

Network SLA Exclusions 
Many possible s ituations are completely beyond the control of  L iquid Web, and therefore are not  in the 
scope of this SLA. These situations include:   

Scheduled N etwork M aintenance - occasionally network maintenance will be  required. L iquid
Web will do everything possible to m inimize and avoid downtime during th is maintenance. You
will rece ive prior notification of  upc oming m aintenance at the em ail address we h ave o n f ile.
Scheduled maintenance periods are not eligible for SLA credits.

Hardware Maintenance - on rare occasions, the hardware in your Dedicated Server may need
maintenance or replacement. Liquid Web will do everything possible to minimize any downtime in
these s ituations per o ur h ardware re placement SL A. An y d owntime incurred a s a resul t of this
maintenance will not be counted towards our network SLA.

Software M aintenance - an im portant part of  m anaging a dedicated s erver is  k eeping the
software up to da te. If you choose to have Liquid Web manage your server, occasional software
updates will be required to address security or performance issues. Usually you wil l experience
little or no downtime in these situations, but we cannot guarantee a specific amount of time in a ll
situations.

Malicious Attacks - if a third party not associated with Liquid Web initiates a "Denial of Service"
or other form of disabling attack against your Dedicated Server or major portions of our network,
Liquid Web will do everything in its power to stop the attack, but c annot guarantee a resolution
time.

Legal A ctions - In the case that a legal act ion is taken against a c ustomer of  Liquid Web and
Liquid Web is required to act in accordance with the order, Liquid Web shall not be respo nsible
for any SLA damages.
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Network SLA Exclusions (continued)
cPanel Issues - if  you choose to run cPanel and Web Host Manager on your Dedicated Server,
the d efault inst all will be  c onfigured f or autom atic upd ates of  c Panel relat ed s oftware. On
occasion, one of these automatic updates could adversely affect all or part of the cPanel related
software on you s erver. L iquid Web w ill do whatever is  nec essary to f ix an y c Panel rel ated
problems, but cannot guarantee a resolution time.

Network SLA Remedy 
In the event that L iquid Web does not meet this SLA, Dedicated Host ing c lients wil l become eligible t o 
request c ompensation f or do wntime. If Li quid Web is  or is  not di rectly r esponsible f or c ausing th e 
downtime, the  customer wi ll receive a  c redit f or 10 ti mes (1 ,000%) the  actua l amount of dow ntime.
This means that if  your server is unreachable for 1 ho ur (beyond the 0.0% allowed), you will receive 10 
hours of credit.  

All requests for compensation must be received within 5 business days of  the incident in question. The 
amount of  compensation may no t exceed the customer's monthly recurring charge. This SLA does no t 
apply f or an y m onth tha t t he c ustomer has  been in breach of  Liqui d Web Terms of  Servic e or if  the  
account is in default of payment.  

Response Time SLA
Liquid Web's managed customers are c overed by our thirty-minute initial response time guarantee. That 
means that when you submit a trouble ti cket v ia our help desk system you are  guaranteed a r esponse 
from a Heroi c Sup port® t echnician within th irty m inutes. If  Li quid Web fails to respond within th irty 
minutes, you will be credited 10 times the am ount of time exceeding our SLA commitment. That means 
that if your ticket goes 1 hour past our stated initial response time guarantee, your account will receive a 
10 h our h osting credi t. A ll requests f or com pensation m ust be recei ved within 5 business da ys of  th e 
incident in question. T he am ount of  c ompensation may not exceed t he c ustomer's monthly r ecurring 
charge. T his SL A d oes no t app ly f or an y m onth tha t the c ustomer has  been in breach of  Liqui d Web 
Terms of Service or if the account is in default of payment.  
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User Control Considerations 

Liquid Web controls are  o nly a  p ortion of  t he overall control of  e ach c lient. Clients of  L iquid Web also 
need to  im plement an d m aintain ef fective i nternal c ontrols. This s ection highlights th ose c ontrols tha t 
Liquid Web believes should be present for each client. Liquid Web has considered the following controls 
in developing the c ontrols which are d escribed in Section IV of this report . Each client must evaluate its 
own internal controls to determine if the following controls and procedures are in place.  

Liquid Web's systems were designed with the assumption that certain controls would be implemented by 
user organ izations. In certain s ituations, the a pplication of  s pecific c ontrols at  user organizations is  
necessary to achieve certain control objectives included in this report.  

This section describes other internal control structure policies and procedures that should be in operation 
at user org anizations to c omplement the c ontrol s tructure po licies and procedures at L iquid Web. User 
auditors should consider whether the following policies and procedures have been placed in operation at 
user organizations:  

Each c ustomer must ac knowledge recei pt a nd un derstanding of  the T erms of  Servic e and
Service Level Agreement for the particular services they sign up for.
For customers that select optional backup of their data, a monitoring and backup system ensures
successful data backup. Verification of backup data and restoration of systems and data is solely
the responsibility of the customer.
Customer data bac kup is  an o ptional s ervice which is  pro vided by m aintaining backups o f
customer data. Procedures for maintaining customer data backups are available on the company
intranet.
Certain security functions may requ ire additional authentication by customer service reps ei ther
online or by telephone.
Liquid Web does not provide for data classification for customer data. Customers are responsible
for classification of their own data.
If Liquid Web’s default backup schedule is not selected, client is responsible for determining the
backup schedule that is appropriate for their business needs.
Client is responsible for maintaining accurate contact information with Liquid Web personnel.
Client is solely responsible for software and database maintenance.
For all layers of technology that are not specified in a client contract as Liquid Web’s
responsibility (including, but not lim ited to, networking, operat ing s ystem, datab ase, an d
application l ayers), t he c lient is r esponsible for pro perly a dministering a nd s ecuring relevant
layers of  tech nology (e .g., det ermining appropriate access, s egregation of  d uties, audit trails ,
etc.). Client is fully responsible for controlling access to s upervisor id and passwords that would
allow control over customer processing and data.
Clients are responsible for the review of metrics and statistics and for communicating any issues
with service levels to Liquid Web.
Liquid Web Terms of Service specify prohibited content, prohibited services and processes. It is
each client’s responsibility to agree to and abide by the Terms of Service.



QUIETSOURCE® SERIES 22-48 kW
AUTOMATIC STANDBY GENERATORS

The premium in home and 
    business backup power protection

Premium Features Paired  
with Extra Quiet Operation

Premium features are standard on 

Generac’s powerful QuietSource 

automatic standby generators.  

Ideal for larger homes and small 

to medium businesses, these 

commercial grade generators will 

keep your family, home and assets 

protected 24/7 from the potential 

dangers of a power outage. They 

start automatically in the event of a 

power outage and are fueled by the 

existing fuel supply.

Smart, User  
Friendly Controls 

Control generator 
diagnostics and 
get information at a 
glance with Generac’s 
user-friendly Nexus™ 
Controller—the 
most comprehensive 
available.

Premium, Quiet 
Commercial Engines

These engines run at 
1800 rpm for ultra-
quiet operation. They 
are built for the rigors 
of generator use, 
providing the reliability 
needed to power 
through even the  
most severe
power outages.

Remote Monitoring 
from the Comfort  
of Home

Wireless remote 
monitors (sold 
separately) allow you 
to observe generator 
status, set operation 
parameters and 
more—all without 
leaving the comfort of 
your home.

Premium Aluminum 
Enclosures with 
RhinoCoat Finish

Aluminum provides 
the ultimate protection 
from the elements. 
Add our RhinoCoat™ 
finish system that 
evenly joins paint 
particles to the metal 
surface for consistent 
coverage and you have  
exceptional protection 
on both the generator 
enclosure and the 
base frame. 



Ideal for homes requiring higher kW backup for amenities such as additional 
living areas, garages and air conditioners, pools, greenhouses, guest houses, 
mother-in-law suites, medical needs and more. Businesses gain a competitive 
advantage from the backup power of a QuietSource generator–restaurants, gas 
stations and other small and medium sized businesses can remain open for 
business while competitors have to shut down. 

liquid cooled engine, engineered
to run at only 1800 rpm for a substantially quieter generator, consuming less
fuel and giving both the engine and alternator a longer life

field for up to 45kW

Packs more power into a smaller footprint than competitive models

Specifications are subject to change without notice

 Rated Power (liquid propane/natural gas) 22/22 kW 27/25 kW 36/35 kW 48/48 kW 48/48kW

 Generator Model#

 Voltage (Single Phase) 240V

92 112 150 200 200

92 104 146 200 200

1800/1800

V-8

125 (3.4) 143 (3.9) 200 (5.5) 302 (7.96) 302 (7.96)

316 359 503 756 756

Yes

61 61 58 63 63

70 70 64 68 68

Gray

 Warranty

62.2 x 29 x 33.5 77 x 33.5 x 45

   Weight (lbs.) 843 891 1271 1516

n/a n/a

Generac Power Systems, Inc.

Waukesha, WI 53189
generac.com      

Nationwide Dealer Service Network
Generac’s commitment to service includes scheduled maintenance programs, warranty assistance and emergency service to ensure that Generac 
customers are never left powerless. The largest nationwide dealer network has factory trained technicians on staff and maintains large inventories 
of Generac parts, components and accessories. Find a dealer near you at generac.com.

22-48
KILOWATTS




































